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FOREWORD

“¢“We need not list the extensive investigations undertaken by

the 8.C.1. and their results, since the annual and interim reports
(of the 8.C.I.) contain that information. We are satisfied that
the S.C.L has performed effectively and has significantly advanced
the public interest.”’

Excerpt from the October 11, 1975
Report of the Governor's Committee
to Evaluate the New Jersey State
Commission of Investigation, former
Chief Justice Joseph Weintraub of
the New Jersey Supreme Court, Chair-
man.

““Our evaluation of the work of the 8.C.I. convinces us that
the agency has performed a very valuable function. . . . The current
public skepticism of governmental performance emphasizes the
confinuing need for a credible agency to delve into problems that
plague our institutions, an ageney which can provide truthful
information and sound recommendations.”’

Another excerpt from the Report of
the Governor's Committee to Evaluate
the New Jersey State Commission of
Investigation.

““Prosecuntorial agencies . . . are limifed in diseussing at length
or in detail specific criminal cases. In effect, then, there are no
public education capabilities on the part of my office, or other
prosecutorial agencies, comparable to those of the S.C.I.”’

Excerpt from the June 27, 1973 state-
ment of William F. Hyland, Attorney
General of the State of New Jersey,
before the Governor's Committee to
Evaluate the New Jersey State Com-
mission of Investigation.



“‘The deterrents from the 8.C.1. would be that, if there is a public
hearing, the problem would be aired and the public would be
informed, whereas in a criminal investigation you either return
an indictraent or generally do nothing.”’

Excerpt from public vemarks made in
January, 1975 by Matihew P. Boylan,
then the Director of the New Jersey
State Division of Criminal Justice.



ORIGIN AND -SCOPE OF THE COMMISSION -

Despite the Commission’s work bemg generally known through-
out the state, inquiries continue to be made about its orlgm and
its J'llI'lSdlCthIl and the nature of its operations and their 1mp0r—
tance to a better New Jersey. The Commission believes this im-
portant information should be convemently available, and, accord-
ingly, the pertinent facts are again summarized helow

The New Jersey State Commission of Investigation (8.C.L)
was an, outgrowth of extensive research and public hearings con-
ducted in 1968 by the Joint Legislative Committee to study Crime
and the System of Criminal Justice in New Jersey. That Committee
was under direction from the Legislature to find ways to correct
what appeared to be a serious and mtenmfymg erime problem in
New Jersey.

Indeed, by the late 1960s New Jersey had the embarassing ard
unattractlve image of being a corrupt haven for flourishing orga-
nized crime operations, William F. Hyland, Attorney General for
the State of New Jersey, vividly recalled that unfortunate era in
his June 27, 1975 statement before the Governor’s Commlttee to
Eva.luate the S.C.I. He said in part:

. our state quickly developed a national reputa-
: t:'ton as governmental cesspool, a bedroom for hired
killers and a dumping ground for their vietims.
Whether this was a deserved reputation was not
necessarily material. The significant thing was that
this became an accepted fact that seriously under-

- mined confidence in state law enforcement.”’

The Joint Legislative Committee in its report and recommenda-
tions issued in the Spring of 1968 found that a crisis in crime
control existed in New Jersey and that the expanding activities
of organized crime could be attributed to ‘‘failure to some consider-
able degree in the system itself, official corruption, or both.”’
Accordingly, the Committee offered a series of sweeping recom-
mendations for improving various areas of the criminal Juatlce
system in the state.

The two major priority recommendations were for a new State
Criminal Justice unit in the executive branch of government and
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an independent Stafe Commission of Investigation, patterned after
the high-level New York State Commission of Investigation, now
in its 18th year of probing crime, ofﬁclal oorruptlon and other
governmental abuses. ‘ =

The. Committee envisioned the assignments of the proposed
Criminal Justice unit and the proposed Commission of Investiga-
‘tion to-be complementary in the fight against crime and corruption.
The Criminal Justice unit was to be a relatively large organization
with extensive manpower and authority to coordinate and press
forward criminal investigations and prosecutions throughout the
state. The Commission of Investigation, like the New York Com-
misslon, was to be a relatively small but highly expert body which
would econduct fact-finding investigations, bring the facts to the
public’s attention, and make recommendations to the Govefmor
and the LeO‘lslature for 1mprovements in laws and the operations
of government ‘

The J oint Legislative Committee’s recommendations prompted
subsequent legislative and executive action. New Jersey now has
a. Criminal Justice Division in the State Department of Law and
Public Safety and an independent State Commission of Investiga-
tion* which is structured as a Commission of the Legislature. Nor
is there any conflict between the funetions of this purely 1nvest1ga—
tive, fact-finding Commission and the prosecutorial authorities of
the state. The latter have the responsibility of dlscermng viola-
tions of law and bringing the wrongdoers to punishment. This
Commigsion has the equally somber responsibilities of publicly
confronting the truth and recommending new laws to proteet the
mtegnty of the political process.

The “complementary role of the 8.C.I. -was underscored onece
more during 1975 by the Governor’s Committee to Evaluate the

*The b:ll -creating the New Jersey State Commission af Investigation was mtroduced
April 29, 1968 in the Senate; Legislative approval of that measure was’ completed
. September 4, 1968. The bill created the Commission for an initial. term. beginning
January 1, 1969 and ending December 31, 1974, It is cited as Public Law, 1968, Chapter
266, N.J. S.A. 52:0M-1 et seq. The Legislature on November 12, 1973 completed enact-
ment of a bill, cited as Public Law, 1973, Chapter 238, which cenewed the Commission
-for. another ferm ending December 31, 1979. As noted in this section of this annual
“Feport, the Governor's Committee to Evaluate the S.C.I. in its October 6, 1975 public

“t report has recommended that the Commission’s statute be amended to make the S C.I.
a permanent agency.



S.C.1.* which conducted a eomprehenswe, objective and impartial
analysis 'of the S.C.L’°s record and function. The Committee’s
members consisted of former Chief Justice Joseph Weintraub of
the New Jersey Supreme Court, former Associate Justice Nathan
L. Jacobs of that same Court, and former Judge Edward T.
Broderick of the New Jersey Superior Court. That Committee in
its October 6, 1975 public report based on its analysis rejected
sumrma,rily any suggestion that the S.C.]. duplicates work of other
agencles

Indeed the Committee found that the S.C.1.’s work demonstr&ted
convmcmgly that the Commission has performed a very. valuable
funetion and that there is continuing need for the 8.C.I.’s: con-
tributions to both the legislative process and the executive branch,
The Committee went on to conclude that it saw no likelihood that
the need for the S.C.I. will abate, and the Committee, therefore,
recommended amendment of the S.C.I.’°s statute to make the Oom-
mission a permanent rather than a temporary agency.

The complementary role of the S.C.I. also was stressed in a
statement made in June, 1975 by the then Director of the State
Division of Criminal Justice, Matthew P. Boylan. He stated in
part:

I have had the opportunity to work closely with
the State Commission of Investigation and it is my
opinion that this agency eﬁeotively plugs a gap in the
law enforcement network in New Jersey. This gap
‘which existed priorto the ereation of the 8.C.L is due
to the fact that traditional law enforcement investiga-
tive agencies either return an indictment based on the
development of investigative leads or, in rare situa-
tions, request that a grand jury return a presentment
exposing conditions in public institutions and agen-
t -t cies. There is no mechanism available to existing law -

- enforeement agencies other than the S.C.L to alert the - -
- public to the existence of conditions which requlre-“"--
- remedial legislation unless the traditional press Té--

lease or press conference is utilized, The drawback =

* The Governor’s Committee to Evaluate the S.C.I, was created in April, 1975 by execu-
tive order of the Governor after the introduction in the Senate of a bill to terminate the
S.C.I. touched off considerable public furor and criticism. The bill was subsequently
withdrawn and has not been reintroduced. A bill to implement the recommendations
of the Evaluative Committee to strengthen the S5.C.I. was introduced in the Senate in
June of 1976 under bi-partisan sponsorship.
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. of that method of informing the public is obvious.
Consequently, the S.C.I. is an independent agency
which can reveal throug'h a series of extended public.
hearings, conditions in the public domain which re-
quire remed1a1 action either by the Legislature or
through more diligent administration of emstmg laws.

" by the state, oounty or municipal ageneles entrusted
with their administration.

To insure the integrity and impartiality of the Commission, ho
more than two of the four Commissioners may be of the same
political party. Two Commissioners are appointed by the Governor
and one each by the President of the Senate and the Speaker of
the Assembly. It thus may be said the Commission by law is
bi-partisan and by concern and action is non-partisan.

Tlie primary and paramount statutory reSponmbﬂltles vested in
the Commission are set forth in Section 2 of its statute.® It
provides:

2. The Oom-mission s-h'all have the duty and power.:..
to conduct investigations in eonnection with:

(a) The faithful execution and effective enforce-
ment of the laws of the state, with particular
reference but not limited to organized crime
and racketeering. -

{b)} The conduct of public officers and pubhc'
employees, and of officers and employees of
public corporations and anthorities.

(e} Any matter concerning the public peace, pub—
lic safety and public justice. -

The statute provides further that the Commigsion shall _eonduct
investigations by direction of the Governor and by coneurrent
resolution of the Legislature. The Commission also shall conduect
investigations of the affairs of any state department or agency
at the request of the head of a department or agency.

=“’I‘he fult text of the Commission’s statute 1s included in the Appendices Sectmn of
thlS report.



* Thus, it edn be seen that the Commission, as an investigative,
fact-finding body,* has a wide range of statutory responsibilities.
Tt is highly mobile, may compel testimony and production of other
evidence by subpceena, and has authority to grant immunity to
witnesses. Although the Commission does not have mer may it
exercise any prosecutorial funetions, the statute does provide for
the Commission to refer information to prosecutorial authorities.

One of the Commission’s prime responsibilities when it uncovers
irregularities, improprieties, misconduet, or ecorruption, is to bring
the facts to the attention of the public. The objective is to insure
corrective action. The importance of public exposure was put most
succinetly by a New York Times news analysis article on the nature
of Investigation Commissions:

"~ Some people would put the whole business in the
lap of a District Attorney (presecutor), arguing that
if he does not bring indictments, there is not much
the people can do.

But this misses the primary purpose of the State
Investigation Commission. It is not to probe outright
eriminal acts by those in public employment. That is

~the job of the regular investigation arms of the law.

Instead, the Commission has been charged by the
Legislature to check on, and to expose, lapses in the
faithful and effective performance of duty by public
employees. ' :

Is sheer non-criminality to be the only standard of
behavior to which a public official is to be held?
Or does the public have a right to know of laxity,
inefficiency, incompetence, waste and other failures in
the work for which it pays?

* As a legislative, investigative agency, the 5.C.I. is not unigue, since investigative
agencies of the legislative branch of governmeni are as oid as the Republic. The first
full-fledged Congressional investigating committee was €stablished in 1792 to “inquire
into the causes of the failure of the last expedition of Major General St. Clair,” (3 Annal
of Congress 493 (1792)). Most recently the U.S. Senate Committee on the Watergate
matter brought forth at a public hearing the facts about gross abuses, including coverup
activities, at the highest levels of national government. The testimony of some of the
witnesses at that Committee’s hearings touched in part on areas which dealt with a
possible erime of obstruction of justice. But that was of no concern to the Committee
which, like the S.C.L, had no power to seek a criminal indictment, pursué a trial and
ultimately see punishment imposed by a court of law. The question ef any criminality
fay solely with the Special Prosecutor. The Senate Committee was out to expose the
facts in order to inform the public, to deter further instances of such gross abuses and
to provide recommendations for preventing further such abuses. These, of course,
are the same missions of the 5.C.I

7



The exact format for-a public action by the S.C.T. is subject
in each instance to determination by the Commission which takes
into consideration facters of complexity of subject matter and of
conciseness, acenracy and thoroughness in presentation of the
facts. The Commission may proceed by way of a public hearing or
a publie report, or both.*

The Commission believes the true test of the efficacy of its
public actions are not any indictments which may result from re-
ferral of matters to other agencies but rather the corrective actions
sparked by public exposure of deplorable conditions detrimental
to the public interest. The Commission takes partienlar pride in
actions which have resulted in improved governmental operations
and laws and in more effective protéction for the taxpaying public

~through safegnards in the handling of matters involving expendi-
tures of public funds and maintenance of the public trust.

#1In the course of its conduct, the Commission by law adheres to and is guided by the
New Jersey Code of Fair Procedure (Chapter 376, Laws of New Jersey, 1968, N.J.S.A.
52:13E-1 to 52:13E-10). The Code is printed in full in the Appendices section of
this annual report. ' The Code sets forth those protections which the Legislature in
its wisdom and the Judiciary by interpretation have provided for witnesses called
at private and public hearings and for individuals mentioned in the Commission's
public proceedings. Section Six of the Code states that any individual who feels
adversely affected by the testimony or other evideice presented in a public action
by the Commission shall be afforded an opportunity to make a statement under cath
relevant to the testimony or other evidence complained of, The statemenis, subject
to determination of relevancy, are incorporated in the records of the Cothmission’s
public proceedings, Before resolving to proceed to a public action, the Commission
carefully analyzfes and evaluates investigative data in private in keeping with its
solemn obligation to avoid unnecessary stigma and embarassment to individuals but,
at the same time, to fulfill its statutory obligation to keep the public informed with
specifics necessary to give credibility to the S.C.I’s findings and recommendations.



RESUME OF THE COMMISSION'S
MAJOR INVESTIGATIONS

This 'is a summary of the Commission’s major investigations
undertaken from June, 1969, when the S.C.I. became staffed and
operational, and the prinecipal direct and collateral results stem-
ming therefrom, In deseribing them as major investigations, it
is meant that they have required considerable time and effort and,
where appropriate, have resulted in a public hearing or a public
report, or both.

Since the followmg mvestlgatlons ha,ve been digcussed fully in
separate reports or in previous annual reports or in the sub-
sequent sections of this report, only a brief statement about each
will be set forth.

1. OrGanNIZED CRIME CONFRONTATIONS

Since the summer of 1969, the Commission on a continuing basis
has from time to time issued subpcenas for the appearance and
testimony of individuals identified by law enforcement anthorities
as leaders and/or members of organized crime families operating
in New Jersey. This effort has been part of the Commission’s
on-going program designed to increase the storehouse of mean-
ingful intelligence, mutunally shared with law enforcement agencies,
about the status and modes and patterns of operation of the
underworld in this state. No individuals are in a more informed
position to provide first-hand, detailed data about those operations
than the persons responsible for directing them and carrying them
out. This continuing investigation also ha,s prompied several
pubhc hearings by the Commission,

The Commission firmly beheves that, once individuals hawve
been granted witness immunity against the use of their testimony
or any leads derived therefrom, a proper balance has been struck
between protectmg mdlwdual rlghts and the right of the state

# See State of New Jersey Commission of Investigation, Annual Reports for 1970, 1971,
1972, 1973 and 1974.
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to know as much as possible abount the underworld. This philosophy
and approach has met with the approval of the highest courts of
state and nation. . '

At the time of publication of this report, five organized erime
figures who had been served with S.C.I subpeenas still elected
to undergo extended periods of court-ordered incarcerations for
civil ‘contempt for refusal to answer the S.C.I’s questions, with
one of those five on temporary release under court order for treat-
ment of a serious internal bleeding ailment and another presently
serving a lengthy state prison sentence for a criminal conviction.
Three additional organized crime figures during 1975 were sub-
penaed by the Commission and remain under subpeena for further
questioning. Ten other organized crime figures served with sub-
poenas have over the years testified before the Commission, with
three of those so doing only after being coerced by prolonged,
court-ordered incarceration for civil contempt. Nine other orga-
nized erime figures are known to have moved from New J ersey
to avoid being served with 8.C.I. subpenas.

The present Attorney General of New Jersey, William F.
Hyland, in his previously cited statement of June 27, 1975 stated
in part, ¢“, . . much has already been done to eliminate—or at least
to weaken—organized erime. Much of the credit for that success
belongs to the 8.C.1 for its efforts in seeking testimony from
alleged organized crime figures and for focusing the spotlight on,
and thus alerting the public to, the problems associated with
organized erime.’” :

2. RECOMMENDATIONS ON THE GARBAGE INDUSTRY*

The Legislature in 1969 passed a resolution requesting the
Commission to look into the garbage industry and make recom-
mendations for possible corrective action at the state level, An
investigation was subsequently undertaken by the 8.0.1. of certain
practices and procedures in that industry. The investigation ended
with two weeks of private hearings, concluding in September, 1969.
A. public report was issued in October of that year.

*See'New Jersey Commission of Investigation: A Report Relating to the Garba;ge
Industry, October 7, 1969. . .
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A principal finding of the Commission was that the provisions
and practices of some garbage industry irade associatioms dis-
couraged competition, encouraged collusive bidding, and preserved
allocations of customers on a territorial basis. Unless the viee
of customer allocation was curbed by the state, more and more
municipalities will be faced with the situation of receiving only
one bid for waste collection, the Commission concluded. '

The Commission recommended legislative action leading to a
statewide approach to control of the garbage industry. Specific
recommendations were: Prohibit customer territorial allocation,
price fixing and collusive bidding; provide for licensing by the
state (to the exclusion of municipal licenses) of all waste collectors
in New Jersey, and prohibit diserimination in the use of priv ately
owned wagte disposal areas. - :

The subsequently enacted lawg for state control of the solid
waste industry encompassed the substance of these recommenda-
tions. Those laws have inhibited the vicious and costly eycle of
price gouging by previously unregulated monopolies.

3. Orcanizedp CrRIME INFLUENCE IN LONG BRANCH¥

The New Jersey shore city of Long Branch had since 1967 been
the focus of publicized charges and disclosures about the influence
of orgnaized crime. One charge was that an organized erime leader,
Anthony ““Little Pussy’’ Russo, controlled the mayor and the city
council. Official reports indicated mob figures were operating in an
atmosphere relatively secure from law enforcement. The Commis-
siton began an ilnvestigation of Long Branch in May, 1969. The
exhaustive probe culminated with public hearings in the spring of
1970. Among the major disclosures of those hearings were:

Tha,t a Long Branch city manager was ousted from that Job by
the city council after he began taking counter-action against
organized crime’s influence; that Russo offered to get the city
manager job back for that same person if he would close his eyes
to underworld influences and act as a front for the mob; that im-
pending police raids on gambling establishments were being leaked

*See State of New Jersey Commission of Invest:gat:on, 1970 Annual Report 15sued
February, 1971.
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in time to prevent arrests desp1te the anti-gambling efforts of a
then honest police chief who died in 1968, and that the next pohce _
chief lacked the integrity and will to mvest1gate orgamzed erime
and attempt to stem its influence.

. After the Commission’s public hearings, the police chief resigned
and the electorate voted in a new admunstratlon The Asbury Park
Press commented edltorlally that the Commission’s hearings did
more good than four previous grand jury investigations. Also,
during the Commigsion’s probe of the Long Branch area, the Com-
mission’s special agents developed detailed fiscal information and
records relating to corporations formed by Russo, information
which was used by federal anthorities In obtaining a 1971 indiet-
ment of Russo on a charge of failure to file corporate income tax
returns. He pleaded guilty to that charge and received a three-
year prison sentence

4, TueE MoNMOUTH COUNTY PROSECUTOR’S OFFICE®

The Long Branch inquiry quite naturally extended to the Mon-
mouth County prosecutor’s office, since the prosecutor had prime
responsibility for law enforcement in this county. This probe
determined that a disproportionate share of authority had been
vested in the then chief of county detectives. Twenty-four hours .
after the Commission issued subpenas in October, 1969, the chief
committed snicide.

Public hearings were held in the winter of 1970. Testimony
showed that a confidential expense account supposedly used for
nine years by the chief of detectives to pay informants was not
used for that purpose and could not be accounted for. The testi-
mony also detailed how that fund was solely controlled by the chief
with no county andit and no supervision by the county prosecutor.
In fact, the then county prosecutor testified that he signed vouchers
in blank and without the knowledge they were to be used to pay:
mformants k

The Commission, after the hearings, made a series of recom-
mendations to reform the county prosecutor system. A prmclpal

* See State of New Jersey, Commission of Investigation, 1970 ‘Annual Report 1ssued
February, 1971. ‘
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recommendation was for full-time prosecutors: and assistants. A
state law, since enacted, has established full-time prosecutorial
staffs in the more populous counties of New Jersey, thereby pro-
v1d111g the citizenry with better administrated and more effective
law enforcement. - -

5. PRACTICES OF THE STATE DIVISION OF PURCHASE
AND PROPERTY*

The Commission in February, 1970 began investigating charges
of corrupt practices and procedures involving the State Division of
Purchase and Property and suppliers of state services. Public
hearings on that matter were held in the spring of that year. . .

Publie testimony showed pa,yoffs to a state buyer to get cleaning
contracts for state buildings, rigging of bids on state contracts,
renewal of those contracts without bidding, unsatisfactory per-
formance of work called for under state contracts, and illegal con-
tracting of such work.

- After the investigation, the state buyer was dismissed from his

job. Records of the investigation were turned over to the State
Attorney General’s Office which obtained an indictment charging
the buyer with misconduet in office. He pleaded guilty and was
fined and placed on probation for three years.

This investigation met with immediate correctional steps by the
State Division of Purchase and Property to change several pro-
cedures to prevent reoccurrence of similar incidents. The Commis-
sion commended officials of that Division for moving so rapidly to
tighten procedures in order to befter protect the public purse.

6. THE BUILDING SERVICES AND MAINTENANCE
INDUSTRY#*

Theé probe of the Division of Purchase and Property broughtK to
the Commission’s attention anticompetitive and other improper
practices and influeénces in the building services industry. A follow-

*See State of New Jersey, Commission of Investigation, 1970 Annual Report, issued
*" February, 1971, o : :
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up investigation was carried ount Wlﬂl public hearings being held in
June, 1970.

. Testimony showed the existence of a trade organization designed
to thwart competition by limiting free bidding and enterprise. The
hearings also revealed that a nnion official with associations with
organized crime figures was the real powerin the trade organiza-
tion and that coerced sales of certain detergent cleaning produects
and/or imposition of sweetheart contracts were sometimes the
price of labor peace. Another disclosure was that a major orga-
nized crime fignre in New J ersey could act as an arbiter of disputes
between some cleaning companies.

- The hearings served to alert le-gitimate persons and business
firms in the building services industry and users of the industry’s
services to the presence of unserupulous and unsavory elements in
that industry. Also, the information developed in this probe wasg
forwarded, on request, to the United States Congress’ Select
Committee on Commerce which based extensive public hearings on
the 8.C.L information in 'Washington in 1972, That Committee by
letter thanked the S.C.I. for making a significant contribution to
exposing ‘‘the eancer of organized crime in interstate and foreign
commerce.”” This investigation continued to have repercussions
during 1974-75 when the U.8. Justice Department, after studying
S.C.L records, obtained anti-trust indictments against 12 building
maintenance firms based in New Jersey and five officers of some
of those firms. The firms and the officers pleaded no contest to the
charges and have been fined a total of a gquarter of a million dollars.
Two of the officers pleaded respectively to making a false declara-
tion before a grand jury and to obstruction of justice and were
each given a six-month suspended sentence.

7. Tue Hupson COUNTY MOSQUITO EXTERMINATIO\I
COMMISSION *

During 1970 the Commission received complaints about possible
eorrupt practices in the operation of the Hudson County Mosquito
Extermination Commission. The subsequent mvestlga_tlon led to
public hearings at the close of 1970.

*Gee State of New Tersey, Commission of Investigation, 1970 Annual Report lssued
February, 1971.
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The Mosqulto Commission’s treasurer, almost totally blind,
testified how he signed checks and vouchers on direction from the
agency’s executive director. The testimony also revealed shake-
down type payments made by the New Jersey Turnpike and other
organizations with projects or rights-of-way in the Hudson
meadowlands, the existence of a bank account kept secret by the
executive dlreetor from the panel’s outside auditors, and kickback
payments by contractors and suppliers of up to 75 percent of the
amounts recéived under a fraundulent voucher scheme.

One result of this investigation was abolition of the Hudson
County Mosquito Extermination Commission which served no valid
governmental function and whose annual budget, paid for by the
taxpayers of Hudson, was approaching the $500,000 mark.

Additionally, records of the investigation were turned over to
the Hudson County Prosecutor’s Office which in 1971 obtained con-
splra,ey and embezzlement indietments against the Mosquito Com-
mission’s executive director and his two sons. The executive
director pleaded guilty to embezzlement and in June, 1972 was
sentenced to two to four years in prison. Iis sons pleaded guilty
to conspiracy and were fined $1,000 each.

8. ._MIS_APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS IN THE GOVERNMENT
- OF ATLANTIC COUNTY*

The Commission in 1970 was asked to make a thorough investi-
gation of the misappropriation of at least $130,196.00 in public
funds that came to light with the suicide death of a purchasing
agent in Aflantic County government. The Commission in Decem-
ber of that year issued a detailed public report which documented
in sworn testimony a violation of public trust and a breakdown in
the use of the powers of county government.

That purchasing agent, through a scheme involving fraudulent
vouchers, endorsements a.nd other maneuvers, diverted the money
to his own use over a perlod of 13 years. The sworn testimony
showed that for years prior to 1971, monthly departmental appro-
priation sheets of many departments contained irregularities

* See Report on Misappropriation of Public Funds, Atfantic County, a Report by the
New Jersey Commission ‘of Investigation, December, 1971. _
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traceable to the agent but that no highly placed county official ever
tried to ' get a full explanation of those 1rregu1ar1t1es The testi
mony also disclosed that after county officials were first notified
by the bank about the false check endorsement part of the agent’s
scheme, an inadequaté and questionable 1nvest1gat10n was con-
ducted by. some county oﬂiclals ;

COples of the Comnnssmn 3 report were sent to Freeholder
Boards throughout the state for use as a gunide in preventing any
further instances of similar mlsappmprmtmns of fands. As a
result of fiscal irregularities uncover ed in the probes not only of
Atlantic County goverrment but also of eounty agencies in Mon-
mouth and Hudson counties, the' Commission has recommended
that licensed county and munlelpal auditors be mandated fo exer-
cise more responsibility for maintaining integrity in the fiscal '
affairs of government, with stress on review on an on-going basis
of the internal controls of county and local governments :

9., DEVELOPMENT OF THE POINT BREEZE AREA
OF JERSEY CITY*

The lands that lie along the Jersey City waterfront are some
of the most valuable and eeonomwally important acreage in the
state. The Commission in the spring of 1971 began an investigation
into allegations of corrupiion and other 1rregu1a1'ities in the
development of the Point Breeze area of Jersey City as a contaun— ,
ershlp port and an 1ndustr1a1 park,

- The 1nvest1gat10n showed that that pa,rtcteular development
undertaken by the Port Jersey Corporation, could offer a classic
and informative example of how a proper and needed development
project conld be frustrated and impeded by improper procedures.
Public hearings were held in October, 1971, Testimonial disclosures
included a payoff to public officials, improper receipt of a real
estate commission; and irregular approaches to the use of state
laws for blighting urban areas and granting tax abatement, '

Two bills which carry out S.C.L recommendations stemn:ung
from this probe have been enacted into law. One improves the

*See State of New Jersey, Commxssmn of Investlga.tlon, 1971 Annual Report, 1ssued
March, 1972
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blighting -and urban renewal process and the other tightens the
statutory ban against a purchaser of publicly owned lands receiving
any part of the brokerage fee attendant on such a purchase. After
reference of data from this investigation to prosecutorial anthori-
ties, a Hudson County Grand Jury indicted a former Jersey City
building inspector on a charge of extorting $1,200 from an official
of the Port Jersey Corporation, The former inspector was found
guilty of obtaining money under false pretenses and fined $200 and
‘given a six months suspended jail sentence.

10. " TACTICS AND STRATEGIES OF ORGANIZED CRIME¥

Although not a sworn member of organized crime, Herbert Gross,
a former Lakewood hotel operator and real estate man, became
during 1965-70 a virtual part of the mob through involvement in
numbers banks, shylock loan operations, cashing of stolen securties
and other activities. In order to shorten a State Prison term in
1971, Gross began in that year to cooperate with government
agencies, including the Commission. S :

Gross’ testimony during two days of public hearings by the 8.C.I.
in February, 1972 pinpointed the relentless and ruthless modes of
operation of organized crime figures in the QOcean County area and
their ties back to underworld bosses in Northern New Jersey and
New York City. His testimony and that of other witnesses also
detailed how mobsters completely infiltrated a legitimate motel
business in Lakewood. The former restaurant concessionaire at
that motel testified that because of shylock loans arranged by an
organized crime figure, the concessionaire lost assets of about
$60,000:in six months and left town a broken and penniless man.
Records of this investigation were made savailable to federal
authorities who subsequently obtained an extortion-conspiracy
indictment against nine organized erime figures relative to a shy-
lock loan dispute which culminated with an underworld ““sitdown’’
or trial. The individuals and incidents named in the indictment
were first deseribed by Gross in his S.C.L testimony. New Jersey
law enforcement officials testified at the S.C.I. hearings that the
public exposure afforded by those sessions was a valnable contri-
bution in meeting the need for continually stimulating vigilance

*See State of New Jersey Commission of Investigation, 1972 Annual Report, issued
February, 1973.
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against organized crime, with a particular alert going to areas
subject to suburbanization, namely that org'amzed crime follows
population growth :

11. PROPERTY PURCHASE PRACTICES OF THE STATE
DivisiON OF PURCHASE AND PROPERTY™ '

The Commission during 1971 received information that the State
may have overpaid for land for the site of the new Stockton State
College in Galloway Township, Atlantic County. Subsequent field
investigations and private hearings extending into 1972 showed
that the state’s purchase of a key 595-acre tract for $924 an acre
was indeed an excessively hlgh pmce

Substanhally the same acreage had been sold only nine months
earlier by two corporations headed by some Atlantie City business-
men to a New York City-based land purchasing group for $476 per
acre, which was about double the per acreage price of two compar-
able large-tract land sales in the Galloway area., The Commission
in a publie report, completed during June, 1972, cited two eritical
flaws as leading to excessive overpayment for the land by the state:
inadequate and misleading appraisals of land that had recently
changed hands at a premium price; and lack of expertise and safe-
gnards in State Division of Purchase and Property procedures to
discover the faults in the appraisals and correet them.

The report stressed a number of recommendations to insure that
the Division’s processes would in the future detect and correct
faults in appraisals. Key recommendations were post-appraisal
reviews by qualified experts and striet pre-qualification of
appraisers before being listed as eligible to do work for the state.
The recommendations were promptly implemented by execative
orders in the Division, thereby assuring the taxpayers of properly
protective procedures in the state’s purchasing of many millions
of dollars of properties—then, now and in the future.

* See Report and Recommendations on Property Purchase Practices of the Division
of Purchase and Property, a Report by the New Jersey State Commission of In-
vestigation, issued June, 1972,

18



12, SECURITIES AND BANK FUNDS MANIPULATIONS
IN MIDDLESEX COUNTY®

Investigative activities by -the Commission during 1971 in
Middlesex County directed the Commission’s attention to Santo R.
Santisi, then president of the Middlesex County Bank -which he
‘had founded. The resulting full-scale probe by the Commission’s
speclal agents and special agents/accountants concentrated on
Santisi-controlled corporations, in particnlar the Otnas Holding
Company, and ultimately broadened to investigation of certain
transactions at the Middlesex County Bank.

The probe uncovered schemes by Santisi and his entourage in-
volving the use of publicly invested funds in Otnas solely for their
own. personal gain, apparently illicit sale of stock publicly before
required state registration and misapplication by Santisi of
hundreds of thousands of dollars of funds of the Middlesex County
Bank. Those funds went in the form of loans to members of the
Santisi entourage who either personally or through their corpora-
tions acted as conduits to pass on the funds for the benefit of Santisi
and some of his controlled corporations. '

During the first quarter of 1972 the Commission completed
private hearings in this investigation but deferred planned publie
hearings at the request of bank examiners who expressed fears
about the impact of adverse publicity on the bank’s financial health.
Instead, the S.C.I. referred data from this investigation to federal
authorities who later obtained indictments of Santisi and several
of his ecohorts on charges involving the misapplied bank funds,
All pleaded gnilty. Santisi was sentenced to three years in prison.
One of his cohorts was sentenced to a year in prison and two
~ others received suspended sentences. The Commission made a
public report on this investigation in its annual report for 1972,
The S.C.L stated in that report that this investigation rendered a
publie service by protecting the investing public from further
exploitation by Santisi and his cohorts,

* See State of New Jersey, Commission of Investigation, 1972 Annual Report, issued
" “February, 1973,
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13. 'THE OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL OF
THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY*

In the summer of 1972 the Commission was reqﬁested by the then
Attorney Gteneral of New Jersey, George F. Kugler, Jr., to in-
-vestigate his office’s handling of the matter which ultimately
resulted in the state’s indicting and obtaining a conspiracy convie-
tion of Paul J. Sherwin, then Secretary of State, in connection with
a campaign contribution made by a contractor who had bid on a
state highway contract. : - :

The request, under the S.C.I°s statute, triggered an investi-
gation which extended into early 1973 and during which the
Commission took from 22 witnesses sworn testimony consisting of
more than 1,300 pages of transcripts and also introduced and -
marked exhibits consisting of more than 300 pages. The Commis-
sion, by unanimous reselution, issued in February, 1972 a 1,600-
plus-page report on the investigation, a report which included in
their entirety the transeripts of the testimony and the exhibits in
order to effect complete and accurate public disclosure. The report
was forwarded to the Governor and the Legislature and to all
news media. Copies of the report were supplied to individual
citizens on request until the supply was exhausted. File copies
of the report remain available for public serutiny at the Commis-
sion’s. offices and at the State Public Library.

In issming the report, the Commission expressed publicly its
gratitude to John J. Francis, sq., the retired Justice of the New
Jersey Supreme Court, who served without compensation as
Special Counsel to the Commission in the investigation and the
report preparation. A final conclusion of the report was that the
political campaign contributions from those aspiring to public
works and the acceptance of those contributions by public officials
or political parties is a malignant cancer rapidly spreading through
the bloodstream of political life and that ‘‘unless the.giving and
receiving of such contributions are made criminal under a statute
which provides a reasonable mechanism for discovering and pre-
venting them, our governmental structure is headed for most un-
pleasant erosion.”

* See Report on Investigation of the Office of the Attorney General of New Jersey,
A Report by State of New Jersey, Commission of Investigation, issued January, 1973.
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14 THE WORKMEN’S COMPENSATION SYSTEM*

The New J ersey system for compensating 1nd1v1clua,1s for em-
nloymen‘t injuries became during the early 1970s the object of
intense scrutiny and analysis. In addition to established argu-
- ments and statisties indicating ills in the system, there were new
and persistent reports that the atmosphere of the system, includ-
ing its courts, had gone astray to a point where irregularities,
abuses and even illegalities were being ignored or tolerated.” The
mounting hue and ery about deficiencies in the system led the State
Commissioner of Labor and Industry to request an investigation,
a task which fell to the S.C.I.

‘The 1972 73 probe which resulted was one of the most compre-
hensive ever conducted by the 8.C.I. It touched not only on all
aspects of the Workmen’s Compensatlon system but also certain
related heat treatment abuses in the 11ab1111:y and negligence field.
The facts, as presented by the 8.C.1. at nine days of public hearings
in Trenton in May-June, 1973, documented abuses which 1ncluded
“the costly practice -of makmg unwarranted allegationg of impair-
ments in compensation claims, a pervasive atmosphere conducive
to lavish gift-giving and entertaining and to guestionable conduct
by some judges, and the use by some law firms of favored heat
treating doctors or ‘“house dootors,” an abuse which led to costly
overtreatment of patients and in some instances to outright bill
padding to falsely inflate claims.

.~As a result of the investigation, three Judges of Compensation
were given disciplinary suspensions, with one of them eventually
being dismissed from office by the Governor. Most importantly, the
Commission’s final report and recommendations on this investiga-
tion issued in 1974 were a major input in the sweeping administra-
tive reforms of the Workmen’s Compensation system, including the
conduet of judges, promulgated recently by the State Commissioner
of Labor and Industry. A bill, as recommended by the S.C.1., has
been enacted into law to prevent more effectively bill padding by
doctors in compensation and negligence cases. After referral of
data in this probe to prosecutorial authorities, an Essex County
Grand Jury during 1975 indicted two partners of a law firm and the
firm’s business manager on charges of conspiracy and obtaining

* See Final Report and Recommendations on the Investigation of the Workmen's
Compensation System, a Report by the New }ersey State Commission of Investigation,
January, 1974,
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money under false pretenses in connection with the alleged heat-
treatment, bill-padding scheme exposed at the S.C.1’°s public
hearings. Also, the Waterfront Commission of New York Harbor -
used the investigative techniques and methodology established by
the S.C.I. in this investigation to conduet an investigation of and
hold public hearings on instances of widespread Workmen’s Com-
pensation frauds involving some workers on the docks. The Com-
missioners of the Waterfront Commission thanked the S.C.I. by
letter for assmtance and guidance rendered to the Waterfront
Commission.

15. Tue DiSTRIBUTION OF DONATED FEDERAL SURPLUS -
'PROPERTY AND SCHOOL PURCHASING PROCEDURES™

 Alcitizens’ complaint was received by the S.C.I. in Janunary, 1973
via reference from a Federal law enforcement ageney and
prompted the Commission to make inquiry into the handling and
distribution by the State of federal surplus property donated for
use in schools and other institutions. The inquiry resulted in addi-
tional citizens’ complaints being received and a consequent full
investigation which extended to guestionable procedures relative
to the business affairs of the Passaic County Voeational and
Technical High School in Wayne. The investigation was capped by
five days of pubhc hearings condueted at the Passaic County Courtu '
house in Paterson.

The hearings presented facts concerning a woeful lack of
attempts by the school’s purchasing agent, who also was its busi-
ness manager, to obtain truly competitive prices for many goods
purchased, the purchasing of substantial amounts of goods and
services through middlemen, one of whom marked up prices by
more than 100 per cent, and regular payoffs to the school’s purchas-
ing agent by one of the middlemen. Additional facts were elicited
about the purchasing agent’s conversion of the services of some
school employees and property to jobs at his home and how the
school had become a virtual dumping ground for millions of dollars
of federally donated surplug property under a chaotic and mis-
managed state: program for distribution of that property.

This investigation formed the basis for S.C.I. recommendations
for administrative corrective steps to establish a well run, efficient

* See State Df New Jersey, Commission of Invest:gation, Annual Report for 1973, issued
in March, 1974,
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program of state distribution of the surplus property and for
improved procedures for school boards in overseeing purchasing
practices. The State Board of Hducation communicated the S.C.L.
recommendations to all school boards in the state and instructed
the Boards to be guided by them. Reference of data from this
investigation was made to 'the State Criminal Justice Division
which during 1974 obtained an indictment charging the Passaic
County Teehmeal and Vocational High School’s purchasing agent-
business manager with bribery in connection with the previously
mentioned payoff testimony and with misuse of school personnel
and property as outlined at the 8.C.I.’s hearings. The purchasing
agent-business manager was convieted of bribery and sentenced
to three years in prison. :

16. THE DISTRIBUTION OF NARCO’I’ICS AND LAw
 ENFORCEMENT. PROGRAMS*

Narcotics and their relationship to law: enforcement in' New
Jersey are a natural area of concern for the Commission, since the
huge profits to be made from illicit narcotics trafﬁekmg are an
obvious lure to eriminal elements. As a result of an increase in the
S.C.L’s intelligence gathering during 1973 relative to mnarcotics,
the Commission obtained considerable information aboui certain
criminal elements in Northern New Jersey. A subsequent in-
vestigation provided a wealth of detail aboui drug trafficking,
replete with high risks, high profits, violence and death.

At three days of public hearings in late 1973 in Trenton,
witnesses told of their involvements in actual hercin and cocaine
trafficking in Northern New Jersey, including accounts of one kill-
ing and an attempt by criminal-element figures to get one of the
witnesses to kill another individual. Expert witnesses from federal,
state and county agencies testified in considerable detail about the
international, interstate and intrastate flow of heroin and cocaine
and the programs and problems of law enforcement units respon-
sible for the fight against illicit narcotics distribution.

Due to a combination of an extremely knowledgeable and
accurate informant and an extensive follow-up investigation by
S.C.IL Special AO'ents this probe had significant collateral results

¥ See State of New Jersey, Commlssmn of Invest1gatmn Annual Report for 1973, issued
"in March, 1974,
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which led to the 8.C.I’s playing a key role in solving cases involv-
ing a gangland style slaying, a stolen jewelry fencing ring and a
erime federation burglary ring of more than 30 individuals. Both
the Fissex County, N. J., Prosecutor and the Lackawanna County,
Pa., Distriet Attorney complimented the 8.C.1L. for its role in aiding-
law enforcement agencies through its broad statutory purview and
investigative expertise. The hearings also established a factual
basis for 8.C.I. recommendations for improved law enforcement
capabilities to combat narcotics distribution and for revisions of
the narcoties law, including sterner penalties for non-addict
pushers., A bill providing for life imprisonment for such pushers
was introduced in the Legislature in the Spring of 1976.

17. PSEUDO-CHARITABLE APPEALS*

A growing number of companies in recent years have been
establizshed in New Jersey as incorporated-for-profit entities to sell
by telephone exorbitantly high priced household produets, prinei-
pally light bulbs, in the name of allegedly handicapped workers.
Although different in age, size and some operating procedures, all
indulge in degrees of deception by creating a false illusion of
charitable works for the handicapped through telephonic sales
presentations which stress references to ‘‘handicaps’ or ‘‘the
handicapped.’”’ Consumers by the hundreds in New Jersey be-
came so outraged upon learning they had been duped into thinking -
these profit-oriented businesses were charities that they registered
complaints with the State Division of Consumer Affairs, That
Division sought a full 8.C.L investigation of these pseudo-charities
because of the broader purview of the Commission’s statute, the
Commission’s investigative expertize and ifs public exposure
PoOwWers. ' : '

Facts put on the public record at hearings held by the S.C.I. in
June 1974 in Trenton included: That people were willing to pay
such high prices, marked as much as 1,100 per cent above cost, only
because the phone solicitations of the various companies had given
them the illusion they were aiding a charity; that some of the com-
panies used healthy phone solicitors who stated falsely that they
were handicapped to induce sales; that a large company’s claim to

* See Final Report and Recommendations on the Investigation of Profit Oriented
Companies Operatng in a Pseudo-Charitable Manner, a Report by the New Jersey
State Commission of Investigation, September, 1974,
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employ only handicapped phone solicitors was open to serious
question; that phone solicitors, whether handicapped or not, were
subjeet to prompt dismissal if they did not produce enough sales
to make a profit for the owners; that an owner of one of the large
companies received a tofal of more than $1 million in four years
from the business; that any authentically handicapped phone
solicitors could be harmed by having to constantly dwell on their
aillments in order to induce sales, and that pseudo-charitable
appeals drain off millions of dollars each year that otherwise could
be tapped by bona fide charities.

The public airing of these facts accomplished a principal purpose
of the S.C.I. and the Consumer Affairs Division, namely to make
the consuming public more informed and, therefore, more discern-
ing in the receipt of any telephonic sales pitches in the name of the
allegedly handicapped. Four bills designed to carry out S.C.L
recommendations for barring deceitful sales appeals by these
profit-making companies and to foree financial diselosure by those
companies have been enacted into law. Thus, this investigation
resulted in needed, improved consumer protection against un-
scrupulous practices. Access to data from this investigation was
afforded to federal officials both during the probe and immediately
after the public hearings. Subsequently, the owner of one of the
profit-making companies mentioned at the 8.C.L’s hearings and
the sales manager of another such company were charged with
fraud by federal authorities. Both have pleaded gnilty, with the
owner being fined and given a two-year suspended sentence and
the sales manager have been given a three-year suspended sentence.

18. PossiBLE CONFLICT OF INTERESTS OF THE CHAIRMAN
OF THE DELAWARE RIVER PORT AUTHORITY*

The State Kxecutive Commission on Ethical Standards during
1974 requested the 8.C.I.°s assistance in investigating allegations
of possible conflict of interest of Ralph Cornell, Chairman of the
Delaware River Port Authority and a Commissioner of that au-
thority since its inception in 1951. The reason for the request, as
stated by the Ethies Commission, was ‘“‘that the State Commission

* See Report on the Compatibility of the Interests of Mr. Ralph Cornell, Chairman of
the Delaware River Port Authority, a Report by the New Jersey State Commission
of Investigation, October, 1974. -
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of Investigation is better equipped in terms of personnel, resources
and operating procedures to conduct this inquiry.”’ :

The resultant investigation involved the subpeenaing and
analysis of a virtnal mountain of books and records of the Au-
thority, eorporations and banks in orderto lay bare certain business
relationships relative to sub-contracting work done on Authorlty
projects. After holding private hearings on 14 oceasions from
March through August of 1974, the Commission issued a compre-
hensive public report on this inquiry and sent it to the Governor
and the Ethical Standards Commission, appropriately leaving to
that Commission the final conclusionary judgments on the full
factual picture presented by the report. The Attorney General’s
Office also was given copies of the report.

The principal facts brought forth by the 8.C.1.’s mvestlo*atlon
were that Mr, Cornell’s Cornell and Company had recewed sub-~
stantial income for work performed on Port Authority projects on
a sub and sub-sub-contracting basis while other companies were
listed in the Authority’s records as the subcontractors with no
listing of Cornell and Company in those documents; that he was
the recipient of substantial dividend payments as a major stock-
holder in the insurance company which was the New Jersey broker
for the insurance coverage needs of the Authority, and that as an
investor in lands subject to value enhancement by proximity to
existing or proposed Authority projects, Mr. Cornell had received
more than $1.9 million in unadjusted profits. The report stated,
however, that the probe found no evidence of Mr. Cornell making
land purchases on the basis of “‘ingider information’’ and that the
~ purchases could have been made by any well informed citizen with
substantial monetary resources.

19, THE GOVERNMENT OF THE BOROUGH
' OF LINDENWOLD¥

A citizen’s complaint letter alleging abuses in the government
of the Borough of Lindenwold, a rapidly developed suburban com-
munity in Camden County, was received by the Commission in the
latter part of 1973. One of the letter’s signatories, a former
Borough Councilman in Lindenwold, in a subsequent interview with

*See State of New Jersey, Commlss:on of Investigation, 1974 Annual Report, issued
in March, 1975,

26



S.C.I. special agents told not only of abuses concerning ethical
standards but also of official corruption. He brought with him to the
8.C.L’s offices $5,000 he received, but never spent, as his share of
payoffs made for votes fa,vora,ble to land development projects,
money he came to feel to have been ill garnered in detr]_ment to the
pubhc trust :

During 1974 the Commission obtained substantial corr oboratmn
for ‘this man’s story of amorality in the Borough’s government in
a lengthy probe involving full use of the Commission subpcena and
witness immunity powers and its mvestlgatwe and accountmg ex-
pertise. At three days of public hearings in Trenton in December,
1974, the Commission heard testimony supported by numerous ex-
hib-its- that $198,500 had been paid by land developers to Linden-
wold public officials in return for favorable treatment and coopera-
tion of the Borough government, that a Borough official and a
county official had accepted substantial amounts of cash from com-
panies owning land subject to the officials’ regulation, ‘and that
Lindenwold public officials used strawmen to mask their purchases
of properties which were offered for sale by the Borough, the
value of which could be enhanced by the officials’ acts.

‘The public disclosure of what the Commission called ‘‘the
democratic process of local government operating at its worst”
served to sound a warning and present a deterrent factor to com-
munities throughout New Jersey. The principal S.C.I. recom-
mendation stemming from this hearing wag for enactment of a
tough conflict of interests law to apply uniformly on a statewide
basus to all county and municipal officials. A bill meeting the S.C.L
eriteria in this area has been introduced in the Legislature, and
the Commission, along with Atforney General for New Jersey,
confinues fo urge enactment of the measure as sorely needed to
improve government throughout the state. After the S.C.IL re-
ferred data from this investigation to the State Criminal Justice
Division, a State Grand Jury indicted the then Mayor of Linden-
wold and a former Mayor of that Borough on charges involving
bribery, misconduet and perjury. The then Lindenwold Borough
Treasurer was indicted by the same jury on a charge of soliciting
a bribe. All charges related to land development activities as
aired at the 8.C.1.7s hearings. The indicted Mayor no longer holds
that office, and the Lindenwold electorate has given control of the
Borough to a new regime.
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20. LAND ACQUISITION BY MIDDLESEX COUNTY¥

During the Spring of 1975 the Commission received a series
of citizens complaints about actions by the Middlesex County
government, with stress on alleged overpayment by that govern-
ment for purchase of certain lands for park purposes under the
State’s Green Acres program. A preliminary, evaluative inquiry
of the complaints by the Commission provided substantial indica-
tion that overpayments had occurred and that faulty real estate
appraisals and insufficient review of those appraisals by the
County’s Land Aecquisition Department and by the State’s Green
Acres unit might be at the root of the problem. Accordingly, the
Commission authorized a full-scale investigation of the County’s
land acquisition procedures and related procedures of the Green
Acres unit. Public hearings were held in Trenton in January, 1976.

This investigation, aided by the services of two of the most
respected and expert post-appraisal reviewers in the State, deter-
mined that the County did indeed overpay by some 100 per cent
above fair market value for certain parcels of land in the Ambrose
and Doty’s brooks area of Piscataway Township. Both experts
found that the appraisals made for each of the parcels overstated
the value of the lands, principally because of failure to take into
sufficient account physical deficiencies in terrain. The investiga-
tion determined that the Administrator of the County’s Land
Acquisition Department had approved the land purchase prices
with virtual rubber stamp consent from the Board of Freholders.’
The Administrator not only constantly solicited a stream of
political contributions from the appraisers doing business with
the County but also, according to the sworn testimony of two of
those appraisers, solicited cash payments from the two at a time
when they were being awarded appraisal work for the County
by the Administrator. Additional testimony at the hearings indi-
cated serious deficiencies and confusion in aspects of the appraisal
review function of the State Green Acres program, which supplies
matehing funds for county and local land purchases for park

purposes.
As a result of the S.0I.°s exposures in' this investigation,
the Administrator of the County’s Land Acquisition Department

was suspended from his post, and the County government moved
to institute a more siringent process of checks and balances on

* See pages 32 to 133 of this Annual Report.
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land aequisition procedures. The Commission’s final recommenda-
tions for improving land acquisition procedures at the county and
local levels are presented on subsequent pages of this annual
report. The data from this investigation has been referred to
prosecutorial authorities.

21. THE NEwW JERSEY MEDICAID PROGRAM*

The New Jersey Medicaid program of health care for the
indigent was nearing completion of its fifth vear of operation in
December, 1974 when Governor Brendan T. Byrne made a formal
request that the S.C.I. evaluate the entire program. The Gov-
ernor’s letter of request expressed concern about the escalating,
$400-million-plus annual cost of the program and, in effect, asked
for a thorough checkup of the program’s efficacy and integrity.

‘A formal request from the Governor under the S.C.L.’°s statute
mandates that the Commission undertake the desired probe.
Accordingly, full investigation of the New Jersey Medicaid pro-
gram commenced during the first quarter of 1975 and continued
until the spring of 1976. During the course of the investigation,
the Commission reported on an interim basis from time to time to
the Governor. Two of the interim actions were public documents
issued in April and May of 1975. One of the documents was a
report which detailed flaws in phases of Medicaid’s reimbursement
of nursing homes. The other document was a public statement
which detailed dangerously poor conditions and operations in some
clinical laboratories in New Jersey and recommended that the
Legislature complete enactment of the Clinical Laboratories Con-
trol Act to provide more effective state econtrol over the labora-
tories. The bill was subsequently enacted into law.

In June, 1975, the Commission held public hearings on the
bilking of Medicaid by some independent clinical laboratories
through false billing and kickback practices. A review of this
hearing and the final recommendations stemming therefrom are
presented on subsequent pages of this annual report. Since fhe
public hearings, the Medicaid manunal regulating independent -
clinical laboratories has been drastically revised to bar abusive
practices, and the maximum fee schedule for reimbursing those
laboratories has been reduced by 40 per cent. Estimated savings

* See pages 134 to 221 of this Annual Reéport.
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from these reforms alone have been put at $1.4 m11110n for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 1976.

As this Annual Report went to press, the Commission’s staff was
completing preparation of several contemplated future publie
actions which will mark the termination of the S. C.I1.’s Medicaid
probe. The contemplated actions will cover the reaping of high
profits by some individuals through sales, financing and lease-back
techniques which have grossly inflated the values of gome nursing
homes; overbilling and overutilization patterns engaged in by
some physmlans and pharmacists, and an analysis of methods for
controlling hospital costs which, through their effect on Blue
Cross rates, affeet Medicaid whlch uses those rates as a reimburse-
ment standard, :

22. PRE-PAROLE RELEASE PROGRAMS®

The Commission during 1974 and continuing into 1975 received a
number of complaints about possible abuses and ripoffs of the pre- -
parole release programs of the New Jersey State Correctional
System. - The programs, aimed at the worthy goal of success in
re-introducing inmates to society, include furloughs, work releases,
education releases and community releases. Lengthy preliminary
inquiries to evaluate the complaints indicated clearly to the Com-
mission that the effectiveness and. goals of the programs were
being subverted by exploitive abuses attributable to weaknesses in
the operatlon and supervision of the programs.. :

Accordingly, the Commission by resolution in September, 1975
authorized a full investigation of the program. The probe extended
into 1976, with public hearings being held on four days in May,
1976 in Trenton. Principal disclosures at the hearings included
falsification of furlough and other types of applications to gain
premature entry into the programs; establishment of favored
status for some inmates and a resulting system of bartering for
favors, including monetary exchanges among inmates; the ease
with “whmh work releases and educational releases could be ripped
off because of insufficient supervision, and the intrusion of a
system of barter-for-favor in the procedures attendant on transfers
of inmates among the various penal institutions,

The Commission in its public statements at the ]i-earing credited
the State Institution and Agencies Department with making credit-

# See pages 222 to 235 of this report.
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able reform efforts to improve the programs while the S.C.L’s
investigation was in progress. However, the Commission said the
investigation and hearings had factually demonstrated the need
for further corrective steps fo bring the programs to a point
where system integrity is virtually foolproof and, therefore,
deserving of proper and needed levels of public confidence and
support. In their adjonrnment statement, the Commissioners
reviewed their suggestions for introducing sufficient check and
balance procedures to the programs and nrged that there be suffi-
~ cient funding to provide additional non-inmate personnel to con-
duct and supervise those improved procedures,
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INVESTIGATION OF THE LAND ACQUISITION
PRACTICES OF MIDDLESEX COUNTY UNDER
“THE STATE'S GREEN ACRES PROGRAM

INTRODUCTION

The County of Middlesex began in the Jate 1960s to asqulre'
lands in the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks area of Piscataway Town-
ship principally for the creation of parklands. By the advent of
1975, the acquisition process had covered some 50 parcels in the
area. This parkland project, like others of its type in recent years
in New Jersey, has been eligible for fifty per cent funding under
the State’s Green Acres program, financed by taxpayer-paid-for
state bond issues.

During February, 1975, the Commission received a series of
citizen complaints relative to certain actions of the Middlesex
County government, with emphasis on possible overpayment for
some of the lands in the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks parkland
project. The complaints led the Commission to foeus considerable
attention on certain 1974 land purchases by Middlesex, among
which were six parcels compl'iSing 43.5 acres in the Ambrose and
Doty’s brooks area. The 00unty in that year paid a total of some
$1.5 million to purchase those six parcels.

As it does in the case of any respons1ble oompla,mt made by a
genuinely concerned citizen who alleges in a rational manner a
- possible public harm, the Coramission in the winter of 1975 com-
menced a preliminary inguiry to evaluate whether or not the
citizen complaints relative to Middlesex County might be factnally
substantiated to a degree sufficient to warrant a full-secale in-
vestigation by the Commission. The inquiry involved interviews
and document analysis by Special Agents and Special Agents/
Accountants of the Commission. This evaluative phase also in-
cluded reference of four of the total of 12 appraisals (two each for
each parcel) used by the Middlesex County Land Acquisition De-
partment to place a fair market value on the six Ambrose and
Doty’s brooks area parcels to Mr. James V. Hyde, M.A.I., Director
of the Division of Right-of-Way in the New Jersey State Depart-
ment of Transportation. Mr., Hyde, one of the most respected
experts in post-appraisal review in the nation, graciously acceded
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to the Commission’s request that his staff, under his supervision
and guidance, check the validity and accuracy of the four appraisal
reports on a preliminary, accelerated basis and inform the Com-
mission of the findings of that review process.

The initial data resulting from the evaluative inquiry indicated
a distinet probability that the county had overpaid for the lands
and that any overpayments might have their roots largely in in-
sufficiencies in the appraisals rendered to the County and in short-
comings and improprieties in the processes of the Middlesex
County Land Acquisition Department.

- The Commission, therefore, subsequently authorized by resolu-
tions a full investigation of the land acquisition procedures of the
County and the related appraisal review function of the Stafe
Green Acres unit of the State Department of Environmental Pro-
tection. As part of the investigation, the Commission sent for full
review and evaluation by Mr. Hyde and his staff all appraisal
reports submitted by fee appraisers to the County and used in
connection with purchases of the six previously mentioned land
parcels. The Commission also retained for a similar, in-depth
post-appraisal review of those same appraisals the serviees of
Alton W. Van Horn, M.A.L,, of the firm of Van Horn and Dolan,
of Hlizabeth, N. J. Mr. Van Horn, like Mr. Hyde, has widely
recognized and respected expertise in the post-appraisal review
field. Additionally, the Commission had in its 1971-72 probe of the
State’s purchase of land for the site of the then new Stockton State
College in Atlantic County employed the expert post-appraisal
review gervices of Messrs. Hyde and Van Horn, with the reports
submitted by those two expert professionals being the key to expos-
ing in a well documented manner gross overpayment by the State
for the college campus site. That investigation, in a public report
issued by the S.C.IL in June, 1972, showed that overpayment by
some 300 per cent for the land was directly attributable to in-
adequate and misleading appraisals which assumed an outward
appearance of validity because of a lack of expertise and safeguard
procedures in the post-appraisal review capacity of the State
Division of Purchase and Property.

The Commission’s ﬁna.l recommendations contained in that
report were subsequently instituted by execuntive orders and now
provide effective safegnards against further misuse of taxpayer
dollars in land purchases by that Division. The Commission, in
 initiating a full investigation of the Middlesex County matter, felt
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that a similar, important public service-could be provided by
developing a somewhat parallel set of facts to those revealed in
the Stockton; College matter. The Commission would, thereby,
provide the factunal base for ultimately recommending improved
standards and safegnard processes in the land acquisition pro-
cedures not only of Middlesex County but also of other counties
and municipalities throughont the state. It is the Commission’s
firm opinion that expenditures of millions of dollars per year of
taxpayer money for property purchases by governmental bodies
at those levels of government certainly deserve as much safeguard-
ing as similar expenditures at the state level.

At the same time that Messrs. Hyde and Van Horn were con-
ducting their in-depth post-appraisal reviews of all the appraisals
relatmg to the previously mentioned six parcels of Jand, the Com-
mission’s Special Agents and Special Agents/Accountants began
intensive probing of the operations of the Middlesex County Land
Acquigition Department and its Administrator, Nathan DuBester,
and into contacts between Mr. DuBester and the fee appraisers Who
were, by virtne of being on the County’s approved list of
appraisers, eligible for award of appraisal work by Mr. DuBester.
This phase of the investigation was further intensified when re-
ports received by the Commission from Messrs. Hyde and Van
Horn on their in-depth reviews indicated clearly that the
appraisals on which Middlesex County had based its purchase of
the six parcels were seriously deficient in a number of aspeets
and had, therefore, overstated the true fair market values of those
lands.

- By the summer of 1975, the Commission began taking private
testimony in this investigation, with those executive sessions of the
Commission being held on a score of occasions extending into early
January, 1976. As authorizéd by resolution of the Commission,
public hearings based on this investigation were held January 27,
28 and 29 in the State Senate Chamber in Trenton.

The salient facts, as presenfed at the public hearings, are
reviewed in detail on subsequent pages of this report. A summary
of the principal areas of public disclosure inclndes :

¢ Inadequacies and laxities In county procedures and
practices which led to inordinate authority and anton-
omy being vested in the Administrator of the Middle-
sex County Land Acquisition Department for the
purchasing of lands and the exercise of deplorably
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poor and cdstly Jjudgments in several land acquisition
actions taken by the County.

®* How the award of county work to some outside pro-
fessional land appraisers and evaluation and review
of that work by the Administrator of the Middlesex
County Land Acquisition Department was mingled
with payment of political contributions by appraisers

“and cerfain other monetary exchanges, all to the
detriment of objective and uncompromised decision-
making in the public interest.

Shorteomings, oveérsights and judgmental errors

which led to overstatement of fair market value in
 appraizal reports submitted to the County by fee
appraigers for the six parcels of land which were

subject to intense examination by the Commission.

¢ Serious deficiencies and confusion in the appraisal
review funetion of the State Green Acres Program in
the handling of the application by Middlesex County
for matching Green Aecres funds for the parkland
purchases.

Final Recommendations Noted

At the adjournment of the public hearings based on this inves-
tigation, 8.C.I. Chairman Joseph H. Rodriguez read on behalf of
the Commission a statement which outlined corrective-step areas
which the S.C.I. would study further in fashioning its final recom-
mendations. The statement emphagized that, while real estate
appraiging is not an exact science, it is subjeet to discernible
disciplines and standards which must be adhered to in atmosphere
which stresses profesgionalism and minimizes politieal influences
and pressures.

The Commission subsequently in this report presents in full its
final recommendations which appear logically on pages 99 to
133 after the review of the salient facts presented at the public
hearings. Suffice it to say here that the final recommendations, in
the Commission’s opinion, provide check-and-balance mechanisms
and other improved procedures and standards which will assure
greater taxpayer protection in county and municipal property
purchases and in the State’s use of Green Acres money to preserve
open spaces.
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Other Delegation of Authority and Autonomy

As the investigation of Middlesex County’s land acquisition
practices progressed, it became abundantly clear that at the root of
some of the problems and abuses uncovered by the probe was an
over delegation of authority and autonomy to the County Admin-
istrator of the Liand Acquisition Department, Nathan DuBester.
Mr. DuBester in actuality decided which fee appraisers would be
placed on the approved appraiser list, which of those selected
appraisers would be assigned appraisal work by the County, re-
viewed appraisal reports received, determined fair market values
for the County to pay, asked for and received on a virtnally rubber-
stamp, sparsely documented basis freeholder approval for those
values, and then negotiated the purchases of the lands, all without
checks and balanceés so vital to assuring integrity and soundness
in the democratic process of government. Additionally, Mur.
DuBester worked as only a negotiator in the State Green Acres
unit prior to becoming Land Acquisition Administrator for Middle-
sex, has never appraised properties, has had no specialized training
in conducting reviews of appraisal reports, and could offer only
10 years of ‘‘on-the-job experience’” as his sole job qualification.

The sparseness of the documentation afforded the Middlesex
Board of Freeholders when considering a resolution to purchase
lands, in this case lands in the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks area,
wag illustrated in the following pertinent excerpts of the public
hearing testimony of Freeholders Stephen J. Capestro, who is also
Chairman of the County’s Parks and Recreation Committee:

€. Who reviews those documents?

A. There’s a whole, sir. The Board as a whole w1th
the experts and we would review it at that time and
any questions would be asked at that time,

¢). Your lestimony is you receiwved some documents
from the counly counsel’s office that you would.
review?

A. A copy of the resolution that appears that day.

How about the appraisal reports, sir?
No, sir.

How aboul the title search?
No, sir.

P PO
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Q. How about the contract?
A. No, sir.- Just the copy of a resolution.

Q. Who gives you the information contained in
those documents? ‘
A. That would be done at the conference, sir.

Q. Who gives you that information?

A. Whichever the department that came in, the
engineer would be there or planning staff would be,
county land aecquisition.

Q. Interms of fair market value for the property?
~ A. The Land Acquisition Department.

Q. Who is that?
A, Mr. DuBester.

#* L * *

Q. Then actually, Freecholder Capestro, did you
ever have in your possession the supporting docu-
ments to support this, the application for this project?
. A. Not in my possession, sir. To the best of my
knowledge, never.

Q. The best that you received was a verbal report
at ¢ meeting?

A. Yes, sir. Documentation, sir, the normal thing T
would do at a meeting if it was an acquisition on
Ambrose-Doty, then I would ask the question do we
have the documentation and are there any questions
by any other frecholder. In the event there were any
other questions, I would hold that resolution at that

" time. I would not vote on it at that meeting until the
guestions were satisfied in everyone’s mind.

The public hearing testimony of Joseph H, Burns, First Assis-
tant County Counsel, and Herman Hoffman, County Counsel,
demonstrated that, prior to the 8.C.I.’s investigation, there was an
almost total lack of checking and evaluating of the fair market
values arrived at and certified by Mr. DuBester after he had re-
ceived appraisal reports from fee appraisers. Once Mr. DuBester
referred his assessment of fair market value for a land acquisition
to the Office of County Counsel, the practice was, except, of course,
in cases Involving condemnation, to draw promptly a contract for
purchase, get the contract signed by the landowner and then draw
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a resolution to be submitted to the Board of Frecholders for
approval of the contract. Mr. Burns testified as to the lack of any
substantial review procedures by Counsel’s Office: '

Q. Do you have any input as to the fair market
value placed on the property?
A. No, I don’t.

Q. Is that solely in the hands of Mr. DuBester?

"A. Yes. It comes out of the Land Acquisition De-
partment to Mr. Hoffman with a fair market value
placed on it.

. At this tume, and we're talking about 1973-1974,
was any review of apprawsals done by the Couniy
Counsel’s office for these particular lands? -

A. No. No review as such. If there were a con-
demnation proceeding, obviously the Assistant
County Counsel handling that file would then secure
copies of the appraisals because of course, in order
fo prepare for a condemnation hearing before the
Condemnation Commissioners, he would have to study
the appraisals and confer with the appraiser who
would be testifying at the condemnation hearing with
contraets. There was no review,

Q. Well, them, was all supporting information as to
the pwchase price in the hands of Mr. DuBester at all
times?

A, Yes.

Mr. Hoffman’s testimony at the public hearings in this area
re-emphasized the lack of sufficient review and check and balance
procedures relative to Mr. DuBester:

Q. Mr. Hoffman, I’m just trying to learn more
about this if I cam. When Mr. DuBester would
negotiate o price it would go to your office for
normally a closing, correct?

A, That is correct.

. So the fired price would come over to you?
A. Where he had reached a fixed price, that’s right,
yes. .
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- Q. Right. Now, would the appraisals also come
over? : _ : '
A. No, they would not.

Q. They would not?
A, No, they would not.

Q. So, really, there’s no review at the County
Counsel level or there had been no real review of the
appraisals of the County Counsel level?

A. That’s correct, sir. o

Investigation Initiates Corrections

- Mr. Hoffman testified further that since the inception of the
S.0.1. investigation in 1975, his office has instituted a policy of
having the Assistant County Counsels obtain and examine support-
ing documents as to the fair market value determinations of the
Land Acquisition Department. He also testified that a special
Land Acquisition Committee was being formed with the intent of
assisting in reviewing fair market value determinations and that
the County was moving toward the hiring of an appraisal reviewer
with accredited expertise in that area to analyze and evaluate
thoroughly all appraisal reports received by the county.

Conceding at the public hearings that the County’s review
procedures in land acquisition had, prior to the S.C.L probe, been
mihimal and inadequate, Mr. Hoffman testified that much more
would have to be done to establish fully effective review and
check-and-balance procedures to assure integrity and proper tax-
payer protection in the purchases of lands. He stated that the
county would continue to attempt to correct deficiencies on its own
but also would be guided by the 8.C.I’°s final recommendations
in accomplishing full reform. He characterized the S.C.L investi-
gation as a ‘“marvelous job’’ carried out by competent and
dedicated people and stated that the S.C.L public hearings had
brought to the fore governmental problems which must be solved.

On Paying More for Less

‘During the course of the investigation, the Commission came
across instances of what it called indefensible decisions by the
County in land purchasing conducted on a mostly unreviewed and
unchecked basis by Mr. DuBester. In two of the instances, the
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county ended up. paying more dearly for partial or less-than-
originally-planned takings than if they had purchased the full
parcels. The instances ineluded two lots in the six parecels of land
acquired by the County during 1974 in the Ambrose and Doty’s
brooks area of Piscataway and analyzed in depth by the S.C.L
One of the parcels was officially designated as Block 457, Lot 8,
owned by the M.\W. Kellog Co. As in the case of each of the six
parcels, this parcel was the subject of two appraisals, one done by
F. Russell Holt, M.A.L, a fee appraiser with offices in Edison, and
the other done by John J. Galaida, a fee appraiser then with offices
in Perth Amboy. "

It was Mr. DuBester’s testimony that he relied more on Mr.
Holt’s appraisals than he did on those of Mr. Galaida. Mr. Holt
in the case of the Kellog parcel came in with a appraisal of
$317,600 or $35,000 per acre for the originally planned 9.073 full
taking of this parcel. Subsequently, in a move supposedly initiated
to save money, a revised partial taking of only 6.403 acres was
directed. Mr. Holt accordingly revised his appraisal to take into
account the partial taking. He still attached a $35,000-per-acre
value to, the partial taking but found that remaining  2.673
acres left to Kellog were so severely damaged that $110,000 in
damages should be awarded to that remainder, bringing the total
appraisal value for the partial taking of $334,300. He placed a
nominal value of $500 on the damaged remainder. The County
after negotiation ended up paying $315,000 for the partial taking,
thus paying thousands of more dollars due to a damaged remainder
which was nominally valued at only $500. Additionally the final
sales price was only $2,600 less than the value placed on the
original full taking of 9,073 acres.

The second instance involved a parcel officially designated as
Block 460 B, Lot 6B, with the owning parties being Di Leo and
Nessler. Again as to this parcel, it was decided to go for a partial
taking, this time on the grounds that some of the total parcel might
be needed for future road widening. Mr. Holt in his appraisal of
the 4.352 partial taking aseribed a $35,000-per-acre value to the tak-
ing and found the .528 acre remainder left to Di Leo and Nessler
had been damaged to the extent of $18,350. That brought the total
appraised value of the partial taking to $170,600. In his appraisal,
Mr. Holt placed a nominal value of $200 for the damaged half-acre.
Thus, the County again paid thousands of dollars in damages for
a remainder with a nominal value of only $200. -~
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‘When Mr. DuBester was questioned about the instances of
the county paying more dearly for land because of the damages
awarded for partlal takings and his not advising eounty ofﬁclals of
those facts prior to purchases of the lands, he tfestified it was
possible that he might have ‘‘goofed’’ at one point, but he insisted
he had made proper determinations of fair market value in all
instances. '

Mr. Holt was asked during his testimony at the public hearings
why he had not in a separate communieation warned the County
that it could end up paying more money for less land. He stated
repeatedly that all the pertinent figures were contained in his
appraisal reports to the County and that those figures, speaking
for themselves, constituted sufficient communication to the County.
But at one point in the questioning he conceded he might have had
an additional obligation:

CommissioNer Faruey: But was not your appraisal,
your second appraisal, really the predicate for the
‘County to make a horrendously poor decision, buying
less and paying more?

Tae Wrrress: It seems to me, my appraisal should
have waved a red flag and somebody should have said,
well, might as well take the whole thing. The figures
were obvious. If anybody had compared my original
figure with my revised figure, as I said before, I think
the figures spoke for themselves.

Commissioner Fariey: Would you concede that
since Middlesex was paying you, that you had a duty
of loyalty and trust to them, to it? To your employer?

Tae Wirsess: I didn’t—I can concede that maybe I
had sort of a moral obligation to call on them.
. Commssionss FartEy: And why didn’t you speak

up? .

Tae Wirness: But I didn’t, and I’m sorry I didn’f.
But I really felt the figures spoke for themselves.

A TREMENDOUS DISPARITY

The public hearings dwelled in part with what the Commission
found te be a ‘‘tremendous disparity’’ between the appraisals
originally rendered by Messrs. Holt and Galaida for another
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Ambrose and Doty’s brooks area parcel officially designated as
Block 460E, Lot 1 owned by Brown and Shea. Mr. Holt in July,
1973 submitted to Mr. DuBester an appraisal report placing a
- value of $207,500 or $25,000 per acre. In August, 1973, Mr. Galaida
submitted an appraisal report for the same parcel valuing it at
$58, 000 or $7,000 per acre. Mr. Galaida, after communications with
Mr. DuBester, finally in March, 1974 changed his fair market value
for the parcel to $25,000 per acre, same as Mr. Holt’s value. The
Commission noted that Mr. (falaida made that sharp apward
revision in his value for the parcel after Mr. DuBester had
certified to County Counsel that $25,000 per acre was the fair
market value and a contract of sale had been signed for the
$207,000 figure.

It was Mr. DuBester’s testimony that before recommending.
county approval of the $25,000-per-acre figure, he had asked Mr.
Holt fo review his appraisal and that Mr. Holt after such review,
reasserted that figure as his estimate of fair market value. Mr.
DuBester testified that since $35,000 per acre was the going price
for industrial land in the area, he concluded that $25,000 per acre
was the proper value for the subject parcel which was slightly less
valuable than some other parcels in the area. Mr. DuBester denied -
that he ever instructed Mr. (Galaida to make his appraisal equal
that of Mr. Holt, and he stated that he asked only that Galaida
objectively reconsider his appraisal in light of its wide disparity
with Holt’s. Mr. DuBester also denied that he ever instruected
Mr. Galaida to attach to his appraisal-revision letter to the County
a sketech-map indicating how a rectangular shaped industrial build-
ing might be placed on the parcel’s terrain.

Mr. (alaida’s testimony on these points was in substantial
variance to that of Mr. DuBester. Mr. Galaida testified that his
original $7,000-per-acre value was still in his opinion the correct
value since the parcel was flawed with 20 to 40-foot easements or
rights-of-way and because the vacant parcel had only a limited
good frontage area which dropped down to swampy land and a
- streambed. He testified further about his apprmsal and Mr.
DuBester’s alleged reaction to it:

Q. And did there come a time when you hod a
conversation with Mr. DuBester on that appmesal
report?

A. Yes.
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Q. How did thal come to you? -
A, Well, after T had submitted my report on it——

Q. The report where you found it to be seven
thousand per?

A. Seven thousand an acre. He called me in and
sort of read me the riot act becanse the other
appraiser, Mr. Holt, was in at a much higher price per
acre and I was quite low on this property.

Q. And Mr. DuBester, the county official for the
people of M@ddlesex Couniy, was mad at you?
A, Yes,

Q. How do you emplam that?

CA. Well, he told me that I was eausmg a lot of
waves by this appraisal and if I didn’t come in line he
would see that I wouldn’t get any more work.

Q. What did he suggest, if anything?

A, Well, we sat down and I said I don’t think a
building could be built on this property.
' ' * # * .

A, He said that he'd show me where a building
could be built on this property and the other land
where the easements cross if can be used for parking

and it would meet the requirements for zoning and
setback.

Q. Did he draw o diagram?

A, He sketeched on a map that he had where a
building, he thought a building could be built and I
said, ‘¢“Well, let me go back into the fleld. Let me see
" what I could come up with and let me see. If maybe
I did make a mistake, then I’H see what happens.”’

Q You first submitted your appraisal rpport in
~August approzimately, of '732 :

i A: “Yes, August 11th.

Q. And then there came a time in March of 1974,
some siw months approximately later, that you finally
revised your original appraisal; is tha,t mght%’

A, That’s correct. :
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Q. Now, during that siz-month period of time, were
you studying modern technological engincerivg realty
for new buildings?

A. T said I didn’t want——

Q. The answer to my gquestion is?
- A. No, I was sticking to my guns,

Q. Were you pouring over blueprints on the great
new building that would be built on the Brown and
Shea parcel?

" A, No.

Q. And when you say yow were sticking to yoﬁfr
guns, I think you just said that?
A. Yes.

©. What was happening during those six momhs
on this parcel?
A. T was catching flack from Mr. DuBester.

Q. And that means—what was happening?

A. He kept telling me I better update that
appraisal report and bring it in line with the other
properties,

And did you finally make o judgment to do so?
Finally I did, yes, sir. .

And will you read your letter to Mr. DuBester ?
—

By the way, that has a da,te of what?
"Mareh 15th, 1974.

What did you say y? '
I said, ““In rev1ew1ng' the above-captioned prop-
er ty IfeelI have errored in not considering advanced
engineering technology in constructing a building as
-outlined on the encloged map. Taking into account
this development, it is this appraiser’s opinion that
the new value should be as follows: 8.3 acres at
$25, OOO per acre or $207,500,

““This is my value as of this date March 15th, 1974.
If I can be of further assistance to you in regards to
this matter, please call. Respectfully submitted.”
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Q. Mr, Galaida, I realize it’s a hard thing, but did
that letter represent your true thinking and your tme

professional opinion?
A, No.

Tbe Red Flag Goes Up

Mr. Hoffman, the Middlesex County Cmmsel testlﬁed that 1f
there had been sufficient checks and reviews of Mr. DuBester’s
certification of fair market values, the instances of the County’s
paying more dearly for less land and of a tremendous disparity of
appraisals would have been red flags which would have led to
questioning and re-analysis of Mr. DuBester’s certifications. As
previously noted, after the S.C.I. investigation began, Assistant
County Counsels were under instructions not to accept Mr.
DuBester’s fair market values at their face value and to examine
any supporting documentation. And as a result, the red flag did
start to be raised as to his value oertlﬁeatlons

A case in point concerned another Ambrose and Doty 8 brooks‘
area parcel officially designated as Block 496, Lot 7 and owned
by Benro Ine. The County eventually opted to take partially 4.63
acres of this parcel, leaving a remainder to Benro of 3.35 acres.
Mr. Holt’s appraisal for this partial taking was $212,200 and the
contract was approved by.frecholder resolution in June, 1975.
Assistant County Counsel Burns testified because of some title
clearance problems, closing of this approved, contracted-for-sale
was delayed. In the interim, largely due to the S.C.I probe, Mr.
Burns decided to check on the documentation behind Mr.
" DuBester’s certification of fair market value for this partial taking
and a second appraisal, done by Charles Sullivan of the David
B. Marshall Co., put a valne of $196,250 on that same partla.l
takmg

‘Mr..DuBester had certified as the fair market value Mr. Holt’
value of $212,200 which included $50,150 in alleged damages to the
remainder left to Benro. Mr. Burns’ review of the appraisals led
him to visit the site of the parcel and to a determination that the
Ambrose and Doty’s brooks streambed and a drainage ditch were
on the 4.63 partial taking by the County and that the remaining
3.35 acres to be retained by Benro were not so damaged. Mr.
Burns also noted that neither appraisal made adjustments for the
watercourse and the drainage ditch on the partial-taking acreage,
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He thén took Mr. DuBester and Mr. Masone of the Land Aequisi-
tion Department to the site and came to the belief during that
visit that Messrs. DuBester and Masone agreed with Mr, ‘Burns’

opinion thaf the $212 200 value for partial taking represented very
possﬂole over-pricing. Eventually, the County retained an outside
review appraiser to re-appraise the partial taking, and the review
appralser set a fair market value of approximately $110,000.

While the County was flagging the Benro m&tter the S.C.L
asked, as part of its probe, Mr. Alton VanHorn, the expert post-
appralsal reviewer retained by the Commission, to review Mr.
Holt’s and Mr. Sullivan’s Benro appraisals. Mr. VanHorn, with
assistance from John VanHorn of the same firm, carried out thls_
reviewing task and rendered the Commission a report which in-
dicated that the $212,200 value or any figure close to that value
was too high an estimate of value. The report indicated that both
appraisals would have been substantially lower if proper down-
ward adjustments had been used for factors of fooding, non-arms-
length comparative sales, and a 1969 sales price of the parcel of
only $95,000. The VanHorns, report to the S.C.I. stated that the
values in both the Holt and Sullivan appramals ‘‘are nnsupport-
able ”

SALES OF TICKETS FOR PoLITICAL FUNCTIONS

‘Since mid-1973, the New Jersey State Election Law has required
that political contnbutmns, whether they be in the form of sales
of tickets to political functions or just outright donations, be
pubhcly recorded with the State Ilection Law Enforcement Com—
mission. As part of its Middlesex County Land acquigition probe,
the S.C.L inspected the records of that Commission relative to any
political contributions by appraisers who had been given appraisal
work by the County. The names of all appraisers who had been
awarded appraisal contracts by the County since 1967 through -
1975 were supplied to the Commission by the Middlesex County
Treasurer’s Office.

* 8.C.I. Special Agent Richard Fvans then determined from the
Election Law Commission records that 17 appraisers on the
County’s approved appraisers list had from mid-1973 through the
year 1975 made political contributions totaling $12,055. A further
check by Agent Evans of Election Law Commission records showed
that on at least cight occasions during that same timie span,
political contributions had bheen made by employees of the Middle-
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sex County Land Acquisition Department on the same date as
contributions by appraisers were made,

Agent Evans proceeded next to draw up a list indicating political
contributions by appraisers by the date of each contribution. He
then inspected the dates of appraisal agreements made by the
County and the dates of the resolutions by the Middlesex County
Freeholder Board approving awards of appraisal work and com-
pared those dates with the dates of the making of the political
- contributions by the appraisers. As a result of these investigative
and analytical steps, Agent Evans determined that on at least 14
-oceasions political contributions by appraisers on the approved list
either immediately preceded or shortly followed the County’s
signing appraisal agreements with the appraisers or the approval
of those agreements by the Freeholder Board.

The investigation of this area by Agent Evans also showed that
on at least 13 occasions the polifical eontributions by appraisers
were preceded by County payments to the appraisers for services
rendered and that on five occasions an appraiser made contribu-
tions ranging from $50 to $250 following the receipt of payments
by Middlesex County for services rendered. S '

The above facts relative to political econtributions by appraisers
on the County’s approved list were testified to by Agent Evans at
the public hearings, and that testimony was accompanied by the
marking as exhibits of four list-type documents which appear as
Charts One through Four on pages 48 to 52 of this annual report.

The previously mentioned Nathan DuBester, Administrator of
the Middlesex County Land Acquisition Department, conceded at
‘the public hearings that, as a registered Democrat, he had sold
tickets to political funetions to appraisers doing business with the
County and on ‘“limited occasions’’ to employees in his department:

Q. Do you perform or conduct any fumctions for
the Democratic Party in Middlesex County?
A. Yes, I do. . .

Q. And what are those functions?
A. There are times when T sell tickets for political
- affairs. - ' '

Q. Where do you sell these tickets?
A. As I have stated before, wherever I can.
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CHART ONE

CONTRIBUTIONS BY APPRAISERS ON
MIDDLESEX COUNTY APPROVED LIST -

Appraiser -
Bolotin, Harry -

Christian, Gloria
Fleming, Carl

Galaida, John

Gall, Jerome

Harrigan, James

Harrington, Donald

Holt, F. Russell

1 Trang Jersey Realty.-

Date of Contribution Amownt
April 19, 1974 $ 25.
August 12, 1974 250.

- Angust 15, 1974 ' o0.
August 19,1974 50.
Janvary 24, 1875 - 30.
June 10, 19756 100,
Angust 14, 1975 _ 100.
August 14, 1975 : 50,
Aungust 22,1975 . 200,

- Qectober 20, 1975 _ 25,

 October 20, 1975 50.
October 28, 1973 . 50.

- August 1, 1973 ‘ o 2000

" October 31, 1974 ' © b0o: -
January 28, 1975 : 100. -
August 28, 1975 5.
August 1, 1973 : 500.
October 29, 19731 ‘ 250.
August 1, 1973 . - 300..
April 19,1974 50.
July 10, 1974 . 100.

" August 12, 1974 250.
November 20, 1974 ' 50,
January 16, 1975 75.
January 17 1975 ' 60.
August 14, 1975 : 200.
October 20, 1975 100.
May 13, 1974 ' 50.
August 12, 1974 ' - 100,
Angust 28, 1975 : , 100.
July 25, 1973 500. -
August 23, 1974 © 100,
June 25, 197 5 _ 100.
August 14 1975 100.
July 23, 1973 500.
August 12, 1974 300.
January 16, 1975 60
August 14, 1875 100.
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Appraiser
London, Alfred

Murray, J ames
Paulus, Robert
Patten, Thomas
Salgado, Joseph
Schurko, John

Sullivan, Charles

2 South County Realty.
3 Diversified Appraisals.
4 Dial Agency.

Date of Contribution

Augnst 28, 1973
April 30, 1974
July 23, 1974
October 7, 1974
June, 1975
Augnst 4, 1975
Avugust 13, 1975

August 15, 19742
October 31, 19743
January 24, 19753
August 19, 19753
October 28, 19753

Aungust 21, 1974
June 12, 1975
August 14, 1975

January 24, 1975
Janunary 31, 1975

~ Angust 21, 1975

October 20, 1975

April 19, 1974
January 17, 1975
June, 1975
August 14, 1975

January 17, 1975
June 18, 19754
August 14, 1975
October 20, 1975

June 21, 1973
October 13, 1973
October 30, 1973
April 15,1974
Aungust 13, 1974
September 10, 1974
October 16, 1974
January 23, 1975
June 6, 1975
August 8, 1975
September 3, 1975
October 20, 1975
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Amount

125.
25.
100.
200.
100. -
100.
100.

500.
2.
30.

- 100,
25.

50.
100.
100.

30.
45.
100.
50,

25,
30.
100.
50.

45,
100.
100.

a0.

300.
370.
225.
50.
100.
50.
200.
150.
100.
100.
50.
2.



Appraiser
Tanzman, Herbert

Timpson, Walter

Date of Contribution

- July 25, 1973

October 9, 1973
October 25, 1973
Angust 21, 1974

August 6,1973
October 6, 1973
October 30, 1973
July 19, 1974
December 17, 1974
August 19,1975

Cuart Two

- Amount

500. .
500,
100,
100.

200.
200.
200,
200.
oo
100.

CONTRIBUTIONS BY EMPLOYEES OF THE

- MIDDLESEX COUNTY LAND ACQUISITION

Name

Berkowitz, Jerrold
Colonna, John

DuBester, Nathan
Fallon, T. Gilbert
Gadek, Gerard

| Masone, Anthony

APPRATISER CONTRIBUTIONS BY DATE

Date of Contribution
August 1, 1973

April 19,1974

3 Diversified Appraisals.

DEPARTMENT

‘Date of Contribution
“Angust 21, 1974
October 31, 19745 3

None

Jannary 24, 1975
April 19, 1974
August 14, 1974
January 31, 1975
Januoary 16, 1975
June 10, 1975

CuHART THREE

Appraiser
Gloria Christian
Jerome Gall
John Galalda

Harry Bolotin
Jerome Gall
Joseph Salgado
Gerard Gadek®

5 Loan to South River Democratic Organization.

* M.C.L.AD. Employee.

a0

Amiount
$ 50,
30.

256.42

256.42

45.
25.
-90.
15.
30.
100.

Amount

$200.
300.
500.

95.
50.
9.
25. .



Date of Contribution
August 12, 1974

Appraiser
Harry Bolotin

- Jerome Gall
. James Harrigan

August 15, 1974

August 21, 1974

F. Russell Holt

Gerard Gadek™
Harry Bolotin
South County Realty

Robert Panlus

.Herbert Tanzman

October 31, 1974
January 16, 1975
January 17, 1975
January 24, 1975
January 31, 1975

TJune 10, 1975

August 14, 1975

October 20, 1975

2 South County Realty.
*M.C.L.A.D. Employee.
*# Loan by M.C.L.A.D. Employee.

Jerrold Berkowitz*®

Carl Fleming
Diversified Appraisals
John Colonna**

F. Bussell Holt
Jerome Gall
Anthony Magone*

Jerome Gall
John Sechurko
Joseph Salgado

Harry Bolotin
Diversified Appraisals
Thomas Patten

T. Gilbert Fallon*

Thomas Patten
Gerard Gadek*

Harry Bolotin
Anthony Masone*

Harry Bolotin?2
Jerome Gall
Donald Harrington
F. Russell Holt
Robert Paunlus
Joseph Salgado
John Sechurko

Harry Bolotin2
Jerome Gall
Thomas Patten
John Schurko
Charles Sullivan

o1

- Amount

250.
250.
100.
300.

50.
50.



CHART FOUR

Date of
Appraisal

Name Agreement
Sullivan, Charles ...... 8-7-74
Bolotin, Harry ........ 7-18-75
Timpson, Walter ...... 7-18-75
London, Alfred ....... 7-18-75
Salgado, Joseph ...... 6-17-75
Panlus, Robert ........ 7-18-75
Murray, James ........ 8-1-74
8-21-75
10-21-75
Patten, Thomas ....... 11-27-74
: 8-12-75

Gall, Jerome ......... not available
7-5-73
Holt, F'. Rusgell ....... 8-5-T4

Name Date of Check

Bolotin, Harry ....... 5-28-75 (2)
Galaida, John ........ 7-19-73
10-18-73
Gall, Jerome ......... 8-7-75
1-16-75
4-18-74
7-19-74
11-7-74
Harrington, Donald.. .. 7-19-73
Holf, . Russell ....... 8-1.74
7-19-73
Tanzman, Herbert ..... 10-9-73
~ Timpson, Walter ...... 8-6-75

1,225

Date of

Resolution

8-15-74
7-17-75

71775
7-17-75

8-7-75
7-17-75

8-1-74
8-21.75
12.4-75
1-16-75

9-4-75
8-15-74
7-5-73
8-15-74

Amount
1,260
1,260
1,500
3,100

1,550
850

350

6,750
7,100
1,200
1,500
5,100
450

Contribution
8-13-T4
8-14-75
8-22-75
8-19-75

8-4-75
8-13-75
8-14-75
8-21-75
§8-15-74
8-19-75

10-28-75
1-24-75
1-31-75
8-21-75
8-12-74

8-1-73

8-12-74

Date of
Contribution

6-10-75

8-1-73
10-29-73
8-14-75
1-17-75
1-16-75
419-74
8-12-74
11-20-74
7-25-73
8-12-74
7-23-73

- 10-9-73
8-19-75

Amount

$100.

150"
200,
100.

100.
" 100,

50,
100,

500.
100,
25.

30.
45,
100.
250,
300.

300.

Amount-

$100.

500.
250,
200.
60.
75.
50,
250,
5(.
500.
. 300,
500.
500,
100,

Q. Inyour office?

A. I have sold some in my office,
Q. Have you asked people to buy political tickets

whsle in your office?

A. I have made people aware of the fact that there

was a political affair,

@. To whom did you sell these tickets? .
A. T have sold them to appraisers in the past.
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Q. Have you sold them to your own employees?

A. Yes. My employees have never purchased more
than one, but they have taken tickets on very limited
occasions.

Q. Who supplies you with these tickets?
A. They come out of the County Chairman’s office.

Q. Who specifically?
A. They've been hand delivered to me by various
people, Mr. Rhatican.

Q. And have they been hand delivered to you while
you WEre in Your oﬁce in Middlesex -Cozmty?
- AL At times.

Q. What did you do with the money that’s
collected from the sale of these tickets?
* A, Turn them in to the County Chairman’s office,
Democratic County Chairman.

Q. To whom specifically?

A. It’s Mr. Nicholas Venezia’s office. In the past it
was an office that the Democratic organization had on
Elmwood Road when the late Mr. Mulligan was
chairman,

Q. Do you know a man by the naMe of Stephen
(Ja,pestro?
A, Yes, I do.

Q. Who is he?
A. He’s a Freeholder.

Q. Does he hold an office in the Democratic Party
of Middlesex County?
A. Yes, he does.

| Q. Has he supplied you lickels to sell?
‘A, He may have. I don’t recall.

Q. Have yoeﬁ turned any of the moneys collected by
you in the sale of these tickets to Mr. Capestro?
" A. Imay have as a conduit to Mr. Venezia’s office.

Q. How long have you been selling tickets on be-
half of the Democratic Party?
A. T don’t remember that.
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@. Do you also collect contmbutzons for the Demo-
eratic Party?
A. No, I don’t.

Q. Have you contributed to the Democratic Party

wm 19752

A. No, sir,

Q. 742

A. No, sir.

Q. 752

A. No, sir.

Q. 72?

A. 1 bought tickets, but I don’t remember exactly

When It was back a,round 72 or 71,

Q. Mr. DuBester, do you assign appraisers on .
the basis of their domations amd/or pwchases of
tickets for political affairs from you?

A. 1 do not.

The Commission in its statement at the adjournmen’s of the
public hearings found that Mr. DuBester’s serving as a virtual
golicitation and collection agency for a constant stream of political
contributions from appraisers through political funetion ticket
sales ereated an atmosphere which set the stage for further types :
of alleged monetary exchanges between Mr, DuBester and two of
the County’s approved appraisers, Jerome J. Gall and the previ-
ously mentioned John J. Galaida. Messrs. Gall and Galaida were
among the approved appraisers who purchased political function -
tickets from Mr. DuBester. Pertinent excerpts from Mr. Gall’s
public hearing testimony follow:

Q. Now, Mr. Gall, during the time, and I’'m com-
centrating mow on 1972, during thai year while you
were doing work for Mid’a’!lesew County on these
projects, did yow have occesion to buy tickets o
political functions in Middlesex County?

A. I assume I did, yes, sure.

Q. Well, when you say you assume you did, 1’d
like you to be very careful and tell me whether you
have actually done it or whether you are guessing.

A. T believe I did. .
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Q. And did you ever have occasion to give the
- money for these tickets to Mr. Nathan DuBester?
A, Yes, I did.

Q. And did this ever ocour in his office?
A. I would assume they did, yes.

Q. From time to time while you were conducting
your appraisal work on these county projects you
would have occasion to go into Mr. Dubester’s office
wn the County building?

AT did.

Q. And at that time om occasion you would give
him money. for political function tickels?

A. Tt would be cash—not cash, a check, rather than
money.

Q. You would gwe him payment for o political
- ticket?
A. Correct.

% # i &

Q. Did it happen on more than one occasion from
the period 1971 to the present?
A. Oh, yes.

Q. Would you say it was a fairly frequent occur-
rence for you to buy from Mr. DuBester political
function or political activity tickets?

A. What do you mean by ‘‘frequent occurrence’”?

Q. I think that’s a fair qguestion you just asked me.
How often did it happen during o four-year period?
A. Whenver there was an affair, just abouf.

Q. Whenver there was a political party affair, a
dance or some other fumction, you would be asked to
buy tickets?

Yes.

s

And My, DuBester was the one who asked you?
On most—mnot all oceasions.

But on most occasions?
I would say, yes.
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Mr. -Galaida in his’public hearing testimony stated that when
there was a political function, Mr. DuBester would sohclt ticket
purchages from him:

Q. Is it important to get on that wpproved ap-
praiser list?

A, Well, if you want appra1sa1 Work frOm the
County, yes, it is important.

. And then who’s the man who decides which
appraisers on the list are going to get assignments
of apvraisal work? ‘

A. Mr. DuBester.

Q. And over the years as you recewed various
assignments of work, did you buy and purchase from
Mr. DuBester tickets to political party funclions?

A. Yes, I did.

Q And describe that. Wa,s it freguefmt infrequent,
just an occasional thing or
A. Whenever there was a function I bouwht tickets.

Q. How would that work?

A. Mr. DuBester would notify me, call me np or at
a time when I'm by his office he’d say, ‘‘Listen,
there’s a dinner coming up. We have tickets. You
should buy some tickets.”” At certain times.

Q. And what was the price .m%g"e per ticket?
~A. Some were ten or fifteen. Others were $50 a
tlcket ,

Q. And you bought them over a course of about
how many years?

A, T°d say from '69 through 71 I bought then
72—"7T1—end of—’'71 I didn’t buy, 72 then through
74,

Q. And in what amount—what number of tickets
did you buy on any given occasion? For instance, did
you sometimes buy just fwo?

A, Sometimes it was four, a lot of times it was ten.
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Q. And do you recall what occurred om cmy
- mstances when you bowght ten tickets?
A. Well, at one occasion, that was 1973, I beheve
for Grovernor s Day function, I bought ten tickets
a,fter I had c"0’01:311 the Ambrose Brook Project.

Who did you buy them from?
Mr. DuBester.

Who did you give the mo%éy to?
Mr. DuBester.

And did you receive ten tickets from him?
No, I gave him six back. He said he needed six .
for people that lie had to give them out to.

o b ro

Q So he gave you ten cmd You whapped six right
- back?

B

Yes.

You ended wp with how many?
Four.

How much were those a head?
$50.

PO PO

PAYOFFS ARE ALLEGED

During the course of the probe of the Mlddlesex County matter,
the Commission’s investigative staff encouniered speculative and
unsupported information that Nathan DuBester as Administrator
of the County’s Land Aequisition Department might have re-
quested and received cash payments from some of the appraisers
who had received fees from, the County for services rendered.
Further investigation in this area led to the Commission’s hearing
private testlmony which included a specifie, sworn allegation that
an appraiser had returned a percentage of his fees received from
the County to Mr. DuBester. As a result, the Commission directed
intensive additional probing in this area to determine whether or
not any other instances of similar alleged payments to M.
DuBester could be uncovered to add substantiation to the initial
allegation.

The Commission after protracted investigation and a legal pro-
ceeding finally did receive in private session an additional, sworn
allegation of cash payments to Mr. DuBester at a time an appraiser
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was receiving fees from the County for services rendered. Given
this substantiation, the Commission determined that it would be
in order to present the sworn allegations at the public hearings
as an integral part of the facts relative to the operation of the
Middlesex County Land Acquisition Department. Mr. DuBester’s
sworn, categorical denials, first received in private session, of -
ever having asked for or received cash payments from any ap-
praisers doing business with the County were, of course, also
afforded a public forum at the public hearings.

A Most Reluctant Witness

The witness who eventually supplied the substantiation tfesti-
mony in this area of this investigation is the previously mentioned
Jerome J. Gall, an appraiser with offices in Woodbridge. When
Mr. Gall was first called on to give private testimony before the
Commission, he appeared in accord with the subpeena served on
him and accompanied by his Counsel, John J. Cassese, Hsq. As
Mr. Gall was to testify to later at the public hearings, he came to
the Commission’s offices with the firm desire and intention of
not! cooperating with the S.C.I. if at all possible on any inquiry
dealing with his financial matters, including any relationships he
might have had with Mr. DuBester. He so communicated that
desire and intent to his attorney. Acecordingly, at the private
hearing, Mr, Gall invoked his constifutional privilege against
possible self-inerimination when asked about any finanecial matters,
including those that might have pertained to Mr, DuBester.

After the private hearing was concluded, Mr. Gall instructed
his attorney to comnmunicate to the Commission that Mr. Gall was
still firm in his desire and intent not to cooperate with the S.C.IL
in apnswering any questions regarding his financial matters. This
total wall of non-cooperation left the Commission in the position
of not knowing what degree of factual validity might lie behind
Mr. Gall’s Fifth Amendment invocation and, therefore, the nature
of any testimony he might give, were the Commission to consider
conferring on him a grant of witness immunity to compel his testi-
mony over his Fifth Amendment plea.

Court Proceedings Force a Decision

The Commission subsequently decided to go to court to attempt
to ascertain the substance behind My. (all’s Fifth Amendment plea.
It did so by filing with Judge George Y. Schoch of the Superior
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Court an application to determine whether Mr. Gall’s invocation
of the privilege against possible self-incrimination was frivolous
or meritorious. Accordingly, Judge Schoch heard arguments on
this application i camera at the Mercer County Courthouse. Mr.
Gall testified later at the public hearings how the progress of
that court proceeding led him to an agonizing choice of either
dropping his firm desire and intention not to answer any question
about his financial relationships with Mr., DuBester and be in-
carcerated for contempt of court, or to answer truthfully under
oath a question posed to him by Judge Schoch and return a free
man to his home and family, with the latter choice finally being
- opted for by Mr. Gall:

Q. And when you were going on your way to the
Mercer County Courthouse, did you understond that
the purpose of that proceeding would be for the 8.0.1.
to seek to compel you through the Court to amswer
the questions?

A. That’s correct,

Q. And then do you recall appearing before Judge
Schoch with your attorney in the Mercer County
Courthouse? .

A, 1 do.

Q. And there was various legal arguments; is that
right?
A. That’s correet.

Q. And you instructed your attorney to take the
position that you would not cooperate; is that correct?
A. That’s correct.

Q. And then do you recall there was an occasion
when the Court took a recess and gave youw an oppor-
tunity to talk to your lawyer and think over this very
wmportant decision? Do you recall thai? .

A. That was after the judge told me, you know——

Q. You recall the judge gave you an instruction
as to what your options were?
A, He did, yes.

Q. Did the judge ask you questions about whether
you had made payments to Mr. Nathan DuBester and
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‘did.he tell you that you had certain options as to those'
questions?
A. He did ask the questlon and he told me I had
_ options.

Q. What did the judge tell you your optwfns were?
A. I can tell them—I can answer the quesfion and
don’t answer the question and be put in the cage.

Q. Or what?
A, In the cage.

‘Tae CoatrMav: In a éage?
Tue WiTwess: In jail.
Tar CramMay: In jail.

Q. So you understood from what the judge com-
muntcated to you in that p'roceedmg that you faced a
very importamt decision; is that correct? '

A T did

Q. And did you then consult pmmtely mth Your
attorney as to what course of action to take?
A, Idid :

Q. And, in fact, you called your home, your wife,
to discuss it, didw’t you? :
A, Tdid.

Q. And after that you came back before Judge
Schoch and made your decaswn?
A, 1did

Q. And is your testimony here today the tmth the
whole truth and nothing but the trith?
A Ttis

Q. And did you make the decision to testify and
answer the questions after Judge Schoch gave you
those oplions you just described?

A. That’s when I made my decision.

). Pardon? -
A, That’slwhen the decision was madé.

The answers given by Mr. Gall to Judge Schoch’s key question
in the privacy of the in camera court sesgion indicated that Mr. -
Gall had, indeed, made payments to Mr. DuBester, and the Judge
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ruled that Mr. Gall’s invocation of the ‘Fifth Amendment to
questions by the S.C.I. in that area was meritorious. However,
the in camera proceeding enabled the Commission to obtain indicia
as to the substance and import of Mr, Gall’s testimony, were it
to be compelled by a grant of witness immunity. The Commission
did, after due deliberation, recall Mr. Gall to private session and
compel his immunized testimony as to financial matters, especially
those relating to Mr. DnBester. That testimony was subsequently
repeated by Mr. Gall, again at the commands of an S.C.I. subpena
and a continuing grant of immunity, at the public hearings as
reviewed below. The Commission attached particular credibility
to Mr. Gall’s testimony because of his determination to attempt,
under his constitntional privileges, to avoid having to give truthful
testimony which would be damaging to him and his subsequent
full candor once that determination had been overcome first by
the court proceeding and later by the Comrmssmn s compulsion
of hig 1mmun1zed testimony.*

Testz'mohy of Jerome ]. Gall

Jerome J. Gall in 1969 began working in the real estate appraisal
firm offices of his uncle, Albert Gall, in Woodbridge. The elder
Gall’s business included the rendering of appraisal services to
both private companies and individuals and to public agencies,
including the County of Middlesex. The elder Gall as proprietor
of the firm carried on any necessary business dealings with Nathan
DuBester as Administrator of the Middlesex County Land Acquisi-
tion Depariment, with Jerome Gall as an employee having no
business negotiations with Mr. DuBester at that time but, through
the work of the firm, meeting Mr. DuBester from time to time.
During 1971, Albert Gall died, and, by 1972, Jerome Gall was
operating the family business at the same Woodbridge location
and beginning to receive on his own for the first time assignments
to do real estate appraisal work for Middlesex County. He
continued to receive such assignments from the County from time
to time in ensuing years.

Mr. Gall testified at the public hearings that during 1972, af a
time when he had begun to receive appraisal work from the County,

* Once it became clear that Mr. Gall would be called to testify fully in public, he and
his attorney offered no objection to having the nature of the én camera court proceedings
reviewed at the public hearings, since the proceedmgs were held ina closec[ courtrootn
only to protect Mr. Gall at that time, :
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he was contacted by Mr. DuBester who asked for a payment of
money : '

Q. Do you have a recollection in your mind right
now as to the first time you mode such o payment?
A. In 1972

. And do you remember the circumstances in
general that led to your making the payment?

A. He called me and asked me if T could help him
out.

Q. Who is he?

A, Mr. _DuBester.
Q
A

. Called you on the phone? |
. Iixcuse me. I believe it wag on the phone, yes.

And what did he say or what did he ask? ,
Well, T would assume that he asked for—you
know, maybe I don’t know really what the actual
question was of the conversation, but he might have
asked for he needed some el-othes or he needed a—he
had a problem or if T could help him out.

o

Q. At any rate you understood quite clearly what
it was he wanted, did you not?
T understood, yes.

B

And you understood he wawted from you what?
Some money.

And did you pay him money?
I did.

How much was 12

D PO B

Mgr. Cassuse: You’re referrixig to 1972,
Mr. Horsimin: I'm " referring to the first
occasion he ever had occasion to make a payment.

A. T believe it was around three hundred, $350.

G. And do you recall the place where you made the .
payment? ‘
A. I believe it was in Perth Amboy.

Q. Was it in a public pldce?
A. A parking lof.
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And was the payment made in cash or by check?
Cash. .

And you took the cash with you to this meeting?
I did.

And afterwards did you and Mr. DuBester go
your separate ways or did you spend some ftime
together?

A. I believe we went out for dinner.

Later during 1972, Mr. Gall received a check for $35,275 from
Middlesex County for appraisal work done on the Jamesburg
Park project. That check was several times larger than any
previous fee payment he had received from the County for services
rendered and was, in fact, by far the largest single appraisal fee
check he ever did receive from the County, according to his testi-
mony. About the time the big check arrived, Mr. Gall festified,
he was once more contacted by Mr. DuBester about a possible
payment:

D PO pO

Q. And what prompled you to make the payment
to Mr. DuBester on this secomd occasion, and was
there any relationship between the receipl by you of
the thirty-four thousand-dollar check and the payment
to Mr. DuBester?

A. Well, T don’t know if there’s any relationship.
It was after or during the time that the check was
either in my hand or being processed that Mur.
DuBester called me or spoke to me. I don’t know.
We had ‘

Q.‘M_r. DuBester called you just about the fime
that check was hitting your office; 1s that right?
A. T would say in that general time period, ves.

Q. So his call came im right around the time that
very big check was first coming into your possession?

A. 1 would say, yes. T believe that was—I believe
your statement is reasonably correct.

Q. And Mr. DuBester called you?
A. FHither called me or 1 met him. I don’t know
the exact circumstances.

Q. What did he want and what do you remember?
A. He needed some help.
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Q. Pardon?
A. He needed some help.

Q. And did you understand from that that he
needed help on his appraisal work or some other kmd
of help? L

A, T vnderstood it was financial help.

Q. There wasn’t any doubt about that im your
mand, was there? .
A. No, I don’t think there was a doubt.

Q. And did you giwe him financial help? Did you
give him money?
A, Yes, Idid.

Q. And what was the appromimate amount of
money that you gave him?
A. About three thousand, $3,500.

. What was that?
A. Three thousand to $3,500, somewheres in there.

Q. And was that amount roughly equivalent to 10
per cent of this J amesbu'rg Park fee that you had just
receiwved?

A. Tt worked out to about 10 per cent, yes.

¢). Pardon?
A. Tt worked out to about 10 per cent, yes.

. Were you more generous, I guess my question
18, the second time you made payment to Mr. DuBester
thawn you were the first time?

A. T believe go. Excuse me. I believe so.

Q. And what caused you to be more generous?
A. T had $34,000 in my pocket.’

Mr. Gall was obviously worried about the propriety of making
a big cash payment to the man who had awarded him the James-
burg Park appraisal project. He, by his own testimony, attempted
to disguise his generation of $3,500 in cash to make the payment
by jockeying funds among his various bank accounts He testlﬁed

about that attempt at the public hearings:
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Q. And when the S.C.I. served you with its sub-
. peena for the books and records, did yow make an
attempt to look in your books to see if you could spot
- the exact tramsactions thal were the kwkback pay-
ments to Mr. DuBester?

A, T did.

. And were you able to find those, trace those
payments to Mr. DuBester when you had those three
days to look at your books?

A. Not really, no. I tried, but I 1ea11v dldn’t come
up with the method.

Q.. Your system of disguising the ﬂow of the cash
hwd been pretty good?
A: T think it was. -

Q. What kinds of systems did you use?

A, I would take money out, throw it into another
account, take meney back out, throw it into another
account, take money out, keep part of it, you know.

. You wused a system of jockeying befween
different accounts?

A. That would be the only—that would be only for
the one large check in ’72.

Q.'”l"t was mainly that thirty-four-thousand-dollar
tramsaction?
A. Yeah, yeah.

Q. Right. Then the payment of $34,000 that you
wotrked very hard on disguising-——-—
~A. Idon’t know if I worked very hard, but—

Q. At any rate, you did attempt to disguise it?
-~ A. Correct.

Mr. Gall testified further that on a fhird oceasion, which he
placed as occurring during 1974 around the time he completed
appraisal work for the County on the Spotswood Drainage Im-
provement project, Mr. DuBester again requested a payment
from Mr, Gall. Mr, Gall testified that he responded to this request
by making a payment of approximately $350 to $450 to Mr.

DuBester.
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Mr. Gall stopped short of conceding the eash payments he made
to Mr. DuBester were kickbacks, preferring to call them gifts for
work received. But Mr. Gall was unequivoeal in stating that he
made the ecash payment only on the request of Mr. DuBester and
in concluding that the only factor motivating those payments was
Mr, Gall’s concern, that he continue o receive appraisal work
assignments from the County:

Q. Is it fair to state that each of the three times
you wmade payment it was prompted by a specific
request from Mr, Nathan DuBester?

A. It was by request of Mr. DuBester, correect.

Q. Were there occasions when you got checks from
Middlesex County for doing appraisal work during
782, '3 and 74 when Mr. DuBester would make no
request?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. And when he didn’t make a request, did zou
offer? S
A. No.

Q. You waited for the request?
A, Yes. '

Q. And when the request was made you complied
with it2

A Tdid

. Did you ever contemplate as you went about
your business and did your work and received your
wmoney from Middlesex County, did you ever com-
template the possibility of saying to Mr. PuBester,
““No, I'm not going to pay.”” Did that ever cross your
waAnd?

A. 1 thought about it, sure.

Q. Quickly dismissed that idea?
A. T don’t know. You're asking me something I
might have thought about years ago.

Q. Did you ever say that to Mr, DuBester? |
A. No.
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Q. You like to mazimize your mcome, don’t you?
You do like to increase your income as much as you
can?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. Then why was it that you never said to Mr.
DuBester, “‘No, I will not pay’’?
A. Because T was receiving work.

Q. And you were fearful of what might happen
- if you stopped paying after he requested?

~A. I don’t know if I was fearful, but I thought

about if I didn’t give him the money maybe I

wouldn't get work,

€. So you paid out of yor concern that you would
be able to still continue Lo receive work?

A. T would say that’s the general feeling that I
had.

Q. Was that the chief motiwvating factor in your
gwing the money?
A. That’s the only reason.

Testimony of Jobn J. Galaida

The prevmusly mentioned John J. Galaida was during 1968-69
employed in the real estate appraisal office of Albert Gall, the
previously mentioned unele of Jerome Gall. In fact, Mr. Galaida
was displaced in that firm and eventually received County ap-
praisal work on his own because of the decision to have Jerome
Grall join his uncle’s business during 1969.

Mr. Galaida testified that during this 1968-69 association with
Albert” Gtall’s firm, F. Russell Holt, the previously mentioned
appraiser, had offices in the upstairs of the same building in which
the Gall firm’s offices were in the downstairs. Mr. Holt, it may
be remembered, was eventually fo appraise for Middlesex County,
the same gix Ambrose and Doty’s brooks area parcels of land
which also were appraised by the County by Mr. Gtalaida and which
were intensely serutinized by the 8.C.I. in this investigation,

Mr. Galaida festified at the public hearings that while he was
with Albert Gall’s firm, Mr. Holt was assigned by the County as
an appraiser on the Woodbridge Avenue road widening project,
with the Gall firm also being assigned appraisal work on that
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projeet by the County. It was Mr. Galaida’s testimony that Albert
Gtall had a conversation with Mr. Holt in Mr, Galaida’s presence
shortly before the awarding of the appra1sal contracts on the
Woodbridge Avenue project:

A. Well, I was with Mr. Gall for about two or three
months prior to the awarding of the contract on the
Woodbridge Avenue project. And during this time
there was a meeting at the office with Mr. Holt. I was
in the next office. Then I came into the office whereby
Mr. Gall said that he would see that Mr. Holt would
get the job as the Woodbridge Avenue—do the Wood-
bridge Avenue job for the county. '

Q. Albert Gall indicated he might have some suc-
cess wn securing for Mr, Holt thzs appraisal wo'rk??
A, Yes.

Q. And did Mr, Albert Gall efnlfi,ghten Mr. Holt any
ffu,rther on, shall we soy, the facts of life? ‘

“A. Yes. He fold him that he would have to give a
percentage of his contract as a klckoff—klckback or

payback.
Q. To whom?
A, Mr. DuBester.
Q. For what purpose or what reason?
A. If he wants the gontract, he had to do it.
Q. And was Mr. Holt pleased by this or not?
A. No. he wasn’t.
Q. And you dow’t have any knowledge, personal

knowledge, do you, as fo whether Mr. Holt ever fol-
lowed through and made such payments or do you?
A. No, I don’t. No personal knowledge.

Mr, Holt during his testimony at the public hearings denied that
Mr. DuBester ever indicated that Mr. Holt would have to make
payments of a percentage of his County-awarded fees to M.
DuBester as a provision for getting County appraisal work, and
Mr. Holt also denied that he ever had had the meeting and dis-
cusgion with Albert Gall as testified to by Mr. Galaida:

Q. Were there any other discussions with Mr. .
DuBester on or about those times that he was giving
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gyou the maps and the metes and bounds descriplion
for the property to be appraised?
- A, No, no parficular discassion.

Q. Did he indicate to you that, as o provision for
you obtaining the cowtract with Middlesex County,
that you would be required to pay a percentage of
your fee to him?

A. Never.

Q. Did you suggest that g you would offer hzfm a per-
centage of your fee——
A. T did not.

Q. —n order to acquire work from Middlesex
County?
A. T did not,

Q. Were you aware of ony understanding that
existed between the appraiser, yourself, and
appraisers in general with the Middlesex Cowmty
Land Acgmsztmn Department that there was o price
wwolved in getting Middlesex County land appraisal
work?

I never heard of that, no.

Do you know the name Albert Gall?
Yes, I do.

And who 15 he?
He’s deceased.

Who was he? :

He was a broker and appraiser from Wood-
ge. :
Q. Did you ever work for him or with him?
A. T did not.

Q. Did you ever have an office space rented in a
butlding owned by Mr. Gall?
A, Tdid.

Q. And when was that?
A. 1968-69, I would guess.

Q. Do you know a man by the name of John |
Galaida?
A. John Galaida, yes, I do.
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). And who is he?

A. He used to work for Albert Gall; he used to
work for the Highway Department; he sold me gome
stocks which T lost a lot of money on, and I know him
as being a broker and/or appraiser from the area.

#* * * #

Q. Did you have occasion to have meetings with
Mr. Albert Gall around 1968%

A. Except for saying hello to him and good-bye
to him when I went in and out of the office if I saw
him, we had no meelings as suoch.

Q. Well, did you have o meeting with Mr. Gall at
which time Mr. Galaida was present
A. Not to—no.

Q. —where the discussion involved on under-
standing of payment of a certain percentoge of fee lo
Myr. DuBester in order to acquire work from Middle-
sex County?

A. Positively not.

Mr. Galaida testified further that after he was displaced from
the Gall firm by the arrival there of Jerome Gall, Albert Gall told
Mr. Galaida that he coud most likely obtain Middlesex County
appraisal work on his own if he gave back to Mr, DuBester a per-
centage of County fees paid to Mr. Galaida and if he also con-
tributed to various political functions. Mr. Galaida stated that
Albert Gall arranged for Mr, Galaida to meet Mr. DuBester and
" that subsequently Mr. Galaida was awarded his first appraisal
contract. It was Mr. Galaida’s testimony that he kicked back a
varying percentage of his fees totaling $60,000 from that initial
contract and from subsequent appralsal contracts awarded to him
by the County:

Q. And did you thereafier learn thal you were
given this contract?
A. Yes,

Q. And did you do the work?
A, Yes, T did.

Q. And did you get paid for the work from Middle-
sex County?
A, Yes, I did.
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Q. And what did you do, if anything, with regard
to these things we have been calling or you have been
calling obligations?

A. TFvery time I would get paid I would give a per-
centage of my checks to Mr. DuBester in cash.

Q. And what was the range of that perceniage,
from what to what?

A. From 5 per cent to 10 per cent in the times I
have had contracts with the County of Middlesex.

Q. 5to 10 per cent of what?
A. Of the contract price.

Q. And after that first comtract did you receive
payments to do other work for Middlesex County as
the years went on?

A. Yes, I did.

Mr. DuBester during his public hearing testimony categorically
denied ever requesting or receiving any payments from Mr. Gall
and Mr.‘Galaida.:

Q. Are you aware of or have any reason to believe
that a Mr., Jerome Gall dislikes you or would have
reason to fabricate stories concerning your integrity
or honesty?

A. No, I wouldn’t.

Q. Are you aware or have you reason to believe
that Mr. John Galaida dislikes you or would have
reason to fabricote stories comcerning your witegrity
and honesiy?

A. No, I wouldn’t.

Q. Have you meb with either Mr. Gall and Mr.
Galaida in places other than your office?
A, Yes.

Q. Can you explain those places and reasons?
A, Well, the last time I met Mr. Gall was at a
political function in Perth Amboy last November.

Q. And Mr. Galoida?
A. T haven’t seen Mr. Galaida for perhaps a year
or better,
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Q. Have you borrowed money from either Mr,
Gall or Mr. Golaida in the last five years?
A. No, I haven’t.

Q. Has Mr. Gall or Mr. Galaida given you a gift in
money or any material thing of value over the past
five years?

A. No, sir.

Q. Have you réquested a payment of a - specific
percentage of a contract fee awarded to Mr. Gall or
Mr. Galaida in order that they get the contract?

A. No, I haven’t. '

Q. Have you received payment from Mr. Gall or
Mr. Galaida as a gift or as a result of a request on
your pari?

A. No, sir.

APPRAISALS ARE FOUND INADEQUATE AND MISLEADING .

As previously noted, the Commission with the assistance of the
two expert post-appraisal review sources analyzed in particular
depth the processes leading to the purchase by Middlesex County
in 1974 of six parcels of land, which lie in tandem in the Ambrose
and Doty’s brooks area of Piscataway Township, for a total of
approximately 1.5 million. The six parcels, comprising a total of
43.5 acres, all were flowed by a watercourse and all had flood-
plain characteristics and terrain deficiencies associated with the
streambed. The subject parcels are all identified by their official
designations in Chart Number Five which appears on page 73 of
this report and which also contains the fair market value ageribed
to each parcel by the two appraisers retained by Middlesex County,
Messrs. Holt and Galaida, and summaries of the value analyses
and comments of the 8.C.I.°s post-appraisal review experts. The
critignes of the appraisals by the expert reviewers will be subject
to farther review in subsequent subsections of this report.

The important fact to stress at this point is that Mr. DuBester
testified that he relied heavily on the professional judgments of
the appraisers and, in particular, on the judgments of Mr. Holt,
in making determinations of the fair market value at which the
County should purchase the parcels. A pertinent excerpt from
Mr. DuBester’s public hearing testimony under questioning by
then S.C.I. Counsel Peter Rhatican follows:
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Q. Do you verify the consideration of the com-
- parable sales?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And how do you do that?
A. T verify them according to the appraisal report
where the vertification is there in writing.

Q. And that’s how you verify the consideration, by
seeing it there wn the report; is that right?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you call up either the gramtor or the
grantee?
A. No, T don’t.

Q. So you’re accepting the comsideration at face
value as presented in the appraisal report; is that
correct? o

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What other items or segments of an appraisal
report do you accept at face value without going
beyond the report in your review?

A. Just about everything that’s in the appraisal
report, Mr, Rhatican. When we hire these people,
they have been established as competent, efficient
appraisers.

Q. So part of your—part of the inpul in your
review s, I believe this is your testimony, predis-
posed as to their compelency?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. That’s part of your review, knowing that?
A. Yes, sir. '

Thus, under Mr. DuBester’s mode of operation, there was no
in-depth review and analysis of the appraisals received in order
to verify the fair market values set forth therein. If the appraisals
overstated these values, then Mr. DuBester’s final determination
of those values would also be overstatements. And that is just
what happened in the cases of the six Ambrose and Doty’s brooks
area parcels in question. One of the expert review appraisers for
the S.C.I placed the overstatement of fair market value in the
appraisals at approximately 100 per cent. Both expert review
appraiser sonrces found the appraisals to be particularly flawed in
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two areas: 1) Insufficient consideration of the flood-prone terrain
of the parcels and 2) The use of comparable sales which were
unrealistic and which required comparative adjustments which
were not made. As the Commission stated at the outset of the
public hearings although real estate appraising may not be an exact
science, it is subjeet to readily discernible disciplines and
standards. The testimony of the expert review appraisers in-
dicated to the Commission that those disciplines and standards
were not sufficiently adhered to in the appraisals in question.

On Flooding and Flood Plains

The festimony and accompanying exhibits at the public hearings
left no doubt that the six subject parcels lay in a flood plain which
was prone to flooding and that when the Folt and Galaida
appraisals were made during 1973, considerable data as to that
flooding was available. Douglas V. Opalski, Assistant Planning
Director for the Middlesex County PPlanning Board and the first
witness at the public hearings, testified that as far back as 1930, a
park report prepared for Middlesex County made a mention of
flooding in the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks area in identifying that
area as one for possible future parkland development. He testified
further that he was involved in the writing of a report in Novem-
ber, 1965 for the Middlesex County Planning Board on a proposed
park at Ambrose Brook and that the report and the study leading
to it prompted a conclusion that there were flood conditions in
that area. Indeed, Mr. Opalsgki testified one of the purposes con-
sidered for the parkland project was preservation of the flood
plain. Additionally, Mr. Opalski noted that a major report known
as the Killiam Report wag igsued in August, 1972 and dealt with a
storm drainage plan and program for the area.

Also, during the course of the hearing, Peter Rhatican, the then

8.C.1. Counsel in charge of this invegtigafion, had marked as
exhibits the following ifems:

An excerpt from the 1976 Annual Report of the
Township of Piscataway Planning Board stating that
goils in- the township are generally well suited for
development ‘‘with the exception of the low areas -
adjacent or in close proximity to the streambeds such
as the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks where drainage
problems will hinder development.”” .
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A Septernher 23, 1965 petition to then Governor
Hughes which was signed by 600 persons from
Piscataway and surrounding communities and which
made a reference to the flooding history of the
Ambrose and Doty’s brooks area in pleading for
restraint of development of that area.

Copies of newspaper articles in the Home-News of
flooding oceurrences in areas of Piscataway, especially
the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks area. '

Several affidavits from residents in and around the
brooks area (residents who had lived there for 13 to -
36 years) in which those vesidents testify and swear
to statements about Alood oceurrences. One such state-
ment was, “The brook always overflows. After a
heavy rain flooding is certain to occur lasting any-
where from one to two days.”’

Additionally, Mr. John Van Horn of the VanHorn and Dolan
firm, one of the 8.C.L.’s two expert post-appraisal review sources,
testified that his inspection of the six subject parcels showed they
had the characteristic flood plain econfiguration of properties
generally susceptible to flooding. As a result of that finding, he
did further review which led him to three pertinent documents
which existed by mid-1973 and which indicated flood conditions in
the area of the six parcels. Those documents were the 1972 Killiam
Report, another report dated 1972 and entitled “ Floods of Aungust
and September 1972 in New Jersey,”” and a map dated 1972 and
entitled ‘‘Map of Flood Prone Areas, Plainfield Quadrangle.’’

Mr. John VanHorn concluded from his total research and review
that the most significant physical condition of the six parcels is
that all are subject to flooding, that they are low in relation to
surrounding grades, and that they are probably of soil of poor

bearing capacity as a result of proximity to streams. Mr. VanHorn.
testified further:

Exammwariox By M. FARLEY:

Q. Mr. VanHorn, would you say that the flooding
condition, from your initial wmwestigation of the prop-
perty was patently manifest? :

A, Yes, sir.
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Q. And would you agree with me that fear of flood-
g as an abstract concept would be a deterrent to a
potential purchaser?

A, Tt’s a—it’s an absolute deterrent to some, and
it’s a value diminisher to the remaining potential
buyers.

CommrssioNEr Fariey: Thank vou.

Also, Henry Zanetti, Piscataway Township KEngineer, testified
that he had personal knowledge that flooding conditions exist in
the township because of Ambrose Brook and that parts.of the flood
plain in that area had to be filled in 1964 and 1966 for the construec-

tion of Centennial Avenue so that that artery would not be subject
to flooding.

Additionally, William J, Van Nest, Principal Planner on the
Staff of the Middlesex County Planning Board, testified that in
1972 he was involved in an extensive review and examination of
the Ambrose and Doty’s broocks park project and that in April,
1973, he sent a letter to Herman Hoffman, County Counsel, and
Nathan DuBester, Administrator of the Middlesex County Land
Acquisition Department, in which he attempted to make those two
officials specifically aware that becanse of flooding potential exist-
ing in some parkland project areas, the county might purchase
some of the lands at reduced cost.

Mr. VanNest’s letter noted that the State, by statute as of 1973,
was actively curtailing development in floodways and obeerved
that the County was then about to acquire land along certain
streamways, among them the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks. The
letter continued:

If in fact State statnfe now prohibits or greatly
retards development of certain lands, would not this
land be less valuable to the owner and therefore less
costly for the County to purchase? If this is the case,
are our appraisals now being developed considering
and reflecting the situation?

Mr, VanNest suggested the County might save hundreds of
thousands of dollars in land purchases nunder the new State statute,
even if initially it had to spend a few thousand dollars in some
litigated cases.

77



Ironically, Mr. Holt, one of the appraisers retained by the
. County to appraise the six parcels and the appraiser on whom
Mr, DuBester placed particular reliance, introduced the VanNest
letter at the public hearings in an attempt to bolster his contention
that there were no hard and fast available facis as of 1973 on
which to base a conclusion of serious flooding conditions in the
area. Mr. Holt testified he received a copy of the letter on April
28, 1973. The Commission questioned him closely on the receipt
of that letter: ‘

Q. My question to you is: Did you read the letter
when you received it in 19738
Tee Wirxess: T certainly did.

CommissioNEr Livcas: And you were aware of
its contents? :

Tar Witsess: Iread it and I’m fully cognizant
of what it says, ves. '

Commrssionzr Lcas: So that it did put you on
notice, did it not
Tae Wirness: That’s correct.

Comrmsstoner Livoas: —that flooding and the
flood plain were a matter of concern to the man
who was the head of the Planning Board in
Middlesex County?

Tue Wrrxess: That’s right.

Commissioner Luoas: And he was bringing
that concern, was he not, to the attention of the
man who was running the Land Acquisition De-
partment in Middlesex County?

Tar Wirsess: Apparently so, yes.

CommissioNner Lucas: And to whom else? The
county engineer?
Tar Wrrsess: The county counsel,

Comuissronrr Lucas: County counsel. And
that man, at least, the fellow who ran the Land
Aequisition Department, in turn, was bringing it
to your attention?

Tre Wirness: Yes,
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Commisstonsr Fariey: And did any of thaf,
the substance of that letter, get into your
appraisal reports?

Tee Wrrwess: I didn’t quote anything from it.

Commisstoner Fariey: Did you allude to it?

Tae Wirxzss: I did not refer to it in my re-
port, no. However, it did have the impact on me
-of making me very much cognizant of this sitna-
‘tion and I did some rechecking on areas that I
thonght might be problem areas and 1 found
nothing' to substantiate his opirion as even he
himself says it would be subject to long and pro-
tracted litigation if they ever did try to do that,
and I found nothing to justify his conclusions.

Ed = * *

CommrssioNer Farrey: You don’t think flood-
ing is relevant? '

Ter Wirness: I had no evidence of hard and
fast fact to ascertain that any of these parcels
. were ever flooded.

Comumissionsr Farruy: Was not this a danger
signal? Wouldn’t this demand
Tae Wirsess: Yes, and I check, I rechecked.

CommigstoNer FARLEY: And you found no——-

Tre Wrrness: 1 found no validity to his state-
ment. :

#* #® #* *

Commrssionmr Berrini: This is the county ask-
ing this question, maybe not directly of you, but
asking the question, and you don’t congider it?

Tur Wirwess: I considered it and found his
argument invalid.

. Commissioner Bzrrini: Now I ask you this
question: What was the consideration that you
gave to this factor?

Tme Wirness: Well, he’s asking won’t it he
less valuable than other land and my answer ig
no. :
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CommissioNER BErTiNi: Why not?

Tuar Wirness: Because the market was buying
this type of land regardless whether there was a
brook on it or not. I don’t create value. The
appraiser does not create value. Ile can only—h@
can’t be smarter than the market.

Mr. Holt insisted repeatedly in his testimony that he found no
substantial evidence of flooding and that his analysis of the land -
market in the area indicated to him that that markef was dis-
counting any flood factor:

Q. So I take it your testimony is then thal you did
not consider flooding as a serious factor in detefrmm- ‘
ing your valuglion?

A. That is a little bit misleading the way you state
that. I considered flooding. I do consider flooding a
serious factor. I found no evidence of serious flooding
in this area and, therefore, I had no reason fo
especially discount value for this purpose.

Q. I will concede the point that serious flooding
is a factor. But now my gquestion is, since you found
no serious flooding in the Ambrose-Doty Brook
Project, namely these six parcels, did you consider it
in your evaluation? -

A. Tconsidered it as I mentioned to you before as a
potential in any instance where there is a waterway
involved. The appraiser’s job is to consider-if in the
light of how a typical purchaser would consider if,
becanse this is what he would base his offer to buy the
property on, and in this light I congidered it.

Tup CHarrMax: But as far as arriving at your
values, you completely discounted it as being
significant in this case of Ambrose-Doty’s Brook?

Tee Witsess: 1 found that it did not affect
value on these pareels

Tas CHammmax: So as far a8 value, it was not
significant even after you considered, as far as
affecting valne?

Tae Wrrxess: I beg your pardon?

Tuz CHarrMAN: After you considered lt, you
thought about it, then you discarded it as mot
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- being significant in this case of Ambrose:Doty’s
Brook? : ' '
‘Tre WrrNess: That’s correct.

Tae CEateMan: All right.

- ComumstoNer Lucas: But a potential buyer
would have had interest, would he not, or a pro-
spective buyer, in the potential for flooding?

- Tae Wityess: Certainly. '

- Comumssioner Livcas: And inasmuch as yon
were viewing it from the viewpoint, at least,
from a potential buyer, was not that a factor in
the consideration you ultimately arrived at?

Toe Wrrwmss: My findings indicated that the
market was ignoring this factor. .

The testimony of John VanHorn of the VanHorn and Dolan
firm as to the well documented flooding problem associated with
the area of the six subject parcels and the adverse effect of that
problem on the value of the land has already been reviewed in this
report. Alton VanHorn of the same firm algo testified that proper
appraisal reports on the subjeet parcels would have addressed the
flooding-terrain problem and made adjustments in aceord with that
problem :

Q. Agawn in your opinion, Mr. VanHorn, would the
fact that the brook and the setting of the land being
low and the gemeral irregular shape of these parcels
have an adverse effect on the valuation?

A. Yes, gir. ' ‘

Q. Did either Mr. Holt or Mr. Galaida discuss the
problem of flooding or refer to documents which
would indicate a condition such as flooding

A. No.

Q. —effecting the use of the subject parcels?
A, No.

Q. Did esther Mr. Holt or Mr. Galaida discuss the
potential threat of severe wetness or flooding affect-
wng their valuations of the subject parcel?

A. No.
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Q. Is it your judgment, Mr. VanHorn, that good
review procedures would have identified the problem
you have pointed out here today in terms of not mak-
g adjustments or allowances for physical characier-
istics and specifically potem@'al flood hazard?

A. That very definitely is my profebsmnal judg-
ment, yes.

The Commission’s other expert post-appraisal review sourece,
the State Right-of-Way Division under Director James V. Hyde,
Jr., also found flooding to be a major problem for the six parcels.
Mr, Hyde testified that his staff’s appraisal review process found
the pareels to have extensive areas which were below road level and
which showed many signs of flooding. He testified that, like John
VanHorn, his staff reviewers could testify to official records rela-
tive to the flood-prone nature of the parcels. Therefore, Mr. Hyde
concluded, Mr. Holt erred in comparing these flood-prone lands to
much better properties, with the result being fair market values
considerably higher than they should have been.

On Comparing Uncomparable Comparables

A key to arriving at a fair market value in an appraisal of land
by the market data approach is to seek and find completed sales
of other parcels which can be considered comparable to the parcel
under appraisal. As will be seen from the testimony of the S.C.1.7’s
expert reviewers as presented below, selection of lands not largely
comparable to a parcel under appraisal can lead to errant con-
clusions as to fair market value, unless proper adjustments are

“made between the comparable sales and the subject parcel. Both
expert review appraisal sources found that the Holt and Gtalaida
appraisals had gone off the track and reached higher-than-
justified fair market values for the six parcels because the com-
parables nsed were superior land and no downward adjustments
were made for terrain differences, especially the flood-plain and
flood-prone nature of the parcels.

Mr. Holt used in his appraisals the same four comparable sales®
for each of the six Ambrose and Doty’s brooks parcels. Of the
four, only one was traversed by a watercourse. And that water-

* Mr. Holt at the public hearings testified that the four comparable sales used in his
appraisal reports were only representative of some twenty sales he determined to be
comparable. Under the State Code of Fair Procedure, he was permitied at the
conclusion of his testimony to read into the public record the other sales he considered
cotmparable.
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course, as demonstrated by photographs taken for the 8.C.1 by a
State Transportation Department photographer and which were
projected on a sereen during the public hearings, averaged thirty-
six to forty inches wide and had been easily contained in a thirty-six
inch culverted pipe. The pictures of the Ambrose and Doty’s
brooks on parts of the six parcels purchased by Middlesex County
showed that watercourse to be 12 to 16 feet wide at one point and
substantially wider at all points than the culverted rivulet on the
so-called comparable property. ‘

Mr, John VanITorn in his testimony said his inspection of the
six parcels showed the Ambrose and Doty’s hrooks watercourse
to be ten to twenty feet wide which he did not consider to be
comparable to the few-feet-wide, culverted watercourse on Mr.
Holt’s one watercoursed comparable. Mr. VanHorn said of the
Ambrose and Doty’s watercourse, ‘“It absolutely could not be
culverted and covered over and is a major bridging problem.”’

Mr. VanHorn also dismissed this comparable sale of Mr. Holt’s
as being a truly comparable sale on the grounds that it was not an
arm’s length sale, meaning an open market sale of free-standing
property between a willing buyer and a willing seller. This so-
called comparable sale, Mr. Vanlorn testified, was actually the sale
of 2.33 acres to an adjoining owner who already owned nearly
seventy acres. The buyer, Mr. Vantlorn testified, had a lot more to
gain in this purchase than he would by buying some free-standing
land elsewhere, namely significantly increased frontage, signifi-
cantly increased exposure to Route 287, and elimination of an
irregular jut into the principal holding of the buyer. ‘“On that
count alone I would have dismissed it as a comparable sale,”” Mr.
VanHorn said.

Mr. Holt contended in his testimony that he had thoroughly
checked on that sale and determined it was an arms-length trans-
action. He also referred to the culverted, few-feet-wide. water-
course on that property as a brook running right down the middle
of the property and noted that $36,600 per acre had been paid for
the property, a fignre $1,500 per acre above the price he generally
aseribed to industrial land in the area. Mr. Holt, however, could
not recall the width of that watercourse and also had a recollection
difficulty on the varying width of the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks
watercourse:
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Q. With reference to the comparable sale that you =~
used that, in fact, had a stream on the parcel, a,ppmm— ‘
wmately how wide was that streafmg -
A. Idon't know. '

Q Did you wmake am on-site inspection of the
premises?

A T did. ,

@. Do you recall how wide it is from that on-site
mspection?

A. At the time T made my inspection, 1973, they
had already detoured it underground. The purchase
took place in 1971,

*® * * *

. Apiwommately how wide is the Ambrose Brook
wm these subject pafrcels that we are remewmg today?
A, TIt’s different in every place.

Q). Are there sections of the brook that you would
agree that the width is somewhere i the area of 15 fo

20 feet wide? -

A. Yes, I’d say that’s a fair statement in some
areas '

Q. Are there any others that go below 10 feet wzde.
to your recollection?
A. 1 don’t recall.

Mr Holt, through his testimony, defended his comparable sales
as bemg vahd and being representative of the industrial land
values in the area. Some pertinent excerpts of his testlmony
follow:

Q. Mr. Holt, with reference now to the subject
parcels of your appm@sal reports, are the subject
parcels comparable in sige, shape, setfmg and ovemll
topography with each other?

A. No, there is all kinds of varieties. They re not
all the same, no, by no means.

@. So your testimony is that they are different?
A. There is always differences, sure.

Q. With reference to the comparable sales em- -
ployed by you in your wmarket data analysis or
approach, did you attempt n assembling your com-
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parable sales o match the size, shape, setting and
overall topography with the subject parcels?
- A, Yes. ' :

Q. And are the comparable sales in your appraisal
reports for the sulbiject parcels consistently the same?

A. They’re d1ﬁ‘e1ent Just as the sub;]eot pa,rcels
are different. :

* % # *

Q. Let me ask the question and you can answer
with an explanation. Are the comparable sales set
forth in the appraisal reports the same?

A. They are base—I believe they are the same
four. However, I did not base my valuation on those
four sales alone. I had approximately 20 sales. These
are only the ones that went into the report to keep the
report within reasonable limits.

% 0% % %

Q. My question now, then, Mr. Holt, is, if the other
15 or so, 20 comparable sales used by you in evaluat-
“ing this property were not in the report, how was the
- reviewer given the opportunity to examine valuation
am light of whot you did?

A. He’s given an opportunity to examine the ones
that I submitted, which I feel are more or less repre-
" sentative of the entire spectrum of the 20 that I
actually examined and considered. It would be
entirely improper and cumbersome to include 20 sales
in an appraisal report. It’s rarely, if ever, done.

_ Q. It was your judgment, then that these four best '
- reflected comparability?
A. T considered them to be more or less typical and
that’s the reason I used these as in preference to any
of the other 15 or 16 that I have, yes.

Q). Al right. So your preference is based on that
they were more typically representative of the subject
poarcels?

"A. Yes.

Q. Does each—I think we have established that,
from your previous testimony, that only one of these
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comparable sales did, in fact, have a watercourse
traversing it or bounding it?

A. Yes, the one that had the highest per acre
value had the watercourse.

Q. Did your appraisel reports include o market
sales analysis section?
- A. No, but I did analyze the sales to arrive at my
value.

Q. And is it your testimony that you verified the
consideration and the transaction of your comparable
sales?

A, Tt s,

Q. And with whom did you verify these sales?

A. Well, it would be different on each property.
I'll go through them, if you wish. Sometfimes the
buyer, sometimes the seller, sometimes the attorney.
In addition to that, every deed was individually
examined by me Where there is a sworn afﬁdawt as to
the purehase price.

The S.C.1.’s expert reviewers were critical of both the Holt and
Galaida appraisals’ selection of comparables and/or their failure
to make an extensive market analysis of the comparables as they
related to the six subject parcels. Mr. Alton VanHorn testified
that a valid market data approach to an appraisal involves compar-
ing the parcel under appraisal with other parcels which have been.
sold and “‘making adjustments for time of occurrence, motivations,
differences in size and shape and physical condltlon and the
differences in other value influencing factors.”’

He testified that the appraisal reports of Messrs. Holt and
Galaida, with only one exception, did not make allowances or adjust
valuations in accordance with the physical differences of the
subjeet parcels, particularly the lowness of the parcels and their
irregular shapes, to the comparable sales employed in the reports.
Mr. VanHorn concluded that the fair market values in those
reports were unsupportable: :

Q. What was the overall conclusion as to the worth
of the valuations as established by Holt and Galaida
for the subject parcels?

A, In the light of the fotal content of the reports
and the facts developed in the data, independent data
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investigation, and an off-premise but at-site inspec-
tion of the properties, it is my opinion that they
simply did not support their conclusions and that the
values found were, in fact, not supportable.

Mr. John VanHorn’s dismissal of Mr. Holt’s key watercoursed
comparable sale as a valid comparable has been previously re-
viewed in this report. Mr. John VanHorn also found serious fault
with other comparables used by Mr. Holt. According to Mr.
VanHorn, Mr. Holt’s comparable sale number one was not an
open market, arm’s-length transaction but rather an insider deal
involving partners in a joint venture. Mr. Holt’s comparable sale
" number two, Mr, VanHorn testified, was another expansion sale
where the buyer was an adjoining industrial owner who through
this purchase and another one improved the shape of his land
ownership, increased its frontage, and generally made the whole
property more desirable. That was a situation where the adjoiner
would clearly overpay and, on that basis, the sale should not be
taken on its face value for a direct comparable, Mr. VanHorn
testified. Mr. Holt’s comparable sale number three, according to
Mr. VanHorn, was the primest kind of industrial land, being well
shaped, flood-free, and having desirable road frontage. Mr.
VanHorn testified further: ‘

Q. What about the other physical characteristics
of the comparable sales as they relate, if they do, to
the subject parcels?

A. The comparable sales, whether they were arm’s
length or not or whether they were open market or
not, are level, firm land, far removed from any stream,
not subject to flooding, not in an area suspect of poor
soil bearing. They’re just physically good industrial
land, physically good for development. :

Q. In other words, they don’t meet the physical
description as you have stated already todey that
would indicate a flood plain configurationo?

A. That’s correct, they absolutely do not. They’re
not in a flood plain or near a flood plain.

Q. Mr. VanHorn, in your opinion, were the com-
parable sales used by Holt and Galaida a reflection of
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the market, true market ~values for the subject
parcels?

A. They’re not in the term that you could take the
prices paid and transpose them directly to the subject
properties.

Q. Well, what would have to be done if you can’t
transpose them to the subject properties? What
would you have to do if you assumed that there were
no other additional sales available?

A. They would require an adjustment for differ-
ences between the properties sold and the subject
properties, and other than some minor upward ad-
justment for time, all the adjustments wounld be
downward, downward for the fact that the subject
properties flood, that the sales don’t; for the fact
that there are low, possibly soft, wet areas on the
subject properties, not present on the other prop-
erties; downward for the varying shape of the subject
properties; varying from something that could be ac-
commodated to with a minor reduction in value to
vary severe shape problems resulting from acute
shallowness.

Substantially downward adjustment for those
factors are the principal things that wounld have to be
done to make the sale properties applicable to the
properties appraised.

Q. Would that reduction procedure be cmtamed
- mormally in an appreisal report?

A. Ttwould at least be outlined in the factor—in
the manner that I have outlined it. If not point by
point or dollar by dollar, per cent by per cent, there
would be at least, I feel, I should say, in a properly
done appraisal I think there would be at least a
statement of the factors or facts for which adjust-
ments or one overall adjustment had been made.

Mr. John VanHorn, from having made an on-site inspection of
the six subject parcels, took direct issue with the descriptions of
those properties in Mr. Holt’s appraisal reports and concluded
that the quahty of those reports is deficient and their results

shocking in terms of cost fo the taxpayers:
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A, All right. 1 have the properties identified by
parcel numbers. Is that suffieient? I don’t have the
block and lof right in front of me. I can get it.

Q. It’s quite all right.

A. Parcel No. 1, which is one of the M.W. Kellogg
parcels, the bulk of the taking area is low. The (Holt)
report glosses over the topography and characterizes
it as mainly level to gently rolling, which I don’t think
is a correct statement of something that’s low and
subject to flooding. .As I have indieated, there is the
probability of soft soil, especially close to the brook.
The report is silent on this point.

Nearly all, if not all, of the property appears to be
flood prone and the report is silent on this point.

With respect to parcel No. 2, also M. W. Kellogg,
possibly, again there is the possibility if not the
probability of soft soil, especially near the brook.
Again, the report is silent on this, and the same thing
with respect to flooding; nearly all, if not all the
property is flood prone and the report is silent on
this point, _

‘With respect to parcel No. 3, the Kokenyes gy parcel,
the buik of this property, not all of it, but at least
two-thirds of it is low or in the slope up from the
flood plain. The report description is—I would say
it’s vague but incorreet in the impression it gives. It’s
characterized as mainly level to gently rolling in
contour. I don’t think that’s really to the point:

Again, possibility of soft soil is a fact. Again, the
report is silent on it. Same thing with reéspect to
flooding. The obvious probability of flooding, silence
in the report on this subject. -

Parcel No. 5, one of the DiLeo and Nessler parcels,
property is low adjacent to the brook, yet it’s de-
scribed in the report as mainly level and clear
thronghout. It’s misleading, I would say. o

Again, the possibility of soft soil. Again, the report
is silent on this point. There are portions of this
site that are low and that clearly appear to be flood
prone and there are some indications that the entire
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property may be flood prone under more extreme
conditions. The report is silent on this point.

Parcel 42, the property slopes downward from the
road to the brook and it’s low except for two relatively
small bulges in the front portion of the property. The
report incorrectly characterizes the property as
mainly level to gently rolling and somewhat low in
some areas. I think the emphasis is clearly in the
wrong place.

With respect again, there is a possibility of soft
soil near the brook. Again, the report is silent. Nearly
all of the property, I feel, is clearly flood prone. The
report is silent on that point. ' :

And with respect to property No. 45, the other
Dileo and Nessler property, all or nearly all of this
property is low and—but it’s deseribed in the report
as level to gently rolling. I suppose that characteristic.
would be applied to any flood plain, but I think it’s
clearly misleading to characterize something that’s a
flood plain as gently rolling. It’s not at all fo the
point. : )

Again, there is the probability of soft soil near the
brook and again the report is silent on it. And again,
the property is clearly flood prone and silence in the
report on that point.

Q. Mr, VanHorn, did you form an opinion as to the
quality of these reports? Or better stated, would your
opinion be that the quality of these reports is
deficient? ,

A. I would say the quality is deficient. I think
anyone who were to look at the reports, look at the
properties and look at the data and think about if,
I think the results of the reports are shocking.

Mr. James V. Hyde, Jr., testified that he had top members of
his staff make an initial review of the Holt and Galaida appraisals
and that those staffers reported back to him that there was not
enough content, especially in the area of market data analysis, in
the reports to actually conduct a meaningful review of them. In
fact, Mr. Hyde testified that, had the reports been submitted to hig
Division relative to land purchases, théy would not have been
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-accepted for failure to meet proper standards and would not have
been paid for by the Division. Mr. Hyde testified:

Q- I take it, them, your testimony is that the
deficiency can be identified as o lack of market data
analysis in the reports? '

A. Well, that was the critical, most critical de-
ficiency. There were sales listed in the reports, sir,
but you can list a hundred or two hundred or five
hundred sales in an appraisal report, but unless there
is a relationship, at least narrative, but preferably
narrative and summarized in grid form, you cannot
tell what the sales reflest. And that was the -critical
weakness. :

Accordingly, Mr. Hyde had his staff make its own investigation
of sales in the area of the subject parcels, perform a new and
complete market analysis, and prepare a full appraisal report on
each of the parcels. Mr. Hyde then reviewed his staff’s findings
and, after personally viewing the new comparables used by his
staff and the subject parcels, certified his agreement with those
findings. Mr. Hyde testified how his Divigion’s post-appraisal
review found that the true fair market value of the parcels should
have been much lower than the values in the Holt and Galaida
appraisals:

Q. Director Hyde, you lestified before that you
agreed wilth the conclusions based upon your experi-
ence with their report and their briefings. What were
thewr conclusions? Or if we can break it down to
make one specific area as to the valuation of these
properties, '

A. Conclusions philosophically or dollarwise item
by item by item?

Philosophically, the conclusions were that there was
an exireme key weakness in the reports in that, in
effect, they had no comparability analysis. Without
& good comparability analysis, a narrative, and in my
opinion, we teach this in the appraisal review courses
of the Appraisal Instifute, as well as a grid in chart
summary form, there is no way for the reader, mean-
ing the user, the person that’s paying for the ap-
praisal, to follow the appraiser’s line of reasoning or
to check on the validity of the report.
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We in our agency would not accept such reports, as
I said before, as nsable and would not pay for the
work until they were either supplemented with com-
parable analysis data to assure such criteria. We
carefully spell this out in our appraisal contracts and
say to the appraiser, if he sends an appraisal in
withont it, ‘“You have not completed your contract
Please supplement ”

Q. Was it your—- :

A. Now, what—not to mterrupt you, what has
resulted and what our reviewers found is that ap-
praisers had essentially utilized sales of much betfer
properties and had, it was the opinion of our re- -
viewers, not included in their reports properties that
were well below road level; that had a stream which

had many signs of flooding regularly. In faet, our
' reviewers, as I am sure if you bring them before the
Commission, will be able to sustain and testify that
there are official records that t]:us area had flooded
periodically.

Now, if you take sales that’s not comparable, if you
take sales of $200,000 mansions that sell for $200,000-
and say that these represent a nice home such as you
and I would buy hopefully in the $45,000 bracket
today, it sure does not make our homes worth $200,000.
In faet, you can’t even use those sales because they
are so far from comparability that no matter what
adjustinent gymnastics you place there, they’re mot
competitive in the market and you can’t utilize them,
except as a rare exception when there is nothmg
comparable.

Q. Did your staff, in fact, find other sa,les%’

A. Yes, sir, they did. They found the sales. They
checked the terms and conditions similar to that which
the VanHorn consultants have reported to you. They
checked carefully the ferrain eonditions and they did
find a number of sales, including one directly adjoin-
ing in this assemblage, a fairly large sale, W]:uch they
utilized as their comparables.

They have in their report both narrative and ad—
justments, all for terrain, for terms and conditions,

92



for topography, for time, which is a very important
comparability adjustment in today’s eclimate and
market, and then transposed those narrative adjust-
ments into a grid summary so they could be seen to-
arrive at their conclusions and then told why they
gave various weights to the various sales that they
actually used in a summary form to arrive at a par-
tiecular conclusion.

Q. Director Hyde, were the valuations of your staff
reasonably close to the valuations established by My.
Holt and Galaida? :

A. The valuations of the staff are muech, much,
much lower. They did not believe the Holt-Galaida
reports were representative of the fair market value
of the subject tracts of land, which are well below

- road level and have a major stream traversing them,
which, according fo the information they secured,
including from the State Water Policy Commission
and even newspaper photographs showing them to be
totally flooded.

Q. Direclor, would the percentage of 50 per cent.
be adequate figure in terms of where your staff valued
-the property less than Mr. Holt and Mr, Galaida’s
valuation? Isit a fair percentage?

A. Plus or minns.

CONFUSION AND CONTRADICTION AT THE
GREEN ACRES LEVEL

As noted in the introductory section of this report on the
investigation of Middlesex County’s land acquisition practices,
the purchase of parklands by that County was eligible for a fifty
per cent matching grant from state bond issue funds under the
Green Acres acqulsltlon program for preserving open spaces.
Accordingly, Middlesex County, after purchasing not only the six
subject parcels closely serutinized by the S.C.I. but also other
parcels along the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks, forwarded an ap-
plication to the Green Acres unit in the New Jersey State Depart-
ment of Environmental Protection in Trenton for matehing funds.
The application included numerous appraisals done for the County
‘by Messrs. Galaida and Holt.
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The Commission learned during its investigation that, although
the Environmental Protection Department had not yet awarded
the matching funds to Middlesex, the County’s application had
received a degree of approval within the Green Acres unit before
a decision was made to hold that application in abeyance. Accord-
ingly, the 8.0.I. looked into the Green Acres unit’s handling of
the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks parkland application, with em-
phasis on what kind of review process was brought to bear on
the appra,1sals contained in that application. After hearing the
testimony in this area of the investigation, the Commission stated
that the review funetion of the State Green Acres Program was
afflicted with deficiencies and confusion which needed correction
so that expert and thorough post-appraisal review could be brought
to bear on all appraisals recelved by Green Acres. The Commis-
sion’s recommendations for making such a correction are included
in the ‘‘Final Becommendations’’ section of this report on this
mvestigation.

A Memo Approves the Appraisals

Howard J. Wolf, as Administrator of the Local Matchmg Grant
Program of Green Acres, was the official in the State Department
of Environmental Proteetion who received Middlesex County’s
application for matching funds for the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks
parkland project. He testified at the 8.C.1.’s public hearings that,
as with similar applications, he passed along for review the ap-
praisals relative to the Middlesex application to Vincent T. Bogdan,
an Appraiser-Supervisor in the Green Acres unmit. -Mr. Wolf
testified that the purpose of appraisal review by Mr. Bogdan was
to insnre against overexpendltures of Green Acres funds and that
Mr. Bogdan’s advice in writing as to hig conclusions about ap-
praisals in matching fund appheatmns was the key to whether or
not Mr. Wolf would recommend approval of the applications and
payment of the matching funds. :

On September 27, 1974, Mr Wolf received a memorandum from
Mr. Bogdan relative fo the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks appralsals
That memorandum read: :

In accordance with your request, the above appli-
cation was reviewed by the staff and Nicholas Friday,
M.A.L, of the Appraisal Review Board.
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After inspection and review of all information per-
tinent to the subject area, it has been determined that
the value stated by the County-assigned appraisers
Indicates a fair representation of market value.

Recommended for Approval

Mr. Wolf testified that given such a recommendation by Mr.
Bogdan, he ordinarily would recommend promptly to the Com-
missioner of Environmental Protection that the matching funds
be dispensed. However, because Green Acres funds were in short
sopply at the time and becamse the S.C.1.’s investigation had
become known, Mr. Wolf did not make such a recommendation
to the Commissioner but rather caused a memorandum to be sent
to the Commissioner advising him that the Middlesex application
was being held ‘“in limbo.”’

Mr. Friday operated his own real estate ageney in North Bruns-
wick until refiring about 1971 and becoming a real estate con-
sultant. He did serve with two other appraisers bearing the
M.A.I. designation on the Green Acres Appraisal Review Board
from the mid-1960s until that Board expired in October, 1973.
Mr. Friday conceded in hig testimony at the 8.C.1.’s public hear-
ings that even his holdover status as member of that Board had
expired by March, 1974, a time when, according to Mr. Friday,
either Mr. Bogdan or Mr. Wolf asked Mr. Friday to take a look
at the Ambrose and Doty’s brooks area appraisals of Messrs.
Holt and Galaida.

Mr. Friday said he could not recall with any surety the details
of the request he received to look at the appraisals on behalf of
the Green Acres unit but that he was quite sure he had made it
perfectly clear to either Mr. Bogdan or Mr:. Wolf that he would
review the appraisals for their substance and quality but would
not render any judgment on the reasonableness of the fair market
- values arrived at in the appraisals. Mr. Friday testified:

Q. So you weren’t assigned the exercise of deler-
mining whether the comparables were, in fact,
legitimate?

A. No.

Q. And from the end of your exercise it wasn’t
your function to delermine whether true market value
was accurate?

A, No.
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Q. Then what would you say s the key to your
exercise, the key obgectwe?

A, The key objective, in my recollectlon, as I
mentioned, it’s repetitious, but I was asked if I would
look at these reports and I said, yes. All right. But
only for substance purposes and because up to that
point a couple of times that we had been to Trenton

' “we had been told that soon our services were going
to be terminated.

Q I appreciate that Mr. Friday. But would deter-
wmining the legitimacy of comparables be a substantive .
factor, in your wind, in your review?

A. In your doing the valuation part, yes.

Q. Would the reflection of fair market value be
substance in o substantial factor in your review?

A. Overall review, yes. If we did the whole thing,

- yes. - .

Q. Butl, in fact, you didn’t pass judgment in these

cases on either of those two factors, the legitimacy of

the comparables or the fair market value?
A. No. No, I didn’t.

- Mr. Friday testified that he took a stack of appraisals given to
him in' Trenton to his home office in Middlesex County. There,
according to his testimony, he looked through some of the ap-
praisals and was particularly appalled by the disarray of some
of Mr. Galaida’s appraisals. He said he subsequently telephoned
the Green Acres people in Trenton and said, ““l.ook, these have
to go back and I don’t want any more to do with them because
my time is up, but T have done this much for you.”” He said the
Green Acres people asked him, since he was in Middlesex County,
to take the appraisals back to the County’s offices in New Bruns-
wick. He stated that he did just that only to find them returned
to his desk a couple of months later. Mr. Friday testified that he
then delivered the appraisals back to Mr. Wolf’s office in Trenton
and left them there for the State and the County to resolve the
matter.

Mr. Friday acknowledged at the hearings that he had received
per diem compensation of $200 from the State for time spent look-
ing at the appraisals. He also testified that he held public office
in Middlesex County as President of the Board of Education for
the County Vocational and Technical High School. .~
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Mr. Bogdan’s Testimony

Mr. Bogdan testified that after he received the Ambrose and
Doty’s brooks area appraisals from Mr, Wolf, he randomly checked
and reviewed about five or six of the appraisals out of the total
of more than forty. He subsequently requested Mr. Friday to
review the appraisals. It was Mr. Bogdan’s testimony that Mr.
Friday was specifically asked to review for both substance and
the reasonableness of fair market values and that Mr., Friday
verbally informed Mr. Bogdan that the values were reasonable.

Q. Mr. Bogdan, did you instruct Mr. Friday as to
the procedure he should follow? ‘
A. T requested from Mr. Frlday to inspect and
review the appraisal reports in support of the

Ambrose-Doty Project.

Q. Did you instruct Mr. Friday to review the
appraisal reports for verification of substance?
A.- Not-only substance, but as to value also.

Q. To your knowledge, did Mr. Nicholas Friday
review the appraisal reports that you assigned io
him?

A, He had indicated that he did.

. Did he submit any written report to you upon
the conclusion of his review procedures?
A. No, he did not.

Q. Did he verbally brief you as to his conclusions?

A. He verbally indicated that in general the values
for the general—-for the general project, the overall
project, was an indication of fair market value.

Q. Did he specifically soy to you, Mr. Bogdan, “I
have reviewed the appraisal reports and I find that
the value is reasonable’’?

A. Yes, he did, verbally.

Q. And did he indicate to you at any time during
this conversation or any other conversalion that he
found deficiencies i the substance of these reports?

A. I think he did, but as far as the general overall
project was concerned, that the value nevertheless
was & fair indication of fair market value.
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Q. So notwithstanding the deficiencies he found, he
assured you m his evaluation of the values contained
therein the values were reasonable and adequate for
the subject parcels being appraised?

A. For the whole project.

Q. Which would include the subject parcels of the
Ambrose-Doty Brook Project that the State Comenis-
sion of Investigation looked wmito; is that correct?

A. Conceivably so, yes.

The Commission then had Mr. Bogdan read out loud his Septem~
ber 27, 1974 memorandum to Mr, Wolf recommending approval
of the Middlesex application. Mr. Bogdan testified:

. Were you here earlier today? Did you hear Mr.
Friday testify?

A. Yes, I was,

Q. And did you hear Mr. Friday testify that he
did not review the appraisal reports submitted to him

by either you or Mr. Wolf as to value? .
A. Tt was my understanding when Mr.——

Q. Did you hear him state that, sir?
A, Yes.
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FINAL RECOMMENDATIONS
SUMMARY

In January, 1976 the State Commission of Investigation held
public hearings on certain serious weaknesses and abuses in the ad-
ministration of the land acquisition program of the County of
Middlesex, and in the local assistance-Green Acres Program of
the N. J. Department of Environmental Protection. These public
hearings exposed shocking shortecomings in the methods used to
seleet appraisers to do appraisals of lands to be aequired for
Green Acres purposes. The hearings also demonstrated gross
deficiencies in the content and quality of such appraisals, and
revealed that the post-appraisal reviews and evalunations conducted
by the administrators of the county land aequisition program and
the State local assistance-Green Acres program were completely
inadequate and unprofessional.

The result of the gross administrative failure and negleet con-
sistently described in the course of the hearings was that certain
appraisals utilized to fix purchase prices for land acquisitions were
inaccurate, misleading and unreliable, and appraisal reviews and
evaluations thereof were in fact merely ‘‘rubber stamp’’ and
antomatic endorsements of poor appraisal work, These systematie
surrenders to medioerity led o regular and large overpayments
of tax dollars for land acquired at inflated and excessive purchase
prices.

The public interest demands that public officials make sure that
such waste and inefficiency is not allowed to occur in any county,
Tocal or state land acquisition program. The S.C.I. recommenda-
tions herein set forth are designed to help concerned public officials
reach this goal.

To prevent waste of the public’s tax dollars, the adminstration
of all county and local land acquisition programs must be consistent
with the best and highest standards for selection of superior ap-
praisers and for the professional review and thorough, critical
evalnation of all appraisals used to fix land purchase prices. In
addition, there must be substantial reform of the administration
of the Green Acres Program of the State of New Jersey in order
to insure that Green Acres funds granted to counties and localities
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are not misspent by awards of inflated purchase prices for Green
Acres land acquisitions.

To this end, the State Commission of Investigation makes the
following general recommendations for reform, the details of which
are set forth at length in this report:

‘1. all appraisers to be selected solely on the basis
of their professional qualifications, and without re-
gard to their willingness to make political contribu-
tions and éhonations, and without regard to their
political affiliations;

2. appraisers to be approved to do only those
designated, specific kinds of appraisal work for which
their fraining, experience, education and skills
actually qualify them; '

3. appraisers to be selected to possess superior,'
and not average, qualifications to perform the
designated appraisal work to be undertaken;

4, appraisers selected to be acknowledged experts,
and not novices, in the respective kinds of appraisal
work;

5. the work of approved appraisers to be peri-
odically, consistently and thoroughly reviewed in
order to promptly remove from approved appraiser
lists those appraisers whose work dlsserves the pubhe
interest; :

6. approved appraisers to be strietly required, by
contract, to render appraisals in accordance with
certain recognized and established standards and re-
quirements of the land appraisal profession, inelud-
ing, but not limited to, the requirement that
appraisers personally and thoroughly inspeet the land
appraised and the requirement that ofl information
relevant fo land wvalue be set forth in detail in
appraisal reports;

7. county, local and state acquisition programs to
promulgate vigorous, mandafory specifications for
the proper conduet of land appraisal work and for the
achievement of excellence in the contents, format, and '
quahty of la:nd appralsals '
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8. post-appraisal reviewers to be selected pursuant
to standards even more demanding than those neces-
- sary fot the proper selection of appaisers;

9. the local assistance-Green Acres Program to pre-
qualify appraisers to be used for county and loecal
Green Acres projects, in accordance with and pur-
sunant to standards designed to insure selection of
highly competent appraisers for such appraisal work;

10. the local assistance-Green Acres Program fo
adopt mandatory specifications requiring the best
possible performance of appraisal work for county
and local Green Acres projects, and strict adherence
by county and local land acquisition programs to such
specifications to be made an express, material con-
dition of the grant of Green Acres funds;

11. all post-appraisal reviews and evaluations to be
conducted in a manner designed to guarantee that ap-
praisals strietly comply with such standards and

- gpecifications, and nonconforming appraisals to be
disregarded in the final determination as to land
_ value;

12. the land acquisition, appraisal and post-ap-
praisal review operations of the Green Acres Program
to be transferred from the Department of Knviron- -
mental Protection to the Department of Transporta-
tion. ' '

The details of the above recommendations for reform are

‘hereafter set forth.

APPRAISER SELECTION AND APPRAISAL ASSIGNMENTS

Site Inspection

Prior to processing the appraisal request, a qualified officer of
the land acquisition office or the land acquisition committee, which-
ever is appropriate, shall visit the land site and familiarize
himgelf with the local land conditions. The primary objectives
of this recommended practice are to identify the specific appraisal
problem, to determine the number and types of appraisals needed,
the priority time schedules, and to obtain any other relevant data.
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Preliminary Report

Upon completion of the field mspectlons, the 1nspeet1ng officer
shall file a written preliminary report summarizing the observa-
tions made during such field inspection. The preliminary report
shall include a meaningful summary of all relevant data and
insights in the possession of other governmental entities, including,
but not limited to, county and municipal planning boards, and
county and municipal engineers’ offices, The preliminary report
shall be furnished to the appraisers selected to do the appraisal
work, prior to commencement of the appraisal work.

Appraisal Fees, Contracts, Appraiser Lists

The land aecquisition office or land acquisition committee shall
maintain a list of qualified realty appraisers. This list shall be
reviewed and updated annually. Copies of the list shall be fur-
nished to the appropriate governing body. There shall be set forth
on such list a detailed deseription of the skills, training and ex-
perience possessed by each appraiser on the list and a statement
as to the specific reasons each such appraiser is deemed qualified
to be placed on such list. While it is not possible to define an
inflexible set of standards covering the minimum qualifieations for °
all appraisers and for all kinds of appralsal work, the following
represents a guideline for the selection of most appraisers and
for most kinds of appraisal work.

Qualifications Guideline
- 1. Graduvation from high school or equivalent education.

2. Possession of a certificate of completion of a business or
professional course devoted to instruction in real estate, real
estate appraisals, real estate and commercial law, conveyancing,
laws of eminent domain and related subjects, or proof of training,
education, and experience equivalent thereto.

Such formal courses shall specifically include at least two (2)
semester-length courses in real estate appraisal. Altermatively,
the appraiser shall have completed the equivalent thereof in formal,
recognized appraisal conrses such as MAT courses I and IT given
by the American institute of Real Hstate Appraisers, or other
courses similar thereto.

3. At least five (5) years succegsful work exp-erien-ce in the real
estate industry, including experience in appraisal of real estate
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and with 1and development projects. A minimum of 100 appraisals
shall have been completed.

" 4, Membership in the American Institute of Real Estate Ap-
praisers (MAT), in the Society of Real Estate Appraisers, or in
some comparable, recognized professional organization devoted to
the professional activities of members specializing in real estate
operations, real estate appraisals and valuations. If the appraisal
applicant is not a member of any such organization, the appraisal
applicant shall present proof of comparable aftainment in the
realty appraisal and realty valuation field by other means, such ag
completion of advanced courses in recognized eduncational institu-
tions specializing in instruction in the valuation-and appraisal
field, or by demonstrated ability to pass an appropriate, com-
prehensive test prepared by an appropriate testing service. ‘

5. All appraizsers should have experience and ability in inter-
preting property and site plans, and land surveys and drawings,
and sketeh plots and should be familiar with basie legal principles
and court decisions affecting realty appraisals and valuations of
property taken by the State for public purposes.

' 6. Appraisers whose appraisal work may necessitate their ap-
pearance in court to defend their conclusions shounld also demon-
strate special ability and superior knowledge and expertise in
those specialized fields that relate to the subject-matter of the
appraisal work contemplated, and should possess experience and
ability in giving expert testimony.

Tt is recognized that some appraisers who may be lacking in
one or more of the above-described qualifications could otherwise
be qualified to undertake some special assignments suited fo their
more limited skills and experience, or could qualify to undertake
less complicated and sophisticated appraisal assignments. Each
applicant should be evaluated in accordance with these variable
factors, '

Prequalification Procedure

- Fee appraisers mmst be prequalified before being considered
eligible for retention to render appraisals for governmental pur-
poses. A standard application form shall be developed by local land
acquisition offices or committees, which form shall require the
above-mentioned career and educational information.
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- Applicants shall be required to complete this form and to-submit
sample copies of prior appraisal work to the governmental entity
or official responsible for selection of appraisers. Application forms
and sample appraisals shall be analyzed, and personal interviews
conducted of applicant appraisers to determine their gkills and
abilities to undertake the appraisal work contemplated.

Upon receipt of a completed application and required sample
appraisals, the land acquisition officer, or the acquisition commit-
tee, and the legal advisor who represents the governing body in
condemnation and other such proceedings shall interview the
applicant. The interview shall include a detailed discussion as to
the applicant’s qualifications to do the subject appraisal work.
Thereafter, the applicant’s appraisal skills, training, experience
and other appraisal qualifications shall be verified by a thorough,
follow-up investigation. Such investigation shall melude a visit
with the applicant at his place of business, :

Iollowing said interview and follow-up investigation, the land
acquisition officer or acquisition committee shall prepare a com-
prehensive report and recommendation relevant to the applicant’s
eligibility to do the contemplated work; the same shall then be
presented to the governing body, which shall review the report, the
application and such written recommendation. The report shall
contain a certification as to the specific educational, professional
and career attainments of the applicant as well as the specific
skills, training and experience possessed by the applicant. Said
recommendation shall set forth specifically and in detail the
particular kind of appraisal work the applicant is deemed com-
petent to undertake, and the particular reasons the applicant is
deemed competent to perform such work in a manner consistent
with the public interest. Thereafter, the governing body shall vote
to approve or disapprove the applicant appraiser. Applicants
who do not possess the aforementioned qualifications shall not be
approved.

As a supplement to the reqmired procedure mentioned above,
and in order to insure maximum objectivity in selection of ap-
praisers, there shall be established an Appraiser Selection Com-
mittee consisting of the engineering advisor, chief planning execu-
tive, and the chief legal advisor for the governmental entity. Prior
to final selection or rejection of an appraiser applicant, the Selec-
tion Committee shall review each application and shall make an
appropriate written recommendation to the governing body.
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The Appraiser Selection Committee shall: ‘
A. Review the determination that the engagement of an ap-
praiser is necessary or desirable. ‘

B. Reject or approve appraiser applicants for specific appraisal
projects on the basis of their respective qualifications to complete
the particular appraisal work required for the specific appraisal
projects to be assigned to the respective applicants.

In making this ‘determination, the Appraiser Selection Com-
mittee shall, in addition to the aforementioned criteria, consider the
following: ‘

1. The financial status and reliability of the applicant;

2. The reputation for skill and integrity of the applicant as
deseribed by former clients; ,

3. Applicant compliance with all applicable existing Federal
and State regulations and laws pertaining to the requisite quali-
fications of appraisers and to the conduct of their business.

Final Approval of Appraisers

The governing body shall make the final determination to
approve or disapprove the qualifications of applicant-appraisers.
Mhis determination shall inelude a specific decision by the govern-
ing body as to the particular kind or kinds of appraisal work or
projects the applicant-appraiser is qualified to undertake. The land
acquisition officer, or committee, shall maintain a current list of
appraisers approved by the governing hody for appraisal work.

Said list shall contain a specific deseription of the particular
kind or kinds of appraisal work or projects for which each
appraiser has been approved. With the assistance, advice and
recommendation of the land acquisition officer, or land acquisition
committee, and of the Appraiser Selection Committee, the govern-
ing body shall periodically review the qualifications of the
appraisers on such list and shall determine whether -or not
to re-approve such appraisers. Such review shall occur at least
once a year and shall be conducted in the same manner and pur-
suant to the same guidelines and standards as for initial deter-
minations on the qualifications of appraisers applying for approval
to do public appraisal work.

" The land acquisition officer, or committee, and the Appraisal
Selection Committee shall meet periodically to review and analyze
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the quality and merits of the work of approved appraisers. The
results of such review and analysis shall be periodieally furnished
to the governing body to aid it in periodic re-evaluations of the
qualifications of appraisers on the aforesaid approved appraiser
list.

Appraisers approved to do public appraisal work shall possess
skills, training, experience and general qualifications commensurate
with the eritical importance to the public interest of public
appraisal work. Appraisers approved to do work for government
should not be novices relying on government work to furnish them
with needed skill and experience. Only appraisers who have
already secured good reputations for the guality of their work
should be selected as approved appraisers.

Political Contributions and Affiliations

Government land acquisition officers and employees shall not
solieit political confributions from applicant appraisers or
approved appraisers. The making of political contributions by
appraisers shall not be a condition of the receipt of government
appraisal work and a determination to approve an appraiser for
public appraisal work shall not be contingent on the making of
political contributions by the appraiser, or on the political aﬂihatlon
of the appraiser, :

Determinations to approve or disapprove appraisers for such
work should be independent of considerations hased on the needs of
political fond-raising. Such determinations shounld be based solely
on the professgional quahﬁcatlons of appraisers.

Newly Approved Appraisers

The initial appraisals prepared by a newly-approved appralser
shall be critically and thoroughly analyzed and reviewed by the
land acquisition officer or committee, and the Appraiser Selection
Committee, If, as a result thereof, it is found that such initial
appraisals are satisfactory, no further special action need be taken.
If such analysis results in a conelusion that the initial appraisals
are deficient, the officials making such analysis shall forthwith
present a written recommendation to the governing body for the
removal of the subject appraiser from the approved list. The
governing body shall immediately make a final determination on
such recommendatlon
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W ork Distribution

It is desirable but not always practicable to distribute appraisal
assignments on a statistically equal basis among all approved
appraisers. Work distribution is dependent on the location of the
real estate to be appraised, the special qualifications and back-
ground of each approved appraiser, the time a particular approved
appraiser is able to devote to government assignments, the require-
ments of the assigning agency concerning work completion dates,
the nature of the assignments and many other variable factors.

Appraisal assignments shall be divided as equitably as possible
congistent with the needs and requirements of the assigning agency
and consistent with the skills and abilities of the respective
approved appraisers.

To insure the award of appraisal assignments in the most
equitable manner possible, consigtent with the needs and require-
ments of the assigning agency and consistent with the public
interest, the land acquisition officer of the land acquisition office or
acquisition committee shall prepare a cumulative, monthly report
of all appraisal assignments made for the preceding twelve-month
period. A report of the number of assignments made to each
appraiser shall be made by the aforementioned officer to the
governing body once each month. Whenever an appraiser is
awarded a disproportionate number of appraisal assignments
such report shall contain a detailed statement explaining and
justifying the award of such assignments. The paramount con-
sideration in the distribution of appraisal assignments shall be
the need of the assigning agency to secure the best appraisers
available for the assignment in question and the need to secure
appraisers who can promptly meet the agency’s prescribed work
completion dates, thereby insuring advancement of the public
interest. ‘

" In allocating appraisal assignments, officials shall not consider
the record of the approved appraisers for political contributions.

Ovrder Approval

All appraisal assignments and contracts must be approved and
expressly authorized by the appropriate governing body prior to
the issuance of appraisal assignments.
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The award of an appraisal assignment to a qualified, approved
appraiser shall not be assignable. The specific appraiser named to
undertake the subject appraisal work shall actually do such work,
and it shall not be assigned or delegated to, or divided with, any
appralser not specifically designated to do the particular appralbal
work in question. It shall be recogmzed that a contract for the
performance of appraisal work is a personal serviece eontract, not
assignable without the express consent of the subject government
entity.

APPRAISAL FEES

~ It shall be the policy of the assigning governmental agency that
the amount of the fee for an appraisal shall represent just and
fair compensation for services rendered, :'anludjng expert testi-
mony. :

Whenever an, estlmated appraisal fee ghall be in excess of %250,

a qualified individual representing the land acquisition office shall

visit the premises to be appraised and determine the number and

type of appraisals needed and estimate the fee therefor or, alterna-

- tively, the applicable fee schedule category or categories relevant
to the subject properties.

‘The official files of the land acquisition office shall’ be fully
documented in writing as to the amount and basis of the estlmated
fee s

B Provision shall be made for a per diem rate to be paid the ap-
praiser for appearing as an expert witness in condemnation pro-
ceedings. This fee shall be in addition to the fee for the ap'pramal
Work and shall be pald only when expert testimony has been given,
or When the appraiser has expended time devoted to preparations
for such appearances.

Factors to be considered in estimating and fixing fees are set
forth below. Fee schedules should be promulgated and adopted
wherever possible. It should be noted that the suggested fee
schedules hereinafter set forth are among those utilized by the
U.S. Department of Transportation and the New Jersey Depart-
ment of Transportation.

In general, some of the factors to be cons1dered in estlmatmg
a,nd ﬁxmg fees are as follows:

1. The complexity of the appraisal or other work
to be undertaken and the skills necessary to provide
such services.
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- 2. The number of parcels included in the assign-
ment. . '
3. The amount of information and data provided
the appraiser by the assigning government ageney
.as contrasted with the amount of information that
must be developed independently by the appraiser.

4. The location and conditions pertinent to the
project concerning which the appraisal services are
to be furnished.

5. The complexity, format and detail required for
the final appraisal report.

Fixed Fee Schedules

Notwithstanding the diverse faetors involved in completing
~ various appraisal assignments, compensation for many appraisal
services can be fixed in accordance with certain uniform fee
schednles instead of by individual fee negotiation. The use of
certain fee schedules by governmental entities often protects the
public from the payment of excess fees for sueh services.,

The N.J. Department of Transportation has adopted the fee
schedule hereinafter described; its use is highly recommended. It
should be used as a basis for establishing appraisal fees, absent
gpecial factors dictating an individually negotiated fee.

SCHEDULE OF APPRAISAL FEES

Class No. 1 Total Partial
Residential Take Take
Vacant Land®* .. ... .. ....... $250 $350
1-Family Dwelling** . ....... 300 400
Alternate®®** .. ... ... .. .. 275 o
2-3 Family Dwelling (income
if applicable) .. ... ... ..., 400 500
Multi-family ineome dwelling :
up fo 8units ...... .. P 500 600
Apartment property 8-16 nnits 600 800
Apartment property over 16
units .o Fees to be negotiated
Categories not listed . ... ..., Fees to be negotiated

*Note—Vacant land shall include unimproved resi-
dential (non-income producing) lots. Abutting lots
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under the same ownership and not excéeding ten (10)
in number on unsubdivided lands in one tract not ex-
ceeding five (5) acres shall fall info this category.

**Residential dwellings (1- and 2- and 3-family
units) shall include vacant lots abutting the resi-
dential nnits whether used in conjunction therewith or
not. So long as the same are under common
ownership, they shall be treated as one appraisal,
and such appraisal shall include all additional out-
buildings such as garages, ete.

***Residential Alternate—On uncomplicated entire
takings of residential single family properties where
adequate market data is available, the lower fee
alternate shall be clearly noted.

Class No. 2 Total Partial
Farm Lands Take Take
Unimproved Farm Land,
10-50 Aeres .............. $400 $500
Unimproved Farm Land,
50-100 Acres ............. - b00 700
Unimproved Farm Land over
100 Aeres .......... ... .. Fees to be negotiated
Farm Land and Buildings up
to 100 Aeres .. ........... 600 -800
Farm Land and Bmldmgs over
100 Aeres ................ Fees to be negotiated
Categories not Listed .. ... .. Fees to be negotiated

Note—Properties in this category are considered
to include farm and related properties. For defini-
tional purposes, farm lands shall include any prop-
erty of temn (10} acres or more used primarily for
farming or related purposes and not used primarily
for industrial or other commercial purposes, and may
include lands available for non-income type residential
subdivision.

Class No. 8 Total Partial
Commercial Properties Take Take

Vacant Commercial Land .. .. $400 $500
Service Station .......... ... 800 1,000



Commercial Structures—com-

bination store, business or

other, up to 4 units . ...... 600 700
Diners ..................... Fees to be negotiated
Commercial Structures—com- -

bination store, business or

other, 5 to 8 umits . .. ... ... 1,000 1,500 -
Special purpose properties. .. Hees to be negotiated
Motels ......... . P Fees to be negotiated
Categories not listed . ....... T'ees to be negotiated

Clags No. 3 is to include vacant lots abutting subject improved
units, whether used in conjunction with the improvement or not.
So long as the lots are under the same ownership, the appraisal
shall treat the entire property evaluated as one entity pursuant to
the highest and best use formula.

Vacant land shall include abutting plots under the same ownex-
ship and up to five (5) acres in size, reaardless of the manner in
which they are subdivided.

Class No. 4
Special Purpose
Properties Total Partial
and Parcels Take Take
- Industrial and special purpose
properties Fees to be negotiated
Special engineering or architectural
reports (non-real estate) Fees to be negotiated
Revision of submitted appraisal o
due to parcel revision Fees to be negotiated
Categories not listed . Fees to be negotiated

‘Whenever the compensation fixed by the fee sehedule reasonably
appears disproportionate to the estimated value of the real estate
- to be appraised (for instance, In cases wherein the value of the
subject real estate is quite low due to the age or poor condition of
improvements), then, and in that event, the fee may be fixed and
negotiated without reference to the fee schedule. If the contem-
plated appraisal assignment reasonably will require resolution of
extraordinarily sophisticated and complicated opinion, faet and
value issues, necessitating the expenditure of unusual amounts of
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time, the fee may be determined without resort to the fee schedule.
In cases involving highly sophisticated, coroplex and time-
consuming appraisal services, the agsigning agency may agree to
compile for the appraiser special data and materials of the kind
not ordinarily available in order to aid the appraiser in his work.

In support of any decision not to nse the fee schedule, the land
acquisition officer shall file a written report with the governing
body, which report shall incorporate the reasons for such decision.
Such report shall specifically recite and detail the criteria and
factors by which the subject appraisal fee was derived.

The work performed by fee appraisers is considered a profes-
sional service and formal solicitation of bids therefrom may be
waived. However, the land acquisition officer and/or the acqnisi-
tion commiftee shall request and obtain detailed appraisal
proposals and spec1ﬁc fee estimates from qualified appraisers in
instances where major appraisal projects involving substantlal or
expensive land holdings are involved.

APPRAISAL STANDARDS

All appraisals shall clearly substantiate and support the opinion
of value set forth by the appraiser. If is imperative that all
appraisals contain the specific factual information that any
informed, prospective purchaser needs to know in order to make an
intelligent judgment as to the value of the subject land. In order
that all appraisals contain such information, it is recommended
that appraisers shall be required to prepare appra1sals in acoord-
ance with the following instructions.

Each appraisal shall be the produet of the uncompromised, and
independent judgment of the appraiser preparing same. Therefore,
the appraiser shall not allow other appraisers working on the same
- or related projects to review his work, and he shall not alter his
value conclusions in order to equalize his valne conclusions with
those of such other appraisers.

The appraiser shall contact any and all government agencies
which might reasonably be expected to possess information, data,
records, or expertise relevant to the property appraised and to the
value thereof The appraiser shall include in the . appralsal any and
all relevant information and documents possessed by various gov-
ernment agencies including but not limited to planning boards,
engineers’ offices, boards of adjustment, tax assessors’ offices, and
the Department of Environmental Protection.
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ADDITIONAL APPRAISAL REQUIREMENTS

1. A. Parcel Tdentification

1. Names of apparent owner of each real estate int-ére_st
to be evaluated.

2. Location of property.
3. Total area of property (in acres or square feet).

4, Area of each individual interest in property to be
acquired (in acres or square feet).

B. 5-Year Delineation of Title

As a minimum, the following county land records informa-
tion shall be shown for all transfers of the appraisal property
for the past five years. The consideration should be verified.
If there have been no transfers mthm the past five years, such
fact shall be indicated:

. Consideration
“F-’mm To Date Book Page Verified-Indicated’

C. Purpose of Appraisal
1. Statement of value to be estimated.
. 2. Rights or interests to be appraised.

D. ]jescription of Property

General location, present use, total area, zoning, type and
condition of improvements and special features that may add
to or detract from the value of the property. In case of a
partial acquisition, there shall be a similar deseription of the
remainder parcel.

K. Highest and Best Use

State the highest and best use of the property on which
the appraisal is based before the acquisition of certain rights
-and interests and the highest and best use of the remainder to
be left after the take when a partial take is involved. In either
instance, if the actual existing nse is not the basis of the valua-
tion' determined, the appraisal shall contain a specific and
detailed statement explaining and justifying the determination
that the property is available and actually adaptable for a
different highest and best use and demonstrating that there is
actnal demand for that use in the market. ‘
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. Documentation

1. The ‘“before and after’’ method of valuatwn as con-
- strued by state law, shall be used in partial acqmsltmns except
where it is obvious there is no damage or benefits to the
residue land or improvement as a result of the partial taking.

2. The appraisal shall include all possible formulas by
which to determine fair property values. If a particular
formula is not congidered relevant to the subject appraisal,
the appraiser shall specifically explain and justify such con-
clusion. All pertinent caleulations used in applying the for-
mulas shall be set forth.

a. Where the cost approach is ufilized, the
appraisal report shall contain the specific source of
cost data and an explanation of each type of accrued
depreciation data utilized.

b. Where the market approach is utlhzed ‘the
appraisal report shall contain a direct comparison of
pertinent comparable sales to the property appraised.
The appraiser shall include a statement setting forth
hig analysis and reasoning for each item of adjust-

ment to comparable sales.

¢. Where the income (capitalization) approach is
nsed, there shall be set forth data sufficient to support
the coneclusions as to the income, expenses, interest
rate, remaining economic life and capitalization rate.
‘Where it is determined that the economic rental
income is different from the existing or contract
income, the increase or decrease shall be explained
and supported by appropriate market information.

3. Where authorized by State law, benefits shall be offset
againgt the value of the part taken and/or damages to the
remainder in accordance with such law.. The after value
appraisal shall eliminate any consideration of damages that
are not compensable or benefits not allowable under State
law, even though they may in fact be part of the ultimate
determination of the value of the remaining property in the
market. In case of doubt, a legal ruling should be secured.

4. The appraisal of the after value shall be supported to
the same extent as the appraisal of the before value. This
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' sﬂp];iort shall be based on one or more of the following kinds
of data:

a. Sales comparable to the remainder properties.

b. Sales of comparable properties from which
there have been similar acquisitions or takings for
like usages.

¢. Development of the income approach on prop-
erties which show economic loss or gain as a result of
similar acquisitions or takings for like usages.

d. Conclusions from severance damage studies as
related to similar takings.

e. Public sales of comparable lands by the State
or other public agencies.

f. In the event the data described in a through e
above are not available, the appraisal shall so state
and give the appraiser’s reasoning for his value
estimate.

5. The difference between the before and after appraisal
should represent the value of the property to be acquired,
including the damages and benefits to the remainder property.
To assist the roview appraiser, the appraiser shall in the
appraisal analyze and tabulate the difference, setting forth
a reasonable allocation to land, improvements, damages and
benefits.

6. Where two or more of the approaches to value are used,
the appraisal shall contain a description of the correlation of
the separate indicia of value derived by each formula along
with a reasonable explanation and justification for the final
conclusion of value. This correlation ghall he ineluded for
both before and after appraisals,

7. All appraisals shall include photographs of the subject
property including all principal above-ground improvements,
or unusual features affecting the Value of the property to be
~ taken or damaged.

8. Appraisal reports for whole takings shall contain a
sketch or plat of the property, showing boundary dimensions,
location of improvements and other features of the property.
For partial takings, the sketch or plat shall also show the area
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to be acquired, relation of improvements to the taking area,
and gize and boundaries of each remainder. -

9. Wach appraisal report shall deseribe or make reference
to the comparable sales which were used in arriving af the
fair market value estimate. The appraisal shall set forth
the date of sale, names of parties to the transaction, relation-
ship of parties to the transaction, consideration paid, finanecing,
conditions of sale, and with whom these were verified, the
location, the total size, type of improvements, estimate of
highest and best use at the date of sale, zoning and any other
data pertinent to the value analysis and value evaluation.
Tf the appraiser is unable to verify the purchase, financing
date and terms and conditions of sale from the usmal sources
(such as buyer, seller, broker, title or eserow company, etc.),
he shall so state. Pertinent comparable sales data shall include
photographs of all principal, above-ground improvements and
nnusual features affecting the relevance and significance of
the comparable sales data. '

10. All property appraised, and the properties for which
is compiled the comparable sales data relied upon, shall be -
personally and thoroughly inspected in the field by the
appraiser, and the results of same shall be set forth.

11. Each appraisal report shall contain the appraiser’s
signature and the date same is affixed.

12. Fach appraisal report shall contain the customary
affidavit of appraisal. '

II. Partial takings (Before and After Evaluation Formula)

 Where the taking is partial, a before and after evaluation shall
be made in all instances except for minor takings where it is
obvious that there are no damages to the remainder beyond nominal
amounts which can be measured on a cost-to-cure basis.

The before and after appraisal method does not contemplate
the appraiser’s estimation of severance damages in advance of his
estimation of the after value of the remainder property. Before
and after appraisals should consist basically of both an appraisal
of the entire property as it exists before the taking and a second
separate appraigal of that portion of the property remaining after
the taking.
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IIL. A. Value Formulas

In the application of the before and after approaches to
value it is contemplated that the before value will be developed
through use of all applicable value approaches, as follows:

1. Cost
2. Market

3. Income

The applicable before value approaches are to be integrated
by correlation and analysis into a single before value estimate.
A separate valuation of the remainder by all three approaches
is then to be made, as follows:

1. Cost
2. Market
3. Income.

The after value approaches are to be integrated by cor-
relation and analysis into a single after value estimate. The
difference between the values before and after is the value
of the part taken and is the damages to the remainder.

In the application of the before and after formnla it is
recognized that all the ecriteria used in the before value
estimate may not always be applicable in the after value
estimate. When a before value eriteria is not applicable in
the after value estimate, the appraiser may omit it, but the
appraisal shall contain a statement justifying and explaining
in detail the reasons for the asserted non-applicability.

" B. Cost Approach—Land

‘When the cost approach formula is applied, it is required
that the appraiser list and compare with the subject property
all the various comparable sales data he is utilizing to derive
the vacant land value. In his comparable sales data listings,
the appraiser is to also discuss and furnish in narrative form
the various asserted reasons for his conclusions as to the sales
data, the relative degree of comparability of each sale listed.

Following this narrative sales listing and the narrative
sales data comparisons, a sales data summary is fo be made
in chart form. This summary is to indicate the sales price,
the comparable unit value reflected, the applicable compara-
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tive adjustments made by the appraiser, and the comparative
unit rate indicated for the subjeet property by each sale.

This sales summary is to be reduced by correlation into a
single comparative unit value determination, such as per front
foot, per aere, per square foof, as the case may be. These
unit rates multiplied by the pro-p-erty size or frontage of the
subject property will indicate the comparative value of the
vacant land.

(. Buildings

In estimating building values by the cost approach, the
appraiser shall be sure that the appraisal contains the cal-
culations used in making the estimate of the reproduction
cost new for each structure less the particular kinds of de-
preciation data deducted to develop a present-day value for
the building.

When the cost approach is the sole applicable valuation
method utilized, the cost figures selected are to be corrobo-
rated by an expert specialist familiar with construetion costs
(such as an architect, building contractor, ete.). When the
building value exceeds $25,000, supplemental reports from
two such specialists are to be secured

Depreciation estimates for building values determined
pursuant to the cost approach are to be explained, justified
and broken down into each particular kind used (physical,
functional and economie). An exception to this requireraent
may occur when the “‘abbreviated’’ depreciation estimate is
nsed, in which event the depreciation may be deduncted in a
Inmp sum amount.

In the application of the cost approach, all on-site improve-
ments are to be listed and valued on the basis of the amount
of their contributory enhancement of the value of the subject
building premises.

The value of drives and walks is usually to be derived
from rates based on square feet or yards, fences and curbing

‘on lineal feet, and wells on depth. A lump sum value shall be
used for septic systems, based on the appraiser’s expertise or
a contractor’s or other spedialist’s cost estimate.

Generally, landscaping value may be rendered on a lomp
sum basis, depending on its overall contributory enhancement
of the value of the premises. However, in cases of significant
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over-improvement of cerfain partial takings, it may be neces-
sary to estimate and list its cost in place and then adjust this
figure by depreciation to arrive at its contributory value.

D. Market Comparative Approach

‘When the market or comparative approach to determining
the value of an improved property is applied, the land and
buildings as a single entity are to be compared with other
similar properties. This approach contemplates that the ap-
praiser shall specifically list and detail and compare the sales
he asserts to be comparable to the subject property and the
appraisal shall diseuss and explain in narrative form the
reasons for the alleged degree of comparability, including
each appropriate adjustment.

Supplementing the narrative sales data deseription and
sales data comparison, a sales summary is to be made in chart
- form. This summary is to include the sales price, the applica-
ble comparative adjustments and the value determined for
the subject property, as contrasted with each comparable
sales price,

When completed, this market sales summary is to be util-
ized to reach a conclusion as to the actual value for the prop-
erty.

E. Income Approach

The income approach formula generally necessitates the
fixing of an economic rental value for the subject property so
as to arrive at a gross income estimate. Wherever possible,
an actual analysis of comparable rental properties is the best
method of making an econmomic rental estimate. When the
estimate of economic rent value varies from contract rent
value, adequate explanation must be set forth in the appraisal
so as to justify the decision to apply economic rent value as
against the contraet rent value.

Expense estimate statements in the appraisal should indi-
cate whether the expense data was obtained solely from the
owner of the property, or whether they were also corrobo-
rated entirely or partially by the appraiser.

The appraiser should explain the capitalization rate that
he selects and the basis therefor, as well as the method of
- capitalization that he applies (such as building residual,
property residnal, land residual, ete.).
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All computations and formulas used in developmg an in-
- aome estimate of value for the subjéct premises shall be set
forth in detail and explained in the appraisal report '

F. Highest and Best Use

Each valuation is to be made on the basis of the ]:ughest
and best use for the subject property.

The appralser is expected to deseribe mtelhgently his

reasoning in applying this formula and to state in the report

" his conclusions as to the highest and best use of the property

and the highest and best use of the remainder or remamders
where partial takings are involved.

In either instance, if the actnal, present use > of the pmperty
is not the same as that on which the appraiser’s stated valua-
tion is based, the appraiser shall also furnish a detailed and

* thorough explanation justifying his conclusion as to the high-
est and best use for the subject property. Furthermore, the
appraisal must contain data and analysis® suﬂielent to demon—
strate that the property is actnally subject: to and adaptable
for the highest and best use claimed by the appraiser and that
there is actual demand for that use in the relevant market

IV Maps, Exhibits and Photographs

Kach appraisal shall contain the following supportmg maps,
exhibits and photographs:

1. Photographs of subject property.

2. Photographs of each oomparable sale property referred
to in the report.

3. A comparable sales location map.
4. Map or sketeh of subject property.

5. Sketch of improvement dimensions.

The original and all copies of each appraisal shall include
a sufficient number of regular, glossy-print photographs,
properly identified to show a11 1mprovements and any signifi-
cant terrain and topographical features’ of the property

Each photograph shall contain an unalterable writien -
identification setting forth the date on which the photo was
taken, the photographer’s nime, exact position and place from
‘which the picture was taken, and the sectzon, the pareel and
the tract and the owner’s name. - '
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All appraisals are also to contain reO'ular glossy-print
photographs of the comparable - sales propertles deseribed,
listed and referred to in the appraisal report.

These photographs of comparable sales properties are to_

" be mounted on the respective appraisal report pages contain-
ing the respective comparable sales data. Tach compalable
sales photograph shall contain identification as to the property

it represents, date and time photo taken, and name of person
taking the photo. Additionally, it is to be specifically cross-
1ndexed to the comparable sales data to which it relates in the
appraisal report. The purpose of this requirement is to enahle
the relevant comparable sales property location to be plotted

' and 1dent1ﬁed on a, comparable sales property location map.

Hach appralser shall submit, as an appendix to his ap-
praisal report, a sales location map sufficient to 1dent1fy both
the location of the comparable sales properties used in each
appraisal report, and in specific geographic relation to the

~ subject property.

The- sales-location map requlrement apphes also to bulk
appraisal assignments. In addition, a sales map and economie
area study shall be required for all bulk appra1sa,1 assignments
of fifty (50) or more appraisals.

FKach appraisal shall include a map or sketch of the entire
property appraised showing boundary dimensions, location of
any improvements, property area to be acquired, relation of
improvements to the property area to be taken and the prop»
erty area of each remainder.

Appraisals involving improved properties shall contain a'
sketch showing building dimensions, including ayverage heights
and the calculations as to the area sizes used 111 the cost
approach to value.

These sketches shall include site improvements (such as
drives, walks, etc.), and the measurements thereof are to be
those made by the ap!praise_r from actual on-site measurements.

Cost and Market Approach Grids |
Clomparative land sales shall be set forth in the follomng

kinds of grids after appropriate analysm and’ eomparatwe‘
adjustments have been made: _
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CosT APPROACH:

LAND SALES COMPARATIVE RATING GRID

Sale No. 1. 2. 3,

Sale Price e e
Tnit Price Rate ... ... . ... ... ... ...

-+ Adjustments
(% or $ Amounts)

Time e

Toecation

Physical .

Subject Property Value
by Comparison:
Value Indicated:

To Subject Property

by Unit Rate:

MARKET APPROACH:
COMPARATIVE SALES RATING GRID
Sale No. 1. 2. 3,

Sale Price
-+ Adjustments
(% or $ Amounts)

Time e e e
Location .o o
Land, Size, Shape

& Topography ... e e
Improvement Size . ....... ... ...
Improvement Quality ........ ........ ...,
Physical Condition — ........ ... ...

Subject Property Value
by over-all Comparison:
Value Indicated:

To Subject Property

Value:
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V. Specialists (Non-Real Estate Reports)

Whenever the property value determination of the appraiser is
dependent, in whole or in part, on expertise and specialized knowl-
edge not possessed by the appraiser, the appraiser shall obtain a
special supplemental report from an appropriate expert or spe-
cialist. Such supplemental report shall be attached to the appraisal
report. Such supplemental reports are to be obtained and used
to describe and analyze various speecial appraisal and value issues
whose proper resolution depends on architectural and engineering
studies, landscaping estimates, machinery cost.estimates, cost-to-
cure estimates and studies, studies of wells and septic systems,
costs, ete. :

A. In order to provide for uniform guidelines for such supple-
mental reports, the following formal elements, and contents and
format shall be required for all such reports:

1. Letter of transmittal from non-real estate specialist
making report to the appraiser.

2. Statement as to purpose.

3. Description of existing facilities.

4. Definition of valuation problem and explanation of
valuation process,

5. Value estimate,

6. Supplemental exhibits, sketches and photographs.

7. Affidavit of specialist.

B. Such supplemental reports shall contain the following in-
-formation and materials

1. Letter of transmittal

Indicate the basis for the report, appraisal order
number, the parcel designation, parcel number, owner’s
name, project number (if applicable) and summary as
to valuation opinion and related analysis, date of valu-
ation, and number of pages of the full report; notation
on each and every page of the report as to the page
number, section, parcel number, owner’s name, projeet
number (if applicable) and name of specialist making
the report. :

2. Purpose

A statement as to the purpose of the report and nature
of the valnation issue to be resolved.
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. Description of Existing Facilities

.. Anarrative deseription of the buildings, plant and/ or
facilities covered in the report, and appropriate sketches
(with dimensions) and adequate, clear photographs.

Photographs shall be labeled on reverse side if hinge
mounted, and, if not, in the pieture margin, Wlth_fl}hfz
parcel number, owner’s name, date picture was taken,
photographer’s name, and identity of photo. :

. Definition of Valuation- Problem and Explanatlon of
Valuation Process -

A narrative deser:uptlon of the valuation and issues
problem, the recommended solution and an explanatlon
of the analysis and reasoning utilized. Also, a narrative
.. deseription of the nature and type of any depreciation
caleulations applied to the building or fa,cllrty appraised.

. Value Estimate -~ -

- The relevant value estlmate for the property items
to be taken or damaged, or, alternatively, cost-to-cure
estimates, as the case may be, shall be specifically set
forth for each item evalua;ted, including the quantity,
the unit price and the total asserted value for each item.
All cost estimates must be supported by sales prices,
published sales and costs lists and indices, comparable
buildings actually constructed, current market prices,
ete., or, where applicable, by & deserlptlon of the spe-
elﬁe a.pphcable knowledge .and experience of the spe-
cialist, or by some other commonly deceptable reasoning
and Just]_ﬁeatlon as the case may be.

. Exhibits -

Hxhibits, maps, plans a:ad d1agrams shall be attached
as appendlces to the report and sha,ll be prope1ly 1denti-
-fied. -

. Certification and Afﬁdavfc

All reports shall contam a. sworn- statement as to
imspection dates, lack of personal interest by the spe-
cialist in the Subje-ct property transaction and non-
disclosure of the contents of the report. Affidavits and
certifications shall be strietly in aceordanee with those
required of real esta'te a.ppralsers ‘
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VI. Tt is highly recommended that the above described require-
ments as to the content, subject matter and format of appraisals
" be made contractnal obligations for any appraiser undertaking
appraisal work for governmental agencies. To this end, all of the
above-described appraisal-report and performance requirements
and specifications should be adopted as uniform standards and
conditions for the performance of public appraisal work. '

Whenever government and an appraiser enter into an agreement
for the furnishings of appraisal services, the specific terms, con-
ditions, and stipulations of such agreement shounld be incorporated
in a written contract. All of the above-described specifications and
requirements should be attached to and made a part of any such
agreement, and each and every contract should expressly provide
that compliance by the appraiser with such specifications and
performance requirements shall be a mandatory and material
obligation of the appraiser. C S

PoST APPRAISAL REVIEW
~Introduction

The completed appraisal, when filed with the government ageney
requesting same, shall be critically and thoroughly reviewed,
evaluated and analyzed to determine the merits and quality of the
opinions and conclusions therein contained. This review process
is commonly known as a post-appraisal review, and the person
conducting same is commonly referred to as a review appraiser.

- The essential goal of post-appraisal review is to ingure that the
appraiser’s conclusion as to land value is fully supported and
justified by the contents of the appraisal report, by recognized
appraisal standards, requirements, and guidelines, and: by other
relevant and material information and knowledge possessed by the
review appraiser. The. essential pnrpose of post-appraisal review
is to insure that the consideration to be paid by public agencies
to. land-owners for publicly needed lands is reasonable and fair,
and not excessive. '

The review appraiser should be appointed or employed by the
government agency which will take the subject land, or by the
government agency which will finance such taking. All -appraisals
must be reviewed by a competent, qualified review appraiser if. the
aforesaid goal is to be reached and aforesaid purpose realized.
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For this reason, review appraisers should possess skills, train-
ing, education and experience at least equal to, and preferably
in excess of, those required for appraisers undertaking publie
appraisal work assignments. Such minimum appraiser qualifica-
tions are hereinabove set forth in detail, and the procedures and
standards herein set forth for the selection of appraisers should
be adopted by government as minimum requirements for the selec-
tion of review appraisers.

Review Requirements

Appraisal reports shall be reviewed and accepted and the fau‘
market value fixed and approved by an authorized and qualified
review appraiser before the commencement of negotiations for the
purchase of the subject lands. '

Review Appraiser’s Delegated Authority

Review appraisers should be delegated authority to estimate
the fair market value of properties to be aequired, in accordance
with and pursuant to acceptable appraisal reports. The fair
market value so estimated shall govern purchase negotiations.
The review appraiser should consider, in making a determination
as to the value of the subject lands, ail pertinent value information
that is available, including, but not limited to, appraisals obtained
by the agency and the property owner, ag well as comparable sales
data not included in the appraisals but concerning which he has
knowledge. The fair market value defermined by the review ap-
praiser shall be substantiated wn a writing setting forth the reason-
ing followed im arriving at his determination of value, including
the methodology used to calculate the fair market value,

The review appraiser, on the basis of additional value informa-
tion obtained by him, may at any time prior to settlement revise
his determination as to fair market value. The review appraiser
shall deseribe in writing the reasons for any changes so made, and
all value estimates made by the review appraiser shall be ‘‘regis-
tered’’ in the acquisition office prior to unse in negotiations and
shall be retained as a part of the official files.

General Review Processes and Functions

The review appraiser personally shall inspeet the property
appraised and personally inspect the propertles to which the com-
parable sales data compiled by the appraiser relates.
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The review appraiser shall examine the appraisal reports to
determine that they:

1, Are complete and in striet compliance with the
appraisal contract and specifications.

2. Follow accepted and recognized professional
- principles and techniques utilized in the evaluation of
real estate, in accordance with existing State law.

3. Contain the information, documentation, analysis
and data necessary to substantiate the conclusions and
estimates of value contained therein.

4. Include a consideration of all compensable items
and benefits and do not include allowance for items
not compensable under State law. '

5. Contain a special statement demonstrating a
reasonable allocation as to land, improvements and
damages.

‘Summmﬂy of Review Appraisal Processes and Functions

The review appraiser is the person responsible for ultimate
quality control of the appraisal product on which government bases
determinations as to just and reasonable compensation to be paid
land owners out of public monies.

The processes followed by the review appraiser shall include
an examination and office review of all appraisals secured by the
assigning governmental agency for each specific land parcel to be
aequired.

‘When all appraisals on a particular parcel have been reviewed
and accepted by the reviewer in accordance with proper and re-
quired appraisal techniques as aforesaid, the reviewer shall then
.compare and contrast the conclusions in the respective appraisals
so as fto establish a single value figure, within the range of the
appraisals which, he concludes, best represents fair market value
of the property to be taken,

Reviewer’s Estimate of Fair Market Value

Following completion of the office and field reviews, the review-
ing appraiser shall make a determination as to fair market value.
This determination shall be written and recorded.

1127



'As a part of each value statement, the reviewing appraiser
shall present such information as he deems appropriate regarding
his decision-making and the steps he took in the review process
and the important information rejected or. accepted by him in
arriving at a final conclusmn

If the reviewing appraiser’s value estlmate is substantmlly at
variance with the values submitted by the appraisers, the reviewer
in effect becomes the appraiser, and his report and statement shall
adequately document and support the conclusions reached in such
cases.

Prior to institution of netrotia,tions on any particular parcel,
the reviewing appraiser’s 51gned value estimate report shall be
registered with the appropnate custodian of the assigning agency’s
records Additionally, copies of said report, fogether with one
copy of all appraisals secured, shall be forwarded to the land
acquisition officer or committee prior to the commencement of
negotiations.

The land acquisition officer or committee shall make tl%e ap-
propriate entry in the individual parcel status Hook upon receipt
of the reviewing appraiser’s signed value estimate report :

Upon notice of the recordation of the value estlmate report with
the custodian of records, the land acquisition officer or committee
may commence negot1at1ons with the owner of the subject pareel

All communications and correspondence relative to the negotlated
transaction shall be preserved and made part of the negotistor’s

ultimate report. Complete and thorough documentation- shall be -

required in order that the individual case files may be intelligently
evaluated by the governing body pmor to a grant of aubhonzatmn

' to purchase.

© The processing of case files to the governing body for disposition
shall include a “ma,tchmg audit’> of the original copy of the re-
viewing appraiser’s recorded statethent of fair market value filed
with the custodian of records as against the final value statement,
and the duplicate forwarded to the land acquisition office or
committee with the case file.

As a protective measure, no case is to be presented to the
governing body for fmmal action and commitment unless the
matehing audit confirms that both the original and duplicate copies
of the reglstered statements are identical. Following the audit,
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both the original and duplicate staternents of value are to remain
as a permanent part of the case file. -

Any appralsal revigions or addendum supplements which are
necessary are to be delivered, reviewed and processed by the same
procedures required for the delivery and review of initial appraisal
reports. They are then to be permanently attached to the original
report ‘which the reviewing appraiser will 1mt1a1 and note as
superseded or revised.

When an appraisal is supplemented or rewéed the reviewing -
appralser will prepare a supplemental estimate statement based
on the appraisal revision or addendum supplement.

Divergency Procedure

It is ‘recognized that, oeeaswnally, appraisals which are in-
dependently produced wﬂl resull in wide divergencies in value
particularly on partial taking, which divergency the review process
must resolve. Thus, the reviewers will be confronted with the task
of determining what value amount determination to make in cases
wherein two or more adequately substantiated appraisals for the
same land parcel widely .differ in their final value conclusions.

© If appraisals for a particular property widely differ in the
value estimates submitted, and the review process does not reveal
mathematical error or omission which would clearly reduce the
divergency by correction, the issue is to be resolved in part by
way of . 1n-depth dlscussmn between the reviewer and each ap-
praiser and in. part by a detenmnatmn by the reviewer as to which
appraisal report.is superior in quality. The substance of any such
discussions -and. his analysis of same shall be incorporated in an
a,pproprlate file memorandum. Any appraisal report determined
by the reviewer to be deﬁc1ent or inconsistent with accepted ap-
pra1sa1 techmques and standards shall not be considered by the
reviewer in reaching a final demsmn as to the value of the subgeet
land. S Ci e

LAND ACQUISITION POST APPRAISAL REVIEW, AND
COMPLIANCE REVIEW OPERATIONS OF THE
GREEN ACRES PROGRAM

- I. The New Jersey State COmm.Issmn of Investigation -recom-
ménds that all post-appraisal review work, acquisitional appraisal
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work and all land aequisition work presently performed by the
Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) be transferred
to the Department of Transportation (DOT). An agreement should
be forged between the departments in order to secure an orderly
transfer of specific duties and functions. '

The informality of procedure too often found in post-appraisal
review in the DEP for certain Green Acres projects has led to
inadequate appraisal review which has been haphazardly per-
formed. Congidering the millions of dollars appropriated for
Green Acres projects, the State must tighten its appraisal review
procedures for such projects to the extent that generally recog-
nized and accepted expertise and methods shall be utilized for
that work.

The State Commission of Investigation finds that the Depart-
ment of Transportation’s personnel possess the requisite skills
necessary to properly perform such work in a manner designed to
protect the public interest. Additionally, the DOT employs skilled
personnel capable of properly discharging certain responsibilities
critical to the effective administration of the land aequisition
programs of such projeets, including the conduet of compliance
reviews and appraisal approvalg relative to State Aid grants to
local government. The department with the best expertise in land
acquisition systems and procedures should perform Green Acres
land acquisitions. '

The Commission’s recommendation to transfer the entire land
acquisition operations and post appraisal review operations of the
Oreen Acres Program from DEP to DOT is supported by a
major efficiency recommendation of the Statewide Industrial
Management Review and Report of 1970, presented to Governor
William T. Cahill by the Governor’s Management Commission.
In this report, the Management Commission recommended that
the “Funetions of the Bureau of Recreation and Conservation |
Land Acquisition’’ (in the Department of Environmental Protec-
tion) ‘“would be performed by the Division of Right of Way in the
Department of Transportation.”” The report states that, ‘‘this
bureau . .. essentially performs the same funetions’ (namely, land
acquisition for State purposes) ‘‘ag the Division of Right of Way.”’
Additionally, the report concludes that the ‘“Division of Right of
Way has the manpower and expertise to assume the present
responsibilities of the Bureau of Recreation and Conservation
" Land Acquisition without an increase in its personnel complement.”’
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Certain standards for land acquisition and appraisal review and
related procedures including compliance review procedures fol-
lowed in the DOT are far superior to those used in the DEP. This
Commission found that, for instance, appraisals submitted to DEP
in support of local applications for Green Acres grants were not
subject to expert and thorough post-appraisal review.

On April 15, 1976, Dr. Horace J. DePodwin, Dean of the Gradu-
ate School of Business Administration, Rutgers University, sub-
mitted an evaluative memorandum to David J. Bardin, Commis-
sioner, DEP, concerning the ‘‘Green Acres Land Aeqnisition
Review Procedure’’. This evaluation focused on the local assist-
ance portion of the Green Acres Program.

Dean DePodwin and a team of faculty members from the
Graduate School of Business Administration at Rutgers assisted
Commissioner Bardin in an ‘‘in-house’ review of certain pro-
cedures following the S.C.1.’s public hearings in January, 1976.

The DePodwin Report made the following observations as to
the work of the Green Acres staff:

a. ‘‘Personne] assigned to the Green Acres Pro-
gram appear to lack the minimum skills for the
technical aspects of land acquisition.”’

- b “DEP’s appraisal review work seems weak,
The function appears to lack sufficient independent
professional appraisal so that appraisals performed
for municipalities and counfies seem to stand unchal-
lenged for the most part.”’

Additionally, the ‘“DePodwin Repdrt_” made the following
general conclusions :

1. ““Present procedures appear cumbersome with
few managerial check-points for efficiency of opera-
tion and validation of expenditures for acquisitions.?’

2. ““We found no continuing objective reconecilia-
tion of actual price paid for land acquired under the
Green Acres Program with open market transaction
prices.”’

Although the DePodwin memorandum did not specifically
recommend the transfer of the land acquisition and appraisal
review functions to DOT, the finding of deficieney in certain DEP
procedures and exper"tlse by Dr. DePodwm supports the need for
such transfer as recommended by this Commission.
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- Anunpublished fiscal study on ways and means to effect savings
of tax dollars by transfer of Green Acres acquisition procedures
to the DOT was made by the Bureau of Budget in the Department
of the Treasury in August 197 5. The recommendation in that
report is as follows:

- “Immediate concern shall be afforded to those
“steps necessary in order to effectuate the transfer of
' Green Acres acquisition to DOT.”

In this report, the Budget Bureau coneludes that,

“1t Would appear that the present method of 30(1111-
_sition tends to increase the cost of public acquisition.”’

“'IL. The local assistance projects of the Green Acres Program
must henceforth be administered in a manner designed to insure

that the price pa,ld for land is falr and reasonable, and not
excessive, -‘

To this end, the folloefmg 1e(ju1:1'einents and st.andards must be
imposed on local and eounty crovernments applying for Green
Acres funds:

A. Appraisers should be selected stnctly in- accord—
ance with and pursuant to guidelines and criteria
herein set forth, and . appraisals submitted by
appraisers not possessing the necessary qualifications

should not be accepted for use in the Green Acres
Program;

B. Appraisal fees should be determmed in a,ocord—'
ance with the schedules and rules herein set forth;

C. Appraisals and post-appraisal reviews should
be rendered in a manner strictly in conformity to the
principles herein stated. Such requirements and
standards should be an-express condition of the
receipt of Green Acres Program funds. The present
practice of allowing county and local government to
~ decide whether or not to adhere to such standards
and requirements should be discontinued forthwith.
In addition, the form contractural provisions -and:
terms presently used by the. Department of Trans- . -
'portatlon to specify the performance obligations .of. ;
appraisers furnishing .appraisals for the DOT, ..-
should be adopted for county and local land. acqui-; . -
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sition appraisal work and for all Green Acres
projects appraisal work.

| ITI. Furthermore, the administrators of the State Green Acres
Program should determine which appraisers shall be approved to
work on projects financeéd by Green Acres funds.

Hinally, the Green Acres Program must critically, thoroughly
and independently evaluate and analyze all appraisals and
appraisal reviews submitted by state, or local, or county govern-
ment, prior to release of Green Acres funds and prior to the grant
of authorization to make the requested purchase. This final evalua~
tion and analysis must be performed in a manner consistent with
the highest and best standards and principles of the land valuation
profession. Appraisal and appraisal reviews not consistent with
such standards and prineiples should be rejected, and Green Acres
funds should not be released until the Program administrators
actually receive appraisals and appraisal reviews consistent with
such standards and principles. . The practice found in the .Green
Acres Program of permitting local and county government to make
commitments for land purchases prior to the conduct of a thorough
and meaningful appraisal compliance review must be discontinued
forthwith. : - y
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INVESTIGATION OF THE NEW JERSEY MEDICAID .
PROGRAM OF HEALTH CARE FOR THE INDIGENT

PREFACE

As noted in the investigations resume section of this Annual
Report, the 8.C.I. during 1975 undertook a comprehensive investi-
gation of the State’s Medieaid program on being mandated to do
so by request of Governor Brendan T. Byrne. The New Jersey
Medicaid program is one of considerable complexity and magni-
tude, involving hundreds of institutions, thousands of individuals
and the total expenditure of more than $400 million annually in
Federal and State funds. To best investigate such a massive sys-
tem, the Commission established three teams of investigative per-
gsonnel. The teams were asmgned to investigate the flow of Medicaid
dollars to, respectively, nursing homes, hospitals and other health
care institutions exclusive of nursing homes, and purveyors of
services (doctors, pharmacists, clinical laboratories ete.) compen-
sible through Medieaid.

Because of the magnitude and complexity of the subject matter
and the natural sense of urgency to detect, halt and correct any
costly abuses of a system involving such large outlays of taxpayer
dollars, the Commission notified the Governor by letter on March
4, 1975 that it would, when meaningful and well documented sets
of facts were developed report to him on an interim basis by
taking interim public actions. The first such 1I%§gmmmm
was the issmance on April 3, 1975 of a report on phases of the
New Jersey system-of reimburgement of rent and carrying costs
to Medicaid-participating nursing homes. The report documented
how New Jersey, in 1ts haste to originally implement Medicaid
adopted, without eritical evaluation, an upper New York State re-
imbursement schedule which was unnecessarily inflated to begin
with and was further inflated by New Jersey in the area of carry-
ing charge subsidies. The report made a number of recommenda-
trons to correct this costly distortion and for a longer-term shift
to a more realistic reimbursement system of better equity and
effectiveness.

The Commission’s second_interim public action was a publie
statement, issued on April 23,1975, in support of the then pro-
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posed New .Jersey Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act. The
statement detailed a virtual chamber of unsanitary and unsafe
horrors which had occurred in the operations of some of the
laboratories, pointed out the weaknesses in present State regula-
tion and control, and pin-pointed how the provisions of the pro-
posed new act would be effective in enabling the State to maintain
high standards in the laboratories. The Senate subsequently ap-
proved the proposed act, and the Assembly, which had originated
the measure, concurred with the Senate’s amendments. Governor
Byrne then signed the legislation.

A third interim public action was ecompleted in June, 1975 when
the Commission held three days of public hearings which exposed
costly abuses of overbilling, false billing, and kickback payments
by some independent clinical laboratories doing inordinately large
amounts of Medicaid-funded test business. This phase of the
Medicaid investigation is reviewed i il omn,
OWIT, along with the Commission’s final recom-
meéndations for improving State supervision and control of the
flow of Medicaid dollars to independent clinical laboratories. As
noted in the investigations resume section of this Annual Report,
changes and improvements already prompted by these public hear-

ings have effected annual savings estimated at $1.4 million in
Medicaid expenditures.

By June, 1976, when this Annual Report was completed, the
Commission’s staff was in the final stages of preparing several
contemplated future public actions which will mark the termination
of the S.C.L’s Medicaid probe. The contemplated public actions
will cover the reaping of high profits by some individuals through
sales, financing and léase-back technigques which have grossly in-
flated the valnes of some nursing homes, overbilling and over-
utilization patterns engaged in by some physicians and pharmacists,
and an analysis of methods for controlling hospital costs which,
through their effect on Blue Cross rates, affect Medicaid which
uses those rates as a reimbursement standard.

National Recognition

The 8.C.I.’s independent clinical laboratory phase of the Medi-
caid investigation was a ploneering probe which brought to the
fore for the first time well documented and substantiated facts
about unserupulous methods which were ripping off the system.
As such, it received considerable national attention. Frank L.
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Holstein:- the Commission’s, Executive Director, and Anthony G.
Dickson; the. Commission Counsel who directed this phase of the
Medicaid probe, appeared before both the United States Senate

omunittee on Aging and the United States House of Representa-
tives Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigation to testify about
the 8.C.I. probe and its findings in public hearings held by those
Congressional panels during' February, 1976. United States Sen-
ator Harrison Williams of New Jersey publicly complimented
the 8.C.I. for its investigation and exposures in remarks placed on
the Congressional Record. Additionally, the S.C.I.’s probe of in-
dependent clinical laboratories was featured as a major segment
of an hour-long ABC-TV documentary on Medieaid abuses, a show
which was televised nationally in April, 1976. -
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INDEPENDENT CLINICAL LABORATORIES
RECEIVING MEDICAID MONIES

INTRODUCTION -

The S.C.1's Medicaid investigative team assigned to purveyors
of health services other than nursing homes and hospitals initiated
its inquiry with a series of meetings with personnel of the State
Division of Médical Assistance and Health Serviges, the State
Institutions and Agencies ‘Department’s unit which administers
Medicaid and which hereafter is referred to as the State Medicaid
Division.  Although- the- intent of the original discussions and
associated document review was to provide 8.C.I. personnel with a
broad -overview of the Division’s funetions and operations, it
quickly became apparent to 8.C.L .staffers, principally through
data provided by the Division’s Bureaun of Medical Care Surveil-
lance, that patterns of possible irregularities in the operations of
some of the independent clinical laboratories under the Medicaid
program made those laboratories particularly a,ppropriate sub-
jects for in-depth 1nvest1gat10n Accordingly, ‘an immediate inquiry
into this area of Medleald was undertaken by the S.C.L

New.J ersey has some 184 mdependent chmeal Iaboratorles which
perforin &’ variety of tests on human. body materials, with the
results belng nsed in the diagnosis, treatment, and’ prevention of
disease, " The S, C.L, ‘with the assistance of the State Medicaid
Division, deteimined that 12 of these 184 lwborator1es were receiv-
ing more than half of the $2.2 million in Medicaid funds flowing
annually to all independent laboratories.* This investigation,
therefore, concentrated on those laboratories which seemed to
be. doing. an inordinate .amount of Medicaid-funded busmess in
comparison to the average for the industry.

The Commission was fortunate to enlist the expért‘cooperation
of the State Health Department’s Division of Laboratories and
Epidemiology, hereafter referred to as the State Laboratories
Division, to make an initial anaylsis. of the operation and. billing
procedures of some of the clinical laboratories” ranking highest in
Medieaid- recelpts The Division personnel made field 1nspect10ns

Lk Gee Chart Number 6 on Page ZZIa of t[-us report’ for a Iistmg of the 12 mdependent
- elinical laliotatories receiving .the most Medicaid dollars dfiring 1972-1975 period. -
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of these laboratories, analyzed hundreds of pertinent docu-
ments, and then provided the 8.C.T. with comprehensive written
and oral reports. Those reports, combined with continuing inputs
from the State Medicaid Division, provided a sound starting point
for the 8.C.I. to probe in depth into the independent clinical labo-
ratories field, an investigation which eventunally exposed and
documented fully at public hearings June 24, 25 and 26, 1975 the
existence of abuses of the Medicaid program 1n the Tollowing areas:

1. Virtual windfall profits to some relatively small
and largely unantomated laboratories which marked
up the cost of tests performed on a subcontracting -
or referral basis by as much as 300 per cent and col-
lected the marknps from Medicaid. The facts gleaned
in this area as well as other areas discussed below
were instrumental in documenting that the New
Jersey Medicaid fee schedule for reimbursing inde-
pendent clinical laboratories was mueh too high and
in need of revision downward.

- 2. Instances where some independent clinical lab-
oratories were able to overbill Medicaid for certain
tests and even render false test claims without these
practices being detected at either the pre-payment or
post-payment processing levels.

3. Rebate or kickback type practices whereby some
laboratories either returned a set percentage of
Medicaid test fees to some of the doctors referring
business to those laboratories or indulged in some
other financial-inducement type payments to the
-doctors under the guise of paying for ‘‘rented space?’
or ‘‘office salaries’’ in the doctors’ offices. -

All the above areas will be reviewed in more detail on subse-
quent pages of this report, along with Commission’s findings
thereon, corrective steps already taken since the 8.C.IL began its
investigation, and further Commission recommendations for addi-
tional corrective actions. '

APPALLING CoONDITIONS PROMPT A NEwW CONTROL ACT

In developing the investigation of the independent clinical lab-
oratories, the Commission during the first quarter of 1975 began
to hear testimony and mark pertinent documents at private hear-
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ings relative to the previously mentioned field inspections of some
of the laboratories by the personnel of the State Laboratories
Division and the reports based on those inspections. The Commis-
sion quickly became appalled and alarmed by the considerable
evidence that dangerous inefficiencies and laxities and inepf,
erroneous and sanitarily unsafe and unsound procedures could
flonrish in some of the clinical laboratories in New Jersey at any
given time, notwithstanding present state and federal enforcement
efforts under existing statute.

A Chamber of Horrors

A few examples of a virtnal ‘‘chamber of horrors®’ étory’ which
was presented to the Commission relative to practices and condi-
tions at some of the laboratories were:

At one Medicaid laboratory, the supervisor per- -
formed glucose analysis in such a manner as to. result
in wholly invalid test results. After lining approxi-
mately 30 different patient specimens in a rack, he
prooeeded to use the same measuring device (Pipette)
in taking samples from each. Rather than replacing
the disposable tip in which a small residue of the
sample remained, the supervisor used the same tip for
each subsequent specimen, contaminating each and
resulting in invalid samples.

Negative results for tests for a specific disease
causing bacterium were routinely reported to physi-
cians by a laboratory and the cultures were discarded
by the laboratory long before it was possible to
establish that the organism was not present in the
specimen.

Laboratory reporting forms from a laboratory con-
tained incorrect ‘‘normal ranges.’’ Physicians accept-
ing the written normal range as accurate would be
misled in interpreting results of tests on specific
patients,

There was Vlrtua,lly no quality control of tests be-

- ing performed at one lahoratory. Cheap disposable

measuring devices were heing washed and possibly

reused, although they were only guaranfeed by the

manufacturer to be accurate for a single measure-
ment.
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At one laboratory which received in excess of
$250,000 in Medicaid moneys in 1974, the State -
Laboratories Division personnel found the basement

"~ to be small and possessed of only. one small hand"
basin. ‘As testing progressed, liquids from a large
antomated machine were emptied directly into the -
sink, thereby precluding the employees from using it .
to Wash hands or eqidpment. - S

This same laboratory performed a large Volume of
bacteriology tests on the premises. As many as one.
hundred contaminated culture plates required sterili-

- zation and safe disposal.- When eonfronted with the

- inadequacy of sterilization equipment in the labora-
tory to handle such a volume, the laboratory super-
visor said the laboratory director daily picked up
plastic garbage bags full of contaminated material
and carried them to the incinerator of a local hos-
pital. The Assistant State Health Commissioner in
charge of the Laboratories Division testified before
the Commission that this procedure was ¢ exeeedmgly -
poor and dangerous.’’

The Commission viewed ev1dence of this nature Wlth a sense of
particular alarm, since unreliable and inaceurate laboratory test
results can lead to erroneous diagnosis, cause the selection and
pursuit of an inappropriate course of treatment, induce needless
suffering of both a physmal and emotional nature, create unneces-

sary financial burdens and, in extreme cases, may even proxunately
contnbute to death

A Publz'c Statement Is Issued

During this DPhase of the ‘Medicaid 1nvest1gat10n “the Commis-
sion was brieféd in detail on the then proposed New Jersey Clinical
Laboratory Improvement Act. The Commission concluded on the
basis of the evidence received and the facts set forth in the briefing
that enactment into law of this measure wounld be a much needed
step in providing New J ersey with tough, effective hcensmg and
enforcement powers. to require and maintain proper conditions
and standards at clinieal laboratories. Indeed, the Commission
found that such enactment would make New Jersey only equal to
its neighboring states of New York and Pennsylvania 'in ‘the type
of state control exercised over clinical labora,tomes ‘
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- Aecordingly, the Commission “directed: the staff to prepare.a
public statement™ which urged enactment of the proposed control,
and the. Commission caused that statement o be delivered to mems
bers of the State Liegislature and to the Governor. “The statement,
which was “issued on. April 23, 1975, analyzed provisions of ‘the
proposed act, with particnlar attention to how specific provisions
- would fill major gaps and vacuums in the existing web of state
and federal statutes and regulations. The Commission’s publie
statement summarized the principal thrusts of the proposed act
as follows:

® Require all independent clinical laboratories to be
licensed by the state, with the licenses permitting a
. laboratory to perform only those tests for which the -
. . laboratory has demonstrated the ability to perform.
with adequate quality. Licensees would be monitored
through required participation in a State program of
proficiency testing and unannounced inspections. This
scheme would go far in eliminating the danger of in-
adequate and erroncous testing procedures and induce
laboratories to-have proper eqmpment and properly ,
trained personnel .

* Empower the State Health Oornmlssmner to sus- ,

pend the license of a laboratory when the Commis- @ .: .
. sloner has reason to believe that conditions posing

an imminent threat to the public health, safety and

welfare exist. Any licensees summarily suspended -

could seek a hearing before the Commissioner which

must be held and a deecision rendered within 48 hours -

of the recelpt of the request for the hearing. 3

. Attempt to bring New Jersey laboratories elther
-equal to or in excess of the federal standards for such
“laboratories, standards considered comprehensive and
stringent. One requirement of the proposed act is -
that laboratory personnel be certified as meetmg oo
 the federal standards. o

The Commisgion in its statement noted that perhaps only
relatlvely small minority of ohmoal laboratomes in New Jersey
had failed to adhere to high standards. The statement added;

* See statement by the New Jersey Commission of Investigation on the propesed New
_LerseyZChm%l Laboratory Improvement Act (Assembly Bill No. 2320). Report dated
pril 23, 19
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however, that even if that was the fact, the potential for wide-
spread danger absent sufficient controls was still present when it
was realized that one large laboratory alone could eonduct many
thousands of tests in any given year. The statement concluded
that enactment of the proposed control act would, if properly and
vigorously administered, be of immmense benefit to the health and
safety of the citizenry of New Jersey.

The proposed control aet bill, at the time of issmance of the
S.C.I.°s public statement, had been approved by the Assembly in
February, 1975 but had not been acted on by the Senate where it
had been amended. Subsequent to the public statement’s issuance,
the amended bill was promptly approved by the Senate by a vote
of 22-1 and the Assembly soon concurred with the amendments
by a 61-0 vote. The measure was signed by the Governor July 23,
1975 as Chapter 166 of 1975.

BiLKING MEDICAID BY MARKUPS AND
BILLING IRREGULARITIES

Besides aiding the Commission in determining the existence of
deplorable conditions and operations at some of the independent
clinical laboratories, personnel of the State Laboratories Division
also honored an S.C.I. request that they assist in the examination
of many hundreds of documents relative to bills rendered to the
state by a sampling of those laboratories, bills which had been
paid with Medicaid funds for tests allegedly performed. The re-
sults from this exhaustive, cooperative inquiry uncovered facts
which demonstrated clearly and conclusively that the New Jersey
system could be taken costly advantage of through practices in-
volving the marking up of subcontracted or referred test costs
as much as 300 per cent, overbilling for certain tests, and even
false or fictitious billing for tests not performed. The fact that
these practices could exist under the Medicaid program also.
showed conclusively that the Medicaid fee schedule® for reim-
bursing the independent clinical laboratories for test work was
antiguated and too high and that the Medicaid Manunal of rules
and regulations covering those laboratories was in need of revision.
Both of those matters will be reviewed in some detail subsequently
in this report.

* The maximum Medicaid reimbursement fee schedule for certain tests as of May, 1975
is’ presented as Chart Number 7 on Page 221b of this report.
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Mammoth Markups

Recent years have seen major technological advances in the
clinical laboratory testing field. Many of the tests have become
highly automated, producing a quantity and quality of test results
with a degree of accuracy and speed not attainable by the older
manual or ‘‘bench test’’ methods.

During this phase of its Medicaid investigation, the Commission
came across indices that those independent clinical laboratories
whose businesses were most heavily oriented toward Medicaid were
predominantly of the smaller, largely unautomated nature and
that those laboratories were subcontracting or referring test work
to some of the larger, highly automated laboratories. The hill
claims submitted by the smaller but heavily Medicaid-oriented
laboratories to the State Medicaid program were readily available
for inspection. By use of its subpeena power, the Commission
was able fo obtain the corresponding billing invoices submitted
to the smaller laboratories by the larger, automated laboratories
which had actunally performed the test on a subcontract or referral
basis, '

By comparing the subcontractor laboratory billing invoices
with corresponding bill claims eventually submitted to Medicaid
by the smaller laboratorties, it was determined that the subecon-
tract cost of any given test could be grossly marked up by the
smaller laboratory which could then proeeed to collect that inflated
charge under then existing Medicaid maximum reimbursement fee
schedule.

In order to thoroughly document this costly abuse, the Com-
mission asked a team of State Laboratories Division personmnel
with expertise in the procedures of clinical laboratory testing
to examine, in cooperation with the S.C.L staff, stacks of laboratory
biil claims to Medicaid from some of the laboratories and other
related documents. In all, this exhaustive search and analysis
covered more than 20 independent clinical laboratories. The facts
established by this effort showed conclusively that the practice of
gross markups above actual subeontract costs was widespread and
that provisions of the State Medicaid Manual did not effectively
restrict and estop this practice.

Mrs. Gerda Duffy, Principal Medical Technologist for the
Clinical Laboratory Improvement Program of the State Labora-
tories Division, played a key role in the search and analysis of
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documents. She testified about the results of that effort.at the
public hearings in June, 1975. Part of her testimony dealt with
the specifies.of a sample of one of the numerous instances uncovered
in the area of huge markups over subcontracting -costs. In.the
testimonial excerpts which follow, the test referred to is essentially
aiblood chemistry analysis done on an antomated device known
as an SMA-12. The device reports almost instantly on the -statns
of as many as 12 blood chemistries in any given test sample. The
full name and location of the smaller laboratory referred to in
the testimony is Physicians La:boratory Service, Inc. of Passaie.
Mrs. Dufly testified:

Q. Mrs. Duffy, let me show you a claim submitied
by Physician’s Lab Service, Inc., for services allegedly -
- rendered on or about 12/18/74 to Medicaid recipient
S V. C. I would ask you to look at this claim and tell
- u8 whether or not you see @ reguest for payment for
‘ :—-"cm SMA-122 -
7 A. Yes, Ido.

Q. How much has Physician’s Lab Service, Inc., .-
requested for payment for the SMA-1272
. $15. .

: Q. Now Mfrs Duﬁ’y, does Medwmd pay $15 for an’ -
- SMA-12?2
.A. No.

Q "Do you k%aw what the mazimum amount of -
money Medicaid will pay for an SMA-12 would be?
AL Yes it? 8 $12 50. n

Q. Al mght Now, Mrs. Duffy, let me call YOur:
- attention to @ second part of Exhibit C-12, that being
. g billing invoice which was réeceived by the Commis- -
. ston of Investigation, pursuant to a subpena, from
. -the Center for Laboratory Medicine, Inc., in Metuchen.
-~ Twould ask youw by looking af this billing invoice
. whether or not youw can determine if the SMA-12 - .
. listed om the lab claim sheet submitted by Physician’s
Lab Service was performed at a location other than:
Physician’s Lab Service? ‘
A. Yes, it was.
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Q. Well, what is that indication, Mrs. Duffy?

A. The patient’s name is given; the date the test
was performed; the type of test, the test code and a
charge made by the reference lab for that test.

Q. All right. And does this data correspond with
the data submitted on the dlaim form by the Phy.%—
cian’s Lab Service?

Al Yes, 1t does.

Q Mrys, Du]fy, I ask you to examine the bzllmg
invoice submitted by Center for Laboratory Medicine
to Physician’s Lob. Service: and with particular
reference to the SM.A-12 test performed for Medicaid
recipient.J. V. C. I would ask you to identify the test
price listed on that document or the test price charged
by Center for Laboratory Medicine to Physician’s
Lab Service.

A, $3.50.

Q. Al right. Now, Mrs. Duﬁ”y, are you tellmg us
© that, while Medicaid will allow $12. 50 for an SMA-12
" test, it’s possible to have that very same test per-

forfmed at—by the way, is Center for Labomtory ,

Medicine an a,utomated fa;czlat J? :
% Yes, it i is. o

Q. Al Mght ik 8 poss'able to contzmbe to have that
" tést performed at an automated faczhty at a cost that

:.you testified, $3.50%

A, That’s correet

- Q- Andisil-your testimony that M edfwmd wzll then e
- 'pay approvimately three times that amount? SRETE

~ A That’s correet.

£ # * *

- Q. Mrs. Duffy, are you familiar with the present
. Medicaid Manual as it pertains to labomtory services?
A, Yes. :

Q." To the best of Yyour u%derstandmg, i there any-

“thing in that Medicaid Manual which would wm any -

- ~way restrict the amount of monies that might be pmd

%o a small laboratory for work that i actually per-
Lo formed in a la/rge Zabomtory? _ :

- A: No.
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I'm talking about subcontmctwg
There are

‘No.
—no such regulations.

PO PO

All right. Now, Mrs, Duffy, from your experi-
ence i the mdust@*y as well, more importantly, from
your experience in reviewing different claims as well
as supporting materials is this am isolated instance
thot we have here where, for instance, first of all, that
an SM A test would be performed at a large reference
laboratory for a relatively small amount of money
and then billed to Medicaid by a small laboratory for
a much higher amount of money?

A. No, this is not an isolated case.

Overbilling and False Billing

The previously mentioned cooperative effort by personnel of the
State Laboratories Division and the 8.C.I. Staff in searching and
analyzing stacks of bill claims from independent clinical labora-
tories and associated documents also indicated clearly that some
of the laboratories were not content with just profiting from
mammoth markups over subeontracting costs but were further
inflating their profits by certain overbilling and even false or
fictitious billing practices. The specific {ypes of overbilling and
false billing practices were illustrated at the public hearing
through the testimony of Mrs. Duffy, accompanied by the marking
of and reference to appropriate documents. In each instance, one’
example was examined as being representative of a frequent and
widespread abuse discerned in the voluminous searoh and analysis
of documents.

A principal overbilling practice discerned in the investigation -
wag that of taking a single test which produces multiple, compo-
nent-part results and billing for each component part as if it were
a separate test. As previously noted, the blood chemistry test
performed on the SMA-12 device can produce as many as 12 com-
ponent part results. Mrs. Duffy was questioned about an instance
where the Fair Lawn Clinical and Cytology Laboratory, a rela-
tively small and largely unautomated independent clinical labora-
tory located in the basement of a home in Fair Lawn in violation of
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that community’s zomng ordinances, billed Medicaid for $26 for an
SMA-12 test by listing six of the blood chemistry, component-part
results as separate te_st_s The SMA-12 test was performed for
Fair Lawn by the automated Center for Laboratory Medicine at a
cost of $3.25. The maximum Medicaid reimbursement fee for an
SMA-12 was $12.50. Mrs. Duffy testified about this instance and the
deficiencies in the Medicaid Manual relating to this abuse:

Q. But, again, you see here by the billing invoice
that it was o full SMA that was ordered?
A. That’s correct.

Q. And the cost of that SMA was what?
A, $3.25.

Q. Do you have any idea of the amount of money
that this provider, the Fair Lown Clinical and Cytol-
ogy Laboratory, could have received from the Med:-
caid program by breaking the SMA wnio these
component parts?

A. Yes. In this particular case there are only 8ix
components, so in this case he would have received
$26 from Medicaid.

Q. All right. So you’re telling us, then, that the
Fair Lawn Clinical and Cytology Laboratory would
hove received $26 from Medicaid for an SMA test,
an SMA-12, which it was billed $3.25 by Center for
Laboratory Medicine?

"~ A, That’s correct.

. Mrs. Duffy, again, you are familiar with the
. Medicaid Manual?
A, Yes.

Q. Al right. Is there any present regulation in
that manual which would prevent breaking a test
down into its components?

‘A, No. There is one regulation that says the sum
of the components, the charge for the sum of the com-
ponents cannot exceed the charge for the cluster of
tests ifself.

Q.. AU right. Mrs. Duffy, let me show you what
that regulation is. It can be found not only in the
Medicaid manual for laboratories but also in New
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- Jersey’s Admimstrative Code, Section  10:61-1.5, . ..
“which reads, in relevant port, sub-section (b), ““The

- sum -of - the components of o cluster of tests, for
evample, SM.A-12, may not exceed the . total custo-
marily charged for the group offering.”’ - And it’s:
- your opimion that this particulor regulation is not - -
adequate; is that fair? = L S

A. That’s fair.

Q.. AUl right. Under the regulation as i now
stands, Mrs. Duffy, is there onything fo prevent, to
the best of your knowledge, any laboratory from
doing ewactly what the Foir Lown Clinical Laboratory
had apparently done here, break an SMA into com-
ponent parts and bill for 8 - . :

A. There is nothing to prevent-it.

Mrs. Duity, again-with appropriate documents being marked
and referred to, testified about two instances where Park Medieal
Laboratory of Montelair overbilled Medicaid by billing for com-
ponent parts of multiple-result tesis as if they were separate
tests. Tark Medical, another relatively small and largely un-
automated laboratory, is located in the converted sun porch of a
home, a fact Mrs. Duffy learned when she inspected the labora-
tory’s premises. . - ' : 7

One instance of -overbilling by Park involved a urinalysis test
which provides several component-part results through a chemi-
cally coated, color sensitive stick which is dipped into the fest
sample and then examined by a laboratory technician. Mrs, Duffy
testified that the appropriate documents clearly showed: that Park
had billed Medicaid for the maximum allowable $2 for a urinalysis
and for an additional $2 for a urine oceult blood which is part of
the test results from a urinalysis by the dip-stick method.

The other instance relative to Park involved a complete blood
count (e.b.c.) test. Mrs. Duffy testified that the documents in this
instance revealed that Park had billed Medicaid for the $5 maxi-
mum fee for this type of test and billed additionally for a red

blood cell morphology whichi is a component-part result of a e.b.c.
test. '

Another overbilling technigne examined in the investigation was
to bhill for the more costly of two types of tests designed. to de-
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termine the same type of condition. The sample instance in this
area presented at the public hearing involved two types of tests
to determine pregnancy. One is an outmoded. test known as the
A-7Z pregnaney test where a rabbit or rat must be used in the test
process. Medicaid allows $10 for this test. The other type of test
is the more modern rapld-shde pregnancy test which is more
expeditious and does mot require the use of animals. For this
test, Medicaid pays $7.50. Mrs. Duify testified that in this instance
the documents showed clearly that the physician requesting the
Fairlawn Clinical and Cytology Laboratory to make a pregnancy
test had specifically asked for the less expensive slide test. Yet,
Fair Lawn on its billing form claimed payment for the A-Z test.
Mrs. Duffy testified further on how her visit to the Fair Lawn
laboratory revealed that no A-Z test was performed:

Q. Now, Mrs. Duffy, you mentioned that you did
visit the Fowr Lawn Labomtory, 4s that true?
A. Yes.

Q. While you were at the Fair Lawn Labomtory,
did you see any animals?
A. No.

' Q. Did you see any facilities for ammals?
A, No. .

Q. Well, Mrs. Duffy, since you saw no animals on
the premises, is it your opinion that Fair Lawn could
ot have performed an A-Z test?

A, Yes.

The problem of controlhng a bllhng abuse: of this type was in
Mrs. Duﬁy s opinion a matter which would reqmre an improve-
ment in the Medicaid system and more expertise in the Medicaid
surveillance staff, corrective steps which are reviewed in more
detail subsequently in this report under the title of ‘‘System
Controls and Surveillance.”’ Referring to Fairlawn’s b111 claim -
for the A-Z pregnancy test, Mrs. Duffy testified:

Q. All right. So, Mrs. Dujfy, is it fair to say that
what we have in Exhibit C-16 is a clawm submitted to
Medicaid which does not accurctely reflect the work
that was actually performed?

A, That’s right. .
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Q. In fact, it was a claim described as an A-Z test
and one which, to an wntrained person, a person who
had no knowledge of, perhaps, Fair Lawn’s request
report sheet or its procedures, would be one involy
ing animals? :

A. Correct. '

Q. Mrs. Duffy, is this the problem that the Medic-
atd manual has to speak to or is this something that
perhaps surveillance has to cope with? ,

A. I think that the problem would have to be at-
tacked by eliminating test desceriptions and using only
code numbers and initials and ensuring that reim-
bursement is made only for tests that are specifieally
coded so there can bhe no ambiguity about what test
was performed.

Q. Al right. I takeit, then, that you’re saying that
more definition is required in the Medicaid fee sched-
ule and the Manual as to exactly what procedures are
entailed w a particular test?

A. Yes,

Q. Bul isn’t it also necessary to have trained peo-
ple famidiar with loboratory work on the Medicaid
survedllance staff in order to instially recognize this
problem? ‘

A. Yes, that’s correct.

The Commission’s investigation also concerned itself with
outright false or fictitious bill elaims by some of the Iaboratories.
Two instances of such claims were examined at the public hearing,
again through the testimony of Mrs. Duffy who said the two sam-
ples were symptomatic of a more general pattern of abuse. In the
first instance, Mrs. Duffy testified that the Park Medical Labora-
tory billed Medicaid for alleged performance of a P.B.I. test which
is used to determine the amount of iodine bound to protein in the
human blood. The Medicaid fee schedule allowed at that time for
that test was $10.

The documents relative to this instance showed that Park had
in the case of this particular patient subcontracted for three other
tests performed by the Center for Laboratory Medicine but had
not subcontracted for a P.B.I. Furthermore, Mrs. Draffy testified
that Park could not by itself have performed a P.B.I. tost:

150



Q. Al right, now, Mrs. Duffy, do you know whether
or not the Park Medical Laboratory performs the
P.B.I test on its own premises?

A. No, it doesn’t.

Q. How do you know that? ‘ .

A. I saw that they didn’t have the equipment for
the reagents to perform it and the director told me it
wasn’t performed on'the premises. -

Q. Isihat director Mr. Edward Gibney?

A. That’s right. : '

- Q. Well, Mrs. Duffy, again back to the physician’s
report and request sheet belonging to Park Medical
Laboratory for the Medicaid recipient Q. W. Do you
see a P.B.I. result reported? o '
A, Yes, T do. :

Q. What is that result? =
A. 5.8 micrograms per cent.

Q. But you said you see no indication that ¢ P.B.I .
was actually performed?
| A. That ’s correct,

Q.. Would it be your conclusion, then, thot the
P.BI. resull reported on this claim for Medicaid
recipient Q. W. is fictitious? .

Yes.

The documents relative to the second false-billing instance
examined at the public hearings related to a test called a rubella
titer which is simply a test for German measles. As a public health
service, the State Department of Health performs this test free of
charge. Mrs. Duffy testified to an instance where Park Medical
took advantage of this free service and then billed and received
from Medicaid the maximum reimbursement fee of $15 for a rubella

titer test:

Q. And how much would Medicaid allow for the
“German measles test? '
A, $15,

Q. Can you tell from this claim form whether or
not Medicaid paid the $15 for this German measles
test? S -

A, Yes, I can.
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Q. All right. Mrs. Duffy, I show you a record from
the New Jersey Department of Health and ask you
whether or not you con identify it for us?

A. Yes, I can.

Q. Does that relate to Medicaid recipient 4. B.?
A. Yes, it does. S T

Q. Does that indicate to you that a rubella test
was done o the State Departwment of Health
laboratories? o

A. Yes, it does.

- Q. How much does the State Department of
Health charge for performing these tests, Mrs. Duffy?

A. Nothing. s '

Q. Is it your testimony, then, that Medicoid was
billed, and paid, $15 for a test that was actually per-
formed in a State facility and by State employees for
nothing? :

A. That’s correct.

* * #* #*

Q. Mrs. Duffy, again as to. your familiarity with
the present Medicaid manual as it pertains to labora-
tory services, is there anything in that manual which,
to the best of your knowledge, would preclude a labor-
atory from billing for a test that was actually per-
formed by the state laboratory for free?

A. No. . ‘ ‘.

Q. No restrictions at all, to the best of your knowl-
edge? L _ N

A. No restrictions.

Q. Ther any laboratory could do it, couldn’t it?
A, That’s correct. K S

The previously mentioned HEdward Gibney, the Director of the
Park Medical Laboratory, conceded under questioning at the
public hearings that it would be fair to state that during 1974
alone, there were 197 instances where Park billed Medicaid $15
for rubella titer tests performed free of charge by the state,

Mr. Gibney also conceded under questioning at the hearings
that Park did indulge in the overbilling practice of billing Medic-
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ald for component-part résults of a test as if they were separate,
including one instance where séven component-part results from
a SMA-12 blood chemistry test, for which Medicaid then allowed
a maximum reimbursement of $12.50, were billed to Medicaid. for
at a total of $58. The SMA-12 test was performed for Park by

the .automated Center for Laboratory Medicine for $3.40. -

~Additionally, Dr. Rosario Tamburri, Director of the Fair Lawn
Clinical and Cytology Laboratory, confirmed in his testimony that
Fair Lawn, indeed, had indulged in overbilling Medicaid by billing
for the component-part test results of an SMA-12 test as if they
were separate tests. T : .

FizvanciaL INDUCEMENTS TO DOCTORS

The tests performed by independent clinical laboratories are
used by medically trained personnel, principally physicians prac-
ticing either alonme or in group praetices or clinics, in the treat-
ment and prevention of disease:  In matters so directly affecting
the health of human beings, it would be hoped that the relation-
ships between the laboratories and the doctors referring test
business o the laboratories would be on a highly professional and
ethical basis, with the laboratories receiving the test work because
of the quality and performaiice offered. I

The Commission’s investigation, however, found that, while some
of the laboratories were operating in a serupulous manner, others
were offering financial-inducement type payments to the doctors
to lure test business and that those laboratories engaging in those
rebate payments were among the largest recipients of Medicaid
dollars. Indeed, as this phase of the Medicaid investigation pro-
gressed, it became clear that certain independent clinical -labora-
tories were rebating a fixed percentdge—usually on the order of
25 to 35 per cent—ol Medicaid reimbursements to the referring
physicians. The attempts to mask and/or justify these. financial-
inducement type payments often involved the guise of paying the
salaries of personne] in the doctors’ offices or “‘renting’’ space in
those offices. : S

Furthermore, it became evident that a laboratory’s Medicaid-
funded: business could increase dramatically if the laboratories
employed the service of a middleman-salesman who knew which
physician or physician groups would throw business to the Iabora-
tory offering a substantial rebate percentage payment.
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The Commission was appalled, especially in Iight of its.public
statement about deplorable conditions in some of the clinical labor-
atories, that physicians would compromise not only ethical con-
siderations but also the best interests of their patients by awarding
test business not on the basis of judging the quality and perform-
ance of a laboratory but rather on the basis of personal finanecial
gain from rebate payments.

Methods of Payment

The Commission called as witnesses at the public hearings offi-
cials of several independent clinical laboratories who testified that
their laboratories did not indulge in paying rebates or kickbacks
to physicians. Some of their testimony demonstrated that a labora-~
tory not playing the financial-inducement-payment game could get
relatively little Medicaid-funded test work. Additionally, from the
experience of zales personnel of these laboratories in the field, the
officials were able to testify knowledgeably about the praectice in
the industry of obtaining sizeable amounts of Medicaid-funded
business by financial-inducement payments to physicians.

~ Dr. Paul A. Brown, a physician and Chairman of the Board of
MetPath Ine., a very large, highly automated independent clinical
laboratory with headguarters in Hackensack, testified that during
1974, his laboratory in New Jersey alone did approximately $2
million worth of test work for physicians and hospitals but re-
ceived only some $10,000 during that year from New Jersey Medic-
aid. Dr. Brown testified further that his marketing-force personnel
told him the reason for MetPath’s not receiving more Medicaid-
funded business, despite the laboratory’s charging lower prices
than many other laboratories, was that providers of health ser-
vices to Medicaid patients were “‘locking for something from the
laboratory’’ in return for referral of test work, a practice in which
MetPath declined to indulge. Dr. Brown testified his staff found
four basic kickback-type techniques were being used in the indus-
try: . : S o

- (1) Cash payments known as ‘‘greens’’ which are

made by the laboratories either directly to the doctors

~or indirectly to them via their nurses.

(2) The providing of personnel to the doctors by
the laboratories and the paying of the salaries of those
personnel by the laboratories for work allegedly per-
formed in the doctors’ offices. ' :
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(3) The renting of the laboratories of space, such
as a cloget, in the doctors’ offices, with the ‘‘rent”’
often being determined as a percentage of the amount
of Medicaid-funded test work referred to the labora-
tories by the doctors.

(4) The providing of goods and services to the
doctors by the laboratories, including surgical sup-
plies or miscellaneous items such as cigars and cig-
arettes

\Iurray A. Blaivas, General Manager of the Roche Clinical
Laboratories, Division of Hoffman-LaRoche Tne., testified that the
approximately $60,000 in New J ersey Medlcaud reimbursements
received by the Division during 1974 represented a miniscule per-
centage of the total business done annually at the Division’s main
laboratory in Raritan. Mr. Blaivas testified further as fo why
the Division’s Medicaid segment was not more substantial:

Q. Isthere any reason why you would characterize
it as a small amount of Roche Clinical Lab?

A. Well, T believe it’s because we do not partici-
pate in any of the practices that have been deseribed
here

Q. Well would you for us please enumerate those
practices whwh you feel are a detriment to your
sharing in a bigger segment of the Medicoid
program?

A. Well, it has come to my attentlon that there are
arrangements such as rental of office space, which is
not commensurate with the space being rented, but
rather with the volume of dollars that are generated
The supplying of employees or technical personnel
or clerical personnel to physicians’ offices. Payment
in some form for filling out of laboratory forms
and/or collection of blood samples. In some instances
furnishing non-laboratory supplies, but rather medi-
cal supplies to the physician. Those are the ones that T
can think of right now. |

L Q. Well, you have testified that Roche C’Zmzcal
. Labs is not a participant in that activity?
- A. None whatsoever, sir. .
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Q. Why?

A, 'Well, it’s against Roche polmy for one thma-
And for another thing we feel that these practmes &
are unethical. :

Lawrence (fallin, a partner in the South Jersey Diagnostic
Center, an independent clinical laboratory in the City of Camden,
testified that the principal reason for his laborstory’s receiving-
a relatively large amount of Medicaid-funded test busmess—
$129,000 during 1974—was that the laboratory is located right in
the middle of an indigent urban area where the instance of Vled_lc- :
aid patients is exceptionally high. He testified that he, too, knew
of ﬁnancml-mducement—payment practices in the industry and
described them much in the same manner as did Dr. wan and
Mr. Blaivas. Mr. Gallin testified further:

Q. All right, Mr. Gallin, does your ;S’outh Jewsey
Diagnostic Center lab engage in the activities to which
you have just testified? :

A. No, we do not.

Q. And why don’t you, Mr. Gallm?

A. Well, I think there’s no one answer. I thmk
there’s several answers. I think the most important
reason is that we are a lab that’s located right in the
middle of a large Medicaid area. “We are actually in
—our location ig snch that it is. :

Q.. Well, let me ask you this, Mr. Gall’/m Do YOuU
consider these activities ethical or umethical?

A. Categorically, I would say that if—these
activities are unethical, and they could be even
illegal if the reason for the activity is to generate
speeimens. If the reason is—if it has no impact on
generating specimens, well, it’s a normal business
practice. But I would say the reason they’re done is
to procure business, and I don’t consider that ethical.

Rebate Techniques

As previously noted, the financial-inducement payments from
the laboratories to the physmlans are often.made under the guises
of paying for work performed in doctors’ offices or the “rentmg”
of space in those offices. The Commission at the public hearings
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explored some of those rebate technigues through the testimony of
some of the officials of those laboratories.- The appropriate records
and documents, including cancelled checks, were marked as
exhibits in each case to document the flow of Medma&d monies from
the laboratories back to the physicians, -

Saul Fuchs, Director of the previously mentloned Physicians
Laboratory Service, Inc., an 1ndependent clinical laboratory in
Passaie, testified that he had arrangements to pay back to two
doctors 20 per cent of Medicaid reimbursements received for test
business referred to the laboratory by those doctors and a similar
arrangement:to return to a medical-clinical group 30 per cent of the
Medicaid dollars received for test business referred by that group.

In the casé of one of the doctors, identified by Mr. Fuchs as
Dr. Maleolm Schwartz with offices in Paterson, Mr. Fuchs con-
tended the 20 per cent rebate was based ““on the serviee that he
would fill out the forms’’ but did not include any drawing of blood
Specimens on the doctor’s part. In the case of the other doctor,
identified by Mr. Fuchs as a Dr. Conti with offices in Garﬁeld
the 20 per cent rebates were paid to a Chris Pardo, trading as
C.M.P. Enterprises, who, according to Mr. Fuchs, drew blood in
Dr. Conti’s office and filled out Medlcald forms there Mr. Fuchs
was examined futther about his relatmns]:up with Mr. Pardo and
Dr. Conti: ' : :

Q. Mr. Fuchs, at anytime during your relatw%-
ship with Mr. Pardo did you ever check the acourac il
of the gross receipts and his work as to his work?
A, Idon’t understand what vou mean by the accu-
racy of his gross receipts. : :

Q Well, you were paying him on a percentage
basis? o .
A. Yes, sir.

Q. 20% of all that he bfrought in?
A, Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. Did you ever check with him on the :
accuracy of the amount of business he was giving you?

A. Well, he only got paid when I got paid. I mean,
when T got paid, from Medicaid, I checked to .see
which ones were from Dr. Conti, and then from this
figure he got paid.
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Q.  And were these patients, or were these palients =~
in Dr. Conti’s office Medicaid recipients? :
A, T assume so. They had

Q. And did you—I m sorry. Go ahead
A. T mean, they had Medicaid forms.

Q.. And did you subwmit independent labomtory‘ .
claim forms for these patients?
- A, Yes, I did.

Q. And when you received the reimbursement for
the cash balance that claim from Medicaid, is that
where you derived the 20% for Mr. Pardo?

A. Yes, sir, and that was after expenses, too.

Mr. Fuchs testified that he rebated some $12 000 in Medicaid
money during 1974 to the Park Medical Clinie in Paterson, under
the 30 per cent arrangement with that clinic. He stated tha,t he
had a secretary on his payroll who filled out Medicaid forms at
the clinic and that through a company known as International
Drugs, Ine., he paid rent for space at Park Medical. It was Mr.
Fluch’s testlmony that a William Stracher and a Harvey Sussman
are owners of both International Drugs and Park Medical, Mr.
Fuchs was examined about the International Drug-Park Medical
arrangement:

Q. Now, how did you arrive at @ gwew, figure 30
per cent to pay Park Medico?

A. Tt was a ledse rental.- Percentage rental or
lease. Percentage lease arrangement, In other words,
we couldn’t agree on how much rent I should pay
there, so it was suggested that it would be done on a
percentage basis; the amount of work that came out
plus any supplles that I needed down there, they gave
to the clinie, they supplied.

Q. Could you identify them as supplymg the
Glmws?
A Internatmnal Drug

Q. Now, to whom did you fmake Yyour checks
- payable? -
- ‘A, International Drugs."
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Q. And why didn’t you make them -out to Park
- Medico?
.. ~A. Because they told me to make them to Inter-
- national Drug. : :

Q. Pardon me?
A. Isaid, I was told to make them to International
Drug. : o

Q. Who told you that, sir?
A. Mr. Stracher and Mr. Sussman.

€. Did they give you any reason why you had to
make them out to International Drug when they
rented space and supplies were being doné in the
clinic? .

A, No, sir.

Q. Did you rent any space, for whatever purpose,
in International Drug, Inc., the drugstore?
A. No, sir,

Q. And it’s fair to say that the rental portion of
your payments to International’ Dmgs did not include
any shelf space, closet space or room n International
Drugs, Inc.; is that correct?

A. Correct

The previously mentioned Edward Gibney, Director of the Park
Medical Lahoratory in Montelair, was questioned as to why his
small, largely unautomated clinical laboratory received only $346
in New Jerséy Medicaid reimbursements during 1973, with that
figure then soaring to $164,849 during 1974 and to $205,852 for
the first one-third only of 1975. His answer was that during 1974,
he became associated with M.B.S. 'Sales, whose principal is
Seymour Slotnick of Teaneck. The testlmony of Mr. Slotnick,
who holds himself out. as offering ‘‘marketing services”’ to 1abora—
tories, will be reviewed after further discussion of Mr. Gibney’s
testlmony Suffice it to state here that Mr. Gibney first met Mr.
Slotnick briefly during 1973 when Mr. Gibney had an association
for three months Wlth Scott-Cord Laboratories, of which Mr.
Slotnick was then an officer. Mr. Gibney testified that during 1974,
Mr. Slotnick approached him as a principal in M.B.8. sales and
that an ‘‘agreement’’ was made for Park to retain the services of
M.B.S.. Mr. Gibney denied he had any arrangement for a percentage
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split of Medicaid reimbursements with Mr. Slotnick and stated
he did not know what spectfic ‘‘marketing serviees’ Mr: Slotnick
engaged in for Park, other than to bring in a large amount of
Medicaid-funded business from some physicians. ' Perfinent ex-
cerpts from Mr. Gibney’s testimony are presented below:

Q. Did he (Slotnick) later discuss with you wkat
the financial arrangement m@ght be?
A, Yes. .

Q. And what was the substance of that comjersa-
tion?

A. He said he Would b111 me for what he consuiered
a fair amount for his services.

Q. Did he mention a partzculafr ﬁgwe%’
No.

A,
Q. And you agreed to that armngement?
A Yes. ‘

42 Based on his imtegrity that he would bzll you
what would be a fair amount?
A. T agreed to that arrangement.

¢). What was it based on? ' '
A, T just agreed to that arrangement. ‘T don’t
know what it was based on at that time.

# #* LS #

Q. Mr. Gibney, again referring to C-10, the chart,
wn 1974 Park Medical Laboratory received $164,849 in -
Medicaid billing. Do you have knowledge of what Mr.
Slotwick recewed out of that 164,0002

"A. M.B.S. Sales received $96 000. I beheve he 18
the prinecipal.

Q. And $96,000, I think we decided in yesterday’s
hearing, represents somewhere around 59 per cent of
$164,000. Would your arrangement with Mr. Slotnick
have been a 60/40 deal? .

" "A. No.

@. Did you ever discuss a percentage, 60
per cent— ‘ - ST
- A, No.
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Q. —of Medicaid bzllmgs to him cmd 40 to you?
A, No.

% * # *

Q. You say that when you witially entered into
the arrangement with Mr. Slotnick, he agreed to pro-
vide services to you for, quote, what would be a fair
amount, I think was your testimony. Have you aom
opwmion on whether, for instance $4,586.42 for one
week of setvices is a- fmr amount?

- A. 1 was satisfied with the amount.

. Do you think it was fair?
.A.. I have no opinion as to whether 1t s fair or not.
T was satisfied.. :

Q. On that final bill, agam I m wfe'rfrmg to the
invoice for 12/30/74, there is an asterisk at the bottom
and . after the asterisk it reads as follows: ““Due to
increased, costs we must raise our fees for services.
The increase will be reflected in your next bill.”” Did
you have any discussion with M r. Slotnick relevam,t to
that footnote? -

- A. Yes, I did.

Q And what did you say to him cmd what did he
say to youl

A. Isaid I didn ’t want any increases, and I got a
negative response. I don’t know exactly What he said.

Q Was the response essentially take it or leave it?
E'ssentlally that

' Q And that essentially Mr. Slotwick is a middle-
man between the physicians and your lab; that is, he
acquires business and brings-it to you? '

A. Yes

Q. Wzthout you he cannot really do anythmg ; ke
fneeds you or someone else that is certified?
A Someone else or me.

Q Rzght So esse%tmlly, he’s a person that brmgs
business into your lab?
A, Yes.
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Q. And he’s been the cause of literally a geometric
explosion in your business from 1978 up into 1974; s
that correct?

A. Yes,

Q. And of the $164,000 that you received wn 1974,
you were willing to pay him, as ¢ salesman essentwlly,
396,000 of that money?

A. T didn’t pay him, excuse me, as a sale‘sman ‘He
is a private busmessman and he b1lled me for hig ser-
vices. I had no choice but to pay him or discontinue
his services. :

Q. And you felt that by paying him there was still
enough left for you to make the proposition worth-
while?

- A, Yes.

. But do you feel in the publw sense that $96 000
of $164,000 of Medicaid dollars is a fair amount to go
to him?

(Whereupon, the witness cdni'e-rs with dounéel.j N

A, I, I don’t know what the term ‘‘fair’’ can mean
in this instance, It was fair in the sense that if I didn’t
glve it to him, T wouldn’t have the bnsiness.

Q. So it was fair to 1 you as an wndividual?
A. Yes.

Q. But D’m talking wn fairness to public funds. Do
you think, as a professional man, that of $164,000 of
Medicaid doll-ars, that $96,000 should be going to this
man that is doing nothing more, really, than bringing
the business to you?

(Whereupon, the witness confers Wlth counsel. )

A. T have no comment. I just don’t know what
how to answer that questmn : :

. You would agree that your relatwnsh@p w@th
Mr. Slotwick is not 'really a bilateral relatw%sth,
28 it?

A. That’s true.
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Q.  He comes in and gives you a bill and you either
pay it or Mr, Slotnick is go%e?
- A. That’s true.
: 7 £ % # *
Q. Just a question or two. In your relationship
- with Mr. Slotwick, are you aware of Mr. Slotnick’s
arrangeinents with his clients?

" A. No, I'm not. '

Q. Did you ever ask how he was managing this
-~ explosion in your business?
AL Yes.

Q. And did he gwe you any explonation for it?
“A. Yes.

Q. Did he tell you of his relationship with Dr.
G'reemspa%?
A. Notin partlcular

Q Did ke ever tell you that hé was paymg over
B7500 a year for rental space which he couldn’t define?
A. No.

Q le he ever gwe you a breakdawn of that
87500 in terms of rental space or services?
A. I never knew of any rental space for services.

Q. When did you first hear about it?
-A. T heard about it now. I wasn’t at the hearmgs
‘yesterday T was upstairs.

Q. Is this the first time you are aware, thcm that
there 15 such an arrangement between M'r Slotmck
and his clients?

A, Itis.

Mr. Slotnick at the opening of his testlmony at the public hear-
ing described himself as being an independent contractor who,
under the firm name of M.B.S. Sales Co., Teaneck, provides *‘cer-
tain serviees’’ to laboratories and other different people in the
medical field. The services, he said, involved marketing, sales

and messenger.

However, Mr. Slotnick stated under questioning that as of
1974-75, Mr. Gibney’s Park Medical was his only independent
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clinical: laboratory client and that his'services principally were
attempts to make sure that ‘‘accounts’” with physicians referring
Medicaid-funded test business to Park continued to do so. The
services included renting of space in doctors’ offices and supplying
of sales personnel to some doctors.

Like Mr. Gibney, Mr. Slotnick denied splitting Park Medical’s
Medicaid reimbursements on a percentage basis, with 60 per cent
going to Mr. Slotnick and Park’s retaining 40 per cent.’ He did so
even though he, like Mr. Gibney,: was presented at the hearings
with the fact that the $96,000 paid by Park Medical to Mr. Slotnick
in 1974 was on the order of 60 per cent of the $164,000 in Medicaid
reimbursements received by Park Medical during 1974.

Mr. Slotnick’s charges for ‘‘services’’ were highlighted at the
hearings by his being questioned about.a $5,248 bill he submitted
to Park Medical for the week of November 18 through 23, 1974 and
about his subsequently even raising his charges:

Q. The total bill for sermces for that week is
$5,248; is that correct? ; .
A, That s correct, sir.

Q.. And that includes 37 hours of marketmg .se'rmce
at 3100 per hour?
A. That’s correct, sir.

Q. And $750 a week for the messenger sermceQ
A. Yes, sir.

Q " And 19 and one- half hours at $40 an hour for the
sales service?
~A. ‘Right, sir.

Q And then there is a mascellaneous empe%se for
$18?2

A. Okay, right, sir.

Q. Who conducts the sales service for M.B.S.2

A, Myself, my wife. I have several  salesmen
employed? ;

Q. You have several salesmen employed?

A. Yes, on commission. ‘ .

Q. And who conducts the marketing service? o

A, Basically, marketing is again myself and my._ -

 wife, and I suppose that would be more—most of 1t
Salesmen do some, also.
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Q.. Are the bills to Park Medical going to increase?
Well, have they increased since 12/74% '
A, 12/74. T believe because of increased costs that -
Iincurred I raised my prmes to Park Medlcal Labora-
tories. Tean’ttell, =

Q.. What are your pmces now for marketmg, for
instance? .
A. T believe 1t’s $150 an hour.

Q. 3150 an hour?
- A. Yes, sir. L

Q And how about sales service; is that stzll $40
or is that different?
A. T believe that’s $75 an hour. Or1 beheve

Q. 752
- A. T believe so, yes..

Q. So that it was a thirty-five dollar frat.se? '
A. Right, sir. I hired more drivers, so I increased
my messenger service costs also.

Mr. Slotnick testified that as part of his marketmg services on
behalf of Park Medical, he leased space in the offices of two physi-
cians whom he. ldentlfled as @ Dr. A. Suarez from Hoboken and a
Dr. Bernard Greenspan from: Paterson, and also in the Passaie
Medical Center on which, he stated, he owned a lease. My, Slotnick
stated he paid Dr. (ireenspan $750 per month for ‘‘rental and
services’’ but examination showed the rental arrangement to be
a vague one at best: :

Q.. How much do you pay ‘Dr., Greenspcm @ month?
A. $750.

Q. And is that broken down for rental and sermces
in any manner? :
DoI break it down personally?

Yes., '
And speclfy, no, I do not. I give him——

Do you know whether or not he breaks it down?
I wouldn’t know : :

Did you make any sepamte aga*eement on what
the amow@t of the remt would be as opposed to what
the amount of the services would be? .

A. No, I did not.

O PO F’@ P’
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Q. What services does he perform for a poriion
of the §750%

A. Well, he performs: A. The blood is drawn; all
the forms are filled out correctly; when they are
returned, they are placed in the files correctly so that
if anybody evér wants to see them, they are there,
including the doctor; he makes sure that all my sup-
plies are—I never run out of supplies; performs &
variety of services.

Q. Do you know whether he gets paid by Medicaid
for drawing blood?

A. T don’t know any, you know, his arrangements
with Medicaid.

Q. Who do you pay this $250 a month to, by the
way? ‘
A, T drop

what do you mean by ““who’??

6. Do you pay it directly to Dr. Greenspan as an
mdividual? _
A. No.Ipayif to——

Q. Do you pay it to Dr. Greenspan as a profes- e
‘sional association, doctor of osteopathy? '
- A. N, I do not."

Q. Do you pay zt to Bi-County Medwmd?
A. That’s the one I pay it to.

Q. Is Bi-County Medicaid a corporation in which
Dr. Greenspan 1is the sole stockholder, to your
knowledge?

A, T’m not cognlzant of who OWNS Bl County
Medicaid. . ,

. Do you know where Bi-County Medicaid 1s?
A, T assuine 1t’s on 80 Presidential Bowlevard.

Q. Do you know that it’s wnext door adjacent to
Bernard Greenspan, Dr. of OSteopathy, Professional
Association?

A, Tdon’t. If that’s not—I don’t know where it i 1s,
then.
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Q.. Do you know whether the premises you rent are,
in fact, located in Bi-County Medicaid?
A. Do—I don’t know, no.

* * 0% ¥,

. Do you have a fvemﬁable space in Dr Green-
spcm ’s premises?

"A. T believe. Do I? Yes, sir. - Your man—well
agents of this Commission went around and saw the
space that I lease, yes, sir. -

Q. Al right. Would you tell me what the limits of
the verifiable space are in Dr. Greenspan’s premises?
A. Well, I can’t say. What do you mean by that?
Do you mean is it one 10 by 107 As I said to you,

*. now, my specimens are in—I think he has four exam-
© - ining rooms, They’re in those four examining rooms.
T don’t know where the girls fill out the paper work,

if it’s there or in the front.

Q. How many square. feel of Dr. Greenspcm,’s
premises do you occupy?

A. Well, T’d say in all the rooms—you want me to
throw out a number? -

Q. I don’t want you to throw out anythmg, M'r
Slotwick. I fwfmt a strmght answer, if you can gwe
one,

A. Tecant.

Q. —to a direct guestion.
A. You’re saying how many space do my samples

Q. How many square feet of space do Jcm ocoupy
w Dr. G'ree%spa% s premises?
A, Tean’t give you an exact.

Q Do you know the rate per square foot that
you're paying for that occupa%cy?
LA, Well, I’'m not only paylng for the occupaney,
gir, No, T don’t know.

Q.. Do Yyou - kmow the breakdown between the
squwre -foot rental and the. service for which You claim
you're paymgﬁ’ .

" A. No, sir.
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Q.. Do you have any attribution of cost for either
one, that is rent as opposed to services? o

A, No, I donot. L

Q. You have no lease for the premises for which
you sy you are occupying? .

A. No, sir. Dr. Greenspan and I are old friends.- -
" Q.. Do you know if you have a month-to-month
tenancy? ‘ - B

A. T'would assume that that would be if, you know:
- Q. Is there any notice provision in your arrange-
ment with him? - S PR

A. Tt’s a handshake deal, Mr. Lucas.

Counsel and the Commissioners attempted at the hearings to
have Mr. Slotnick delineate just exactly what he did in the
marketing area for $100 per hour and later for $150 per hour for
Park Medical: o

Q. Well, marketing generally has a concept that
has a defined limitation to it2 . :
A. Right.

Q.. Within the traditional comcept of marketing,
what do you do, and what does your wife do for $100
an hour? . - . S _

A. Well, we’ll do—in other words, if there’s any
brochures. '

Q. Have you done any 'brroch{v)qfres?_
A, Well, I did one for Sy-Ed Laboratories.

Q.. Now, you’re charging Park. Now, what
have you done for Park? o

A. What brochures? I haven’t done any, you know,
illustrative color brochures, but I Just—well, in other
words, in the traditional concept of marketing that
you’re referring to where you can, many of these coms-
panies can get a big ad agency, and they will hill
X dollars for marketing and illustrative brochures,
I’m selling, the only thing, I won’t say the only thing,
the basic thing T sell or that I consider marketing
once I have achieved a customer is good serviee and
good work, and that’s what I consider they’re paying

for,
% * * *
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Q. Have you done any written  advertising for

- Park? oo ' o

~ A. I think they’re too small. When you say,

. ¢tygritten,”’ you mean like advertising blurbs and
things? Not really, sir. . g '

Q.. Have you done any market research in the form
© of written submissions to Park? ey
© A, No, sir.

Q. Have you ever done an analysis for Park as to '

.. tmproving its methodology? _ ) )
A, T think in the time I have been, T have worked
with Park, in other words, offered them my services,
T-think I"have only lost two or three accounts. So you
say, ‘‘methodology.”” You're referring to the type of
work. I think they do pretty good work and I think
you can verify it. ' -

Q. Really, what marketing means to you is holding
on to ewisting accounts? o
A, And getting them. '

Q. Gelting them s sales?. S

A. Yes, holding on, making sure they’re happy
with supplies, getting there if there is a problem. I
say ‘‘getting there,”” T mean physically, me.

© Q. You felt. that the professional service that you
rendered warranted an increase in the $100 an hour
to $150 an hour? - :

A. Costs went up, sir.

- Q. And your wife, how many hours a week does
she work in the marketing and salés? AT
A. Maybe 10, 15. Tt’s hard to say. I can’t. I do
most of it.

. The Commission’s investigation showed that still another in-
dependent clinical laboratory, North Hudson Clinical Laboratory,
West New York, also had engaged in percentage type rebate pay-
ments to physicians referring Medicaid-funded test work to that
laboratory. Robert Kupchak, who served as president of that
laboratory, testified that North Hudson was founded for the spe-
cific purpose of serving some of the laboratory testing needs of
the growing Hispanie community in the northern part of Hudson
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County. In response to a Commission request, Mr. Kupchak had
prepared a list of doctors from which North Hudson received test
business, with a double asterisk signifying doctors who were re-
ferring substantial Medicaid business to North Hudson and re-
ceiving a 25 per cent ‘‘discount’’ payment back from North Hudson
for ‘‘services rendered.” L ‘ o o '

Those services, he testified, were principally for processing
speeimens in the doctors’ offices. Mr, Kupchak was shown a series
-of checks (Exhibits Nos. (-83 to C-96) paid by North Hudson to
twelve doctors, and he identified them . as representing 25 per cent
payments. to those physicians. Under questioning, he identified
the checks in relation to the various doctors:

- A, (Continuing) C-87, Dr. Vega, again for services
rendered, 1912.99; C-90, Dr. Orbegozo, 731.52; (-94;
Dr. Perez, 921.12; C-91, Dr. Lacap, 1861.20; C-89, Dr.
Silva, 740.36; C-92, Dr. Espina, 461.8%; C-95, Dr.
Perez, 2464.07; C-84, Dr. Builla, 2978.45; C-83, Dr.
Escalante, 576.09; (-93, Dr. Silva, 513.78; Dr. Ramos,
718.38; C-88, William Visconti, This Exhibit C-88 is
representative of rent payments we make for an au-
thorized collection station. o ' ;

Q. Do these checks include payments on the per-
centage agreement which these doctors——do these
wnelude payment for services rendered om Medicaid
patients? : AR -

A. They are for services rendered on patients. -

Q. Do the doctors represented by these checks
process specimens to you where they were drawn from
Medicaid patients?

AL Yes, '

Mr. Kupchak also prodaced a list of North Hudson employees,
some of whom worked in physicians’ offices. One such North: FTud.
son-paid employee turned ont to be the wife of a doctor:

Q. And is one of those a person identified on that
list as Carmen Sesin? = - ' o
A Yes. ‘
Q.. And what is the name of the doctor for whom
- she works? S o o
A. Felix Sesin.
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Q. Feliw?
A. BSesin.

Q. Sesin. Okay. Now, to 3 your knowlgdge is Car- * =

- men Sesin related to Dr. Sesin?
A, Yes. I believe that’s his wife.

Q. And this woman is on North Hudson’s payroll;

o 18 that correct?

A Was on North

Q. Was? ' :
- A. Excuse me. Was on North Hudson s payro]l

- Q. All right. At the t@me that she was working in

Dr. Sesin’s office was she ever on your payrolM
A. Yes, she was.

- Q.. And how many hours a week did she work fo'r
. you while she was with Dr. Sesin?

A. Estimating that out, T would say, the eqmvalent .

. of Dr. Sesin’s office hours.

Q - And how much did You pay her?
.A. We were calculating that on a pewentacre of

5 “.the work sent in.

Q. On the work forwarded to North Hudson ffrom e
Dy, Sesin’s office? g
-+ A. That’s correct.

Q. What was the function of Carmen Sesin, your
employee, at the office of Dr. Sesin, her husband9

A. Receptionist, clerical, assmtmg with patlents,_

and that would be about it. "

A ch/eback Is a Kzo/ebac/e

By 1969 James Dimitrion had accumulated some ten years of
experlence in the elinical laboratory field by holding posts in
various hosgpitalsin New J. ersey. As of that year, he was associated
with Fair Lawn Hospital in Bergen County, as was the previously
mentioned Dr. Rosario Tamburrl, a pathologist. The two had a
conversation in which they agreed to go info the independent
clinical laboratory business. Accordingly, Mr. Drrmtnon renovated

the basement of his house, replete with a new entrance
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fixed-up basement in the residence on Ackerman Drive* then
became the Fair Lawn Clinical and Cytology Laboratory, with Dr.
Tamburri, according to his own testimony, serving as the figure-
head Director of the laboratory and with Mr, Dimitrion actually
running the laboratory and its fiscal affairs as Laboratory Super-
visor, o Co

The laboratory, as the 8.C.I. investigation showed, was relatively
small and largely unautomated and did indulge in some’ of the
overbilling practices discussed previously in this report., By 1972
Fair Lawn was doing a modest amount—$27,114—of Medicaid-
funded test business. ‘But, during 1973, that figure jumped to
$127,707 and during 1974 to $253,855, with Fair Lawn, thereby
" becoming the highest recipient of Medicaid dollars of any of the
New Jersey independent clinical laboratories for that latter year.
Dr. Tamburri stated in his testimony at the public hearings that
the reason for Fair Lawn’s sndden riseto the top of the Medicaid-
funds ladder was that in 1973 Fair Lawn retained Harry Hirsh-
man®* of Wayne -as the laboratory’s middleman-salesman.

As will be brought out in more detail below, it was Mr. Hirshman
who made the initial contacts with the medieal groups and physi-
clans with whom Mr. Dimitrion was subsequently to enter into
arrangements for Fair Lawn’s kicking back 25 to 35 per cent of
the Medicaid-funded test business referred to Fair Lawn by those
groups and individual practitioners. . '

When Mr. Dimifrion was first called as a witness during the
investigation at a private session of the Commission, he invoked
his Fifth -Amendment privilege when quéstioned about the Fair
Lawn laboratory’s operations and fiscal affairs. He did likewise
when called as a witness at the first of the thrée days of the public
hearings in June, 1975. However, after the testimony at the public
hearings had begun to be developed, Mr. Dimitrion through his
attorney indicated to the Commission that he -could be highly in-
formative and specific as to his laboratory’s kickback practices,
if he-were granted witness immunity for his testimony in that atea.
- .The Commission after deliberation decided that the facts which
could be placed on the public record by Mr. Dimitrion’s testimony

% The 8.C.1. investigation revealed that the laboratory-was operating in viclation of the
.- lacal zoning  code which zoned the Ackerman Drive area as residential. - . - - K
#* Mr, Dimitrion. testified that he first became acquainted with not only. Mr. Hirshman -
but also Seyrour Slotnick when they were both associated with Scott Cord Laboratories
‘and, at'thé same time; Mr. Dimitrion owhed 1,500 shares of that laboratory, said shares
purchased at $1 each. '
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were of such significance and publie import as to warrahnt a gra.nt
of immunity to overcome Mr. Dimitrion’s Fifth Amendment. in-
vocations. Accordingly, the Commission approved a resolution
conferring immunity on Mr. Dimitrion. After bemg interviewed
at length by Commission Counsel during the morning of the third
and last day of the public hearings, Mr. Dimitrion was ealled
dunng ’che afternoon as the ﬁnal witness at those hearmds

Mr. Dimitrion estimated in his testlmony that by 1974 ninety
per cent of Fair Lawn’s business was received from four med:tcal
groups with which he had kickback type arrangements on Medicaid-
funded test work, As. the following testunoma,l excerpt indicates,
Mr. Dimitrion had no problem Wlth a kickback being called just
that:

Q. And did you have financial arrangements with
_ these medical groups-whereby Fair Lawn Laboratory -~
- would kick back or rebate oefrtam of the portwns of
‘ the MONEYS -
A Yes.

Q. —which were pmd by Medwmd to. Fair Lawn?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. And n the gefneml sense, fwha,t perce%tage was
that kickback? '
"~ A. There were different arrangements made mth

- each clinic or

Q. Ifn a general way, was @t between twenty ﬁve; .
and thwty—ﬁve per cent for maost of those gfroups?
- A. Twould say so, yes, sir.

Q.. All right. How would you be able to add up the -
amount of work that each medical group gave you w . - .
corder to come up with a percentage that you would -
.+ . kick back to the medical group?- : o
A. ‘We weren’t so specific about it. We used to add . - - -
up the claims at the end of each month on each doctor
and then from there we proceed. -

© Q. And would you add wp the claims by addmg up
the amounts of the claim forms that you frecewed fmfm
thé doctors?

A, No, the claim forms—actually, the money that
We recéived from Medicaid.
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- Q. I’m sorry. The claim forms would be put in by .
the laboratory? : : :

A. Right. : :

Q. And you would add up those claim forms which
had the doctor’s name on them? :

A. True.

Q. And then you would work on a percentage on
that and rebate it back to the doctor?
A. Right, .

Q. And that was done apprbximately'every month,
month and a half or two months, for instance?
A. Yes, sir. ‘

One of the medical groups which, Mr. Dimitrion testified, had
a kickback arrangement with Fair Lawn was the downtown Medical
Group-in Paterson. Mr. Dimitrion stated that Harry Hirshman
told him to see a Virgil Argosino, who was a laboratory technician
at that group and who was to represent Dr. Pablo Figueroa of the
group, in order to obtain test business. Mr. Dimitrion subsequently
met with Mr. Argosino on the poreh of the medical group building
in Paterson, and, according to Mr, Dimitrion, Mr, Argosino men-
tioned that the Fair Lawn laboratory could be given test work
by the group, if Fair Lawn rebated on the Medicaid payments it
received. A deal was struck, Mr, Dimitrion said, for Fair Lawn to
pay Mr. Argosino $150 per month. If any person were to inquire
about the payments, the cover story to be used was that they were
wages for the drawing of blood specimens at the medical group.

The $150-per-month arrangement continued on an uninterrupted
basis for some time until, according to Mr., Dimitrion, Mr. Argosino
called Mr. Dimitrion and demanded a higher percentage payment.
Mr. Dimitrion testified as follows about that incident, including his
ultimately hearing that this medical group’s business had been
wooed away by Park Medical Laboratory throungh its marketing
representative, Seymour Slotnick: - ' : '

Q. Did there come a time towards the end of your

relationdship with Mr. Argosino that he called you?

~ A, Yes, he called me. - '
Q.. And what did he seek in return from you at the

time of that call? _ . )
A. Well, he asked me if T would raise up the price

or otherwise I would have lost the account.
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Q. And did he mention a percentage of your gross
iwncome from Medicaid?
" A. Yes. He Wanted 40-45 per cent, at least.

Q. Al right. This was only Medicaid wo’rk is that

. correct, that was coming from Dr. Figueroa’s office?

A. That’s right, very little cash work.

* * * *

L Q.. And at the time he mentioned the 40 or 45 per
- -cent of your gross M edicaid income, did You 'refuse
that-offer again? _
A, T refused that offer. He told me that he had
“another laboratory that would give him that amount.
- If T couldn’t meet if, then he Would have gone with
~ that laboratory. :

. He said he had another Zabomtqfry that was ol

~set to go inbo business w@th hzm? :
- A, Yes, sir.

Q. And they were willing to pay him the percentage
that he had proposed to you?

A, That’s what he told me, if T Wasn’t coming out
with it.

Q. And ke said if you could not meet that, then he

was going to go with the other lab‘omtoé’y?
A. Yes.

. And did he mention the name of that other lab-
oratory af the time?
A, Yes, Park Medical Lab.

Q. Did he mention a Mr. Slotnick’s name in connec-
tw% with Park Medical Laboratory? .

A. Yeah, he told me that Mr. Slotnick was there to
~ see him and he was going to give him the money that

he asked.

Q.. And you refused thzs oﬁ"er again; zs that right,
Mr. Dimitrion?

A. T sure did. Yes, I did.

Q. And then did Mr. Argosino stop doing business.
with you, in fact?
A. Yes, he did.
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Mr. - Dimitrion - testified that the - Paterson  Medical group
accounted for only about 10 to 15 per cent of the Medicaid-funded
test-business ‘referred to the Fair Lawn laboratory: Much more
important to Fair Lawn’s scheme of things, Mr. Dimitrion said,
was the Broadway Health Group, a physicians group with oﬁces
in Newark, Mr. Dimitrion testified that some 50 per cent of the
Medicaid-funded test busmess referred to Fair Lawn emanated
from this group.

As in the previously discussed instance, it was Mr. Hirshman
who once more made the initial contact with the medical group and -
arranged for communications between Mr. Dimitrion and a
' Mr. Halvorsen, said by Mr. Dimitrion to be the group’s admini-
strator. Onme of the disenssions centered on a proposal that, at
Fair Lawn’s expense, several girls be placed at the medical group’s
offices to perform various serviees for the group, with the exact
number of girls and their salaries keyed to the amount of Medicaid-
funded test business referred to Fair L.awn by the group.
Mr. Dimitrion testified further about the final arrangements for
the kickback deal:

Q. And d@d you agree on the number of girls at
that time or not?
Yes, we did.
And how many girls were agreed upon?

There were three girls on the payroll,
* #* * =

Well who hired the gwls?
They did. ‘

Did you have any contral over the hzrmg of the

© PO .t»’e;o .b»

gz‘rl.s*?

A.-No, Idid not. I only met them occasionally
when I was 0'011r1g down there to see how they were
domg : :

Q. How mauch did the ﬁfrst gwl make? D@d one of -
the girls make $244 every two weeks? _

- AL Yes, sir. . ‘

Q And did another one of the gwls make $180
every two weeks?

A:r Yes, sir, .

Q. And did the third gwl make $300 6very “two
weeks? .

A, Yes,
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U1Q. - -And that was o total of $1450 per month, i that
rzght if you accept my. mathematws? :
A Yes, I-will accept it..
#* # # *
Q. All right. If he had asked you for 25 per cent
a month, for instance, for the work that he sent Yo,

would you have given it back to him? |
A. Yes, I would. :

Q. So the girls were, n essence, an alternative to
that arrangement; is that right?
A, Yes.

Q. And every time you provided girls to angone,
they were an allernalive fo a direct rebate or Kick-
back; is that right?.

A, Right.

Q. And you said that they hzfred the gz'rls Did you
have-any supervision. over the garls?
A. No, I did not, =ir.

Mr. Dim'iti'ic'»n t'eastiﬁed that this arrangement continued with
the Broadway group during 1973 and until December, 1974 when
Fair Lawn came under investigation by state authorities,

Mr. Hirshman was also instrumental in bringing the Newark
Family Health Center, a medical group located on Newark Avenue
in Jersey City, in contact with Mr. Dimitrion. At Mr. Hirshman’s
suggestion, Mr. Dimitrion, accordmg to hig testimony, met with
Dr, Arthur Goldberg in the group’s offices. Dr. Goldberg, Mr,
Dimitrion stated, made it clear that Fair Lawn could have Medie-
aid-funded test work from the group, if Fair Lawn would agree
to a rebate arrangement. The doctor, according to Mr. Dimitrion,
had been approached by other independent clinical laboratories
about possible similar arrangements and also was familiar with
rebate deals of this type because of his association with a clinie
in New York. - - -

Under the final arrangement with the group, Mr. Dimitrion
testified, Fair Lawn returned approximately 35 per cent of its
gross Medicaid billings attributable to test business referred by
the group by cash payments and paying the salary of a girl in the
group’s office. Mr. Dimitrion testified that under the agreement
he made both cash payments and payments by check:
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Q. All right. Now, with respect to the payments,
what form were the payments inf

A. TIn money, green. Dollars, tens and twentles I
don't know, Whatever——

- Q.- Not check?

A. No.

Q. And how did you eﬁ”ectuate the pa,yme%t? Did
you go down to the medical group?

A. Yes, I did, went down the medical group.

Q. And you went into Dr. Goldberg’s office; is that
right?
- A. Yes, Dr. Goldberg was there, ves.

. ' . ) % * qb i :

Q. And whatever it was, you would take currency
out of your pocket and give it to Dr. Goldberg?
. Yes, sir. _
And what did he do with it, to your knowledge?
I don’t know, sir, what he did with it.

. Well, what would he do with it zmmedmtelg?
Put it in his pocket T mean, '

QPO PO P

Now, you say that you also had a gwl i that
oﬁice who was hired by them How much did you pay

" her to start with?

A, $120.

Q. All right. And dm’, her term of employment con--
tine at $120 per week?
A, No, sir. They call me up. They told me I had
- to raise her salary to $160.

Q. And why did they want you to raise her salary? '
- A. They claimed that she was WOI‘klIlC" too hard
drawing blood.

Q. Shewas going to leave, wasn’t she, if she dz'al%"t
get MOTE MONEY.
That’s what they say.

- Did you agree to pay her 160 o fweek?
Yes, 1 did.

And did you pay her by check’%’
- Yes, I did. -

| r»

re pe

178



- Mr. Hirshman’s salesman role for Fair Lawn also led him fo
introdiice Mr. Dimitrion to a Pedro Rodriguez, identified by Mr.
Dimitrion as the owner of Jersey Bio-Medies, a laboratory operat-
ing within the Downtown Medical Center, another medical group,
located on Jersey Avenue in Jersey City. ’l‘he laboratory, it turned
out, had inadequate equipment for performing a wide variety of
tests Mr. Dimitrion testified that Mr. Rodriguez suggeésted that
if Fair Lawn agreed to buy the laboratory for $10,000 Mr. Rod-
riguez would steer the group’s substantial Medicaid-funded test
business to Fair Lawn. This proposition, Mr. Dimitrion stated,
eventually became a working agreement whereby Fair Lawn made
the $10,000 purchase over a peried of time by kicking back ap-
proximately 30 to 35 per cent of Medicaid relmbursements from
the test business referred by the group.

‘When the time came that the $10,000 had been paid in full, Mr.
Dimitrion stopped sending payments to Mr. Rodriguez. This, ac-
cording to Mr. Dimitrion, prompted a phone call from Mr. Rodri-
guez who demanded that Dimitrion pay $100 per week for the
salary of a girl employed at the medical group and also keep up a
percentage kickback arrangement by remitting payments to a Mrs.
Rivera, whom Mr. Dimitrion understood to be Mr. Rodriguez’s
mother-in-law. Mr. Dimitrion said he agreed to the demands and
kept up the payments until December, 1974 when, as previously
noted, Fair Lawn came under investigation.

Mr. Dimitrion testified that Mr. Hirshman brought in two other
Medicaid business accounts from two individual physicians, a Dr,
Inglesias with offices on Blizabeth Avenue in Elizabeth and a Dr.
Zoila Cartoya with, offices on 43rd Street in Union City. Mr.
Dimitrion said that he never met with Dr. Inglesias but rather
with Mrs. Inglesias and that, through her, an arrangement was
struck whereby Fair Lawn payed back some 35 per cent of the
Medicaid reimbursements genecrated by test business referred by
Dr. Ingledias’ office.  Mrs. Inglesias, decording to Mr. Dimitrion,
eventually terminated the arrangement by calling him and stating
that she was going to refer Medicaid-funded business to another
laboratory W]:uoh Would give a higher percentage klckba,ck She
did not name that laboratory.

It was Mr, Dimitrion’s testimony that Dr Oartoya asked for
and eventually received from Fair Lawn some $500 per month—
$200 for ““rent’” and $75 per week for a girl who was drawing blood
in the doctor’s office—in return for Medicaid-funded  business
referred to Fair Lawn. Dr. Cartoya, according to Mr. Dimitrion,
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eventually asked for an increase to $85 per week for the girl’s
salary. He said he refused that request and lost the account.

~ The Competition Was Intense

Mr. Dimitrion testified that competition to induece test business
by kickbacks was intense. He stated that he secured the business of
the West Side Medical Grroup in Jersey City by paying $75 per
week for a girl ‘working in that office. Then the owner of that
group one day informed Mr. Dimitrion that another laboratory,
which turned out to be Park Medical, was willing to pay $50 more
per week for the girl’s salary, and Fa,lr Lawn lost this account, too.
Mr, Dimitrion testlﬁed as follows about that loss:

Q. All right. And how wmuch more money did. she
want. per week for the employeeg
A, $125.

Q. So she wanted $50 more per week for the ser-
vices of that employee? :
. AL Yes.

- Q. And she told you, however, that she had another
offer and she asked you if you could match it, is that- :
right?

A. Right.

. Whowas the other offer from?
A. Well, when I found out later, it was Pa,rk
Medical Laborat_ory Myr. Slotnick was that.

. And did you, in fact, lose that account?
A. Yes, we did.

Q. And did Mr. Sloim’ck, w fact, gain the account?
A, Pardon-me?

Q. Did Mr, Slotmckud@d Paﬂs Medical get that .
business?
A, Yes sir.

Q. Was the laa’fy s name af West Side Medical =~
Center Ceil Partoa? Does that ring a bell?
A. Maybe that’s her. Maybe. .
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A Salesman’s Testzmc)ny Is Coerced

The premously mentioned Harry leshman of Wayne salesman
for Fair. Lawn, was subpeenaed to appear before the Commission
in private session during the latter stages of the independent
clinical laboratory phase of the Medicaid investigation, At that
initial appearance, he invoked his Fifth Amendment privilege
when asked about his role as salesman for Fair Lawn., He sub-
sequently was recalled at another private session of the Commis-
sion, at which time he was given a grant of witness immunity and
ordered to give responsive answers to all questions. Mr. Hirshman,
nonetheless, once more declmed to answer the Commigsion’s
questlons

‘The Commission, moved 1mmedlately and successfully in the
Superior Court to have Mr. Hirshman judged to be in civil con-
tempt and ordered by the Court to be incarcerated until such time
as he purged himself of the contempt by testifying under the
immunity grant. Mr. Hirshman then spent some 72 hours in the
Mercer County Jail, said time coinciding for the most part with
the Commission’s three days of public hearings. Shortly after
Mr. Dimitrion’s public testimony at the hearings, Mr. Hirshman
through his attorney notified the Court that he wished to purge
himself of the contempt by testifyinig before the Commission. e
was immediately released by the court on that promise to testify.
Mr, Hirghman on July 3, 1976 did testify fully before the Com-
mission at another private session. The Commission subsequently
decided that Mr, Hirshman’s testimony was of such substance and
of such import to the full public record of the investigation as to
warrant Commission approval of a resolution making the transcmpt
of his private testimony a publie-record document.

Essentially, Mr. Hirshman corroborated Mr. Dimitrion’s testi-
mony as to how Mr. Hirshman made the contracts which eventually
led to Mr. Dimitrion’s making kickback-payment arrangements to
some medical groups and individual physicians who were referring
Medicaid-funded test business to the Fair Lawn laboratory.

Additionally, Mr, Hirshman’s testimony broke further ground
in several areas. One area dated back to the time when he was a
sales representative for the previously mentioned Secott Cord
Laboratories and when the previously mentioned Seymour Slotnick
was an officer of Scott Cord. It was Mr. Hirshman’s festimony
that he first golicited test business from the previously mentioned
Downtown Medical Group in Jersey City on behalf of Secott Cord,
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before doing likewise for Fair Lawn. Mr. Hirshman testified that,
on behalf of Scott Cord, he and Mr. Slotnick met with the previously
mentioned Pedro Rodriguez in a tavern in Jersey City and ham-
- mered out a deal whereby Scott Cord would kick back about 30 to
35 per cent of the test business referred by the group. The kick-
backs were to be payed under the guise of the salary for a girl in
the group’s office and/or for the salary of a technician domg work
at the group’s offices. Like the subsequent arrangement with Fair
Lawn, the money was not to be paid to the group but rather to
Mr. Rodmo uez, Jersey Bio-Medic Laboratory located at the same
address as the gronp, according to Mr. Hirshman.

After leamng Scott Cord and before becoming associated with
Fair Lawn, Mr, Hirshman did a stint as a salesman for another
mdependent cliniecal laboratory known as North Jersey Bio-
analytical. He said that laboratory had an arrangement to kick
back 25 per cent of Medicaid-funded test business 1eferred by some
physicians. He also testified that the laboratory’s operator, a Mr.
Ramirez, was awaré of the percentage and that he (Hirshman)
. solicited the accounts with the doctors and made the percentaoe
klckba,ck deals with them.

Additionally, Mr, Hirshman testified that he had a eonversaﬁion
with Mr. Dimitrion in which Mr. Dimitrion told of being threatened
by two masked individuals who visited Mr. Dimitrion about June
21, 1975 as the start of the S.C.1.%s public hearmgs was at hand.
Mr lesbma,n testified faurther:

Q. Did he say whose interest these people had at
heart?
A. No.

Q. He didn’t know what account they were talking
about? .

A. He told me there was a threafu I was with him
one day. I believed him. He was very scared and
upset. He said it was a threat on the whole family.

Q. On his family?

A. On both families. ,

Q. Includmg YOUr famzly?

A, Yes. -

Q. They didn’t me%ti(m a particular medical group

or doctor?

A. They just said watch how you speak Tuesday'

. He didn’t tell me. He said there was a threat of lifé
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if we talk when we go down Tuesday. This is how it
was put to me, and I believed it to be sinecere. That’s
why I didn’t speak.

Q. Was there a threat prior to that?
A. Not to my knowledcre

The Excessive, Antiquated Fee Schedule

The foregoing review of the costly, abusive practices of some of
the independent clinical laboratories established conclusively that
the maximum Medicaid reimbursement fee schedule for those
laboratories was, at the time of the 8.C.1.’s investigation, grossly
over-generous. Without the welter of fat in that schedule, the
laboratories could not have:

1) Marked up the cost of subcontracted tests
several hundred per cent and collected the markups
- from Medicaid.

2) Paid more than 50 per cent of Medicaid reim-
bursements received for “ma,rketing services’’ and
still turned a profit.

3) Kicked back 25 to 35 per cent or more of Medi-
caid reimbursements to referring doctors and still
turned a profit.

Quite mnaturally, therefore, the Commission’s investigation
dwelled at length on the full nature of this maximum reimburse-
ment fee schedule, including its origing. This phase of the inde-
pendent clinical laboratories probe showed clearly that New Jersey
Medicaid, in the pell-mell rush toward making that new program
operative in 1970, adopted summarily and in toto the Blue Shield
500 series fee schedule for clinical laboratory reimbursement as
Medicaid’s maximum for reimbursing independent clinical labora-
~ tories. If Medicaid officials then, as the S.C.I. did later, had
paused to inquire about the Blue Shield 500 series, they would
have found that that schedule in 1970 already was keved to old,
manual bench-test methods which were rapidly being replaced by

more economical and productive test equlpment of an automated
nature.

This advancing technology was to continue fo surge ahead in
ensuing years. Yet, New Jersey Medicaid was never once to make
any major evaluation of its horse-and-buggy era maximum fee
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schedule until the S.C.I. during 1975 brought to the fore the
schedule’s excessive and outmoded nature.

The testimony of Dr. Jerome C. Rothgesser, Vice President and
Medical Director of New Jersey Blue Shield, brought out at the
public hearings the origin and nature of the 500 series and the faet
that the series was adopted by New Jersey Medicaid without any
consultation with Blue Shield. In the following testimonial
excerpts, it is established that because Blue Shield places a maxi-
mum limit of $25 per year, per patient on clinical laboratory test
payments, Blue Shield has not felt itself nnder any extreme pres-

_sure to update the 500 series. Medicaid, on the other hand, has no
such per year, per patient limitation. Dr. Rothgesser testified:

Q.. And was it before 1970 or after 1970 that that
fee schedule was first adopted by Blue Shield?

A. The laboratory fee schedule was adopted in the
early sixties.” It was adopted for use with the plans
then Rider A which preceded Rider J, This was a fee
schedule for physicians only. At that time there were -
practically no labs and even if there were any, we
were not authorized to pay laboratories. Our enabling
act included clinical laboratories at a later date.

Q. But at any rate at sometime n the sixties there
was ¢ Blue Shield 500-575 fee schedule adopted?
It was 500 in those days. No five——

It was just called 5002
That’s right.

Later on you got to 575?
That’s right.

Are you also aware in 1970 the State of New
J’ersey Medicaid system adopted, in effect, the Blue
Shield 500 fee schedule——

A. Yes, sir.

Q. —for laboratories?
A. Yes, sir.

Q.. And if we can drow your attention to 1970 and
to that fee schedule that you have referied to, did the
fees and procedures set forth in the fee schedule
reflect the cost saving and cost ewtting that flows from
automated technology? '

A. No, sir. The fee was made for non-automated
technigune which was the basic technique available
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when it was made, and it did not—was never reduced
to include antomated proceedings.

Q. And that non-automated technique is sometimes
referred to as the bench——
A. Bench technigue.

—technigue. Meaning a manugl——
That’s right.

—testing technique; is that right?
That’s correct.

. So New Jersey’s Blue Shield fee schedule in
1970 represented a bench-type of small laborglory
-operation? _

A, That is correct.

Q. And, by the way, in 1970, did Blue Shield pur-
suant to ifs various contracts have an overall MATE-

mum per patient per annum limit?
A. Yes, sir

Q. And that was wm the sum of what?

A. $25 for all laboratory work and three specified
clinical studies; EK@, basal metabolism and electro-
~ encephalogram, :

PO PO

Q. Did New Jersey, to your knowledge, i its
Medicaid system lake and use that twenly-five limita-
tion, twenty-five-dollar-limitation?

A. T don’t believe so.

Q. But yet ot did take a fee schedule from Blue
Shield that was not reflective of cost cutting in the
industry from automation?

A. Yes, sir.

® % - % *®

Q. And in 1970 did anybody from Medicaid come
on over to Blue Shield and say, hey, fellows, tell us
little bit aboul what went into your fee schedule and
tell us where it’s good and where it’s bad and where
maybe we ought to watch out?

A, There was no contact between Medicaid and
Blue Shield concerning the schedules.
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CommrssionEr Fariry: Other than taking it?
Tae Wrryress: Without our permission,

Dr. Joseph E. O’Brien, Laboratory Director for MetPath Ine.,
the large, highly automated laboratory previously referred to, told
the Commission that adoption of the Blue Shield 500 series in
1970 by New Jersey Medicaid was, in effect, a victory for the small,
unautomated laboratories, despite Dr. O’Brien’s attempt to have
Medicaid adopt a more economical fee schedule geared to auto-
mation already in effect at some laboratories. He testified about
the formation by the state of a Technical Advisory Committee on
the compensation of independent clinical laboratories under Medi-
caid and how that panel was dominated by representatives of the
smaller, ma-and-pa type la.bora,tpry:

Q. And did the committee have a meeting?
A. The committee had a meeting in September of
1969.

Q. All right. Doctor, let me show you whaot’s been
wmarked here as Exhibit C-114. I call your attention
to the third page of this exhibit. I ask you whether or
not-you can identify it for wus.

A. Yes. These are the minntes of the meeting
which oceurred in September, 1969.

Q. Did these minutes show yourself to be present?
A. They do.

Q. Do you recognize any of the other names of the
people present?
A, Yes, T do.

. What profession or ocoupation were they?

A. My memory was that all of them were in one
way or another associated with eclinical laboratories
providing clinical laboratory services.

Q. Would these be small laboratories, large labora-
tories?
A. They were small laboratories.

Q. Not automated for the most part?
A. For the most part, not antomated.

Q. What were the conditions of MetPath i 1969
or ‘702 Were they an automated facility then?
A. We were an antomated facility then.
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Q. Doctor, was one of the purposes of this commii-
tee to determine a fee schedule for Medicaid reim-
bursement to independent clinical laboratories?

A. Yes. That was a topie of great interest at this
meeting, how reimbursement would be accomplished.

Q. Do you recall any of the discussions at this
meeting, Doctor?
~A. Irecall that there was general approval for the
proposal that the then current Blue Shield fee sched-
ule be accepted.

Q. Is that the Blue Shield schedule, Doctor?
A. The Blue Shield schedule, be accepted ag the
schedule for Medicaid payments.

Q. Did you have any opinion as to whether or not
the Blue Shield schedule should be adopted?

- A. T suggested that those fee schedules were anti-
quated, did not take into account the cost advantages
inherent in automation that technology has made
possible.

Q. What was the response of the other gentlemen
- on the commillee, if you can recall?

A. T remember that it was generally hostile and
that T was subjected to some verbal abuse at that
point.

Q. Dhid you have any experience, factors in your
possession, which would have indicated that the sched-
ule as then proposed was, in fact, outvoted? :

A. Yes. I had our own fee scheditle at that time
and I knew what hospital charged and what other
laboratories were charging. '

Q. Was there any attempt to project any savings
based on the projected schedule which you had in your
possession as opposed to that one which was being
pushed at the time?

A. T made no progress at all at that meeting.

Q. Well, more particularly, Doctor, do you recall
that you tried to project amy savings gained which
could be projected against a schedule based upon your
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experience factor as against that which was being
proposed which you call an antiguated schedule?. -

A. Oh, yes. T said that that fee schedule would be
much too expensive.

Q. All right. And can you give us any figures about
whatl you wmight have talked either in terms of gross
dollars or percemtages which might be saved by the
adaptation or adopting of your schedule as opposed
to that one which was ultimately adopted9

A. I would say based on my experience it probably
could have saved 50 per cent.

CommissionEr Livrcas: No other questlons of
the witness.

William J. Jones was acting Director of the New Jersey
Medicaid during part of 1970 and later served as Director of the
program from May, 1971 to January, 1975 when he left state
employment. Mr. Jones, at the public hearings, identified a memo-
randum dated June 22, 1970 as having been written by him and
signed by his then superior, a Mr. Hahn.* That memorandum
promulgated the Blue Shield 500 series as the maximum fee
reimbursement schedule for independent eclinical laboratories.
Mr. Jones confirmed that the decision to adopt the series was
hammered out at the previously mentioned Technical Advisory
Committee meeting. Mr. Jones recalled that he may have attended
the meeting in part, but he stressed that the session was held in
Mr. Hahn’s office.

During the course of his testimony, Mr. Jones stated that, at
one point, a suggestion was made that the rates of Blue Shield 500
series be cut 30 per cent for use by New Jersey Medicaid. He
testified not only that this 30 per cent cut idea was rejected but
also that another suggested cut of 20 per cent also was discarded.
The Commission questioned Mr. Jones closely on the rejection of
the 20 per cent cut proposal because of the existence of a letter,
dated May 9, 1970, from Silvio A. Polella, President of the New

* The Mr, Hahn referred to by Mr. Jones is Edwin F, Hahn, Jr. who held ‘the post of
Director of the State Medicaid Division from March, 1969 to November, 1970. Mr.-
Hahn testified at a private hearing of the Cornmlss:on that the presstire was intense
to get all phases of the Medicaid program into operation by January, 1970 and that
adoption of the 500 series fees for laboratories was probably a quick attémpt at estab-
lishing some sort of feasible reimbursement schedule for the laboratories. Ie stated
he left state government before any real experience data relative.to the fee schedule had
been received, -
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Jersey Association of Bioanalysts, to Dr. Henry A. Kaplan who
‘was then in charge of the Laboratory Services Advisory Com-
imittee of the State Medicaid Division, The association then repre-
sented about 80 of the then 140 independent clinical laboratories in
New Jersey. In the letter, Mr, Polella wrote that all the directors
(of the independent clinical laboratories) who had been canvassed
‘had agreed to go a,long with aceepting 80 per cent of the 1965
BIue Slueld 500 series fee rates. Mr. Jones testified:

Q. So with reference fo that maximum outszde
limit, was the Blue Shicld outside limit adopted 100
per cent or 80 per cent?

A. Tt was adopted as printed, which would have

meant the outside limit Would bave been the 500
" Series.

Q. So, therefore, the suggestion or consensus of
- the independent lab association to take less than 80
per cent, was rejected?
A. It was not accepted.

Q.. Yes, sir. Now, were you involved as director of
the division in that decision making? Do you know
"~ what people said and what they thought about?
. As director of the division?

. Yes,
. No, gir,

B3

Q

A

Q. You weren’t?
A, No, sir. ,

Q. Do you know who made thdat decision on your

1/
A

a
. It was the director at the time, Mr. Hahn,——

Q" I see.
A. —who had to finally approve it.
Q. Yes.

A. But there was a great deal of act1v1ty, a great
deal of research being done, and there are circum-
stances that led up to that declslon

Q. So you think it was a good decision?
A, I think it was, yes, sir.
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Mr. Jones at various intervals in his testimony advanced two
principal arguments as existing in 1970 in favor of adopting the
500 series at the 100 per cent level. Flirst, he repeatedly stated
that the Medicaid regulations placed a primary requirement on the
laboratories to charge their ‘““customary prevailing’’ fees which
could be lower than the maximum fee schedule. Secondly, he stated
that a conscious decision was made to keep the fee schedule at a
level where it would support a maximum number of existing
laboratories, including the small, bench-test laboratories, to the
end that the fullest possible extent and range of laboratory services
would be available to Medicaid recipients,

But Mr. Jones had to concede under questioning that the
““common and prevailing’’ fees charged by the laboratories, as
could be anticipated, soon ‘“mated’’ or became equal to the maxi-
mum fee schedule. And he also had to concede that the decision to
promulgate a mazimum fee schedule geared to small, unautomated
laboratories represented a conscious rejection of the savings
attainable through automation advances.

A spokesman for the independent clinical laboratory mdustry
testified at the public hearings that New Jersey’s maximum
reimbursement fee schedule for the laboratories had most certainly
become outmoded by automation in the industry. John A. Boffa,
representing the Regional Government and Professional Relations
Committee of the American Association of Bioanalysts and a past
President of the New Jersey Association of Binanalysts, said his
organization represented about 75 of the independent clinical lab-
oratories in New Jersey. Mr. Boffa called for a constant monitor-
ing of the fee schedule to keep it in line with changes in the.
industry:

Q. Are you familiar from youwr occupation and
your work, and also your membership in these asso-
ciations that you describe, with the maximum fee
schedule for laboratory charges of the New Jerseg
Medicaid system?

A. Yes, I am,

Q. And, of course, are you aware of the Blye
Shield fee schedules in operation for climicol labora-
tories?

A, Yes.

Q. Do you have any opinion or.insight that you -
could give us with reference to the Medicaid mazimum
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fee schedule as to the need, if such there be, to add
new procedures to the fee schedule or the manual of
procedures for Medicaid, or to delete, take out, all
procedures? Do you have any guidance or insight you
can give us on that pownt?

A. Yes. There are procedures that are listed on
the schedule that are outmoded. This is recognized
by authorities in the field: They’re outmoded becaunse
they have been réplaced by newer and more specific
procedures. They are outmoded because the results
obtained from them are equivocal results. There are
new procedures that are coming into existence almost
monthly, and these new procedures do not have price
tags put on them currently as they come out.

T would suggest that there would be a committee, a
standing committee, who would constantly review
and revise the schedule in order to incorporate the
new procedures, and delete any that are outmoded by
the eriterion of experts in the field.

Q. And these so-called old procedures that you
described that should be deleted, does the continued
presence of those old procedures in the fee schedule
mean that New Jersey 18 paying, perhaps, excessive
prices for some antiquated procedures?

A. That’s correct.

Q. And to your knowledge, with reference to your
suggestion about a commitiee of experts, is there such
o comanittee, to your knowledge, at present, that works
on the

A. I'm not aware of an advisory committee that
works on a particular basis with Medicaid.

Q. Do you think that the fee schedule for Medicord
has kept wp with new procedures ond, also, new prices
that could result from new procedures?

A. Obviously, it has not.

Q. And would some of those new prices perhaps
be, if instituted, lower than—-—
A. Possibly.

191



Suggestions for Improvements

As noted in the introductory part of this seetion of the Com-
mission’s report of the Medicaid investigation, the New Jersey .
State Health Department’s Division of Laboratories ‘played a -
crucial role in assisting the 8.C.I. both with technical expertise
and extensive application of staff time in the probe of the inde-
pendent clinical laboratories. This generous assistance was af-
forded the 8.C.I. under the auspices of Dr. Martin Goldfield,
Assistant State Health Commissioner who oversees the operations
of the Division. It was quite natural, therefore, that the Commis- -
sion first at private hearings and then at public hearings called
on Dr, Goldfield to give his analysis of problem areas in the inde-
pendent clinical laboratory field and his suggestions for curing
those problems. Dr. Goldfield saw the third-party payment system,
whether 1t be Blue Cross, an insurance company, or Medicaid, as
the genesis of some of the ills of the system:

A. 'Well, if you give me some latitnde, perhaps I
can say that this is much more broad than government .
and its failures. Really, theseé problems that we are
discussing today begin when third-party payment
systems were introduced to begin with, They were
largely introduced by insurance companies and by the
Blue Crosses. These fee schedules were designed
often with excessive representation by the individuals
who were to be reimbursed. Hence, and the organiza-
tions were largely led by the providers who were
going to be reimbursed by these systems. The fee
schedules that were set up were very often quite
inept with respect to getting a fair share of the
moneys expended with respect to the interest of the
individuals paying for the services. There were no
quality control mechanisms that were built into it
since any increases in costs generally led fo nothing
more than a demand for inecreasing fees to be paid
by the public which was to be served. '

Hence, we have seen burgeoning increases in such
costs over many years, : R

The third-party system did many other things when
it was introdunced without real quality control mecha-
nisms built in. For one, in the laboratory field
specifically there has been fantastic technological de-
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velopment, which has resulted in tremendous de-
creases in unit cost of performance of a variety of
laboratory procedures; and, incidentally, not only in
decreasing their cost, in increasing the precision with
‘which they could be performed. These have never
been reflected by third-party systems, whether they be
government funded or funded in the private sector,
and instead we have permitted the fee schedules to
fail to reflect such advances and they have ended up
by being counter-productive in perpetuating the exist-

"ence and the funding of small, cost-inefficient labora-
tories who probably, if they were competing in a
general marketplace without third-party payment sys-
tems having been developed, would have disappeared
by now.

‘What we have done, then, is artificially kept them
alive, and even worse than that, we have markedly
encouraged their continual existen-ce because by the
qnature of the third-party payment systems they have
received in New Jersey a lion’s share of the third-
party dollar. '

] * % # ¥
. A. Now, there iz no accident in this, because so
long as the ma-and-pa lab bill for these serviees and
bill at very high costs, there was a huge profit gener-
ated if that laboratory did not in itself perform those
services but instead utilized the services of a cost-
efficient laboratory.

- We have seen large cost-efficient laboratories buy
up eight or ten ma-and-pa stations such as that in
order to obtain the benefit of the very considerable
fee that would result, which is thousands of per cent
in many eases hwher than their cost.

Now, this excessive profit at the small laboratory
level has made it exceedingly desirable for labora-
tories to get work loads. They, in turn, have shared
portlons of this vastly excessive proﬁt with phy31—
cians, for example, or nursing homes in many guises,
either by direet rebates or by a variety of other
mechanisms, and this in turn has encouraged a small
but significant group of physicians to wildly order
fantastic amounts of laboratory work on relatively
simall groups of patients.
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Dr. Goldfield also called for a reduction in the reimbursement
fee schedule for the laboratories and stated that, in his opinion,
the quality of performance in the laboratories would not suffer
from reducing the fee schedule. He cited the previously mentioned
New Jersey Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act as a statute
which would provide powers to guarantee maintenance of quality-
of-gservices standards in the laboratories. '

The doctor tfestified that he favored a syétem of awarding
Medicaid test business on a regional, competitive bidding basis

as at least a temporary way of curing some of the ills of the
system: '

A. There must be enough resource spent to docu-
ment what we have been able to document for you with
a small sampling and a very small resource. But this
would have to be done on a broader scale; one, to
uncover the discrepancies; two, to setting up new
systems to reduce these abuses; and, three, to develop
a climate of compliance in the State of New Jersey.

This is not easy. Tt requires an expenditure of re-
source that may be diffienlt to achieve. It is for this
reason that I recommend that, at least temporarily,
because I do not believe that it is a long-term solution
to our overall medical care problems, but as a tem-
porary solution, to clean the mess we have up I
strongly suggested that we, too, in New Jersey place
contract services on a regional basis by some bidding
mechanism to be developed with the full understand-
ing that the 2.2 million for Medicaid, that Medicaid
expends for independent laboratory services repre-
sents so small a fraction of the total dollars that are
spent for laboratory services in New Jersey that it
could not in any way destroy those who are not funded
with the exception of relatively few labs who have
specialized in building up very extraordinary work-
loads with respect to Medicaid patients.

. And are mot those labs those which we have
found to be the most gbusive in the Medicaid?

A. Well, let us say this; that we have not done a
survey and have not here presented information on
the lIaboratories that abuse the system most. It was
a totally arbitrary decision that was made to go.down
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the line and examine laboratories merely on the basis
of the amount of money reimbursed. Hence, it is
poesible that we have even more serious abuses down,
further down the line.

We have not in any way found these to be the
greatest abusers, but heaven help us if the patterns
we have seen here exist throughout the enfire system.

At the conclugion of Dr. Goldfield’s testimony at the public
hearings, the Chairman publicly expressed the Commission’s grati-
tude to the doctor and his staff for the aid they had rendered the
Commission.

Because New York City had had some untoward experiences in
Medicaid, too, in the flow of Medicaid dollars to independent
clinical laboratories, the Commission called as a witness at the
public hearings Dr. Martin Paris, Deputy Director of the city’s
Medicaid Bureau.  Dr. Paris testlﬁed that concern in New York
over skyrocketing costs of Medicaid for tests performed by in-
dependent elinical laboratories had led to an analysis and re-
organization in that area of the program. A principal finding of
the analysis, he stated, was that 16 of the 280 licensed laboratories
in the city were getting 70 per cent of total Medicaid billings from
all the laboratories. As a resulf of the analysis, New York Medieaid
decided to shiff to a system of awarding test business to in-
dependent clinical laboratories on the basis of competitive bids
from the laboratory on a regiomal plan based on the city’s five
boroughs. :

The hids under the new system were to be awarded to the lowest
aggregate bidder in each region. In addition, the successful bidding
laboratories had to agree to be bound by certain performance and
reporting criteria. Dr. Paris testified how fthe regional concept
could produce huge savings:

Q). Have you considered any other alternatives
other than the regional lab?
A. That’s minimum,

Yeah, we considered the creation of one central
laboratory, not four, and for a variety of public health
reasons, and ineluding the obvious one of centralizing
on that kind of scale, we decided it would be better fo
set up one laboratory in each horough of New York
ity rather than one for the entire city. We also con-
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sidered the possibility of just slashing the fees across .
the board becanse it was no secret to anyone that the
fees were extraordinarily high and that the central-
~ ized labs that were already working in New York City,
not that we had to create, but the laboratories that
were already working in the city, were performing
these tests that we were paying $12 and $15 for
three to 400 per cent less.

We discounted that because we were at this point
very high on the centralized laboratories system
because of the patient profile, the utilization review
primers that we could get, the increased quality -
controls because we were afraid just decreasing the
tests, the reimbursement for the test would give us a
savings for a year or two and then we would gradu-
ally increase because all one has to do if one is just
interested in maximizing revenue is just slightly shift
. the proportion of tests. So instead of doing two tests,
one does one expensive test and two inexpensive tests
and you have absorbed the cost, And because instead
of ordering two tests you order three tests, the cost
would significantly increase once again, The beauty
of a centralized laboratory system was there iz an
absolute maximum and we knew what the cost would
be. You counldn’f increase over that.

Q. What about the effect of the centralized labora-
tory system in the small ma’ and pa’ labs, s0 to speak;
any problem in that area?

A, To be frank, that’s the object of a lot of heated
diseussion in New York right now. There’s no doubt
about the fact that there would be an economic impact
solely because we would not be paying for whatever
tests they would be asked to do. It was our feeling
that the economic impact wounld be deluded solely
because seventy per cent of the money was going to
sixteen laboratories already and that as a normal
matter of business we would normally get phone
calls from. the laboratory saying, look; I just opened
up a laboratory in this neighborhood and I can’t get
any business because it’s all tied up by sixteen large
laboratories. Can’t you do something? This sort of
thing. : :
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‘We felt that we were trading off—we were preserv-
ing’ some—well, we were preserving freedom of
“choice, creating freedom of choice for the provider
than a greater instance that existed now solely
beeause it’s competitive bidding and everybody has a
chanee, which doesn’t exist now where the arrange-
ments were kind of made more or less surreptitiously.

Mg. Dicxsox : No further questions, gentlemen.

The freedom-of-choice issue referred to by Dr. Paris has formed
the basis for litigation to attempt to halt imposition of regional,
competitive bidding systems for awarding Medicaid-funded test
business. The Commission, however, agrees strongly with
Dr. Paris and other advocates of those systems that there is no
freedom of choice under the old system of work being farmed out
to various laboratories for various reasons and that regional,
competitive bidding of Medicald awards to independent clinical
laboratories represents a needed improvement and economy in the
system.

PROBLEMS OF SYSTEM INTEGRITY

The responsibility for insuring the integrity of all aspects of
the Medicaid program in New Jersey, whether it be independent
clinical laboratories or some other element of the system, rests
primarily with the Director of the State Medicaid Division who,
in turn, relies on the Division’s surveillance and utilization-review -
functions to ride herd on system integrity on a day-to-day basis,
The Division is empowered to issue and enforce the rules and
regulations for prosecribing and governing the operations of those
health providers receiving reimbursement via Medicaid. Those
rules and regulations are embodied principally in manuals relating
to various phases of the Medicaid program, such as the previously
mentioned manual applicable to the independent clinical Iabora-
tories. '

The Division’s enforcement tools for umse, once a violation of
regulations is discerned, vary from a letter of reprimand and
warning to suspension of the offending health provider from the
Medicaid program, recovery of Medicaid dollars improperly re-
ceived, and reference to the Atforney General’s Office for
prosecution of possible eriminal law violations. ;
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The Division is also responsible for monitoring and insuring
the integrity of the operations of the state’s fiscal intermediaries,
whether they be Blue Oross or the Prudential Insurance Company,
which are nsed as New Jersey’s agents for receiving Medicald
claims from various health providers and, with their computer
capabilities and expertise, for checking and processing the claims
and remitting appropriate payments to the providers. As will be
seen in further discussion below, one of the areas of Medicaid for
which Prudential acts as the fiscal intermediary is the independent
clinical laboratories field.

Thus, the actual achievement and maintenance of system
integrity for Medicaid payments has two key points—the pre--
payment processing level at the fisecal intermediary under what
should be the ever watchful eye of the State Medicaid Division
and the post-payment level where the surveillance and utilization-
review functions of the Division are responsible for detecting and
disciplining various infractions by the health providers.

The Manual Had Deficiencies

In reviewing the abuses of overbilling, false billing and kickbacks
on earlier pages of this report, note was taken that the New Jersey
Medicaid Manual applying to independent clinical laboratories, as
that manual existed in the first half of 1975 when the S.C.1.’s
probe of the laboratories was in progress, lacked sufficient speci-
ficity and tautness in its various rules and regulations to estop
clearly and comprehensively such abusive practices. The S.C.1.’s
investigation showed that from the promulgation of the original
manual in 1970 until February, 1975* when the S.C.I. probe was in’
full swing, no major, meaningful attempt had been made to improve
the manual in light of experience gained in monitoring the inde-
pendent clinical laboratories.

One major example of a deficiency in the manual was brought
out at the public hearings through the testimony of Boniface
(Ben) Damiano, Chief of the Medicaid Division’s Bureau of
Medical Care Surveillance. Mr. Damiano, who became Chief of
that Bureau in 1970, testified that the unit had only six staff mem-

*Under the then newly appointed and now carrent Director of the Medicaid Division,
Gerald J. Reilly, the first major revision of the Medicaid manual was undertaken during
the winter of 1975. Mr. Reiily’s testimony relative to that revision and how manual
changes were made to attempt to cope with abuses as uncovered by the S.C.I. will be
reviewed in a later section of this report.
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bers as of 1972 and that that staff had been increased only recently
to 17, including a part-time physician-consultant. Mr. Damiano .
stated that it was not until mid-1973 that the Bureau was able fo
bring any intensive surveillance effort to bear on the flow of
Medicaid dollars to the independent clinical laboratories.

The staff, Mr. Damiano testified, quite promptly discovered the
subcontracting and mammoth markup practices of some of the
laboratories. He testified further as to the lack of specificity in
the manunal about this subcontracting practice and his sanperiors’
doubts about having any authority to cope with the problem:

Q. And that’s what we referred to as subcon-
~ tracting?
" A. Subcontracting.

Q. Or referencing, depending on how prelty a label
we wamt to put on it?

A. Right. I know when this staff—when this par-
ticular problem was brought to my attention, I, of
course, brought it to the attention of the division
director and our staff. "

% * ES *

Q. And you began to talk aboul that with your
superiors as you learned about 1t?
A. Yes.

- Q. Because it was something that troubled you?
A. Right.

Q. And did you discuss with them whether there
was available in the manual of that time any regula-
tion by which you could cut this business out or dis-
allow some of this charging or subcontiracting? Was
that your concern?

A. Well, there was nothing in the manual which
addressed itself to one laboratory’s sending work to
another laboratory to be done. There was nothing in
-the mannal at that point.

© And the other point where it said that the labora-
tory cannot charge more than ifs usual and customary
charges to practitioners for that same service o the
Medicaid program, using that regulation we tried to
‘perhaps reduce fees to laboratories, yes.
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Q. With reference specifically to the subcontract-
wmg or referencing. praclice, was 4 Yyour concern or
- interest to determine if the Bureou of Medical Care
Surveillance could recapture ony moneys when the
wholesale price charged, let’s say, was three-fifty and
then the state was billed fwelve-fifty? Was that an
wmterest of yours at that time? '

A. Most certainly it was, yes.

Q.. And did you take that interest up with your
supertors?
“A. Yes.

& #* * *

Q.. And was it of concern to you to determine .
whether you had the power, pursudant to the manual,
to recapture this kind of payment when three-fifty is
the wholesale price ond twelve-fifty is the retail?

A. Yeah, I thonght, it was my opinion we did have
the authority and the power.

Q. And in discusisng it with your superiors, what
conclusion did they give you?

A. Well, there was some question about whether
or not the wording of the manual still specifically did
give us the authority or not. ' ‘

Q. So, therefore, there was a concern them as to
the possible need for revision of that portion of the
manual 1o make it clearer and more emphatic as to
whether you could recapture that money? .

A. There was much discussion about that, yes.

The discussion and talk remained just that until the winter of

- 1975 when, as footnoted previously, a major revision of the mannal
was undertaken by the present administration of the Division.
Indeed, Mr. Damiano testified that Richard J. Gasior, who was
with the State Medicaid Division from 1970 to 1974 and served
under Mr. Damiano during 1973, made specific written sugges-
tions* to revise the Mediecaid manual to cope better with the gub-
contracting and other problem areas and that those suggestions,
which Mr. Damiano felt were good and valid, were never imple-
mented. - Mr, Gasior decided to submit his Medicaid manual

*Mr. Gasior testified privately before the Commission about his suggestions, including a
recommended 30 to 30 per cent reduction in the maximum fee reimbursement schedule

for independent clinical laboratories.
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revision suggestions to the State’s suggestion agency which com-
pensates state employees for generating novel ideas for improving
state government. He subsequently was notified that his award
request was being rejected by the agency because it had been told
by Medicaid Division officials that his suggestions allegedly were
not original and had been the subject of discussion within the
Division. Mr. Damiano testified about being summoned to a meet-
ing with the previously mentioned William J. Jones, then the
Division Director, to discuss Mr. Gasior’s suggestions for revising
the manual:

Q. You had o discussion with reference to the
merits of Mr. Gasior getting compensoted for sugges-
tion?

A. T think I ean explain to you and the:

Q. Go ahead.

A. T was called into Mr. Jones’s office and I was
shown this document and the fact that it came through
the Suggestion Award Committee, and I was asked
if T knew who prepared it because it has no name on
it. They delete the name. And I tried to say, “Well,
it’s anonymous. I don’t know.’”” But I really couldn’t.
I said, yes, [ knew where it came from; it was Mr.
Gasior.

And T think he was a little upset at the fact that—
in fact, I try to quote him. He said, ‘“Why is it that
you allow a member of your staff, who is working in
the laboratory area, as we all are now at this time, to
submit a suggestion award on things that probably
will be adopted or decided upon eventually, anyway?’’.

And T said that, well, T don’t really know what the
policy is, and if Mr. Gasior would develop and go out
of his way to make a complete revision of the manual
and put his own ideas in it and do it on his own time,

- T see nothing wrong with having him submit it in this
faghion. And the total discussion evolved on the
‘merits of whether he should have submitted this
through the Suggestion Award route or was part of
his job, and I took a hands-off policy and I said, ‘“Well,
this is how he did it.”’

Q. Did you indicate that you thought there was
_merit in those proposed revisions?
A. Yes, I did. Yes.
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Q. Were the proposed revisions ever adopted by
the division im 1973 or 19742
A. No, they weren’t.

Q- Do you know of eny good reason why they
weren’t adopted in 1973 or 19742
A. I don’t know of any good reasom.

Q. What was the reason that was gwen, as you
understand 152 '
A. Why were they

Q. For not adopting them. :

A. Ob, at the time of my discussion with Mr. Jones
there was quite a bit of activity going on in the labora-
tory field at that point. This wag in December of 1973,
and we had a meeting with the laboratory association
at the end of October of 73, and the laboratory asso-
ciation at that time promised that they would meet
with us on a regular basis; they would help develop
gunidelines, rules, regulations for the program. - So
there was much activity going on, and I think that Mr.
Jones felt that rather than take a suggestion as this
he would wait to see what would be developed on all
the total component parts that we’re working on in
the laboratory area. :

Q. By “activity’’ you mean there was a lot of
meetings and a lot of conferences?
A. There was a lot.

The Need for Expertise

Mr. Damiano stated in his testimony that when the Burean of
Surveillance began intensive analysis of the independent clinical
laboratories field, the Bureau’s personnel lacked the experience
and expertise to fathom fully the technical data involved, including
the descriptions of complex laboratory procedures.. He testified
that experience gained by 1974 was of some help to the Burean in
this area but that it was not until 1975, when, under the auspices
of the previcusly mentioned Dr. Goldfield, the State Health De-
partment personnel expert in clinical laboratory methodology and
terminology rendered advice to Mr. Damiano’s Bureau, that vari-
ous billing irregularities and other failures and abuses by some
of the laboratories could be pinpointed graphically and in fall
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detail. Mr. Damiano agreed that sufficient expertise is essential
to maintaining system integrity both at the pre-payment and at
the post-payment levels:

). So, therefore, I gather it would be your opinion
that it is very essential to the working of the Bureau
of Medical Care Surveillance in the field of laboratory
that you have input and guidence and assistance from
those who have specialization and expertise in that
Jfield?

A. Yes.

Q. Do you think that kind of guidonce and exper-
tise is also wmportant for the work of the Prudential
staff?

A. Yes.

Q. To your knowledge, or do you know whether the
Prudential staff has that kind of expertise avmlable
to it af present?

A. T’ve been told that they do not have it.

As the following excerpts from the testimony of the previously
mentioned Mr. Reilly indicate, he too, agreed with the proposition
that sufficient technical expertlse is Vltal to maintaining system
integrity at both the pre- and post-payment levels:

- Q. Do you think there are areas in which the Pru-
dential, which we have discussed wn the several days
of hearings, where the Prudential’s performance
maght be improved and could be improved and hcwe
you been working with them fo date?

A. Certainly. Tdon’t think there’s any system that
can’t be improved, and T think that we have to have
a constant dialogue with hoth of our intermediaries.
‘We have to carefully watch them and we have fo urge
them to acfion once in awhile. It’s—that’s part of
our responsibility. I think that in the area of labora-
tories it’s quite clear that some technological expertise
that gets down to the claim processing end of the
business is necessary. That doesn’t mean that a phy-
sician has to process claims, but it means that persons
who know what they are looking for and can under-
stand how one might disguise a claim and so forth
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are looking at these things periodically. We have to
provide

Q. Now, sir, I thank you for helping us with those
explanations. But before we conclude, I’d like to ask
you for any other comments or insight or suggestions
you might have. If you con help us with that.

A, Well, I would think in some of these, I may
have touched upon them earlier, but just for complete-
ness sake, I think that the Health Department needs
to be provided with sufficienf resources to enable them
to effectively enforce the new Clinical Laboratory Im-
provement Aet, number one. Number two, I think
that we have to place on staff, as we have in most of
the other disciplines, pharmacy, dentistry, medicine,
technical laboratory know-how. That is an absolute
must. Number three, we must continue to work with
Prudential {o ensure that we correct any system. flaws
that may result in statistically signifiant errors.
Number four, I think that we have to perlodleally re-
view the effectiveness of our policies and systems
including the revisions that we are discussing here
today. 1 think we have to be as inventive as an un-
ethical person might be who is attempting to exploit -
our system. The person who’s bent on exploitation
may also be one step ahead of us, but we can’t permit
them to be three steps ahead of us. 'We have to get
most of it at the pass. And number five, T would like
to comment on the fairness of the S.C.IL. in dealing
with the division on this issue and the painstaking
detail that you have gone to in bringing these issues
to the fore. I don’t think there’s any way that we
could have, with the resources available to us, done a
similar kmd of in-depth review of several particular
providers, and I think that I want the Commissioners
to know that we are grateful for this thorough job
that you have done.

Pre-Payment Processing Ervors

Because of the impoftance to system integrity of detecting and
flagging billing improprieties and abuses at the pre-payment level,
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the Commission, again with the expert asgistance of personnel
from the State Health Department’s Division of Laboratories,
principally in the person of the previously mentioned Mrs. Gerda
Duffy, undertook an extensive analysis of aspects of the state’s
fiscal intermediary receiving, processing and paying claims from
independent clinical laboratories—the Prudential Insurance Com-
pany. At the Commission’s behest, Mrs. Duffy and some of her
associates visited the Prudential’s computer-processing center in
Millville to familiarize themselves with that operation and also
received and analyzed thousands of Medicaid payment claim forms
which had been processed and paid by Prudential.

This extensive analysis indicated that, despite well developed
and up-to-date clerical and computer systems to prevent errors
which would lead to unjustified claim payments, numerous in-
stances had occurred where there had been overpayment of some-
Medicaid claims submitted by some of the laboratories. For ex-
ample, Mrs. Duffy testified at the public hearings to the following
sample instances which she said were each indicative of more
numerous or systematic instances which she disecerned of over-
payment by Prudential: ‘

1. Alaboratory’s claim for a Trichomonas test for
detecting the presence of a type of parasite in a speci-
. men was miscoded by Prudential in a way that the
computer approved a Medicaid-funded payment of $5
for a sereening culture process, when, in fact, this was
a test consisting of microscopic examination of a
smear and was compensible only at $3 by the then
existing Medicaid maximum fee schedule.

2. Another laboratory claim requested payment for

a sequential or ““fast blood’’ sugar test for which the

. Medicaid fee schedule allowed $5 for the first blood

sugar and $3 for second, sequential blood sugar.

 Prudential, however, had miseoded the claim so as to

- treat this one sequential test as two separafe tests
. and had paid $5 for each test. :

3. A third sample-instance laboratory claim re-

quested payment for a triglyceride test at the rate of

$10. Yet, Prudential processed and paid the elaim
at the maximum Medicaid fee schedule of $15.

Another area of error by the fiscal intermediary dealt with
independent clinical laboratory claims involving test situations
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where a specific claim charges over the Medicaid allowanee for one
procedure and under that allowance for another procedure. Unless
the Prudential clerks handling this type of claim make a proper
reduction in relation to both the over and the under approaches
before puttmg the claim into the computer, the computer will end
up overpaying an ‘‘ineligible’’ amount to a claimant laboratory.

Mrs. Duffy testified that her examination of 2,273 Medicaid
claim forms from a sampling of the independent clinical labora-
tories for two-month periods during 1974, showed that ‘‘in-
eligibles’’ had been paid by Prudential in 519 instances in amounts
ranging from 50 cents to $11. Specifically she found thlrty-three
mstances each involving 50-cent amounts, eighty-three each in-
volving $1, eleven each 1nv0]v1ng $1.50, thn ty-four each involving
$2, ﬁfty—nme each involving $2.50, twenty—two each involving $3
five each involving $3.50, ﬁfty~three each involving $5, seven each
mvolving $5.50, three each involving $6, two each 1nv01v1ng $7, and
one each at 48 and $11.

Mrs. Duffy testified she was at a loss to explain why these
““ineligibles”” were so consistently paid by Prudential, although
she stated that it was her understanding that the Prudentlal clerks
handling claims from the laboratories were hired by the company
as high school graduates

Prudential Officials Te;tz'fy

The decision by New Jersey and many other states to use firms
active in the health insurance field and possessed of extensive
computer capability as fiscal intermediaries in Medicaid has been
based on the rationale that this was a more prudent and efficient
course than the states’ attempting to build up a similar level of
experience and technical capability. In accord with that rationale,
much emphasis has been placed by the ihsurance company inter-
mediaries and by the State of New Jersey on keeping the cost of
intermediary operations relative to numbers of Medieaid claims
handled at as low a level as thought to be compatible with main-
tenance of a proper degree of system integrity.

The previously mentioned Gerald J. Reilly, the present Director
of the Medicaid Division, testified thaf, on balance under the
mmimum cost rationale, Prudential had performed well in .the
fiscal intermediary field but that cost mlmnuzatmn should not be
the sole standard adhered to:
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Q. Yes, sir. Now, Mr, Reilly, with reference to
Prudential, there has been received, we have received
testimony relevomt to the quality of performance by
Prudential as an intermediary and I'm sure you were
here o short while ago when we received some com-
ments as to whether i wos a good idea even to use
private companies, an intermediary, as opposed to
perhaps having a government agency doing it. So,
thevefore, I think it’s very relevant for this Commis-
ston to obtain your insight as the Commission ai-
tempts to make an evoluation as to the usefulness or
not of wntermediaries in general, and Prudential in
parlicular, i the laboratory field.

I would like your comments on that.

A. Well, T think that going back to 1969, 1970, the
period in which those two decisions were made as to
whether fo do this in-house or do it- out-of-house,
I think if T could transport myself to those times and
think those things those persons were thinking, it
‘would appear reasonable to attempt to utilize the
techniques and the processing techniques and skills

of people who had experience in thiz business of
~ processing millions of claims for hundreds of thou-
- sands of persons on a timely and efficient basis. And
the decision was made to choose in New Jersey, after
a bidding process, two intermediaries, Blue Cross—
excuse me. 'Yeah, Blue Cross and Prudential.

I think, as T read the history of the program over
those five years, on the balance, they have performed
in an excellent manner and in a very cost-efficient
manner. I think it was pointed out that perhaps
that’s an incorrect imperative for them to he respond-
ing to cost efficiencies. I think if it is, the govern-
mental agencies who supervise them have to share in
the blame for setting that perspective because I
think we are constantly interested in cost, cost redune-
tion and balancing the service to cost and quality.

1 think, however, oftentimes the intermediaries will
come to us with a propoesal for major systems, en-
hancement for example, and they present it in terms
of the cost and the benefits. What this will cost in
front-end investment and what it will yield in results,

207



So I think it’s fair to characterize us or the contractor
ag just pursuing the lowest cost to produce the widget
no matter what and not looking at the consequences.
I think that if we find an area where the application
of additional resources would yield the better pro-
gram, I think we ought to put them there. Unfortu-
nately, we are in an acutely different budget situation
and we are confronted with the possibility of curtail-
ing the amount of resources that we can make avail-
able to the intermediary in the coming fiscal year. We
might have to find different ways of doing this.
There’s just not sufficient funds to go around.

Thomas J. Beatty, Administrative General Manager in charge
of Prudential’s Government Health Programs Department, and
James Long, Director of Claims in the same Department of
Prudential, testified on behalf of the Company at the Commission’s
public hearings. Mr. Beatty stressed that Prudential saw its
responsibilities in the Medicaid program to be the processing of
the claims on a timely basis at the most reasonable cost the
Company can achieve for the taxpayer of New Jersey. Mr. Beatty
testified that it was the State’s rather than Prudential’s responsi-
bility to develop the manuals of rules and regulations governing
varions phases of Medicaid, including the independent clinical
laboratories, and to monitor the adequacy of fee reimbursement
schedules: ‘

Q. Mr. Beatty, can you tell us what function Pru-
dential plays, if any, tn commection with the inde-
pendent clhinical laboratory manual? Anything?

A, Yes.

Q. What function?

A. Every three weeks a rvepresentative of our
department meets with the division, and in that
capacity we are providing recommendations for the
entire Medicaid program. The director encourages
the contractors to give their input, and we do it. Very
frequently it will affect the manuals or other items of
significance to the program in the State. N

Q. All right. Now I'm going to read a part of the
contract between the State of New Jersey and Pru-
- dential. I would like you to give me your opinton, if
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you can, as to what it means to Prudentiol. This par-

ticular section deals with Article ITI, *‘ Duties of the

contractor.”’ I guess it’s subpart P. ‘‘ Develop, revise

as wecessary and distribute appropriate instructional

- manuals, subject to the approval of the department,
to eligible providers.” :

A. Well, T have never seen our responsibility to
develop these manuals. T have seen it to assist, advise
and help, and certainly to print and distribute. The
final responsibility with these manuals lies with the
State.

Q. All right. Mr. Beatty, con you tell us what
responstbility, if any, Prudential has inw conmection
with the mavimum fees paid to independent clinical
laboratories under the Medicaid program in New
Jersey? : '

A. We have none.

Q. Is that the responsibility of the State to adopt
fees? '
A. VYes, gir.

Q. And monitor fees to see whether or not fees are
reflective of conditions in the industry?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Inconnection with that, Mr. Beatty or Mr. Long,
can you tell me whether or not you are aware of any
formalized efforts on the part of the Division of
Medical Assistance and Health Services since Day 1
of the Medicaid program to review the fee schedule
which is used as a mazimum for Medicaid reim-
bursement? .

A. (By Mr. Beatty) For independent labs?

Q. Yes, sir. .
A. (By Mr. Long) To review the fee schedule?
Q. Yes, sir. '

A. (By Mr. Long) No, not to the best of my recol-
lection. :

@. Do you have any recollection, Mr. Beatty? :
A. No. T
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Mr. Beatty testified that four Prudential clerical personnel,
who are girl gradmates of high schools, had at the time of the
hearings the responsibility of properly preparing claims from
independent clinical laboratories for input info the computer and
that the computer process had built into it various screening and
check-point elements to attempt to insure the integrity and accu-
racy of the claims prior to payment. The girls preparing the
Medicaid claims for input into the computer are classified by the
company as coders. Mr. Beatty stated that such clerical personnel
are normally recruited as high school graduates and, after a
period of time for the company to evaluate their competence, they
~are sent to the company’s training program for instruction in
medical verbiage, anatomy, physiology and the techniques and
requirements for accurate claim coding, Mr. Beatty, however,
conceded that occasions do oceur where the company does not
send a coder throngh the training program but rather assigns the
individual to actual coding operations on an on-the-job-training
bagis. Both Messrs. Beatty and Long testified that they did not
know whether any of the four girls then serving as independent
clinical laboratory claim coders had received the formal training
program.

Messrs. Beatty and Long were questioned at some length about
how the pre-payment processing level at Prudential might better
detect some of the deceitfnl or ‘‘frick’’ billing practices of some
of the laboratories, particulaﬂy the previously reviewed abuse of
billing for the component parts of one fest as if each component
were a separate test, a practice sometimes referred to as ‘“a la
carte billing.”? A claim form from the previously mentioned Fair
Lawn Laboratory for $88 was used as reference point for much of
the questioning in this area. Fair Lawn in that claim had billed for
nine component parts of a SMA-12 blood chemistries fest as
separate tests and had been paid the $88, when the maximum
Medicaid fee for a SMA-12 was $12.50 and the test had been
subeontracted by Fair Lawn at a fraction of that amount. Mr.
Beatty testified as follows:

Q. Okay. How much did you pay in that particulor
nstance on this particular claim, can you tell, for the
laboratory services requested? Was it 3882

A. Yes.

Q.. The full amount requested?
A. Yes.
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¢, Well, didn’t they put one over on you?
A, Yes.

Q. If you had a consultant on your staff on o part-

tume or full-time basis who were a little versed in
laboratory procedures, do you think you might have
been able to have caught that clean before it went
through or before it was paid?
-~ A. There is no doubt that we -do need a lab con-
sultant fo catch this kind of billing. But, in my
estimation, the primary cause of this kind of billing
lies with the lah.

Q. Al right. But what can Prudential do, now
or in the future, to try to stop Fair Lawn, Park, some
of the others that we have seen breaking down
SMA-12’s into components and billing?

A. Well, let me put it this way: that if a lab
acquired an SMA-12 and continued to, for an
extended period of time, bill on a component basis,
then, in my judgment, that’s deceitful billing.

Q.. Okay. Do you know whether or not Fair Lawn
al the time this claim was submitied had on SMA-122
A. No, sir, I don’t.

Q. You have to pretty much accept what they give
you on faith, don’t you?
-A. Yes, sir.

CommisstoNEr Farney: But isn’t that your
function, to pick up deceitful billing? Forget
about Fair Lawn.

Mz. Bearry: Yes. We try. This is a large pro-
gram. We try to help the State, who has the
primary job, for fraud detection and utilization
control. _

I mentioned, or maybe I didn’t mention, but
thos far this year we have processed almost
4 million Medicaid claims for $120,000,000. The
laboratory claims, and it’s not an excuse, were a
small portion of that.

Mr. Jones’ testimony earlier, T sat there listen-
ing to it. You’re trying to balance, cost quality
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" and service,'and that’s not excuse for what hap-
pened with Fair Lawn at all. :

Messrs. Beatty and Long testified that, in their opinion proper
administrative practice requires that a fiscal intermediary not
get into the position of establishing control procedures which
would be so costly that their expense would be more than the
dollars saved by their institution. The Prudential officials agreed,
however, that the facts disclosed about abusive billing practices
by some of the laboratories signaled a cause for some improve-
ments at the pre-payment processing level:

CommissioNEr Livcas: Let me ask you a ques-
~ tion, Mr. Beatty.

Mz. BearTy: Surely.

Commisstonee Lucas: And I hope you will
appreciate the lack of sophistication. By your
figures, you are processing, I take if, grossly -
- 86,000 independent lab claims a year, okay? And
1 don’t know what that amounts to in terms of
dollar volume. But is there a philosophy, and

~ you have been, I think, extremely candid with us
up to this point, is there a philosophy in Pruden-
tial which says we can absorb a 1% or 2%,
- up to 5% writeoff for this kind of unfairmess,
this kind of cheating or this kind of collnsion? -

Mz. BearTy: No, there is not. That is not a
philosophy at all.

- T said earlier that our thought, our responsi-
bility was to process these claims providing the
best cost and service and guality we could
provide. ‘

CommissionEr Livcas: Yes.

Mg, Bearry: What I have omitted is that we
have not paid enough attention to what has
happened in the volume in the independent lab
area. We have in other areas. :

By Mr. DicrsoN: o
Q. All right. Mr. Beatly, taking your point, I
think it is well taken that some of this is deceitful
billing. But again addressing myself to what I -
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labeled the‘com@onemt—part problem, it’s true, I thank,

you would agree, that the State can recover a good
deal of these monmies, but I’d suggest to you that
perhaps the State might have to spend eddilional
monies in order to do that, and I’'m just wondering
whether in an overall system we had to spend o little
bit more, that might not be best spent at Prudential
in having someone with laboratory knowledge assist

©in the screening of claims.

A. I said much earlier, we definitely see the need
‘for lab technician, and we definitely see that we have
_to pay more attentlon to the lab problem and revision
of the manual.

Commisstoner Fariey: Mr. Beatty, I just am

a bit mixed up. You’re not claiming that the de-

ceitful billing is an exeulpation of Prudential in

its claim work. As I understand it, that’s essen-

tially one of your functions, to deteet it. Now, if

yvou don’t detect it, that goes to the facts sur-

- rounding the case, right? But I mean, the fact

that a deceitful bill has been submitted to you

certainly is not an escape valve for paying 11:9
Mz. Bearry: That’s correct.

Commissionsr Fartay: I mean, the real issue
is to how to deteet the deceitful bills.
Me. Brarry: That’s correct.

ComuisstonEr Fapney: And in that area, per-
haps, with the knowledge that we’re gaining out
of these hearings, perhaps we can put in some
procedures that would lessen that exposure.

Mz, Bearry: There are certainly some changes
to the manual, some discussions that I have heard
earlier, that will lessen that exposure in the
laboratory area, yes.

Commissioner Liucas: From your viewpoint.
Mg. BEATTY Yes.

Mr, Beatty testified further that Prudential has been developing
an on-line computer system which, he stated, will give the company
important new capabilities in obtaining the hlstory of both patient
profiles and provider profiles to better deteet patterns of abuswe

practlces

213



On the question of the ““imeligible’’ amounts being overpaid
by Prudential, as testified to previously by Mus. Gerda Duffy,
Mr. Beatty disclosed at the public hearings that Prudential had
undertaken a systematic, random sampling of all independent
“clinical laboratory Medicaid claims from 1970 to mid-1975. The
sampling process and technique, he stated, were reviewed for Pru-
dential by a University of Delaware professor expert in statisties
and computer science and involved selection and review of every
100th claim. Mr., Beatty testified that this random sampling
showed that ‘‘clerical error’’ had resulted in about six per cent
of the claims having been overpaid, a percentage factor which
translated to approximately $10,000 per year or about $56,000
for the five-and-a-half-year period covered by the sampling.

The Commission questioned Mr. Beatty on the matter of why
Mrs. Duffy’s sampling of claims found more than twice as high
a percentage of incidents of paying ‘‘ineligible’”’ amounts than
did the Prudential’s sampling: ‘

Q. Mr. Beatty, I don’t particularly want to pui
you on the spot. I want to protect a record that we
have developed here. Yesterday Mrs. Duffy, an ob-
viously competent, disinterested persom in this field
and with respect to this investigalion, testified that
she screemed 2,273 claims with respect to laboratory
work and found 519 basically clerical mistakes, not
Froaud.

Now, how can we reconcile I concede that you're
@ statistician as to the Prudemtial and everything
like that. But how do we reconcile testimony like that
with your statements? ‘

A. The only thing I can conclude, Commissioner,
is that the claims that were selected by the S.C.I. were
for a two-month period and were for these labora-
tories that are the more unusual laboratories. Let me
put it that way.

T assure you that the sample that we took was
totally random and the selection method has been.
validated by a statistician, and the error rate and
error amount 18, and 1’11 quote from his letter, at ten
per cent—ten per cent either way at ninety per cent
comprehensive, ten per cent variable. That’s the
word. :

214



- @. So that leads us to the conclusion, then, that we
have to look more to the profile of the partwular lab
amd make our deductions or tnductions f*rom that.

A, And there’s time periods involved in this, I
think periodicity is very much at work perhaps in
the claims that were selected by the 8.C.I. whereas
we selected them over the entire five-and-a-half year
period.

CommisstoNer Farimy: Thank you.

ExamiwaTion BY THE CHATRMAN @

Q. Mr. Beatly, wouldn’t it be true, just to follow
up on that, that the explosion has been occurring in
the recent years ’74 and 75. That to spread the sta-
tustic back to 1970 when the incidences were very low
would naturally temd to reduce the error factor or
the error potential?

A. T think not because on the systematlc sampling
basis when the explosion occurs you're ge‘t‘tmg more
claims selected than you would, for example, in the
year 1970.

Q. You're still ta,kmg one out of a hundred.

A. Yeah, but you have processed more, many more
claims in ’73 74, So statistically you’re going to have
movre claims in the sample for that time period.

Mr. Beatty testlﬁed that Prudentlal’s opelatmns had been re-
viewed and audited as many as eight times in recent years and
had been validated by those reviews and also by comparisons with
the error-occurrence rates in the Medicaid systems of some other
states. During part of his testimony, Mr. Beatty was permitted
to place on the record excerpts he had brought with him from
reviews of Prudential operations by the Bureau of Health Ad-
ministration and by the Social Security Administration and audits
by the Arthur Young firm and by the Arthur Andersen firm. Mr,
Beatty testified:

A. Mr. Dickson, conld I make one statement. We
have talked about errors where we have been exposed
and now we’re on an error that is a clerieal error,
and I want to assure you, gentlemen, that we watch
our error rate and cost and service very closely, and,
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in fact, in front of me I have a comparison of oceur-
rence error rates for New Jersey, North Carolina and
Georgia for the Medicare Program. This data is sent
into the Social Security Administration where
national averages are constructed. And T also have
the same occarrence rate of error in, New Jersey
Medicaid, and the ocecurrence rate for the first quarter
of 75 in Medicaid, by our own-in-house quality, was -
4.1; in Medicare it was 4.5 and 4.2.

The point I'm making is that we have processed
8 million claims last year in these four locations and
these pieces of paper, they’re subject to human error,
and we want to minimize them, but you can never
eliminate them, and I don’t care whether doctors
approve the claims. In fact, the cost would be
astronomical. '

Q. Again, just the precut or the process of having
the girl look at the claim to see whether or not there
is an mel@gzble mwolved, I-suppose, is a fmrly time-
consumang process?

A. TIt’s an exposure and time consuming.

Q. Costly?
A Yes.

Q. Adds to your adminisirative costs? :

A. Yes. Mr. Dickson, I don’t know whether it’s
appropriate or not, but we’re on the age-old question
of quality and cost and service, and I brought with me
today a number of reviews that we have gone through
and some execerpts from them, and if you would
permit me, I would just like to read a couple of these
quotes,

Q. T would rather have you file them with the Com-

mission as far as the record, if you like.
A. Okay.
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FINAL RECOMMENDATIONS

AN IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE RESPONSE

After hearing and evaluating the testimony of the W1tnesses
who appeared daring the four days of public hearings, the Com-
mission issued an adjournment statement which, on a preliminary
basis, outlined reforms necessary to insure that the Medicaid
laboratory program would function in the public interest. Many
of these recommendations were promptly and expeditiously
adopted by the Division of Medical Assistance and Health Services.
The highly inflated fee schedule—which facilitated the making of
financial inducement type payments from some laboratories to
their physician customers—was reduced 40 per cent. Language
in the program laboratory manual was tightened to clearly pro-
scribe the practice by which small laboratories subcontracted
partienlar tests to large reference facilities then, in many instances,
marked-up the cost by more than 300 per cent and reaped windfall
profits at the taxpayer’s expense. Steps were taken to make the
marinal explicitly prohibit the breakdown of automated component-
part tests into separate ingredients and the submission of bills to
Medieaid for each to the end that a lab might receive between $60
and $80 for a profile which costs less than $3.50 to perform A
computer system for analyzing and sereening group tests is our-
rently being developed. : :

The Division has taken steps to insure that laboratories fully
identify the procedures performed and for which payment is
requested. In this regard, a requirement has been imposed upon
Prudential (the fiscal intermediary) that all claims be ifemized
in detail. Aggregate Dbilling—which was effectively used by some
labs. to mask improper requests for reu:nbursement—ls no longer
'tolerated S

The Division has taken a hard line with respect to the flow of
inducement type payments in any form whatever between labora-
tories and physician eustomers. The relevant Medicaid program
rule reads as follows:
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205. Laroratory REBATES

205.1 Rebates by reference laboratories, service
laboratories, physicians or other utilizers or pro-
viders of lahoratory service are prohibited under the
Medicaid program. This refers to rebates in the form
of refunds, discounts or kickbacks, whether in the
form of money, supplies, equipment, or other things .
of value. This provision prohibits laboratories from
renting space or providing personmel or other con-
siderations to a physician or other practitioner
whether or not a rebate is involved.. S

As the Commission pointed ount in its adjournment statement,
these financial relationships amount to an inherent conflict of
interest in that the physicians have an inducement not to judge
the quality and performance of the laboratories, but rather to
send test business to the laboratory on the hasis of personal
financial gain. :

~ The Division has very recently cured a glaring weakness by
obtaining for its surveillance staff a person with expertise in
clinical laboratory processes and procedures. During its investiga-
tion, the Commission had available to it the expertise of personnel
assigned to the State Department of Health’s Division of Labora-
tories and Epidemiology. Because of their technological back-
grounds, these State employees were able to readily identify
many program abuses which appeared on the face of the claim
sheet. They were also capable of making informed judgments as
to the quality of care being provided to Medicaid patients by
varlous laboratory facilities. We are pleased that the Division of
Medical Assistance and Health Services now has similar capabili-
ties of its own. : ' L

The Commission applauds the efforts so far taken by the Divi-
§ion which will go far in placing a halt to Medicaid program abuses
docimented by the Commission in its investigation. On a broader
plane, the Commiission recognizes that both the executive and
legislative branches of state government deserve considerable
oredit for the reforms -effected in the entire clinical laboratory
industry by the enactment of the New Jersey Clinical Laboratory
Improvement Act subsequent to a detailed Commission statement
in support of the legislation. This statement called attention to
instances of potentially dangerous poor performance and inept-
ness on the part of certain facilities in New Jersey, which were
allowed to flourish due to a vacuum in state law.
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MO'RE *MUST Be DonE -

Notmthsta.ndmo the fact that cons:tderable efforts already have
been expended by the Division of Medical Assistance and Health
Services and the legislature, more remains to be done to adequately
protect the public interest.

The .Commigsion is not aware of the promulgation of a standard-
Med schedule of tests clearly defined as to component parts. We
again recommend that the Division elearly indicate to participat-
ing laboratories that a given multi-eomponent test shall include
but not necessarily be limited to certain specified sub-parts. Tests
not containing the prescribed -elements should not be reimbursed
at.the same level as tests meeting the criteria.

CTo simplify investigative procedures for the surveillance unit
and to further deter overutilization, physicians ordering the tests
should be required fo indicate the suspected or established diag-
nosis which substantiates the medical necessity for all of the
tests ordered. Invoices which do not conform to the above proce-
dure should he disallowed.

One problem area Whlch sulfaced durmg the hea,mgs involved
the lack of direct and constant supervision over the fiseal inter-
mediary by the Division. While the Commission is aware that
liaison between the fiscal intermediary and the Division is main-
tained primarily through periodie contractor meetings, we believe
it desirable to have a Division representative stationed at the
contractor’s office to comstantly monitor its State Medicaid pro-
cedures.

In the adjournment statement, the Commission recommended
that a panel be formed to draft an equltable competitive bid system
for laboratory work based upon awards of a regional nature. In
furtherance of this recommendation, the Commission testified as
to- impraectical restrictions of federal law before several Congres-
sional bodies. We again recommend that the State pursue the
avenne of competltlve bid to effectuate even further savings.

" The Commission recommends that the Division take steps to
ascertain the identity of the provider with which it deals. Dis-
closure should he required from providers and all having stock or
equitable interest in a given facility. Providers should also fully
disclose the nature and extent of any business relationships with
other Med10a1d program part1c1pants Such information Would be
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helpful to surveillance personnel in identifying potential areas of
abuse and keeping those who have been barred from direct pro-
gram participation from indirectly receiving Medicald moneys.
This information should be updated periodically and penalties
should be imposed for any false or misleading statements made
by the providers.

The New Jersey Legislature must provide new statutory tools
to deal with problems documented in the Commission’s laboratory
hearings. To deter the flow of financial inducement type payments
from laboratories to physicians—whether in private or govern-
ment-funded program situations—appropriate criminal sanctions
should be enacted. Such a statute might be modeled upon sections
650 and 652 of the California Business and Professional Code,
which makes the offering, delivering, recéiving, accepting or par-
ticipating in financial inducement type payments a misdemeanor
_pumshable by six months imprisonment and/or a fine not exceed-
ing $500.

That Code reads in part:

. any rebate, refund, commission preference,
patronage dividend, discount or other consideration,
whether in the form of money or otherwise, as com-
pensation of inducement for referring patients; clients
or customers to any person, irrespective of any mem- -
bership, proprietary interest or co-ownership in or
with any person to whom such patients, clients or
customers are referred is nnlawful.

The Commission further indicated in its adjournment statement
that to simply recover money obtained by program providers
through overbilling and false bllhng was an inadequate remedy.
We advocated that the State be given the power to levy fines on
labs engaging in those abusive practices as an additional deterrent
factor. Moneys so recovered could be used to help defray the high
costs of complex Medicaid fraud related investigations and to
supplement decreasing State budget  allocations for necessary
health services for the poor. Such legislation is currently pending.
Assembly Bill No. 1455 proposes to amend the State Medicaid law
to provide for the recovery of civil penalties including interest
payments on moneys inappropriately received, payment of a pen-
alty amounting to no more than three times the amount of the
moneys wrongfully pald and payment of $2,000 for each excessive,
claim submitted. The Commission strongly supports the concept
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and substance of this measure and recommends its immediate
adoption.

To facilitate the conduet of fraud related investigations resulting
in monetary recoveries and fines, the Commission recommends
that the Division’s surveillance unit be increased to include
accountants. These positions are necessary to give the Division
the capability to monitor Medicaid program providers for financial
abuse. In order to secure necessary financial data from suspect
participants, the Division of Medical Assistance and Health Ser-
vices should be given subpeena power. Presently, providers have
a choice of showing documentation supportive of medical claims
to Division staff or face suspension,

The most comprehensive legislative scheme, however, is only as
effective in safeguarding the public interest as its enforcement
procedures. The Commission lastly recommends that all State
agencies having an interest in medical practice statutes generally,
and Medicaid specifically, aggressively pursue those who would
take untoward advantage of the public and private purse. With
respect to the laboratory aspect of the Commission’s investigation,
cartons of documents and thousands of pages of transcript were
turned over to State and Federal enforcement agencies in July of
1975. We hope and trust that the State Board of Medical Fx-
aminers, the State Division of Criminal Justice and the U.S.
Attorney’s Office are, within the ambit of their statutory powers,
aggressively pursuing those who appear to have so flagrantly
flaunted the publie’s interest.
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CHART SEVEN

MAXIMUM MEDICAID RETMBURSEMENT
FOR CERTAIN LABORATORY TESTS

Moazmimum
Medicaid
Code Name Reimbursement
8628 Complete Blood Count, hemoglobin $5.00
‘ white cells, red cells and/or
hematoerit, differential
8710 Protein Bound Iodine (PBI) ‘ 10.00
8719 SMA 12/60 12.50
8751 M3 10.00
8752 T4 _ 10.00
8961 Pregnancy Test—Immunologic 7.50
8962  Pregnancy Test—Animal (rabbit or rat) 10.00
8652 Cholesterol, total 5.00
- 8654 Cholesterol, total and esters 7.00
- 8761 Triglycerides 15.00
8936 Urine Analysis (complete routine 2.00
chemical and microscopic)
8722 Glucose (sugar) quantitative or 2-houy 5.00
pp/3-hour pp _
8675 Flocenlation tests (Kline, Mazzini, each 2.50
VDRL, etc.) _
B476 Ova and parasites, concentrated method 2.50
8459 Culture with sensitivity studies, bacterial 15.00
dige technique, up to 10 antibodies
8911 Cytological Study (Papinicolaon smear) 5.00
8745 Urea nitrogen (or N.P.N.) 5.00
8664 Creatinine or creatine 5.00
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INVESTIGATION OF THE PRE-PAROLE RELEASE
PROGRAMS OF THE NEW JERSEY STATE
CORRECTIONAL SYSTEM

INTRODUCTION

Beginning in 1974 and continuing into 1975, the Commission
received a number of complaints about possible abuses and ripoifs
of the pre-parole release programs of the New Jersey State
Correctional System. The complaints came from a variety of
sources both in public life and in the private-citizen sphere. In
order. to evaluate fully the complaints, the Commission found that
its preliminary inqguiries were extending in depth into standards
and operations of the various programs—furloughs, work-
releases, educational releases and community releases. By Sep-
tember, 1975, information gathered by the inquiries clearly indi-
cated to the Commission that these basically worthy programs
aimed at successful re-introduction of inmates to society had
become riddled with weaknesses which led to exploitive abuses in
contravention of the effectiveness and goals of the programs.
Accordingly, the Commission by resolution authorized a full mves-
tigation of the programs at the various state prison units, an
investigation which continued into 1976.

The investigation included the examination of literally toms of
records and other documents both in the Commission’s offices and
in the field. These records and documents included applications
for entry into release programs, classification committee papers
used in deciding on entries into the programs, monthly reports on
which inmates were let out on releases by the various institutions,
inmate clasgification folders which contain inmates’ prison his-
tories, prison log books which purport to record the in-and-out
status of inmates on a daily basis, records pertaining to inmate
population movements among the various prisons, and the corre-
spondence of various program coordinators and superintendents
and business remittance records of inmates. This phase of the
investigation was expedited by the special and complete coopera-
tion afforded the S.C.I. by the Office of the Commissioner of
Institutions and Agencies. : = : :
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This massive research and analysis of records, followed up by
hundreds of interviews by 8.C.1. agents of individuals, showed in
full factual form specific patterns of improprieties and abuses.
Armed with this data, the Commission was able to question under
oath inmates and other individuals in an intense and thorough
manner which in numerous instances left witneses with the option
of either testifying fully or facing coercive contempt proceedings
in the courts. As a result, the Commission at four days of public

hearings in May, 1976, was able to present factually exploitations
of the pre-parole release programs in the following areas

Falsification of furlough and other fypes of release
 applications and documents to gain premature entry
into the programs. A highlight of the hearings was
the presentation of the facts relative to a bogus
Superior Court Appellate Division decision which
was inserted in the files of an inmate and was the
basis for his total sentence being substantially short-
ened. The inmate was identified by State Police

testimony ag hawng associations with a leading New
Jersey organized crime figure.

The establishment of favored status for certain
inmates who then become subject to pressures from
other inmates wanting to make use of the favored
status to gain premature and unqualified entry into
the programs. Under these conditions, a system of
bartering for special favors, including monetary ex-
changes among inmates, flourished. That type of
system created in the minds of the inmate populations
the impression that releases are not obtained on
merit but rather on favors, money and pressure,

The ease with which work and educational releases
could be ripped off by inmates becanse of a free-form
supervision and check-up approach.

The intrusion of a system of barter-for-favor in
procedures attendant on transfers of inmates among
the various penal institutions.

The Commission in its opening statement credited the State
Institutions and Agencies Department with making meaningful
efforts to correct deﬁmenmes in the programs whﬂe the 8. CI 8
investigation was in progress. These efforts included restriction
of the type of inmates eligible for releases, removal of inmate
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clerks from certain sensitive procedures and adoption of a federal
type system of more proper furlough forms, verification of these
forms, transmittal of the forms to area parole offices and some
in-field verification of furloughs. However, the Commission stated
that its investigation demonstrated the need for further corrective
steps to bring the programs to a point where system integrity is
virtually foolproof and, therefore, deserving of the proper and
needed levels of public confidence and support.

TaE COMMISSION’S ADJOURNMENT STATEMENT

Since the transeripts of these publie hearings were not available
in time to edit them and codify them into a full review of these
sessions, the adjournment statement made by Chairman J oseph H.
Rodriguez on behalf of all the Commissioners is presented below
in full as a way of partial review of the hearings and of presenta-
tion of the Commission’s preliminary recommendations. A full
review of this investigation will be included in a subsequent report
by the Commission. Mr. Rodriguez’s statement follows:

The five days of public hearings which we adjourn
today most certainly justify an nrgent call for prompt
improvements of a fundamental nature in the pre-
parole programs of the New Jersey prison system.
We use the word ¢‘fundamental’’ because the comula-
tive factual record of these hearings demonsirates
that a bandaid-here and a bandaid-there approach to
treatment of abuses and exploitations of the program
will neither suceeed in insuring their effectiveness
and integrity nor engender the public confidence they
need and deserve.

Rather, in the Commission’s opinion, the funda-
mentally worthy nature of pre-parole release pro-
orams must be re-emphasized. The Commission
takes this opportunity to strongly emphasize the
essential value and eritical importance of the pre-
parole release programs. With snch re-emphasgis as
a goal and guide, specific and sufficient check and
balance procedures and systems can be fashioned to
present a more foolproof barrier to the various rip-
offs of the programs as described in detail at these
public hearings. The system must not, as it has in
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the past, virtually invite abuse and exploitation. The
system must in the future contain security, sur-
veillanee and double-check mechanisms which will
defy defeat by the schemers and the con artists,

Certainly, additional non-inmate personnel, funded
by additional dollars, will be needed to operate
soundly improved programs. The testimony and
other evidence disclosed at these hearings offers
factually documented and compelling reasons for the
legislative and executive branches to provide sufficient
personnel-funding,

But important as that factor may be, the Commis-
sion considers even more important the institution of
improved policies, procedures and systems along the
lines reviewed on a preliminary basis later in this
statement. While the same are being implemented,
thereby providing a greafly improved measure of
public-interest protection, the fight for additional
funds and personnel can be carried forward.

The Commission discusses avenues of improvement
in this adjournment statement on a preliminary basis,
pending the preparation and issuance of a final report
and recommendations on this investigation. How-
ever, the Commission believes the facts aired at these
hearings and the preliminary recommendations set
forth in this statement provide an adeqguate basis for
taking prompt corrective actions.

The proposed improvements we now review fall
into two major areas. Both are of equal importance
to meaningful reform. The first major area of neces-
sary reform. is as follows:

The revision of procedures and systems to
insure that all the records for all the inmates
in all of the state correctional institntions are
kept in a totally accurate, verified, up-to-date
and secure basis so that those called on to make
decisions on the bagis of those records can rely
‘on the integrity of the data before them. There
must be absolutely no question that the records
reaching the State Parole Board have been kept
safe from any tampering, falsification or errone-
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ous caleulations by inmates or correctional sys-
tem employees.

The second major area of necessary reform is as
follows:

Rededication to the standard that pre-parole
releases-—whether they be furloughs, work re-
lease, or educational or community release—are
privileges granted at the discretion of the state
and are not an inalienable right and that each
release will be granted on a thoroughly re-
searched, evaluated and verified finding that it
will contribute to the attainment of discernable
and legitimate correctional goals. Pre-parole
releases represent programs through which an
inmate’s alienation from family and community
may be minimized. Additionally, performance on
pre-parole releases, through gradual exposure
to community life under proper safeguards and
checks, should provide a realistic measure of the
parole-release readiness of an inmate. The pre-
parole release program will suffer from anemia,
failure and publie distrust if releases are granted
simply because a certain time has come in service
of sentence or because more hed space is needed,
-and if they are not carefully administered and
evaluated.

To elaborate on the first major area, we suggest
that the testimony at these hearings shows that
merely removing the inmate clerks from the pre-
parole release process and introducing some new
forms and verification procedures do not constitute
sufficient, fundamental reform to achieve ironclad con-
fidence in the verity and integrity of the inmate
records on which pre-parole and parole decisions are
bhased. We heard testimony at these public hearings
that inmate porters and wing runners can gain acecess
to sensitive records. Additionally, we heard private
testimony indicating that at Trenton State Prison in-
mates had a particular ploy for tampering with their -
files. An inmate at that institution who desired to re-
view and purge his file would merely have to schedule
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an appointment with the prison psychologist. The file
would then be. shipped for pre-conference review to
the Psychology Department where an inmate depart-
mental eclerk, or the subject inmate, would obtain
access to the inmate’s file material.

The Commission recommends that the ‘State Cor-
rection and Parole Division immediately initiate and
enforce a policy whereby no inmate will work in any
area in which access may be had to classified informa-
tion, mail, funds, ‘prisoners’ personnel. records,
prisonérs’ personal property and prisoners’ classifi-
cation reports and summaries thercof. We endorse
‘the good efforts already made to date to implement
such a policy.

But the total integrity and reliability of the records
cannot be assured solely by their isolation from the
hands and eyes of inmates. For example, the testi-
mony at these hearings indicated that the presence
of the bogus Appellate Division opinion in an in-
‘mate’s file and computations supposedly based on that
‘phony document bore relation to the activities and
contacts of a Correction and Parole Division em-
ployee. It is obvious, therefore, that there must be
instituted forthwith a centralized record keeping
system which is subject to the most sophisticated
and thorough checking and verification and security
procedures as can be devised by experts in that field
and which is effectively executed by employees of
assured integrity, assisted by an applicable computer
technology, - ‘ ‘

The Commission specifically recommends that all
records and other papers—or verified copies of those
records and papers—relating to all inmates in the
prison system be placed in a centralized file subject
to maximum security precauntions. The Commission
‘during this investigation was dismayed to have to
“locate an inmate’s file at several different locations in
-order to obtain information concerning furloughs,
-work releases and legal actions. The Commission rec-
commends additionally that the central file contain
-chronological inventory sheets detailing documents
tplaced inany inmate’s file and the date when so
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placed, and that authors of entries in any inmate’s
file in the central file be documented by the authors’
signatures. The Commission was disturbed to find
that entries concerning such crucial matters as time
computations for parole consideration could be made
anonymously. With anonymity, there can be little
accountability.

The Commission also recommends that all persons
having a valid reason to have access to the central
files record their names and date of access on an ap-
propriate ledger or card-like document. And, of
course, the Commission recommends that no court or
other agency opinion or ruling affecting an inmate’s
status be entered into an inmate’s file until the in-
tegrity of that ruling or opinion has been thoroughly
checked with the issuing court or agency.

Turning to the second major area summarized
above, we emphasize again that no pre-parole releases
should be granted unless the valid correctional goals
of such release have first been determined and that the
release be subjeet to proper checks, safeguards and
evaluations. To that end, we recommend that, as a
precedent to granting a furlough, the Classification
Committee must find, or the Classification must agree
with the finding of the furlough coordinator, that the
purpose of the proposed furlough is legitimately coun-
gistent with basic furlough policies and will contribute
to the attainment of correctional goals by being a
positive foree in the adjustment process of the inmate.
The Commission suggests that the success of the de-
cision-making of the Classification committees could
be enhanced by ineluding institutional parole officers
in the decision-making process, since these officers
possess important insights concerning inmates apply-
ing for pre-parole release.

The Commission strongly endorses the new policy
of the Division of Correction and Parole to eliminate
the practice whereby prison superintendents were al-
lowed to exercise unfettered discretion to overturn
the judgments of the respective Classification com-
mittees. The Commission heard testimony that the
prior practice caused justifiable frustration and
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understandable suspicion among the inmate popula-
tion. Also, we strongly recommend re-examination of
the practice of utilizing so-called ‘‘community re-
leage’’ programs to allow superintendents and others,
often without adherence to any meaningful standards,
to grant pre-parole release privileges to favored in-
mates who are ungualified for either work release or
furlough. -

Furloughs should be granted only for specifically
pre-anthorized purposes which could inelude: visits
to a terminally ill relative, attendance at the funeral
of a relative, the obtaining of medical services not
available in the prigon system, establishment or re-
egtablishment of meaningful community ties, the ob-
taining of valid school enrollment, the obtaining of
housing, participation in family aectivities and in bons
fide community, educational, civic and religious activi-
ties, and establishment or re-establishment of family

“ties provided, however, that it is determined such
release will facilitate the transition from penal insti-
tution to community life and, of course, consistent
with various legal processes.

" What we are stressing at this point ig that fur-
loughs, as well as other types of pre-parole releases,
should be awarded under a system of clearly set forth
rules which should be uniformly applied and adminis-
tered. An inmate should on an objective basis either
qualify under the rules or not qualify. The system
should be immunized from the type of barter and in-
fluence peddling by specially favored inmates, a sub-
ject on which we heard extensive testimony at these
hearings.

The Commission recommends further that requests
for furloughs be required to be submitted three weeks
in advance of the proposed effective date of the fur-
lough so that the requests can be checked and evalu-
ated as to their legitimaey, as to their consistency with
basic furlough policies, and as to their potential con-
tribution to the attainment of valid correctional goals.
Prior to a furlough grant, the police in the locality to
be visited by the inmate and the appropriate county
prosecutor should be contacted. The purpose of this
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contact would be to. give notice that the inmate will be:
in the jurisdiction and to obtain any new information.
the Classification Committee should have available:
when they consider whether to approve the furlough..
In the event the police chief and/or the prosecutor
indicate a belief the furlough is not- appropriate in:
their opinion, the Classification Committee may still
approve the furlough but that panel must then, in a
memo to the inmate’s file, document the rationale for
so0 doing.

The Commission recom_mends addltlona.lly that to
be eligible for a furlough, an inmate must have en-
joved full minimum custody status for 60 days and.
be within six months of a firm parole date. An ex-
ception to this rule could be made by the State Parole
Board in instances of long-term sentences with no
available parole date, if, in the opinion of the Board,
a release 1s necessary to test the release readiness of
an inmate and, thereby, determine whether a future
parole date would be appropriate. An inmate so re-
leased would be required on return to prison to confer
with the prison psychiatrist or psychologist to deter-
mine his emotional reaction to the release, with a
report of the conferemce being forwarded to the
Parole Board. In order to provide for a gradual, well
evaluated exposure to community life, the Commission
recommends further that inmates initially be given a
designated number of escorted furloughs in a finite
time period before being deemed eligible for addi-
tional unescorted furloughs.

~ Candidates for furloughs shall have demonstrated
a level of responsibility which will provide reasonable
assurance that the offender will comply with furlough
regulations and conditions. Candidates for fur-
loughs also must have institutional dlso1plme records
free of major infractions for six months prior to the
first furlough grant and should be required fo main-
tain such. a record during the. furlough ehglbﬂrty
period.

‘The Commission also recomrneuds tha,t pr1or to the
gra.n_tmg of any furlough, the proposed furlough plan
and purpose be. verified as to -its suitability -and
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legitimacy. The. verification should include direct
communication. by Correction and Parole Division
officials with the prineipal or person whom the fur-
loughed inmate is to contact. This direet communica-
‘t].OIl should be documented and made part of the
inmate’s file.

Additionally, the Commission recommends that,
subsequent to each furlough and prior to the granting
of any succeeding furlough, the success or lack of
suceess in accomplishing the purpose of the furlough
should be evaluated and verified by direct communi-
cation by Correction and Parole Division personnel
with the principal or person with whom the fur-
loughed inmate was in contact during the furlough,
-Cop1eq of such evaluation should be made part of the
inmate’s file and forwarded to the Parole Board as a
measure of the release readiness of the inmate.

_ Furthermore, the Commission recommends that a
statutory requirement that an inmate be furlonghed
to a specific location be enforced by geographically
limiting the furloughed inmate, as a condition of the
furlough, to a specific location. Also, we recommend
that there be established a night-hour curfew to be
adbered to as a furlough condition. A furlough was
never intended to be a license for an inmate to travel
at will around the state and even across state lines
at-all hours: of the night and day. There should be
spot checks by Correction and Parole Division per-
sonnel to see that geographical, curfew and other fur-
lough conditions are complied with. An inmate who
fails to meet the conditions of his furlough should be
subject to disciplinary action and loss of future fur-
loughs, and serious abuses of the furlough privilege
should by statute be made a criminal offense.

- The testimony at these hearings clearly demon:
strated that, without meaningful reforms, inmates on
work release, sometimes with the connivance of their
employers, can easily abuse and defeat the legitimate
aims of this type of pre-parole release. To prevent
further ripoffs of work releases, the Correction and
Parole Division should initiate policies and proce-
‘dures which emphagize more pre-release verification
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of the legitimacy and usefulness of the employment
sitnation, more employer responsibility and aceount-
ability, and increased spot-checking of inmates at
their work release locations,

The Commission recommends specifically that prior
to approving a work release for an inmate, Correction
and Parole Division personnel thoroughly check ount
and evaluate the validity and usefulness of the em-
ployment situation and make a conscious determina-
tion that the particular work release opportunity will
be of positive help to an inmate in reaching a legiti-
mate correctional goal. Thig pre-release inquiry
should determine exactly who will be fhe inmate’s
employer and the person to whom the inmate will
report while at work. If an employer’s reputation
is unknown or in any way in doubt, the Correction
and Parole Division should ask for a State Police
check on that employer. The Correction and Parole
Division should also notify local police of a proposed
work release to get additional information on poten-
tial employers and their other employees.

In order to fix employer responsibility, the Com-
mission recommends that an employer provide to Cor-
rection and Parole Division officials, on a weekly basis
and on pain of criminal penalty for giving wilfully
false information, certification. of the number of hours
worked by the inmate and certification that the source
of payment of the inmate for his work was the em-
ployer’s business and that the employer was not re-
imbursed by the inmate or by another individual on
the inmate’s behalf.

We recommend further that the Correction and Pa-
role Division require a work-release employer to sign
a contract which would spell out the employer’s su-
pervisory obligations and whieh would stipulate that
the contract could be canceled if the employer did
not make appropriate records and other information
available to Correction and Parole Division officials.
We think this contractual obligation is in order, since
employers can and do benefit from the use of work-
release labor.
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"The Commission also recommends that work re-
leases be authorized only for a normal eight-hour
working day, plus travel time, unless’ the employer
certifies, again with eriminal penalty sanctions, that
longer work hours are necessary for the proper con-
duct of the business. We know of no modern working
conditions which would require work: release from
6 a.m. to midnight on a seven-day-a-week bagis.

‘We further recommend that Correction and Parole
Division personnel physically check the work premises
on an unannounced basis at least twice a month for
all work release jobs to determine their continued
validity and usefulness. And we recommend that the
Division scrutinize and evaluate closely any work re-
leases where an inmate is released to work for a
relative or to conduet his own business.

The Commission recommends that, for educational
-and community releases, the Correction and Parole
Division should, as in work release, initiate policies
and procedures which emphasize greater pre-release
verification of the legitimacy and usefulness of the
release plan, greater assumption of responsibility for
supervision of the released inmates, and more on-
premises spot-checking to insure that inmates are
adhering to the conditions and schedules of their
releases. In instances of all educational releases, the
Commission recommends that security personnel at
the educational institutions at least be made aware
by the Correctional and Parole Division of the pres-
ence . of inmate pupils at the institutions and the
inmate’s schedules of hours of attendance and desig-
nated courses of study. We also recommend that it
‘be mandatory for faculty members to record the at-
tendance of inmates at their designated classrooms
and courses,

The Commission has heard disturbing testimony
about the traffic of narcotics and other contraband
into the prisons. There must be instituted policies
and procedures sufficient to make sure that the impor-
tation of contraband into the prisons is deterred by
effective measures, including regular, systematic and
mandatory searches of returning inmates, and aggres-
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sive efforts to expose corrections personnel possibly
involved in such importations. To insulate inmates
participating in pre-parole release programs from the
demands for contraband made by members of the gen-
eral inmate population, ways and means must be
found to separate the inmates participating in such
programs from other inmates.

The Commission is also concerned by tes’umony at
these hearings that prison officials at the middle-
management level are left to make decisions as to
whether pre-parole release violations and other pos-
sible offenses by inmates should be handled infernally
on an administrative basis, or brought to the attention
of prosecutorial authorities. . We recommend that
there shounld be regular and sustained communication
between Correction and Parole Division officials and
the Attorney General’s Office on the question of
whether or not to prosecute offenses commitfed
while on releage or elsewhere., The prison system
should be serviced by continuing legal input and
should not just wait for a crime-of-the-century situa-
tion to consult with the Attorney General’s Office. -

As we stated at the opening of these hearings, the
Commission believes pre-parole release programs are
a vital part of any modern correctional system striv-
ing to suceeed in successfully returning inmates to
society. We support the programs and state again
that the principal purpose of these public hearings
has been to fuel the fires of reform of the programs
to a point where they will receive the full level of
support they deserve.

- The 8.C.L is available to appear before any legis-
lative or executive panel to urge that funds be pro-
vided for the hiring of additional non-inmate per-
sonnel to fully carry out and maintain reform of the
programs. Eurthermore, the Commission realizes
that overcrowding is a serious problem in the state
correction systern and is a constant pressure for
releasing inmates. The public should understand
that, unless public funds are forthcoming to expand
prison facilities and adequately staff them, there can
be no total cure for the ills of the system. The public
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must not labor under a false sense of security that

those dangerous to society are firmly incarcerated,

because the reality is that corrections institutional

space in New Jersey now remains static while the

number of those being incarcerated is increasing
sharply.

‘The Commission will make the records of this inves-
tigation and these hearings available to the State
Parole Board, the State Department of Institutions
and Agencies and the State Attorney General’s Office
for their 3ud_aments as to whether any further
actions may be in order.

It is apparent to the Commission from these_
hearings that historically the New Jersey correc-
tional system in its entirety has evolved with little
overview or planning. To the contrary, the corree-
- tional system is operated on a day-to-day basis
- adjusting from one erisis to another. The present

correctional system embraces the inter-relationship. .

of various state and county agencies, including but
not limited to, 21 county sheriffs, 21 county Probation
.- Departments, a parole board, county jails and peni-
-tentiaries, the Department of Institutions and
Agencies which operates the state pI‘lSOIl system and
_ the New Jersey Superior Court. It is guite evident
that these interacting compomnents have created a
' fra,gmenta,tmn within the correctional system which
has resulted in a severe breakdown of effective com-
munication, including guidelines, among the many -
agencies that in some manner relate to the correc- -

tional system. With respect to this problem, the

- Commission. strongly urges that some form of a
- ‘modernized master plan be prepared and evaluated so
“that the existing correctional system can be brought

mmto the realities of 1976 and not merely continue as a

historical hand-me-down system that simply is not -
*- “performing to the standards required. [
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LEGISLATIVE RECOMMENDATIONS

The Commission respectfully requests that the Governor and
the Legislature take under advisement the recommendations
advanced below on proposals for new legislation.

MANDATED STANDARDS FOR GREEN ACRES APPRAISALS

The Commission’s investigation of the land purchasing practices
of Middlesex County and the related appraisal review function of
the State Green Acres Program, as reviewed on previous pages
of this Annual Report, showed that the appraisers used by the
County were not bound by any mandatory standards and gnidelines
in establishing appraisal values which would serve ultimately as
a basis for grants of State Green Acres funds. The Commission
recommends that this glaring weakness be corrected by enactment
of a statutory requirement which would mandate that the ad-
ministrators of the Green Acres Program promulgate binding and
uniform rules and regulations for the maintenance of the highest
standards in any appraisal work that is to be considered a factor
in the granting of Green Acres funds.

The binding standards would apply to the selection of appraisers,
the contents of appraisals submitted by appraisers, and the conduct
of the post-appraisal review of the appraisals submifted. The
criteria for and principal elements of such standards are discussed
fully in the ‘‘Final Recommendations’? section of the review of the
Middlesex County-Green Acres investigation in this Annual Report.
The standards promulgated by the administrators shall be binding
for both Green Acres land aequired directly by the State and by
application of the counties and municipalities for matching fund
grants, The Commission believes that where the State has the
power to grant money, it also should have the power fo enforce
standards used in key processes leading to the award of money.

OUuTLAWING FINANCIAL INDUCEMENT TYPE PAYMENTS

The Commission’s investigation of independent clinical labora-
tories, as reviewed on previous pages of this Annual Report,
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showed that some of the laboratories were kicking back to some
doctors, either directly or under certain guises, a percentage of
their Medicaid receipts to induce the doctors to send Medicaid-
funded test business to the laboratories.

The Commission recommends statutory action to deter more
effectively this type of improper and injurious use of funds.
Specifically, a statute should be enacted to make the financial in-
ducement type payments from the laboratories to the physicians—
whether in private or government funded situations—a mis-
demeanor punishable by six months in imprisonment and/or a fine
not exceeding $500. The ¢‘Tinal Recommendations” section of
the review of thig investigation in this Annual Report suggests
specific statutory langnage based on the California Business and
Professional Code.

A STERNER BILLING ABUSE REMEDY

The independent clinical laboratory investigation algso uncovered
the practice of some laboratories of bilking Medicaid by overbilling
and false billing. The Commission recommends that the State be
given the power to levy fines on laboratories engaging in those
abusive practices as an additional deterrent factor. The Commis-
sion notes that legislation which would accomplish this recom-
mendation is enrrently pending in the Legislature in the form of
Assembly Bill Number 1455. The Commission urges enactment of
this bill as a needed amendment to the State Medicaid law.
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'COLLATERAL RESULTS FROM PREVIOUS
INVESTIGATIONS

LINDENWOLD QFFICIALS INDICTED

After holding public hearings in December, 1974 on corrupt
and unethical practices related to land developments in the
Borough of Lindenwold, the Commission referred the records of
that investigation to the State Criminal Justice Division. Sub-,
sequently, during 1975, a State Grand Jury indicted two former
Lindenwold Mayors, William J. MeDade and George LaPorte,
- four times on eharges which included soliciting a bribe from a land
developer, misconduct in office and perjury. Former Lindenwold
Borough Treasurer Arthur W. Scheid was also indicted. by the
same jury onm. a charge of solieiting a bribe from a land developer.
In announcing the indictments, the State Attorney General’s Office
stated that the S.C.I’s referral was the springboard for. further
investigation which resulted in the indictments. Trial of the indict-
ments was still pending when this Annual Report was published.

Passarc’'ScHooL OFFIcIAL CONVICTED

The Commission’s 1973 public hearings on the purchasing
practices. of ‘the Passaic County Vocational and Technical High
School in Wayne centered in large part on certain activities by
that school’s Business Manager and Purchasing Agent, Alex
Smollok. The Commission heard testimony that Mr. Smollok made
frequent purchases for the school through a middleman supplier
who profited by grossly marking up the sales prices to the school
above the prices he paid for the goods. It was the testimony of
the middleman, Joseph Carrara, president of Caljo Construction
Supply Co., Fairfield, that he paid kickbacks to Mr. Smollok in
return for getting purchase contracts from the school. After
referral of data from this probe to the State Oriminal Justice
Division, a State Grand Jury indicted Mr. Smollck on charges of
taking nearly $40,000 in kickbacks between 1968 and 1972. After
trial in Superior Court, Essex County, in Janunary, 1976, Mr.
Smollok was convicted of nine counts of accepting bribes in con-
nection with the $40,000 in kickback payments. He has been
sentenced to one to three years in state prison and fined $9,000.
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FiNEs PAID 1N ANTI-TRUST ACTION

" The Commission’s 1970 investigation and public hearings on
restraint-of-trade and other abusive practices in the building. ser-
viee maintenance industry in New Jersey aroused the interest
of the United States Senate Commerce Committee which invited
S.C.I. staffers to testify at its 1972 public hearings on organized
erime in interstate commerce. As a result of that testimony, the
Anti-Trust Division of the United States Justice Department, with
assistance from the 8.C.L, launched an investigation info an as-
sociation which allocated territories and customers fo various
member building service maintenance companies in New Jersey.
In May, 1974, a Federal Grand Jury in Trenton indicted 12 com-
panies and five company officials for conspiring to shut out com-
petition in the industry. The companies were the same as those
mentioned in the S.C.1.’s public hearings. The companies and
officials pleaded no contest to the charges during 1975 and were
fined a total of $225,000 and given suspended prison sentences.

FORMER BUILDING INSPECTOR FINED

After its 1971 public hearings on the development of the Point
Breeze area of Jersey City, the Commission referred the records
of that probe to prosecutorial authorities. A Hudson County Grand
Jury returned an indictment charging Timothy Grossi, a former
Jersey City building inspector, with extorting $1,200' from an
official of the Port Jersey Corp. and obtaining money under false
pretenses, During 1975 he was convicted of obtaining money’
under false pretenses and fined $200 and given a six-month sus-
pended sentence. Co ' ' : ' :

ATTORNEYS CHARGED IN FRAUD INDICTMENT

*The Commission’s 1973 public hearings on abuses of the Work-
men’s Compensation included extensive testimony and supporting
exhibits relative to the practice of the {Hen Woodbridge law firm
of Rabb and Zeitler of obtaining phony medical treatment state-
ments to inflate both compensation and negligence claims and,
thereby, increase either compensation awards or negligence suit
settlements. 'The data from this investigation was referred to
prosecutorial anthorities, and in October, 1975 an Essex County
Grand Jury returned indictments charging that attorneys Richard
J. Zeitler and William E. Rabb and their law firm’s business
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manager, Charles Haus, with conspiring with three doctors and
others to submit false and fraudulent medical reports to insurance
companies. Trial of the indictment was still pending when this
Annual Report was published.

Ex-JUDGE PENALIZED

The same public hearings in 1973 on Workmen’s Compensation
dwelled in part on how a then Judge of Compensation, Alfred P.
D’Auria, had constantly had his lunches paid for by attorneys
practicing before him and also had a Christmas Party given him
and his Bar Association dues paid for him by attorneys practicing
before him. He wag given a disciplinary suspension after the
hearing and later retired. Tn March, 1975, the New Jersey State
Supreme Court suspended D’Auria from law practice for six
months stating that D’Auria’s behavior was inherently wrong and
that the constant accepting of free lumches ‘‘has 5 subtle, corruptive
effect,”’

TAX COMPLAINTS AGAINST DOCTORS AND DENTISTS

During the course of its investigation of Medicaid, the Commis-
sion Special Agents/Accountants discerned indications that a
number of doctors and dentists were receiving substantial business
income from Medicaid but might be failing to report the income
under the New Jersey unincorporated business tax law. The S.C.L
staffers brought this investigative data to the attention of the
State Division of Taxation which, working with State Deputy
Attorney Generals, caused criminal complaints to be filed against
14 doctors and dentists and two partnerships for failure to file
state unincorporated business tax returns on business income
totaling $2.7 million over a three-year period. Disposition of the
complaints was still pending when this Annual Report went to
press.

#
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APPENDIX I

STATE COMMISSION OF INVESTIGATION
New Jersey Statutes Annotated 52:9M-1, E¢ Seq.

1. 1968, C. 266, as amended by L. 1969, C. 67, L. 1970, C. 263, and
L. 1973, C. 238.

- 52:9M-1. Creation; members; appoiniment; chairman; lterms;
salaries; vacancies. There is hereby created a temporary state
commission of investigation. The commission shall consist of 4
members, to be known as commissioners.

Two members of the commission shall be appointed by the
governor, one by the president of the senate and one by the speaker
of the general assembly, each for 5 years. The governor shall des-
ignate one of the members to serve as chairman of the commission.

The members of the commission appointed by the president of
the senate and the speaker of the general agsembly and at least one
of the members appointed by the governor shall be attorneys ad-
mitted to the bar of this state. No member or employee of the com-
mission shall hold any other public office or public employment. Not
more than 2 of the members shall belong to the same political party.

Fach member of the commission shall receive an annual salary
of $15,000.00 and shall also be entitled to reimbursement for his
expenses actnally and necessarily incurred in the performance of
his duties, including expenses of travel outside of the state.

Vacancies in the commission shall be filled for the unexpired
term in the same manner as original appointments. A vacancy in
the commission shall not impair the right of the remaining mem-
bers to exercise all the powers of the commission.

5,2:9M—2. Duties and powers. The commission shall have the
duty and power to conduct investigations in connection with:

a, The faithful execution and effective enforcement of the laws
of the state, with particular reference but not limited to organized
crime and racketeering.

b. The conduet of public officers and public employees, and of
officers and employees of public corporations and authorities;
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¢. Any matter concerning the public peace, public safety and
public justice.

52:9M-3. Additéonal duties. At the direction of the governor
or by concurrent resolution of the legislature the commission shall
conduct investigations and otherwise assist in conmection with:

a. The removal of pub_lie officers by the governor;

b. The making of recommendations by the governor to any other
person or body, with réspect to the removal of public of"ﬁcers_;

¢. The making of recommendations by the governor to the legis-
lature with respect to changes in or additions to existing provisions
of law required for the more effective enforcement of the law.

 52:9M—4. Investigation of management or affairs of state de-
partment or agency. At the direction or request of the legislature
by concurrent resolution or of the governor or of the head of any
department, board, bureau, commission, authority or otheriagency
created by the state, or to which the state is a party, the commis-
gion shall mvestlgate the management or affairs of any. -such
department board, bureau commission, authority or other agency.

52:9M-5. Ooopemtwn with law enforcement officials. Upon
request of the attorney general, a eounty prosecntor or any other
law enforcement official, the commission shall cooperate with,
advise and assist them in the performance of thelr oiﬁelal powers
and duties, : : SR

52:9M—-6. Cooperation with federal government. The commis-
sion: shall cooperate with departments and officers of the United
States government in the investigation of viclations of the federal
laws within this state.’ RIPTIN

- 32:9M-7. Examination into law enforcement a}j”ectmg other
states. The commission shall examine into matters relating to law
enforcement extending across the boundaries of the state 1nt0 other
states; and may eonsnlt and exchange information with officers and
awene1es of other states with respect to law enforcement problems
of mutual concern to this and other states.

52:9M-8. Reference of evidence to other oﬁicmls Whenever 1t
shall appear to the commission that there is canse for the proséecu-
tion for a crlme, or for the removal of a public officer for miscon-
duct, the commission shall refer the evidence of such erime or mis-
conduct to the officials authorized to conduct the prosecutmn or'to
remove the public officer.

242



©52:9M-9. Executive director; coumsel; employees. The coms
mission shall be authorized to. appomt and employ and at pleasure,
remove an -executive director, counsel, investigators, accountants,
and such other persons as it may deem necessary, Wlthout reoald
to civil service; and to determine their duties and fix their salarles
or compensa.tion within the amounts appropriated therefor. In-
vestigators and accountants appointed by the commission shall be
and have all the powers of peace officers.

 52:9M—-10. Amnual report; recommendations; other reports.
The commission shall make an annual report to the governor and
legislature which shall include its recommendations. The commis-
sion shall make such further interim reports to the governor’ and
legislatnre, or either thereof, as it shall deem advisable, or as shall
be required by the governor or by concurrent resolution of the
legislature.

© 52:9M-11. Information to public. By such means and to such
extent as it shall deem appropriate, the commission shall keep the
public informed as to the operations of organized crime, problems
of criminal law enforcement in the state and other actwltles of the
commisgion.

- 52:9M-12. Additional powers; warrant for arrest; contempt of
court. "With respect to the performance of its funetions, duties and
powers and subject to the limitation contained in paragraph d. of
this section, the commission shall be anthorized as follows:

a. To conduct any investigation authorized by this act at any
place within the state; and to maintain offices, hold meetings and
funetion at any place within the state as it may deem necessary;

b To conduct prlvate and public hearings, and to deéignate a
member of the commission to preside over any such hearing

e. To administer oaths or aﬁirmatmns, subpoena w1tnesses,
compel their attendance, examine them under oath or affirmation,
and require the productlon of any books, records, documents or
other evidence it may deem relevant or matenal to an mves’uga-
tion; and the commission may designate any of its members or
any member of its staff to exercise any such'powers,

"-d. Unless otherwise instructed by a resolutlon adopted by a
ma.Jorlty of the members of the commission, every witness attend-
ing' before ‘the commission shall be examined privately and the
commission shall not make public the particulars of such examina-
tion. The ecommission shall not have the power to take testimony
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at a private hearing or at a public hearing unless at least 2 of
its members are present af such hearing. -

e. Witnesses summoned to appear before the commission shall be
entitled to receive the same fees and mileage as persons summoned
to testify in the courts of the state. '

If any person subpeenaed pursuant to this section shall neglect
or refuse to obey the command of the subpena, any judge of the
superior court or of a county court or any municipal magistrate
may, on proof by affidavit of service of the subpena, payment or
tender of the fees required and of refusal or neglect by the person
to obey the command of the subpeena, issue a warrant for the arrest
of said person to bring him before the judge or magistrate, who is
authorized to proceed against such person as for a contempt of
court.

52:9M-13. Powers and duties unaffected, Nothing contained
in sections 2 through 12 of this act [chapter] shall be construed to
supersede, repeal or limit any power, duty or function of the
governor or any department or ageney of the state, or any political
subdivision thereof, as prescribed or defined by law.

52:9M—-14. Request and receipt of assistance. The commission
may request and shall receive from every department, division,
board, bureau, commission, authority or other agency created by
the state, or to which the state is a party, or of any political sub-
division thereof, cooperation and assistance in the performance of
its duties.

52:9M-15. Disclosure forbidden; statements absolutely priv-
Weged. Any person conducting or participating in any examina-
tion or investigation who shall disclose to any person other than
the commission or an officer having the power to appoint one or
more of the commissioners the name of any witness examined, or
any information obtained or given upon such examination or in-
vestigation, except as directed by the governor or commission, shall
be adjudged a disorderly person.

Any statement made by a member of the commission or an em-
ployee thereof relevant to any proceedings before or investigative
activities of the commission shall be absolutely privileged and such
privilege shall be a complete defense to any action for libel or
slander.
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52:9M~16. Impounding exhibits; action by superior court.
Upon the application of the commission, or a duly authorized mem-
ber of its staff, the superior court or a judge thereof may impound
any exhibit marked in evidence in any public or private hearing
held in connection with an investigation conducted by the cornmis-
sion, and may order such exhibit to be retained by, or delivered to
and placed in the custody of, the commission. When so impounded
such exhibits shall not be taken from the custody of the commission,
except npon further order of the court made upon 5 days’ notice to
the commission or upon its application or with its consent.

52:9M—-17. Immumnily; order; notice; effect of immunity. a. If,
in the course of any investigation or hearing conducted by the com-
mission, pursuant to this act [chapter], a pergson refuses to answer
a question or questions or produce evidence of any kind on the
ground that he will be exposed to eriminal prosecution or penalty
or to a forfeiture of his estate thereby, the commission may order
the person to answer the guestion or questions or produce the
requested evidence and confer immunity as in this section provided.
No order to answer or produce evidence with immunity shall be
made except by resolution of a majority of all the members of the
commisggion and after the attorney general and the appropriate
county prosecutor shall have been given at least 24 hours written
notice of the commission’s intention to issue such order and
afforded an opportunity to be heard in respect to any objections
they or either of them may have to the granting of immunity.

b. If upon issuance of such an order, the person complies there-
with, he shall be immune from having such responsive answer given
by him or such responsive evidence produced by him, or evidence
derived therefrom used to expose him to criminal prosecution or
penalty or to a forfeiture of his estate, except that such person
may nevertheless be prosecnted for any perjury committed in such
answer or in producing such evidence, or for contempt for failing
to give an answer or produce in accordance with the order of the
commission; and any such answer given or evidence produced shall
be admissible against him upon any criminal investigation, pro-
ceeding or trial against him for such perjury, or upon any investi-
gation, proceeding or trial against him for such contempt.

52:9M—-18. Severability; effect of partial invalidity. If any
section, clause or portion of this act [chapter] shall be unconstitu-
tional or be ineffective in whole or in part, to the extent that it is
not unconstitutional or ineffective it shall be valid and effective and
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no other sedtion, clause or provision shall on account thereof be
deemed invalid or ineffective.

52:9M-19, There is hereby appropriated to the Commlssmn the
sum of $400, 000

- 52:9M-20. This act shall take effect immediately and remain
in effect until December 31, 1979. .
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AprpeNDIX 1I
"MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION

The Commission’s activities have been under the direction of
Joseph H. Rodriguez who in December, 1973, was appointed to be
a Commissioner and Chairman by then Governor William T.
Cahill. He succeeded John F. McCarthy, Jr., who had been Chair-
man since February, 1971 and a Commissioner since July, 1970.
The other Commissioners as of July, 1976 were Thomas R. Farley,
Stewart G. Pollock and Lewis B. Kaden. Charles L. Bertini' left
the Commission in June of 1976. '

Mr. Rodriguez, of Cherry Hill, took his oath of office as
Commissioner and Chairman in Janumary, 1974. A graduate of
LaSalle College and Rutgers University Law School, he was
awarded an Honorary Doctor of Laws Degree by St. Peter’s
College in 1972, Mr. Rodriguez was a member of the Board of
Directors of the Camden Housing Improvement Project during
1967-71. He was appointed to the State Board of Higher Education
in 1971 and the next year was elected Chairman of that agency
which oversees the operation and growth of the state colleges and
university., Mr. Rodriguez resigned that Chairmanship to accept
his appointment to the Commission. He is a partner in the law
firm of Brown, Comnery, Kulp, Willie, Purnell and Greene, in
Camden.

Mr. Bertini, of Wood-Ridge, was sworn in as a Commissioner in
January, 1969 following his appointment by former Governor
Richard J. Hughes. A graduate of the former Dana College and
the Rutgers University Law School, he was president of the New
Jersey Bar Association when he was named to the Commission.
Bloomfield (N.J.) College awarded him an honorary Doctor of
Laws degree in 1970. Mr. Bertini conducts a general law practice
in Wood-Ridge.

Mr. Farley, of West Orange, took his original oath of office as a
Commissioner in March, 1973 following his appointment to the
Commission by then Speaker of the State Assembly Thomas .
Kean. A graduate of the University of Notre Dame and Rutgers

. University Law School, Mr. Farley served as an Hssex County
Freeholder during 1968-70 and as Essex County Surrogate in 1971.
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He has been an instructor in insurance finance courses at Rutgers
University and St. Peter’s College. His law firm, Farley and Rush,
has offices in East Orange.

Mr. Pollock, of Mendham, took his cath of office as Commissioner
in May, 1976 affer his appointment to the Commission by Senate
President Matthew Feldman, A gradnate of Hamilton College
and the New York University School of Law, Mr. Pollock served
as Assistant United Stateg Attorney for New Jersey during 1958-60.
A former Trustee of the College of Medicine and Dentistry of
New Jersey, Mr. Pollock served as a Commissioner of the New
Jersey Department of Public Utilities during 1974-76. He is a
partner in the law firm of Schenck, Price, Smith and King, Morris-
town, having been associated with that firm since 1960 except for
the period he served as a Public Utilities Commissioner.

Mr. Kaden of Perth Amboy, was sworn in as a Commissioner in
July, 1976, following his appointment by Governor Brendan T.
Byrne. A graduate of Harvard College and Harvard Law School,
he was the John Howard Scholar at Cambridge University, Eng-
land. F'rom 1974 to July, 1976, he was Counsel to Governor Byrne.
Mr. Kaden is now Professor of Law at Columbia University, and
active as a labor arbitrator and mediator,
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AprpENDIX III

CODE OF FAIR PROCEDURE

Chapter 376, Laws of New Jersey, 1968, N. J. 8. 52:13E-1
to 52:13E-190.

An Act establishing a code of fair procedure to govern state
investigaling agencies and providing a penalty for certain viola-
tions thereof.

Be it enacted by the Senate and General Assembly of the State
of New Jersey:

1. As used in this act:

(a) ‘“Agency’” means any of the following while engaged in an
investigation or inquiry: (1) the Governor or any person or per-
sons appointed by him acting pursuant to P. T.. 1941, c. 16, s. 1
(C. 52:15-7)), (2) any temporary State commission or duly autho-
rized committee thereof having the power to require testimony or
the produmection of evidence by subpoena, or (3) any legislative
committee or commission having the powers set forth in Revised
Statutes 52:13-1.

(b) ““Hearing’ means any hearing in the course of an investi- -
gatory proceeding (other than a preliminary conference or inter-
view at which no testimony is taken under oath} conducted before
an agency at which testimony or the production of other evidence
may be compelled by subpeena or other compulsory process.

- {e) ‘‘Public hearing’’ means any hearing open to the public, or
any hearing, or such part thereof, as fo which testimony or other
evidence is made available or disseminated to the public by the
agency.

(d) ““Private hearing’’ means any hearing other than a public
hearing.

2, No person may be required to appear at a hearing or to
testify at a hearing unless there has been personally served upon
him prior to the time when he is required to appear, a copy of this
act, and a general statement of the subjeet of the investigation. A

249



copy of the resolution, statute, order or other provision of law
authorizing the investigation shall be furnished by the ageney upon
request therefor by the person summoned.

3. A witness summoned to a hearing shall have the right fo be
accompanied by counsel, who shall be permitted to advise the
witness of his rights, sibject to reasonable limitations to prevent
obstruetion of or interference with the orderly conduct of the
hearing. Counsel for any witness who testifies at a public hearing
may submit proposed guestions to be asked of the witness relevant
to the matters upon which the witness has been questioned and the
agency shall ask the witness such of the questions as it may deem
appropriate fo its inquiry.

4. A couplete and accurate record shall be kept of each public
hearing and a witness shall be entitled to receive a copy of his
testimony at such hearing at his own expense. Where testimony
which a witness has given at a private hearing becomes relevant in
a criminal proceeding in which the witness is a defendant, or in any
subsequnent hearing in which the witness is summoned to testify,
the witness shall be entitled to a copy of such testimony, at his own
expense, provided the same is available, and provided further that
the furnishing of such copy will not prejudice the public safety or
security.

5. A witness who testifies at any hearing shall have the right at
the conelusion of his examination to file a brief sworn statement
relevant to his testimony for 1ncorporat1on in the record of the
investigatory proceeding.

6. Any person whose name is mentioned or who is specifically
identified and who believes that testimony or other evidence given
at a public hearing or comment made by any member of the agency
or its counsel at such hearing tends to defame him or otherwise
adversely affect his reputation shall have the right, either to
appear personally before the agency and testify in his own behalf
as o matters relevant to the testimony or other evidence com-
plained of, or in the aliernative at the option of the ageney, to file
a statement of facts under oath relating solely to matters relevant
to the testimony or other evidence compla,med of, which statement
shall be incorporated in the record of the investigatory pro-
ceeding.

7. Nothing in this act shall be construed to prevent an agency
from granting to witnesses appearing before if, or to persons who-
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claim to be adversely affected by testimony or other evidence

adduced before it, such further rights and privileges as it may
determine.

8. Except in the course of subsequent hearing which is open to
the public, no testimony or other evidence adduced at a private
hearing or preliminary conference or interview conducted before a
single-member agency in the course of its investigation shall be
disseminated or made available to the public by said agency, its
counsel or employees without the approval of the head of the
agency. Hxecept in the course of a subsequent hearing open to the
publie, no testimony or other evidence adduced at a private hearing
or preliminary conference or interview before a commitiee or other
multi-member investigating agency shall be disseminated or made
available to the public by any member of the agency, its counsel or
employees, except with the approval of a majority of the members
of such agency. Any person who violates the provisions of this
snbdivision shall be adjudged a disorderly person.

9. No temporary State commission having more than 2 members
shall have the power to take testimony at a public or private hear-
ing unless at least 2 of its members are present at such hearing.

10. Nothing in this act shall be construed to affect, diminigh or
impair the right, under any other provision of law, rule or eustom,
of any member or group of members of a committee or other mnlti-
member investigating agency to file a statement or statements of
minority views to accompany and be released with or subsequent
to the report of the eommitiee or agency.
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